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CITY OF MIRAMAR 
WELCOME TO YOUR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 
We are pleased that you have demonstrated an interest in the City of Miramar by attending a City 
Commission Meeting. We hope you will attend more of these meetings in the future. 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION:  The City of Miramar is a municipality chartered by the State of Florida 
operating under the "City Council - City Manager Plan."  The City Commission is comprised of four 
members and the Mayor selected by the residents of Miramar to serve as the City's governing body.  It is 
responsible for adopting policies of the City, passing ordinances, adopting resolutions and approving 
budgets.  A City Manager is appointed by the City Commission to serve as the administrative head of the 
municipal government and provides recommendations to the City Commission on policy issues. 
 
The City Commission Meeting is a formal meeting of the members of the Commission to transact City 
business.  This business is conducted in a manner prescribed by resolution, laws and regulations which 
require certain formal actions and the following of specific procedures. 
 
The AGENDA is a printed document that lists the order of business for the Commission Meeting.  The 
public is encouraged to contact the Mayor or any City Commissioner prior to a Commission Meeting to 
express their views on items appearing on the Agenda. 
 
* All cell phones and other electronic devices must be turned off prior to entering the Commission 
Chambers. 
 
The City Commission may consider and act upon such other business as may come before it in the event 
this agenda must be revised, such revised copies will be available to the public at the City Commission 
Meeting. 
 
GENERAL RULES AND PROCEDURES FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT CITY COMMISSION 
MEETINGS: 
Who May Speak - Any individual who wishes to address the City Commission may do so providing it is 
accomplished in an orderly manner and in accordance with the procedures outlined below. 
1. Speaking on items on the Agenda - Individuals wishing to speak on matters that appear on the 

Agenda need only to raise their hand to be recognized by the Mayor.  Discussion at Special 
Meetings is limited to the items referred to on the Agenda for such Special Meetings. 

2. Other Business Items - These are items placed on the Agenda by the Mayor or a Commissioner 
and either are requests for the preparation of future legislation or are requests for possible 
direction to the Administration.   

3. Speaking on items not on the Agenda - Public Participation - Any individual may speak on any 
subject pertinent to the City at the second regularly scheduled meeting of each month.  
Individuals must sign in with the City Clerk prior to the meeting.  The Mayor will recognize those 
persons who signed in, under the agenda item "Public Participation". 

 4. Addressing Commission, Manner & Time - Public discussion during all items is limited to three 
minutes maximum per person, however, the Mayor at his/her discretion may allow more time.  
Each person who addresses the Commission shall step up to the speaker's podium and shall 
give his/her name and address. 

 
The above represents a summarization of the Commission Procedures Resolution.  Copies of this resolution are available from the 
City Clerk's Office.   Any person requiring auxiliary aids and services at this meeting may call the City Clerk’s Office at 954-602-3011 
at least two calendar days prior to the meeting.   
 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the City Commission with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or 
hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose may need to insure that a verbatim recording of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
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CITY OF MIRAMAR 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
Wednesday, March 23, 2016 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER:     
 
 
ROLL CALL/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
 Presentation:  Legislative Update (House Representative Shevrin Jones) 
 
 Presentation:  Flamingo Road Reclaim Water & Amphitheater Projects 

Funding.  (House Representative Manny Diaz) 
 

 Proclamation:  Water Conservation Month.  (Mayor Wayne M. Messam) 
 

Proclamation: National Community Development Week.  (Mayor Wayne M. 
Messam) 
 
Proclamation:  Camasha Cevieux Day.  (Mayor Wayne M. Messam)  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Items listed under Consent Agenda are viewed to be routine and the 
recommendation will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. If 
discussion is desired, the item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
will be considered separately. Anyone wishing to comment on any item on the 
consent agenda should approach the podium now.   
 
1. Minutes from the Cottages at University Park HOA Meeting of February 3, 2016, 

Regular Commission Meeting of February 23, 2016, and Special and Regular 
Commission Meetings of March 2, 2016. 
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2. Temp. Reso. #R5988 approving and authorizing the City Manager to execute  a 

Cash Security Agreement and issue to Broward County a cash bond in the 
amount of $405,464 as security for the Flamingo Road Reclaimed Water 
Distribution Main Project.  (Utilities Director Hong Guo) 

 
3. Temp. Reso. #R5889 approving an amendment to Resolution No. 15-09, to 

change the location for the new playground equipment from Miramar 
Regional Park to Civic Center Park and to reduce the approved expenditure 
amount from $103,155 for the purchase of playground equipment from Playcore 
Wisconsin, Inc. d/b/a Gametime through Dominica Recreation Products, Inc. to 
an amount not-to-exceed $89,290.  (Parks & Recreation Director Terrence 
Griffin) 

 
End of Consent 

 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (7:30 – 8:00 P.M.) 
 
 

RESOLUTIONS 
 

4.       Temp. Reso. #R5979 approving the award of Request for Proposals No. 15-09-
47 for Third Party Claims Administration Services to Gallagher Bassett 
Services, Inc.; authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with 
Gallagher Bassett Services, Inc. for a three year term, commencing April 1, 2016, 
with two one-year renewal options.  (Human Resources Director Sam Hines and 
Procurement Director Randy Cross)  

 
5. Temp Reso. #R5996 authorizing the renewal of various insurance coverages 

for the City's Protected Self-Insurance Program as part of the City's 
Comprehensive Risk Management Program, effective April 1, 2016 through 
March 31, 2017 (the "Insurance Renewals"); approving a projected premium cost 
not-to-exceed $2,206,171, including taxes and fees; declaring by four-fifths 
affirmative vote that applying the City's competitive procurement procedures to 
the insurance renewals is not in the City's best interest, thereby exempting the 
insurance renewals from the City's competitive procurement requirements; 
authorizing the Human Resources Director to negotiate lower premium amounts 
due under the insurance renewals.  (Human Resources Director Sam Hines)  

 
6. Temp. Reso. #R6018 approving a Comprehensive Pay Plan for unrepresented 

employees for the period beginning October 1, 2015 through September 30, 
2016.  (Human Resources Director Sam Hines)  
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PUBLIC HEARING 

 
7. Temp. Reso. #R5992 adopting the Local Housing Assistance Plan ("LHAP") 

for the City of Miramar's State Housing Initiatives Partnership ("SHIP") 
Program for Fiscal Years 2016-2017, 2017-2018, and 2018-2019; authorizing 
submission of the LHAP to the Florida Housing Finance Corporation.  
(Community & Economic Development Director Eric Silva) 

 
 

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
 

All who wish to speak shall be collectively sworn in. City Attorney will then read 
the title of the item to be considered. Staff shall present a brief synopsis of the 
application and make a recommendation. Next will be a presentation by the applicant. 
The Commission will then hear from participants in favor of and in opposition to the 
application. The applicant, staff and or any Commissioner may cross-examine the 
witnesses, and a participant may request that the board ask questions of a witness. The 
public hearing will conclude with final remarks by staff and the applicant. No further 
presentations or testimony shall be permitted. All decisions of the Commission must be 
based upon competent substantial evidence presented to it at the hearing. All backup 
materials provided to the City Commission, as a part of the agenda will automatically be 
made a part of the record of the hearing.  All approvals will be subject to staff 
recommended conditions unless otherwise stated in the motion for approval. 
 
8. Temp. Reso. #R5997 considering Application No. 1505794, Site Plan Approval 

for MPC30, a 71,466 square foot warehouse distribution building, to be located 
on a 9.22-acre vacant lot at the northwest corner of Executive Way and Miramar 
Parkway within Miramar Park of Commerce Phase III.  (Community & Economic 
Development Director Eric Silva) 
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OTHER BUSINESS 

 
 
 

9.  Reports and Comments: 
 
 
  Commission Reports: 

   
(a) Broward League of Cities Board of Director Appointments (Mayor 
Wayne M. Messam) 
 

  City Attorney Reports: 
 
 
  City Manager Reports: 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FUTURE WORKSHOP 
 

Date         Time      Subject           Location 

 
03/23/16 

 
5:30 P.M. 

Broward County Marijuana Ordinance 
& Florida Retirement System (FRS) 

Commission 
Conference  Room 

 
 

 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

THE NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED CITY COMMISSION MEETING IS: 
 
 

April 6, 2016 at 7:00 P.M. 
 
 

 



1.
CONSENT AGENDA

March 23, 2016
CITY OF MIRAMAR

PROPOSED CITY COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM
 Minutes from the Cottages at University Park HOA Meeting of February 3, 2016, 

Regular Commission Meeting of February 23, 2016, and Special and Regular 
Commission Meetings of March 2, 2016   

a. Minutes from the Cottages at University Park HOA Meeting of February 3, 2016 
b. Minutes from the Regular Commission Meeting of February 23, 2016
c. Minutes from the Special Commission Meeting of March 2, 2016
d. Minutes from the Regular Commission Meeting of March 2, 2016

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.
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MINUTES OF THE CITY OF MIRAMAR 

COTTAGES OF MIRAMAR AT 
UNIVERSITY PARK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

 

February 3, 2016          7:30 P.M.  

 
The Annual Meeting for the Cottages of Miramar At University Park Homeowners 
Association (HOA), Inc., was called to order on Wednesday, February 3, 2016, at 
7:30 p.m. at Association Services of Florida, Training Room, 10112 USA Today 
Way, Miramar, Florida 33025. 
 
Board Members Present: 
 
   Annmarie Cadette, President 
   Norman Boxe, Vice President 
   Alfonso DeCosta 
 
Board Members Absent: 
 
   Veronica Wade, Secretary  
   Sean Mills 
 
Members of the Miramar City Commission present: 
 

Mayor Wayne M. Messam 
Commissioner Yvette Colbourne 
 

Members of City of Miramar Staff, Commission Aides present: 
 

Yessenia Diaz, Community Resource Officer (CRO) 
Edna Laroche, Executive Secretary, Mayor Messam 
Frederika DeJean, Recording Secretary 

 

 Certify Quorum of Membership (If Quorum is reached, Agenda will 
Continue) 

 
Martin Vuong, property manager, noted a quorum could not be declared, as there 
were only seven unit owners present, and at least 44 were needed to elect new 
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board members.  The meeting agenda, therefore, would not proceed, and the 
existing Board members would roll over for the next year consisting of Annmarie 
Cadette, Norman Boxe, Alfonso Decosta, Sean Mills, and Veronica Wade.  He 
indicated there were sufficient Board members present for a quorum to allow the 
Board to hold an organizational meeting, or they could wait up to ten days to hold 
another meeting, if the Board preferred.  In the organizational meeting, Board 
members could decide as to who would serve in the positions of president, vice 
president, treasurer, and secretary.  He called the organizational meeting to 
order at 7:31 p.m.   
 
A motion was made and seconded to approve retaining the existing Board 
members in their current positions.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
A motion was made, seconded, and unanimously carried to close the 
organizational meeting at 7:32 p.m. 
 
The Board members, elected officials and City staff members present introduced 
themselves. 
 
Ms. Cadette asked if CRO Diaz was The Cottages CRO. 
 
Officer Diaz stated she was not, explaining she was a Community Resource Unit 
member and was attending the meeting as the representative for Officer Sejour, 
the community‟s assigned CRO.  She indicated that the department recently lost 
one of its fellow officers, Office Joseph Vetter, who recently passed away of 
natural causes.  The Police Department was in mourning, and Officer Sejour was 
part of the Department‟s Honor Guard and was in training and preparing for the 
services to be held in Honor of Officer Vetter the coming Friday afternoon and 
Saturday morning.  Officer Diaz distributed “Try Community of Miramar Police” 
pamphlets, stating it contained great information for residents to keep handy in 
their homes or the glove compartment of their car, as it contained all Police 
Department numbers, including Code Enforcement.  The Cottages was assigned 
a code enforcement office, Mr. Samuels, and all the officers worked together, 
sharing information.   

She mentioned the upcoming 41st Citizens Police Academy that the 
Miramar Police Department would be holding; the Academy was held twice a 
year and consisted of City residents.  The first Academy of 2016 would begin on 
February 9.  She explained the Citizen‟s Academy was a resident‟s perspective 
of the Police Department from every imaginable aspect, covering code 
enforcement, traffic, criminal investigations, etc.  The goal was to educate 
residents on all aspects of policing, such as what officers did on their way to a 
call and, in this way, when residents knew a police officer was en route to a call, 
they could take certain steps to facilitate the process.  This knowledge made 
individuals who participated in the program better residents, parents, neighbors, 
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etc.  Additionally, the program taught residents how to handle themselves better 
financially, learning how to protect their assets and not become victims of fraud.   

The Program was held every week for 14 weeks on Tuesday nights at 
7:00 p.m. for two hours at the Miramar Police Department, where residents were 
given a variety of presentations.  There were no books involved, as the 
presentations were made by persons directly involved in police work on a daily 
basis, and were better able to answer any questions by resident participants.  
She distributed flyers and applications, noting there were still a few seats 
available in the February program.  A background check was run on residents 
wishing to participate in the program.  Officer Diaz said after the completion of 
the 14 weeks, there was a graduation ceremony at the Hilton that was attended 
by City officials and the Chief of Police. 
 
Ms. Cadette inquired as to the general age of the participants. 
 
Officer Diaz replied ages 17 and older, and for those interested residents under 
17 years of age, the City had other programs for juveniles she highly 
recommended, such as the Police Explorers, as well as summer programs. 
 
Ms. Cadette asked about the last date to sign up for the Academy. 
 
Officer Diaz responded there was no real last date, admission into the Academy 
was done on a first come, first served basis, so she preferred residents who were 
interested in joining to sign up early to reserve their seat; in the last Academy, 
there were 42 residents. 
 
Commissioner Colbourne mentioned not having gone to any of the classes, but 
on the occasions when she attended the graduation ceremony, she saw a group 
of individuals who, over the period of time, had form strong friendships.  Thus, 
there was obvious bonding that took place over the 14 weeks, and they all 
appeared very pleased with the program and with the officers.  She urged 
residents to become part of the family. 
 
A female resident asked if food was served. 
 
Officer Diaz answered yes, snacks were usually served on Tuesday nights, and 
there was a dinner at the graduation ceremony.  She added that an agenda of 
the classes over the 14 weeks was handed out to participants, and they could 
elect to attend classes that they were most interested, though their attendance at 
all presentations was preferable.  With regard to the Police Explorers program, it 
was for youths 13 to 17 years of age, and the program went on throughout the 
year.  It was more of camaraderie, to teach children about community service 
and other aspects of education they might not receive going to school.  The 
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children were very involved with law enforcement, did charity work with the 
officers, homeless task force events, and it was a very positive experience. 

She next spoke about swimming, stating Broward County had a free 
swimming program, Swim Central Broward, for all children ages six months to 
four years.  She handed out flyers with the contact information for those 
interested, or children could be registered on the City‟s website; residents could 
pick from locations in Miramar, Hollywood, Pembroke Pines, YMCA, the Regional 
Park, etc.  It was ten weeks of free swimming classes. 
 
City Commissioner Colbourne questioned if swimming classes were offered for 
adults. 
 
Officer Diaz indicated her research into swimming programs for adults other than 
seniors yielded no results.  There was an adult swimming program for adults over 
the age of 55 years that was offered through the YMCA, and depending on one‟s 
insurance. 
 
Ms. Dejean believed there were adult swimming classes offered in east Miramar, 
as well as at the Miramar Regional Park, though it involved some cost. 
 
Officer Diaz mentioned ways to protect oneself from fraud, noting people went 
dumpster diving, which was searching through garbage, looking for residents‟ 
personal information: utility bills, bank statements, etc.  She urged residents to 
call the police if they someone who they knew not to be a resident of the 
neighborhood digging through garbage cans, as this was considered a 
suspicious incident.  Looking through garbage was not a .crime, but it was if 
someone took something with the intent to use it fraudulently. 
 
Mayor Messam mentioned that the City provided periodic shredding 
opportunities, the most recent being about a month ago.  The best way for 
residents to receive communications from the City would be to sign up to receive 
the City‟s email distribution on the City‟s website.  When residents signed up 
using their email, they could customize what City information they wished to 
receive notices about.  
 
Officer Diaz noted the shredding program was done in conjunction with Broward 
County, and a similar program existed for the safe disposal of expired or 
unwanted medicines. 
 
Ms. Cadette thought the information was very useful and could be highlighted in 
their community newsletter. 
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Mr. Vuong opened the question and answer period between the residents and 
elected officials, asking residents to state their name and address, their 
question(s), and to which elected official they were directing their question. 
 
Ms. Cadette referred to the list of questions from the residents already provided 
to the elected officials before the meeting, asking if they could begin with those. 
 
Question 1: On the proposed budget for 2016, what amount was allocated 
to the Sherman Circle area for improvement? 
 
Question 2: Who performs area surveys to determine what needs to be 
done in the area? 
 
Question 3: We were looking to get a wall along Miramar Boulevard.  What 
type of help will the City provide for this project? 
 
Question 4: Previously discuss the City providing permits without the 
association first giving permits.  This is causing a problem.  Is there a form 
that the homeowners need to bring in form the association with approval 
prior to the City giving the permits?  If not, can this be looked into? 
 
Question 5: Common areas are maintained by the City.  However, the 
landscapers are not doing a good job.  They do a brush over and move on.  
With the understanding that our tax dollars are being used for this purpose, 
we would like this to be addressed by the City. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Let me just provide just some general comments.  Typically, 
when I attend association meetings with questions, we request the inquiries, so 
that we can follow up and have the information provided.  You have some very 
important questions here on the list, after reviewing them, and obviously just 
coming in, not knowing, we don‟t have specific responses for this.  May of your 
questions are dealing with our Planning Department, in terms of common areas, I 
know there‟s some questions in terms of surveys of parcels, what belongs in your 
association, what doesn‟t belong in your association, and our staff will be in a 
position to be able to at least help you, as an association.  Because I understand 
you have a new property manager, and you‟re trying to get more things under 
control.  What we will do is, we will forward this onto the appropriate department.  
For example, with the last question, the issue here is that you‟re not satisfied with 
the level of service of the maintenance, on the surface, just looking at it.  So our 
Public Works Department that manages our landscape contracts would say, well, 
let‟s go out, do a site visit to see specifically what is the area not meeting the 
expectations, so that then we can get a specific resolution to it.  This issue, I said 
you can make a note if you have a print out of it.  This would be our Public Works 
Department for the last question, that would address the quality of work of that 
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contract.  Then we can identify the contractors, we can ensure that they‟re 
actually meeting the terms of the contract.  If not, there‟s deficit, then we can 
make sure that our staff is enforcing the contract. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Mayor, if I could as well. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Go ahead. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: I did receive these questions earlier today, and 
I went ahead and I forwarded them over to staff, so that they can do a quick 
overview, and look at it and see.  The Mayor is correct.  We want to provide good 
answers to you to make sure that we are addressing your concerns.  And some 
of it, most of it, because of the timeframe that it was provided, it‟s difficult to just 
go ahead and go through the budget, and have staff go through and see exactly 
how much money is allocated specifically to Sherman Circle.  We can talk about, 
in terms of that one in particular, some of the things that we have done in that 
area, and maybe you can give us an idea, some of the things, specifically, that 
you are looking for in that area, and then maybe we can give you some guidance 
on it.  We‟ll be able to relate to staff more specifically, exactly what you‟re looking 
for.  In Sherman Circle, the City has done improvement on both parks, because 
you Lakeshore Park and Forzano Park in that area.  Well, we‟ve done some for 
Forzano park. I think they still have one where they‟re actually expanding the 
park and the parking lot there.  Forzano Park, they have limited parking spaces 
there, and I know that some of the issues that you have with parking, the 
overflow parking from that park.  So that will be alleviated when that project is 
completed, when you have the additional parking it should make it better.  On 
Lakeshore Park,, they are also doing improvement on that park, additional,  think 
they have a lot of parking spaces there, so they actually doing, they‟re cutting 
back on some of the parking, having more greenspace. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I was going to touch on these areas on the back end.  I was 
wanting to just cover the questions that couldn‟t be answered tonight, because 
many of these are technical responses, like who performs surveys, in terms of 
what needs to be done in the area.  We would need more information on what 
the question means, give us some more background, in terms of what survey of 
what? 
 
MS. CADETTE: Survey; who comes around the area and says, “This is what we 
want for improvement.”  Who is the one that‟s going out to make that decision?  
Do they get buy-in from the citizens in the area to say, “Look, we are living here.  
What we would like is X, Y, and Z.”  Who in the City is making these decisions?  I 
mean they‟re made and then they‟re given to the citizens.  How does it work? 
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MAYOR MESSAM: It‟s a combination of communication between the residents 
and the City; for example, an elected official can bring up an idea in terms of 
improvements within the City.  In terms of everyday, just normal maintenance, 
common areas are maintained by City staff or by contractors.  For example, 
cutting the grass, if there‟s hedging, keeping the hedging done.  If there are any 
trip hazards, those are big, because a lot of times roots, raised sidewalks can 
cause trip hazards, and those things we need to identify quickly, because we 
don‟t want anyone being hurt.  In terms of Sherman Circle, there won‟t be 
anywhere in the budget that will say Sherman Circle specifically, unless it‟s on 
the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), a specific project.  Sherman Circle area, as 
Commissioner Colbourne was mentioning earlier, the two neighborhood parks, 
Lakeshore Park and Forzano Park, those two projects were part of the CIP that 
was funded by the 2013 revenue bond, the $60 million bond that was funding the 
Police Headquarters, parks throughout the City, and some other infrastructure 
projects.  The main work done at Forzano Park was the improvements of the 
grading at the park, so all the baseball fields are converted to soccer fields, 
because there‟s not much baseball being played anymore, but there‟s a lot of 
soccer and American football being played at Forzano Park.  In fact, the park 
was closed down for months, so you have state of the art brand new resurfacing, 
new turf at the park.  Lakeshore Park, same thing, there‟ll be improvements at 
the park in terms of greenspace and other fixtures.  But you will notice around the 
City, you will see signs at parks and different areas of the City that says: Your 
bond dollars at work.  Any one of those signs has the name of the project, the 
anticipated start date, the scope of work, what is going to actually be done, and 
it‟s there for people in the neighborhood, to communicate, to inform you of what 
is taking place.  What we‟ll do is we‟ll email you the schedule of not just the 
projects in Sherman Circle, but all the projects throughout the City, so you can 
see exactly where these projects are allocated.  So there are two good projects 
coming to Sherman Circle, because those two parks are heavily used, and parks 
are one of the most used assets in the City, so we‟re trying to make sure that 
they‟re kept up to speed. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: At Lakeshore Park, it says additional 
playground and pavilion, is what you can expect there, removal of the excess 
parking to create open play green areas, and upgrade and enhance the existing 
parking lighting, the lighting and the gate as well, the pedestrian gate. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Do they have a start date on that, estimated? 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Yes, estimated to start this year in May and 
completion in September. 
 
MS. CADETTE: I guess it allows for more family time utilization of the park with 
the pavilions. 
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COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Absolutely, right. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Will that have barbeques and things like that? 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Currently they do. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: That‟s a good question.  I don‟t know.  I don‟t think there‟s a 
grill there.  I don‟t know that we have grills at any of our parks. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: We do.  I know the one at River Run.  We‟ll 
find out. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I‟ve never barbequed at any of our parks.  Because usually 
when you go to parties or picnics at the park, you bring the food. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: He‟s right.  No, they don‟t have it.  You bring 
your own grill. 
 
OFFICER DIAZ: At River Run, there‟s one grill, I believe, in the center by the tot 
lot. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: That‟s what I thought.  That‟s a good question, 
to see whether or not there will be one at this park. 
 
MS. CADETTE: I just wanted to see the scope, as sometimes a family may say: 
let‟s just go to the park, have a day out, a barbeque day out, and they‟ll do it, 
versus doing it at the house, or you want to have a gathering, a birthday party or 
something.  That would be great. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Those are the benefits of keeping up and 
understanding what projects are coming up, because you have input as to what it 
is your community would like, so the sooner you understand what‟s coming up 
before it happens, before we go to a contract, the better you can have input. 
 
MS. CADETTE: To add to that, and I‟m not sure if that has been given a 
consideration, that park has been an area where there has been a lot of crime 
committed. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: What crimes specifically?  I‟m not saying that they‟re not. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Where people are being robbed around the park area, and I 
wanted to know, have considered any cameras around that area that will assist 
to keep the safety. 
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MAYOR MESSAM: Cameras have not been a discussion.  However, because we 
are improving lighting at the parks, that‟s a big deterrent for anyone who would 
seek to harm someone or to assault someone.  It‟s usually when dark areas 
where people can get away, and under cover to commit these crimes, so that‟s 
why it‟s so important that we are improving the lighting at the parks.  Because a 
well-lit area is a deterrent for crime.  If you‟re doing crime, you don‟t want to be 
known or seen, so with improved lighting, it helps.  Of course, if someone is just 
adamant to do something, there‟s very little you can do, but we can create the 
environment that deters criminal activity, and that‟s one of the main reasons why 
these projects are so important.  I‟m not sure if you follow the whole bond 
process, but in 2013, that‟s when the City was really coming out of the economic 
depression, and our parks were going down, infrastructure was going down.  The 
reason for pushing the bond was we knew that we started to see signs of 
improvements in the City.  We were getting a lot of applications in for 
development and construction projects, so we knew that the recovery was 
coming.  It‟s just that while we were in the midst of it, you can‟t feel it, but we 
could not wait any longer to delay the improvements, and that‟s why the pushing 
of the bond, very controversial, but it did pass.  I‟m always reminding residents 
on the importance of staying engaged.  Just as you‟re here tonight at your 
meeting, we also encourage you to come to Commission meetings.  You don‟t 
have to come every time we meet, but it‟s on the community channel, and you 
can see it online; stay engaged, because when we have these important 
questions and issues, like do we pass this bond or not, we need residents to be 
visible, because it‟s our community, it‟s your neighborhoods that are being 
impacted on these decisions. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Just to add to that.  I know you say well-lit area, but I had 
daytime crimes where it was my child being robbed at that park, Lakeshore, and 
it was, poor child, three times, three iPhones, until I said no more iPhones, 
because the last time it was at gunpoint.  I said to him, “I guess the next time 
they‟ll kill you, so you won‟t get another iPhone.” 
 
OFFICER DIAZ: I did some research on the incidents, and I‟m so sorry that that 
happened to your son three times, a theft and two robberies.  This was in 2014, 
„15? 
 
MS. CADETTE: Yes, 2014. 
 
OFFICER DIAZ: I don‟t know if you‟re aware, but out of the three, there were 
actually two arrests on two of those cases, which is fantastic. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Were you the officer who came out to meet with him? 
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OFFICER DIAZ: I could have been.  I‟ve been a detective, I‟ve been on the 
streets, so it could have been me.  Again, I‟m sorry that did happen to him, and 
it‟s very rare for anyone to be victimized three times, but we did make two arrests 
on two separate cases.  I actually read the reports before coming here tonight, 
and that did happen.  We had a group of teens that were targeting other 
juveniles, and they were specifically targeting cell phones.  Our Crime Unit 
actually made the arrests on two separate cases.  A lot of times victims, the 
follow up doesn‟t occur from the State Attorney‟s Office, but I do have specific 
information that I can provide you with, as far as who was arrested, and what the 
sentencing is on those two cases. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Thank you, because about three months ago or so, he was 
coming home from school, and he said a car drove up, and started to like, “Hey.” 
and he kept going, and he said he actually started running, but when he started 
running, the car was chasing at him, and this is a big, six-foot kid, but he had the 
fear of coming home from school, because he was afraid that this person may 
see him.  So I‟m like the big bad wolf, I‟m like, “Let me go out there and see if I 
could find this car.”  Because I want to know who this person is that wants to 
meet up with my child. 
 
OFFICER DIAZ: Whenever something like that happens, if you could please, 
immediately call 911.  We get those calls, and we don‟t take them lightly.  We 
even had helicopters up looking for vehicles, because they don‟t have to touch a 
child for it to be a crime.  We‟re concerned about those who are attempting, as 
those are the ones we want to identify immediately.  So, please, I ask you, dial 
911, and don‟t take things upon yourself, because you don‟t have the resources 
that we have to be able to assist.  Tell your son also to do it if that should happen 
again.  What school does he attend, if you don‟t mind me asking? 
 
MS. CADETTE: Somerset by Pembroke Road. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Florida Bible? 
 
MS. CADETTE: Yes. 
 
OFFICER DIAZ: You have excellent school resource officers, Officer Rivas (sp) 
is the school resource officer there.  Would it be okay if I give her your son‟s 
name, so I can introduce them?  Would that be okay? 
 
MS. CADETTE: Yes, that would be fine. 
 
OFFICER DIAZ: Very well, and he‟s in what grade? 
 
MS. CADETTE: He‟s in 11th grade right now. 
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OFFICER DIAZ: I‟ll speak to her and make sure that she introduces herself to 
him. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Yes, the safety is very concerning. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: What we can also do too is we can speak with the Police 
Chief just to make sure that we have increased, at least just patrol during school 
dismissal hours when the students are walking home from school.  
 
FEMALE RESIDENT: That‟s a good idea.  I also want to say to the officer that I 
feel when anybody calls the police, just to compliment them; you guys are really 
there.  I know sometimes not in a nice way it looks like a whole army comes in 
and they block my corner house, and I‟ve lived in Miami and lived in Miramar for 
almost ten years.  I feel if I call the police, I‟m going to feel like I have an army 
around my house, because it‟s never one car, it‟s like four or five cars.  That feels 
good though. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: That‟s good, we like to hear that. 
 
FEMALE RESIDENT: Yes, I live in Miramar for a while now, and I really do love it 
here.  The atmosphere is good around here, and I really enjoy it.  I‟ll be in my 
yard, I‟m a single woman, I live alone, and I‟ll be in my yard at night, watering my 
plants or doing something out there, and I‟m not afraid.  But just hearing what 
you just mentioned, walking to the mailbox, now I‟m scared.  Maybe I should just 
drive out there to the mailbox, I don‟t know. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: You can‟t be scared, you have to be aware of 
what‟s going on. 
 
MS. CADETTE: You just have to be aware of your surroundings. 
 
FEMALE RESIDENT: What I do, I put cameras around and inside my house, I 
just do everything to protect myself. 
 
OFFICER DIAZ: We actually offer safety inspections of residence for free.  We 
personally coordinate that; we can do inside your house or the exterior of your 
house.  Those surveillance cameras that you have are excellent I‟m sure, but 
sometimes it‟s just that tree that‟s overgrown.  We‟re all CPTED certified in my 
unit, which stands for Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design, so it‟s 
the environment that surrounds your house.  We‟ll be able to tailor it, be able tell 
you things that you can do, usually for free, to better your quality of surveillance 
and safety in your home.  If anyone‟s interested in that, just let me know. 
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FEMALE RESIDENT: As she mentioned about trees, my neighbor next door, 
they have two big grown trees in the backyard, even hanging out on the street, 
and anybody could go there and hide in that backyard. 
 
MS. CADETTE: That‟s something that we can get code enforcement to look at it 
and address it, if it‟s something that‟s obscuring.  Bring it to our attention, please, 
and I‟ll have Martin work with our code enforcement officers and see if that‟s a 
hindrance to our safety. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Yes, if you bring it to the attention of our code enforcement 
officers. 
 
MS. CADETTE: We‟ll look to see what type of violations there may be for that.  
Let‟s move on with the next questions that you feel need to be addressed outside 
of this forum. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I was speaking with your property manager earlier, he 
brought up the issue regarding the wall along Miramar Boulevard.  Just as a rule 
of thumb, we have so many associations in the City, and with your specific 
association, I know that the City is maintaining the roads.  I‟m not sure about the 
common areas. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Yes, the common areas and the roads are the responsibility of 
the City. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Anything that‟s the responsibility of the City that‟s not being 
maintained, we need to know, so we can make sure that our staff is doing what 
the City is supposed to do.  Now areas that belong to the association and under 
the authority and the management of the association is the responsibility of the 
association.  In terms of the wall, what specifically regarding the wall?  Have you 
got a consultant to give you pricing on what your wall would cost? 
 
MS. CADETTE: Martin, yes.  Actually, he said we needed someone architectural 
to come out, because what I realize is, as you go towards the end of Douglas of 
Road, where we had the common area where they walked, it‟s now narrowed.  
We would have to get the homeowner‟s approval to get that wall there, because 
it may encroach on their property.  The homeowner may not be a part of the 
association either. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Was your HOA formed as a voluntary association?  Was it 
developed as a master association, or was it that these properties were built, 
then later an association started?  Do you have the history? 
 



  
 

13 

City of Miramar 

Cottage at University Park. 

Annual HOA Meeting Minutes 

February 3, 2016 

MR. BOXE: I came in 1985, and houses were still being built, and the association 
existed.  The problem is there are some homes, some streets that don‟t belong to 
the association, and they‟re in the midst of Sherman Circle.  There are about 
three streets that don‟t belong to the Cottages, so there are a bunch of streets 
going this way on the south side that don‟t belong, and then there‟s two more cul-
de-sacs, so it‟s weird.  The fence that borders on Miramar Boulevard goes for a 
distance, not all the way to University Drive, it starts about a third way down and 
then stops at the back of these streets, and then it picks up again on Douglas 
Road and goes on, and two blocks that belong to the association, 21st and 22nd 
Streets. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I‟m trying to think, there‟s no wall there now? 
 
MR. BOXE: It‟s a wood fence. 
 
MS. CADETTE: That‟s what we‟re trying to change, but we‟re coming up with so 
many different issues, that we decided, instead of going with a fence, we would 
want to do a more permanent structure, such as a wall.  It‟s going to cost more 
money, but I think it will look a lot more beautiful, and it will be more permanent.  
Given the thought that it was a gateway to the City of Miramar. 
 
MR. BOXE: Part of the problem is years ago when the first fence rotted, the City 
notified us that we needed to change it, which we did.  The association didn‟t 
have a lot of money then, and we had to do an assessment for everyone, but 
now the fence is on its way out.  After we did that fence, the City went in and 
planted hedges on the outside of the fence, and the hedge grew up and was 
being maintained, but when we had hurricane Wilma, and the disease, which 
damaged the hedge, the hurricane blew down some of the fence, and we‟ve 
been patching it ever since. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: When you replaced the fence, what about the properties that 
are not in the association?   
 
MS. CADETTE: We did the entire thing. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: They didn‟t have an issue with it? 
 
MR. BOXE: Originally, we did.  The first time we did, but since it‟s been 
damaged, they‟ve been doing their own thing, so you notice there‟s a 
hodgepodge of fences all the way down to Douglas. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Yes. 
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MS. CADETTE: Very tacky.  It‟s a very, very sticky situation, and I want to get 
this situation to a point where we can get that uniformity in the area, and the only 
way to get a uniformity to the area is when the City comes in and says: this is 
what we can do.  People buy in, because if it‟s the association, they‟ll say they 
don‟t have to, but when the City takes over, they mandate it. 
 
MR. BOXE: I think to put it in a nutshell, what  we‟re thinking of is we have some 
funds, but we‟re looking to do a concrete fence, which cost quite a bit; we haven‟t 
got a quote, but we‟re looking for some help to do something more permanent. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: I am intimately familiar with the area, because I 
pass it a couple times in the day to get to my house.  The City does maintain 
that, and it really needs to be brought up to par.  That‟s a discussion that I‟ve had 
with City staff, and I‟ve also had on the dais as well, in terms of improving that 
area.  There is a landscaping project the City has throughout the City, and that 
area on Miramar Boulevard is also included in the project as one of the targeted 
areas, because of the way it currently looks.  I think it‟s worthwhile sitting down 
with the City and discussing the issue, especially if you want to work with the City 
and see whether or not there‟s something that can be done, because they are 
spending money to maintain it.  If somehow, you take care of the wall, they take 
care of the landscaping, maybe something could be worked out, so I think it‟s 
worthwhile to discussing it with the City, because we do want that area improved. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: It‟s two separate issues.  I don‟t want to give the impression 
that the City is going to build the wall.  As Commissioner Colbourne says, the 
City‟s landscaping projects, that‟s on the outside, and with the improvements 
coming in, it doesn‟t address your specific question in terms of the wall.  Now 
things that I know that the City can do right now to assist is perhaps is whenever 
you hire your design consultant for the wall, they can sit with our staff to make 
sure that the easements are identified, the property lines are identified, so that 
you know for sure what properties are in the association, and are not in the 
association.  At least you can have a schedule of homes, and you‟ll know exactly 
who they are.  You have to get to the point to say: we‟re going to build this type 
of wall, it‟s going to be this number of linear feet, and the proposed cost is 
whatever the number is.  The rule of thumb is if it‟s on the HOA‟s property, it‟s the 
full responsibility of the HOA. 
 
MR. BOXE: We understand that. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I want to assume that we‟re all thinking on those lines, and I 
just want to discuss the process, so once we can work with you to help you get to 
a point.  You may be thinking of one wall type, and our facilities and construction 
division may be able to propose alternative wall systems that you may prefer, 
and it may be more cost effective and meets the aesthetics that you‟re looking 
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for.  Those are the things that we can work with the board and the property 
manager to help get you to the point to being able to move forward. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Thank you for that, because to segue into it, what I was going to 
think of is the City giving us a little assistance with their contractors, where they 
can work out a better discount for us, just help us in that sense. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: The City, we go out to bid.  In other words, your property 
manager, they‟re a professional property management company, and I would 
imagine that once you have the design for the fence, that they would go out and 
competitively bid it.  Put it out for a bid, that‟s what the City does.  We don‟t 
necessarily have contractors, we broadcast and put a solicitation out to the 
public, and then all those who are interested, they put in their bids, and the 
lowest responsive bidder wins.  That, typically, will get you where you want to be 
in terms of knowing that you have a competitive process to give you the best 
price for what you want to have built. 
 
MS. CADETTE: The next question is the permit situation.  We continuously have 
so many issues with permits, and the City gives permits to the residents.  
However the residents don‟t go to the association first; the only question is: are 
you in an association?  Yeah.  So what?  What does that mean to the City?  You 
understand?  The City should have something documented from the association 
and working with us, before they are giving out these permits. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: On this issue, if I may, the City has advised 
that they have a form that they actually have set up; there‟s an affidavit that they 
fill out, so anyone who requests a permit, they pretty much sign a document 
saying that they have informed the association.   
 
MS. CADETTE: We should get a copy of that to see what it looks like. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: What I would say is if you have a problem 
where the resident did not inform you, then that specific problem, you may want 
to check with the City, pull that document to see whether or not that was done. 
 
MR. VUONG: Yes, I understand when they come in, it‟s an honesty code 
basically; they say that, yeah, we did check with the association.  But the 
problem is, especially with Cottages, a lot of people don‟t realize that they have 
to do that procedure.  We already sent out the letters, saying that we a 
committee to check.  The problem is a lot of people ignore that rule, and for us to 
figure out who‟s doing it is very difficult, because she lives in her cul-de-sac, 
everyone lives in their cul-de-sac.  I can only visit the property so much, and I 
don‟t recognize certain things are changing sometimes, because they do it in one 
day, a week, and I might not be there that week, and I don‟t see the changes. 
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MAYOR MESSAM: What I would recommend is that the board, through the 
property manager, sit down with our planning department to make them aware of 
these issues.  Unless there‟s an authorization from the association, they don‟t 
grant the permit.   
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: They have to sign that they have notified the 
association, but the City will not deny it, they just need to sign that document. 
 
FEMALE RESIDENT: Before you guys came in, I had done two jobs, and I went 
through the proper channel: first was painting my house, second was for the 
shed.  Before I went to the City, I went ahead and did the proper step, and I 
never got an answer from the previous association saying nay or yay, that was 
my experience.  I think I spoke to you about my fence on 2400. 
 
MR. VUONG: Okay, yes. 
 
FEMALE RESIDENT: Yes, the same thing.  I emailed them, I believed, or sent 
them a mail, and they never responded to me.  That has been my own 
experience.  I don‟t know if I sent it to the wrong place, or whatever, but that‟s 
been my experience. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: When you meet with our planning department. 
 
MR. VUONG: Is it Michael Alpert? 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Yes, it‟s Michael Alpert, I think, for example, communication 
with him, letting him know that you have many occurrences of homeowners not 
getting authorization or approval from the HOA, and to putting notice that if any 
permit requests from our association, that the planners are verifying.  Because 
any building permit has to have it.  If your HOA documents require approval from 
the HOA, that‟s where the communication comes in, because, remember, our 
planners, they‟re getting applications from all over the City.  But know that when 
they see your association come across, because you‟ve been communicating 
with them, they know that it‟s a problem.  Then when folks are saying that they 
have an approval, let me ask you, do you provide a written approval? 
 
MS. CADETTE: That‟s what I was going to say. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: So if a planner says he has an application that says they‟ve 
gotten approval from the association, and there‟s no accompanying document 
with that, then that should raise a red flag.  That‟s what I‟m saying. 
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MS. CADETTE: I don‟t want them going to the City and then coming to us.  It 
should be us, then the City.  When they go to the City, they are bringing with 
them that approval.   
 
MAYOR MESSAM: What I‟m saying, they may not know. 
 
FEMALE SPEAKER: If the City requires them to have something written from the 
association, I think that would fill that loophole.  For them to just sign an affidavit 
saying they got approval, does the City check back with the association to see? 
 
MS. CADETTE: No, they don‟t.  There‟s no check and balance.  
 
FEMALE SPEAKER: The first thing we need to do is, if I go to the City and I want 
a permit to change my house color, put up a fence or whatever, the City should 
say to me: you need to bring a document signed from your association. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: One of the challenges with that is the City, by law, will only 
enforce our land use ordinance, that is the only obligation the City has.  Your 
agreement with your association, that‟s an agreement between two private 
parties, so the City is not going to get involved with a dispute between two private 
parties, because the application or the permit request could very well meet the 
land use ordinance for the City of Miramar, but may not necessarily meet the 
association‟s.  So the City is not the authority for the association.  As long as 
everything is conforming to our land use code, so that‟s why the City will avoid 
legal confrontations between two private parties.  The City will enforce its law.  
Now if a person wants to paint their house fuchsia or purple and it‟s not in our 
land use, then it will be denied, whether it has the association‟s approval or not, 
because it‟s not in conformance with our land use ordinance.  But a legitimate 
application can come forward that complies with the land use ordinance, but 
doesn‟t comply with the association, so it‟s a relationship, and that‟s what I was 
getting at first.  I really, truly believe that the association, by bringing this issue to 
our staff, saying: there‟s multiple permits for work being done without the 
approval from the association, please make sure that all permit applications that 
come in, that if it‟s approved by our association, they will have an accompanying 
document.  So the planner can always say, “Well, I don‟t see your document, can 
you bring it back.”  They‟re not denying it, they‟re not approving it, but at least 
tells the applicant: I think I better go and get the approval.  I understand that 
you‟re saying the City should do this, the City should do that, but the City has to 
avoid legal disputes between private parties. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: That‟s one of the issues that we discussed 
when we had the HOA roundtable, and when we have the next one, I am going 
to have someone from permitting there.  From speaking to many of the 
associations as to permitting, not just this specific issue, but there are a lot of 
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questions that they have concerning permits, so that is one of the topics we will 
discuss.  Our Mayor is correct, our permitting department, they‟re really there to 
enforce the City‟s ordinances, and the City‟s code, and that is the reason why 
there‟s just that signoff, and they can‟t just deny them, because it would be 
contrary to the code.  They have their code, these are the requirements, and the 
person produces those requirements, and then it‟s up to the City; the City really 
has to fulfill their portion when that happens. 
 
FEMALE RESIDENT: I used to live in Miami, and we used to go to association.  I 
just want to know the difference here.  I used to own a town house, and the 
association, they took care of the wall, they painted, they cut the grass. 
 
MR. VUONG: Were you a condo or an HOA? 
 
FEMALE RESIDENT: HOA. 
 
MR. VUONG: Each property is different; some have landscaping, some don‟t, 
some have pools, some don‟t have pools.  It goes with cost.  For your guys, you 
don‟t have that much common area; the only common area you have is the 
fence, so that‟s why your maintenance is what it is.  That‟s why we do the 
budget, it lists what you‟re paying for. 
 
FEMALE RESIDENT: Well, this is what I want to know the difference, because 
they used to paint the building, they used to cut the lawn, and they did 
everything.   
 
MR. VUONG: That couldn‟t have been an HOA if they painted the houses.  Only 
condos would paint the houses.  There‟s a difference between condos and 
HOAs, because the condos association takes way more part into it.  We fix a lot 
and do more stuff than an HOA.  With the HOA, it‟s mostly on the homeowners to 
do the roofs; everything is on you guys.  On condos, we‟ll take care of the roofs 
and everything, but your fees will be much, much higher.  You guys have your 
own HOA.  In the condos, they have their own associations too, but we‟re 
responsible for roofs, damages to windows; it depends on what the documents 
say, so everything is different.  I‟m pretty sure your cost of living there was much 
higher as to the fees than here. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: I just want to make the point that the difference 
is not between Miami, Dade County and Miramar, Miami, Dade County and 
Broward.  The difference is the community itself.  Each community has bylaws, 
they have documents, and they cover different things.  It‟s just set up differently.  
It‟s not because of the City. 
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MAYOR MESSAM: That was  good question.  Another thing to add is that condo 
associations, HOA, they‟re all governed by the State of Florida, not even the City 
of Miramar, so if you have a dispute with your association, it‟s the State.  You 
always hear that landscaping in the west is so much better than the east, and 
there are really three sections of the City, geographically: Historic Miramar, east 
of the Turnpike, but now, as the City has grown, the east has now come all the 
way to Palm Avenue.  The newer parts of the City is all master plan, and you 
have all of these HOAs, some are master associations, and you have 
subdivisions within the associations.  When you look at those landscaping in 
those different properties, it‟s not maintained by the City, it‟s maintained by those 
respective communities, like Silver Lakes, Monarch Lakes, Sunset Lakes, Silver 
Falls, Riviera Isles.  All of them, their landscaping is maintained by those 
residents, and they are separately assessed by their association that governs, 
that maintains those areas.  Now what is maintained by the City in the west is the 
median, but the right of ways to the north and south of Miramar Parkway, are 
those respective communities.  As Commissioner Colbourne stated, we have a 
master landscape improvement areas for the major thoroughfares that we‟ll be 
improving landscaping throughout the City. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: I always tell people that I know that the east 
side will never look like the west side, but if the City is maintaining the portion 
that they‟re responsible for, then I feel comfortable that we‟re doing our portion, 
and then the rest is for the community to do their portion.  So you have the 
communities, you have the private homes, and the City; everybody has their 
responsibility, and if we all do ours, it should all look good. 
 
MS. ALLEN: Our association, is it private or non-private?  Can anybody just 
come and park and walk to Montego Bay, and we just suffer and swallow that?  
What are we?  One more thing.  The trees that hangover, I‟m scared coming 
home from work at 12 o‟clock at night with the trees hanging over in the street, 
and anybody can hold me at the corner of the road, and it‟s very lonely.  People 
are parking in front of my yard going to Montego Bay, and it‟s happening for a 
long time.  Number three, when Mr. Ian Richards was president, he came up with 
a point that we‟re going to pave off the little common area instead of having to cut 
the grass, so the place can look nicer and more accommodating.  A few blocks 
got it done and, unfortunately, my block didn‟t get it done.  Then Mr. Richards 
actually left the association.  Number four, for the painting the changing of the 
color of the house, for my experience, I didn‟t have a problem with the 
association, Cottages at University.  I did it once, and I called them and identify 
myself, and I told them I‟m about to change the color of my home, and I don‟t 
remember the name of the manager. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Joe. 
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MS. ALLEN: Mr. Joe Fontella? 
 
MS. CADETTE: Sclafani. 
 
MS. ALLEN: Yes, he emailed and gave me the okay, and I could go ahead, but 
don‟t put a bright orange color or whatever.  He also sent me a copy of what 
colors I could use. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Right color code. 
 
MS. ALLEN: So I didn‟t have a problem with those.  But overall, I want to know 
where we stand being Cottages at University, how comfortable can we be in the 
area where the pavement is trashy and not being cleaned, and they didn‟t 
change the pavement. 
 
MS. CADETTE: The common area you‟re saying is trashy? 
 
MS. ALLEN: Yes.  Strangers park as they would like to, and they just went about 
their business, and I‟m at the corner of the street.  The way life is going on now, 
and you don‟t know who to trust, you don‟t know what is going on.  I want to 
know if my area is a private area or is a common area, where anybody can just 
come and park.  One more thing.  One of the streetlights, it was out of order, so 
my son did call FP&L to get the light fixed, but the trees are coming over. 
 
MALE RESIDENT: The trees need to be cut. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Now are these trees coming from someone‟s property? 
 
A general chorus of no, they were on the swale, and the area was very dark, with 
many branches blocking the light. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: What‟s your specific address? 
 
MS. ALLEN: I‟m 87th Avenue.  The trees that come over make the place really 
look dark. 
 
MALE RESIDENT: Right around, it‟s very scary, because I walk in the morning, 
and I can‟t see anything at all.  They need to cut. 
 
FEMALE RESIDENT: All the branches on that street are blocking all the lights, 
so it‟s very dark. 
 
MS. ALLEN: The people that the association sent to cut the little thing that we 
have there. 
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MS. CADETTE: That‟s not us.   We just talked about it. 
 
MS. ALLEN: They need to come more often to cut if they continue cutting, 
because it gets very bushy and trashy, and they‟re trying to make a decision like 
Mr. Ian Richards mentioned in the past, that they would be changing, and they 
did change, but they did not acknowledge us. 
 
MR. BOXE: Let me address some of that. As far as the boundaries of the 
association, unfortunately, ours is just sort of an open area, it‟s not enclosed like 
some of the gated communities, where you go in one gate and everything inside 
is contained.  Unfortunately, we are bordering around Sherman Circle, so all the 
cul-de-sacs come out Sherman Circle, so there‟s no one gate to the Cottages.  
Sherman Circle, itself, is public.  Also, years ago, initially, the cul-de-sacs were 
maintained by the association until some years ago, we were informed that the 
City took them over, so we had started paving the cul-de-sacs some years ago.  
We started at 82nd Avenue, intending to go all the way around to 22nd Street.  
The reason we decided to do it that way was because of funding.  We didn‟t have 
all the money to do each cul-de-sac at the same time.  Each cul-de-sac, when we 
did the estimate, would cost $4,500 to do each circling, so we started doing them 
as we had the funds.  We got to 85th, that was yours, I think. 
 
MS. CADETTE: No, 84th. 
 
MR. BOXE: Then we were informed that we no longer owned the streets, the City 
had taken it over.   
 
MS. CADETTE: The City would have to be the one now to do it, we couldn‟t 
touch it. 
 
MR. BOXE: Right, we couldn‟t do anything anymore. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Are there potholes or anything? 
 
MS. ALLEN: So what grounds could the association stand on to protect us, to 
make me comfortable, while we‟re paying our association fees, regarding the 
cleanliness. 
 
MS. CADETTE: I understand, and that has been something that we have brought 
up to the City on a few occasions, regarding the maintenance of the area, 
because the residents, just like yourself, has made similar complaints.  As a 
matter of fact, I think one resident was very upset that she was getting code 
violations, when people were actually coming there and throwing things on her 
property, and why should she get the violation for this.  To me, I‟m saying, it 
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wouldn‟t be fair.  It‟s like every day you have to go outside and make sure you 
clean the area, because anyone can walk there and throw trash and garbage 
there.  People come out at odd times of the mornings, and they have a couch or 
something, they just throw it out there, all kinds of things go on.  We would have 
to talk with code enforcement. 
 
MS. ALLEN: I got a violation for a tree right on the sidewalk, and it was hanging 
over to on the side of the road, and code enforcement came and they gave me a 
violation that I was to cut the tree down in three months.  My husband had to go 
and borrow a saw from Home Depot and cut the trees down to the stump.  I told 
her I‟m not responsible for the tree.  She said my home, I‟m responsible for the 
sidewalk.  Why am I responsible for the sidewalk? 
 
MS. CADETTE: Yes, the swale is the responsibility of the owner, the property 
owner, because I questioned it too. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: What I will do is we‟ve taken notes in regards to the 
overgrowth of the trees in the public areas, to see what we can do about getting 
them cut back, so it‟s not blocking the streetlights to deal with those issues. 
 
MS. ALLEN: One more thing.  I have four coconut trees.  I‟m tired of them, but I 
need to get rid of two.  Where do I go? 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Do they have coconuts? 
 
MS. ALLEN: I feel bad to cut a fruit tree down, but two of them are going over the 
roof, and I pulled a permit for a new roof.  I want to know if I can get it cut, if it‟s 
from the association or the City. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: It‟s on your property? 
 
MS. ALLEN: It‟s on my property. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I think we should check with our code department to see 
what process you have to do for the removal of the tree, just so that you‟re doing 
it properly, the building department. 
 
MS. CADETTE: You have to come here first. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Yes, go to your HOA. 
 
MS. ALLEN: Home Depot is going to do the roof, they said they will take care of 
the permit. 
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MS. CADETTE: Permit with the City, but not with the association. 
 
MS. ALLEN: So the association has nothing to do with it? 
 
MS. CADETTE: Absolutely. 
 
MS. ALLEN: Oh, you have to tell the association? 
 
MS. CADETTE: Yes.  You came in at the end of the discussion, we were talking 
about getting the association‟s okay before you proceed. 
 
MS. ALLEN: No, I haven‟t started anything yet.  I call them, and then they send 
the paperwork to where, to me? 
 
MS. CADETTE: Who, the association?  Could you address that, please? 
 
MR. VUONG: You can email us or come to the office, you guys are down the 
street.  If you email me, we will send you a form, it‟s just a very simple form, 
asking what you‟re doing, and listing down what you do. 
 
MS. ALLEN: Do you have a form now? 
 
MR. VUONG: Yes, I can print one out.  Basically, what I would do is I would give 
to the committee, and they would look over and they‟ll check it off if everything is 
in order.  They‟ll ask me about anything they don‟t understand, and we‟ll say yes 
or no in week or so, give or take, and return it to you, then you can go to the City 
and say: okay, I have documentation approved from the association.  You have 
to go to both of us.  Just because the City says yes, we might say no sometimes, 
depending on what our document says. 
 
MS. ALLEN: Cottages at University, the first set of people before you guys took 
over, they normally said they‟re not responsible and not to ask them, I had to ask 
the City to pull a permit. 
 
MS. CADETTE: I‟ve dealt with Joe.  I‟ve never heard him speak like that.  If 
anyone has ever wanted anything, I know normally he comes to us, so it‟s 
strange. 
 
FEMALE RESIDENT: It wasn‟t a man, it was a lady. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Just to let you know right now that we do have an architectural 
committee, and any changes has to go through them.  If not, we‟re going to put a 
stop on it, and move forward. 
 



  
 

24 

City of Miramar 

Cottage at University Park. 

Annual HOA Meeting Minutes 

February 3, 2016 

MS. ALLEN: When I get that, I give it back to the people that‟s going to do the 
roof? 
 
MR. VUONG: Yes. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: They probably can help you fill out the form, because there 
will probably be some information, like the product information that you 
purchased from Home Depot. 
 
Multiple discussions taking place at the same time. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Madam President, for the questions that we weren‟t able to 
answer, we‟re going to follow up with the respective departments and have them 
follow up with you.  I also gave everyone this brochure.  This is the brochure that 
was handed out at this year‟s State of the City.  It has some information about 
the City with regard to economic data, just some interesting facts about the City 
that you may not necessarily be aware of.  When you get a chance to go home, 
you can take a look at the City, so you can see what‟s going on in Miramar. 
 
MS. CADETTE: I want to say thank you to our Mayor and our Commissioner for 
coming out, and just being a part of this meeting.  It was very enlightening to 
have questions, answers, and I think you all are doing a wonderful job with the 
City.  I enjoy being a part of Miramar, and I just want to make our particular area 
just as beautiful as the west.  Yes, I might push, because I want the best. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: And you should, and you should. 
 
MS. CADETTE: I want to be considered, and when it comes to that time of year 
that we‟re budgeting, I want someone to say: what can we do to help continue to 
improve on those areas over there.  I just don‟t want to go out to the west area 
and see all the different thing happening, and we are just sitting there and not 
feeling like the lost child that no one takes care of.  Please, just keep us in mind. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: We certainly don‟t want that to happen.  Thank 
you so much for having us. 
 
MS. ALLEN: Ms. Annmarie, you did mention that little thing that we cut there. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Yes, they are going to be addressing that. 
 
MS. ALLEN: I am very interested to know how often they come to cut that area. 
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MS. CADETTE: We spoke on that before you got here, because we want to 
ensure that those common areas are being maintained as best as possible.  
Thank you. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Thank you so much.  I do want to remind 
everyone that the City is having a Black History event this coming Saturday over 
at the Town Center from 12:00 to 4:00 p.m., and there are a lot of different 
activities going on. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Oh, yes, bring your kids. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Please get the message out to your residents, 
and come on out, I hope to see you there, and it‟s free. 
 
FEMALE RESIDENT: Are you still having the first Thursday of the month?  You 
were having an event every first Thursday? 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: No, we do not have any scheduled at this 
point. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Those were stopped, yes.  And if you haven‟t had an 
opportunity yet, when you come out Saturday, you have to visit the President 
Obama Exhibition that‟s here in the City of Miramar.  Those photos were sent 
specifically from Pete Souza, who‟s the official White House photographer.  It‟s 
key moments during the President‟s administration, so make sure to come out 
and take a look.  It‟s in the Ansin Family  Art Gallery that‟s located at the Cultural 
Center where the Black History event will take place, and you‟ll be able to see all 
of that. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: It is a beautiful exhibition.  If you don‟t make it 
on Saturday, it will be there until the end of the month, so definitely try to come 
out and see it.  It‟s great.  It‟s great that we have a gallery just minutes away from 
us.  We can always take the kids there.  When that exhibition is no longer there, 
there will be another one.  We always have exhibitions there.  We encourage you 
to use the gallery, make that part of what you do in the community. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Is it closed off at a certain time?  I mean if you want to go over to 
the City and take a walk the garden area, are those areas closed? 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Oh, it‟s open.  That part is open. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: The gallery, itself, is opened from 10:00 to 
4:00, Monday through Friday.  There are two days, I think, Tuesdays and 
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Thursdays where they are open till six, and then Saturday, they‟re open until 1:00 
p.m.  This Saturday, they‟ll be extended to 4:00 p.m. throughout the event. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: We look forward to seeing you. 
 
MS. CADETTE: Thank you all again for coming. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:00 p.m.  
 
 
 
________________________ 
Denise A. Gibbs, CMC 
City Clerk 
DG/cp 
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MINUTES OF THE CITY OF MIRAMAR 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

 

February 23, 2016          7:00 P.M. 

 
The regular meeting of the Miramar City Commission was called to order by Mayor 
Messam at 7:06 p.m. in the Commission Chambers, Miramar City Hall, 2300 Civic 
Center Place, Miramar, Florida. 
 
Upon call of the roll, the following members of the City Commission were present: 
 

Mayor Wayne M. Messam 
Vice Mayor Darline B. Riggs 
Commissioner Winston F. Barnes  
Commissioner Maxwell B. Chambers 
Commissioner Yvette Colbourne 

 
The following members of staff were present: 
 

City Manager Kathleen Woods-Richardson 
City Attorney Jamie Cole 
City Attorney Alison Smith  
City Clerk Denise A. Gibbs 

 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

PRESENTATIONS 

 
2016 Loyalty & Marketing Program (Chief of Marketing & Public Relations Officer 
Natasha Hampton)   
 

Youth Advisory Council (Mayor Wayne M. Messam) 
 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (7:30 P.M. – 8:00 P.M.) 
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Debra Scialabba, Miramar resident of 6490 SW 26th Street, discussed National Night 
Out Against Crime, set for August 22, 2016, stating United Neighbors hosted this event 
in 2015, along with Fairway Homeowners Association and Tropical Homes Crime 
Watch.  They wished to thank former Police Chief Ray Black and the City’s police 
officers for their needed participation in the event.  She mentioned one critical issue was 
there had been no electricity, including lighting, and when the electricity was finally 
turned on, the lighting was still off.  They thanked Waste Pro for donating the cardboard 
trash receptacles, and they did not hesitate when they were asked to supply the 
containers.  She opined that the employees took pride in their work, a key factor in a 
professional company, and the residents looked forward to partnering with Waste Pro 
once more for the 2016 event.  Ms. Scialabba continued to state the residents in the 
historic area of Miramar, when their trash was not picked up on the designated day, the 
matter was resolved on the same day.  Before Waste Pro, the City used All Service, and 
their trash collection trucks seemed to break down frequently with no backup, and if a 
resident’s garbage fell onto the ground or on the swale, the employees of All Service left 
the trash on the ground for homeowners to pick up.  She noted, with All Service, if trash 
was not picked up on the designated day, residents had to wait two or more days to pick 
up the trash.  If a resident had a concern, the manager of All Service took days to 
respond, which was unacceptable, as the City was paying for this public service.  Ms. 
Scialabba mentioned work would be starting soon to add the amphitheater and splash 
pad to Shirley Branca Memorial Park, asking if the project would be completed before 
August 2016 or did they have to find another venue for the National Night Out event.  
She stated the park area used to suffer from substantial flooding, and if the City 
removed the incline and flattened the ground for the splash pad and stage, it might 
result in more flooding.  It would help in the City’s decisions if the City Commission and 
Manager knew history of the City of Miramar. 
 

 
Employee Recognition: 

Name Department Award 

CRO 
Yessenia Diaz 

Police 
Officer of the Quarter 

October-December 2015 

CCO 
Javier Segarra 

Police 
Employee of the Quarter October-

December 2015 

Police Officer  
David Robbins 

Police 
Officer of the Year 

2015 

Records Supervisor  
Caron Barnard 

Police 
Employee of the Year  

2015 

Police Officer 
Patrick Murphy 

Police Life Saving Award 

Police Officer 
Denise Dileo  

Police Life Saving Award 

Waste Pro Employee 
Andy Perez Garcia  

Civilian  Life Saving Award 
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Police Sergeant 
Richard Georgi 

Police Community Involvement Award 

Name Department Award 

Police 
SIU/PRIME Unit  

Police Unit Citation 

Police  
Records Unit 

Police Unit Citation 

Police Sergeant  
Michael Lewis 

Police  
Department of Defense/ESGR 

Patriot Award 

Battalion Chief  
Jermaine McFarlane 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Captain 
Kelly Byrne 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Captain 
Tim Roche 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Captain 
Trond Welters 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Lieutenant  
Cliff Ricketts 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Captain 
Dominick Granteed 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Lieutenant  
Manny Esparza 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Lieutenant  
Fermin Ortea 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Lieutenant  
Carlos Otero 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Lieutenant  
Frank Ruiz 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Lieutenant  
Tracie Srbovan 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Firefighter  
Jamie Torres 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Firefighter 
Tommy Waters 

Fire-Rescue Merit Award 

Fire Marshal  
Ray Perez 

Fire-Rescue 
State of Florida Fire Marshal of the 

Year  

Driver Engineer  
Devon Steel 

Fire-Rescue Firefighter of the Year 

Assistant Director 
Melanie McLean 

Human 
Resources 

HR Shining Star Award 

HR Manager 
Antoinette Wilson-Beckford 

Human 
Resources 

HR Shining Star Award 
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Benefits Analyst  
Osmara Diaz 

Human 
Resources 

HR Shining Star Award 

Bus Operator III 
Clarence Turner 

Public Works 
Employee of the Quarter October-

December 2015 

Name Department Award 

Utility Billing Specialist I PT 
Alison Adams 

Finance 
brandAMBASSADOR Certificate 

Recognition 

Senior Utility Billing Specialist 

Cassandra Murray 
Finance 

brandAMBASSADOR Certificate 
Recognition 

Account Clerk I 
Tecora Noble 

Finance 
brandAMBASSADOR Certificate 

Recognition 

Client Services Assistant 
Edlyn Griffith 

Community & 
Economic 

Development 

brandAMBASSADOR Certificate 
Recognition 

Administrative Secretary I 
Frankyemae Daley 

Police 
brandAMBASSADOR Certificate 

Recognition 

Grant/Accreditation Manager 

Kim Morrow-Lopez 
Police 

brandAMBASSADOR Certificate 
Recognition 

Evidence/Property Supervisor  

Glenda Armstrong 
Police 

brandAMBASSADOR Certificate 
Recognition 

Arts & Education Administrator  

Kelly Armstead 
Cultural Affairs 

brandAMBASSADOR Certificate 
Recognition 

Wastewater Operator A  
Mark Roberts 

Public Works 
brandAMBASSADOR Certificate 

Recognition 

Customer Service Specialist I 

Tiffany Davis 
Parks & 

Recreation 
brandAMBASSADOR Certificate 

Recognition 

 
 

* * * 
 

MAYOR MESSAM: I see that we have a resident, Mr. Craig McQueen and Vincent 
Sturrup who had signed in after the time period.  Mr. McQueen, I’m going to have the 
City Manager step back to speak with you, in terms of I think I understand what your 
topic is on.  I’ll have the City Manager speak with you on that issue.  She’ll step out now, 
and I think Deputy Manager Love will come to the dais. 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Debra Scialabba, Miramar resident, wished to pulled item 2, asking why the competitive 
bid requirements were being waived for the subject purchase, and why it was not 
opened for bidding. 
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MAYOR MESSAM: There was a question regarding this item in regards to this item, 
why it wasn’t going out to bid, if we could have Mr. Attorney. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: The reason is there was an exception for City standard 
purchases, so in this case, it’s a City standard.  That’s the type of water meter, it’s the 
only type of water meter that we use throughout the City, so to have a bid when you 
only have one type of water meter that could be bid would be meaningless.  We have 
an exception in our Code that says in that scenario, you don’t have to bid, so this is the 
exception, and that’s why it’s being waived. 
 
Ms. Scialabba thanked City Attorney Cole for the explanation. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I only have on number four, in terms of the monitoring and blasting 
related services.  I don’t need a presentation, but if you can just give an update in 
regards to this item.  I know my office has received a lot of calls in regards to some of 
the uptake in blasting activities in Northwest Miami-Dade County, and how does this 
item relate to that. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: Mayor, if we’re going to have a discussion on it, you should 
pull the item, vote on the other items then we’ll get to this item. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Item number four will be pulled.  Are there any other items?  Can I 
have a motion on the balance of the consent agenda? 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Colbourne, seconded by Vice Mayor Riggs, to approve 
Consent Agenda Items 1a, 1b, 1c, 2, 3, 5 and 6, the Commission voted: 
 
 Commissioner Chambers Yes 
 Commissioner Barnes Yes 
 Commissioner Colbourne Yes 
 Vice Mayor Riggs Yes 
 Mayor Messam Yes 
 
1a. Minutes of the Commissioner Workshop Meeting of January 27, 2016 
 

Approved 
 
1b. Minutes of the Special Commission Meeting of January 27, 2016 
 

Approved 
 
1c. Minutes of the Regular Commission Meeting of January 27, 2016 
 

Approved 
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2. Temp. Reso. #R5966 approving the purchase of water meters and associated 
meter parts from Sensus Metering Systems, Inc., in an amount not-to-exceed 
$750,000; waiving the competitive bidding requirements for the purchase of City 
Standard Products in accordance with City Code Section 2-413(3). (Utilities 
Director Hong Guo and Procurement Director Randy Cross) 

 
Resolution No. 16-66 

 
3. Temp. Reso. #R5967 awarding Bid No. 16-003 to Revere Control Systems Inc.  

for the provision of goods and services for the Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition ("SCADA") System upgrades project at the West Water 
Treatment Facility, in an amount not-to-exceed $604,984. (Utilities Director 
Hong Guo and Procurement Director Randy Cross) 

Resolution No. 16-67 
 
4. Temp. Reso. #R5985 approving an Interlocal Agreement with Broward County 

for inspection, monitoring, and blasting related services to be performed by 
Broward County Environmental Licensing and Building Permitting Division.  
(Public Works Director Thomas Good) 

 
MAYOR MESSAM: Mr. Good, you’re recognized. 
 
MR. GOOD: Good evening everyone, Thomas Good, Public Works Director.  Just to 
background slightly and just share a little bit about what your concerns were.  Prior to 
1999, there was a lot of blasting, because there was a lot of development.  They were 
using the fill to build the development.  As development grew, and grew, and grew, it 
became more and more complex, because blasting and the vibrations start creating 
issues with the RA developed home.  The City in 1999 said no more blasting, outlawed 
it, so it’s no longer allowed in the City of Miramar.  However, just outside the City of 
Miramar, there is still blasting operations that continue.  However, those blasting 
operations are still impacting the City of Miramar.  When back in 2005 there was that 
issue going on, and there was a lot of people that believed that the vibrations were 
exceeding what the State limits were, because it is the State that manages the permits 
and complaint process in anything that has to do with blasting.  The City can do nothing 
about it.  The State sets the limits.  They were blasting.  It seemed like they were going 
beyond.  The City, at that time, said: we want to go ahead and check out and see if 
they’re really within the limits, because, at the time, the only seismograph people that 
you can get are the people who were working for the blasting company.  What happens 
is Broward County happens to be able to do that, so they’re a great third party person 
for us, because they don’t have any relationships other than just doing the service.  
They did that for a while, and everything seemed to be okay.  They really were not 
exceeding the blast vibration limits, so we stopped doing that.  What happened was the 
White Rock quarry, which is one of the biggest operations in Northwest Miami-Dade 
County moved their blasting further and further away from the City of Miramar, because 
they work in cells.  Well, lately, they’ve started moving their cells back close to the City 
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of Miramar, and now the blasting vibrations are becoming more prevalent again, so we 
just wanted to go through and make certain that the reports that are being submitted to 
the State Fire Marshal are, indeed, correct.  That way we can make certain that we’re 
providing our residents with assurances that they’re not exceeding any of those 
vibration limits.  
 
MAYOR MESSAM: If residents are feeling vibrations from blasting, and they have any 
inquiries, who should they contact, what information can be provided to them? 
 
MR. GOOD: If residents are believing that they’re being harmed by the blasting, they 
would call the State Fire Marshal.  I do have the contact information here if it’s 
necessary, but it is the Division of State Fire Marshal, and you can get that through the 
State website.  What happens is you can call them; they’ll talk to you a little bit.  
However, if you file a formal complaint, they do have an obligation to come out and to 
investigate your complaint, so you have to file a formal complaint in writing to them, if 
you want them to come out and really check.  If you just call them and say: Hey, I’m 
thinking that they’re not doing the right thing.  They’re not going to do anything, so you 
have to do it in writing. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you for that update and that information.  I’ll entertain a 
motion for approval. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Colbourne, seconded by Commissioner Barnes, to 
approve Resolution #R5985, the Commission voted: 
 
 Commissioner Chambers Yes 
 Commissioner Barnes Yes 
 Commissioner Colbourne Yes 
 Vice Mayor Riggs Yes 
 Mayor Messam Yes 
 

Resolution No. 16-68 
 
5. Temp. Reso. #R5991 approving the settlement of the bodily injury claim of 

Ramona Sisneros.  (City Attorney Jamie A. Cole) 
 

Resolution No. 16-69 
 

End of the Consent 
 
 

RESOLUTIONS 
 
6. Temp. Reso. #R5993 approving appointments to various City Boards. (City 

Clerk Denise A. Gibbs) 
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MAYOR MESSAM: I think we have a couple of appointments.  Commissioner 
Colbourne? 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Yes, thank you.  I have two appointments, one for the 
Youth Advisory Board.  I’d like to appoint Kosi Mba and for the Parks & Recreation 
Board, I’d like to appoint Carlos Ramsay. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I’ll entertain a motion for approval for Commissioner Colbourne’s 
appointments, first for the Kosi Mba. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Chambers, seconded by Vice Mayor Riggs, to approve 
Resolution #R5953, the Commission voted: 
 
 Commissioner Barnes Yes 
 Commissioner Chambers Yes 
 Commissioner Colbourne Yes 
 Vice Mayor Riggs Yes 
 Mayor Messam Yes 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Congratulations.  I’ll entertain a motion for Commissioner 
Colbourne’s appointment to the Parks & Recs Board, Carlos Ramsay. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Chambers, seconded by Vice Mayor Riggs, to approve 
Resolution #R5953, the Commission voted: 
 
 Commissioner Barnes Yes 
 Commissioner Chambers Yes 
 Commissioner Colbourne Yes 
 Vice Mayor Riggs Yes 
 Mayor Messam Yes 
 
 
MAYOR MESSAM:  Congratulations. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE:  Thank you Mayor. May I recognize the young man at 
this point; he probably needs to go home. He has school tomorrow. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM:  Congratulations.   
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE:  And also Mr. Carlos Ramsay.  Thank you. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM:  Thank you, we look forward to your service at our City. 
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Resolution No. 16-70 
 
7. Temp. Reso. #R5980 approving an amendment to the design-build agreement 

with Southern Underground Industries, Inc. and related expenditure in an amount 
not-to-exceed $1,200,000, for the provision of construction services for the 
Flamingo Road Reclaimed Water Distribution Main Project; authorizing the 
City Manager to execute the proposed amendment; authorizing contingency 
funds in an amount not-to-exceed $60,000 for unforeseen conditions associated 
with the project.  (Utilities Director Hong Guo and Procurement Director Randy 
Cross) 

 
Assistant Utilities Director Jody Kirkman reviewed the subject resolution, as detailed in 
the backup.  The City Manager recommended approval. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you for the presentation.  Are there any questions from the 
dais on this item?  Hearing none, are there any questions from the public?  Seeing 
none, coming back to the dais.  I’ll entertain a motion for approval. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: I have. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Sorry, Commissioner Chambers, you’re recognized.  Apologies. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: No problem.  Mr. Director, I just want to ask, in the 
future, going towards Fire Station 107, are we going to have the capability to get 
reclaimed water over there also? 
 
MR. KIRKMAN: 107 being located on Miramar? 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Just east of Flamingo. 
 
MR. KIRKMAN: We would have the ability.  With the line basically being at the 
intersection, we’d have the ability to extend in either direction on Miramar Parkway. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Great.  Thank you. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Hearing no further questions, I’ll entertain a motion for approval. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Colbourne, seconded by Vice Mayor Riggs, to approve 
Resolution #R5980, the Commission voted: 
 
 Commissioner Barnes Yes 
 Commissioner Chambers Yes 
 Commissioner Colbourne Yes 
 Vice Mayor Riggs Yes 
 Mayor Messam Yes 
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Resolution No. 16-71 
 
 

ORDINANCE 
 
8. ITEM PULLED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 
9. Reports and Comments: 
 
 Commissioner Reports: 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Starting from Commissioner Colbourne, working our way back 
towards me.  Any reports? 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Nothing to report. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you.  Commissioner Chambers. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  I had the pleasure of being in 
Tallahassee this last week with four of my colleagues.  Mr. Mayor, I want to thank you.  
You have a lot of energy to run around and get things done.  Thank you so much, Vice 
Mayor Riggs and also Commissioner Colbourne, it was a good working relationship in 
Tallahassee, so we got some things done.  Tonight signifies why I’m sitting here as a 
Commissioner in the beautiful City of Miramar.  Very good display of our police and fire 
employees, always they do a good job in the City of Miramar.  My residents, they set the 
standard, so it’s a great city, I like what we’re doing here, and we want to continue.  It’s 
a privilege to serve, so it’s just a blessing to see what we can accomplish here in this 
beautiful City of Miramar.  Thank you. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you, Commissioner Chambers.  Commissioner Barnes, 
you’re recognized. 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: Just a couple of mentions.  It may be most opportune that I 
rather sneak in here my intention to request of our City Manager and the appropriate 
staff to look at the possibility of a COLA increases for our various Commissioners’ and 
Mayor’s secretaries, I am submitting.  My notice is for a citizenship drive, which I have 
been talking about for months.  Finally, we have a date set; it is April 2, a Saturday.  We 
are going to have the citizenship drive in our banquet hall.  A number of attorneys are 
going to facilitate us by coming to help residents who are Green Card holders to fill out 
their applications for citizenship, and we are hoping that we will be able to immediately 
complete it, so we can actually bring it to the post office.  Various means are going to be 
used to promote and advertise this event, and you’ll be hearing more about it, but it on 
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your calendar.  It’s the 2nd of April, a citizenship drive to take place here.  A lot of people 
I know would like to vote in November.  That’s it. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thanks, Commissioner Barnes.  Vice Mayor Riggs, you’re 
recognized. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Thank you.  First I’d like to say a very, very special thank you to 
Ms. Hampton for advertising the health fair for me that took place a couple weeks ago.  
That is definitely not my specialty.  You’re excellent at what you do, so thank you very 
much.  It was a great turnout.  We served over 400 residents, and I was speechless with 
all the folks that showed up, and the difference we were able to make.  We had people 
come who didn’t know that they were hypertensive that they had high blood pressure, or 
their blood sugar was high, so it was great for them to find out and get connected with 
the Memorial Healthcare System in order for them to get help in reference to 
establishing a primary care physician.  You never know, we might have saved 
somebody from having stroke or heart attack, or something like that, so I love doing 
these things.  it was amazing, so thank you so much to the vendors for participating.  To 
our Miramar residents for taking advantage of this event.  I have a question.  When the 
next workshop and what is are the topics that are going to be discussed in the next 
workshop?  Do you have that, Madam City Manager? 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: It’s on the back. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: It’s on the back?  Okay.  I would like to add a couple of things to 
the list of discussion on that day.  I don’t have that on the back of mine, is that in April.  I 
have Ethics and then Commission Retreat.  When is it? 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: On the second, there’s a Transportation workshop. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: April 2nd? 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: No, March 2nd. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: March 2nd, so it’s around the corner.   
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: The cannabis ordinance, I think, is on March 23rd.  
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: March 23rd, okay. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: We have ethics training. 
 
STRATEGIC ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER SHAUN GAYLE: That’s correct.  March 2nd 
will be the Transportation Sales Surtax and March 23rd would be the Broward County 
Marijuana Ordinance for the cannabis workshop. 
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VICE MAYOR RIGGS: This is what I would like.  I would like to set up a workshop or we 
can add it to the one that’s going on to discuss a couple of things.  The 
overcompensation for employees in regards to Commission events.  For example, the 
event I just had in reference to the health fair, with all the fees that were added, for 
example fire inspection, permit fees, tent fees, the different staff, it added up to over 
$2,000.  If you think that we do three events for the year, you’re talking about almost 
$6,000.  If we could have a discussion in reference to how to offset some of this.  For 
example, the tents were 10 x 10 removal tents.  Do we really need all this extra 
expense?  For example, the fire inspection if $500.  If we can have a conversation on 
how to offset some of this cost, because after all of this cost, there really isn’t any 
initiative money to provide anything to the community.  Can we add that to the next 
workshop, the discussion?  Perfect.  
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Do we have consensus to? 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Yes. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Yes, it seems like we have consensus. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Thank you. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Some of this, we want to do a workshop? 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Yes, in reference to offsetting some of this cost. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: I’m on board. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Thank you.  Can we research also if other cities are charging for 
the fire fees when the commissioners do events, comparison?  That’s it.  Thank you so 
much. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you, Vice Mayor Riggs.  Just a couple of announcements 
and updates.  As mentioned by Commissioner Chambers, the City of Miramar was well 
represented during Broward Days last week in Tallahassee where we, as elected 
officials, have an opportunity to go to Tallahassee with our fellow Broward Colleagues to 
champion issues important to Broward County, in addition to issues that are important 
to the City of Miramar.  We had an opportunity to meet with our local delegation, as well 
as key Florida elected officials at the State level, and Florida House of Representatives, 
as well as the Senate to discuss important issues in regards to Miramar.  Our Lobbyist, 
Ron Book, scheduled a couple of meetings that we were able to attend as well, and we 
were able to advocate for Miramar’s State legislative priorities, some of which included 
grant funding or funding requests for two of our utility projects that have been submitted, 
as well as for a Cultural Arts grant as well.  With our ability to meet with our 
representatives, as well as key committee chairmen that are responsible for 
appropriations, especially during the legislative session, it’s very important for us, as a 
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City, as well as we, as elected officials, to advocate on the City’s behalf to let them 
know that Miramar is here, and our projects and our initiatives are very important.  So 
I’d like to thank Commissioner Colbourne, Chambers, and Vice Mayor Riggs for their 
support during that effort during Broward Days.  Second, another important legislative 
issue that’s going on in the State Legislature right now is that there’s a current fracking 
bill that is progressively making its way towards a floor vote, and that’s Senate Bill 318.  
As you all know, this Commission has taken a stance in regards to an application right 
now for a drilling permit right outside the City of Miramar.  So we’ve already taken a 
stand in terms of our opposition to oil drilling, especially right outside of our City, going 
through our natural resource, in terms of our drinking water in the Everglades.  But I’m 
asking the community to contact Senator Tom Lee, and who is the Chairman of the 
committee that will be voting on this item next week.  I’d like to get consensus from the 
Commission to authorize me to write a letter on behalf of the City, to formally oppose 
this bill that would allow fracking in the State of Florida.  It’s almost incomprehensible to 
that think that we would allow, as a state, fracking through our precious drinking water 
supply with that process.  Without objection, I’d like to ask for just to reaffirm the 
resolution that we’ve passed, as well as to speak for opposition for this bill.  Thank you.  
Next to last, I just wanted to remind the residents that you have one final weekend, and 
a few more days to visit the City of Miramar’s exhibit of Barak Obama, which is being 
displayed at the Ansin Family Art Gallery at the Miramar Cultural Center.  The last day 
will be February 29th, and so there’s one last weekend to visit the exhibit.  Finally, I just 
wanted to thank our staff for working with the Universal Circus that was here for, I think, 
approximately a couple of weeks.  I think many of us had an opportunity to enjoy the 
circus, including our young kids from schools, our seniors, and just visitors from around 
the County actually visiting the Universal Circus.  They always do a great job.  Finally, I 
would like to invite the community, especially the development and business community 
to the Development Industry Consortium of Miramar event, which will take place at the 
Miramar Cultural Center on Monday, February 29th.  It’s from 4:00 to 6:00, and this 
event is targeted towards developers and investors, so they can be informed about the 
wonderful opportunities in the City of Miramar.  In particular, investment opportunities in 
east Miramar.  We, as a city, have invested tens of millions of dollars in infrastructure 
and engineering into our City.  We have a Transit Oriented Corridor, which is very 
enticing and inviting for mixed-use dense development.  I’d like to thank our staff for 
taking the lead, in terms of being proactive to recruit and to invite the investment 
community to inform them about the prospects and the possibilities that exist here in the 
City of Miramar.  You forgot an announcement? 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Yes.  I just wanted to show the community a few of the pictures 
from the health fair, that’s it. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Do you have a couple? 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Yes.  During the event, somebody became hypoglycemic, so 
great time to educate.  That’s good.  I think there’s too many more.  Thank you so much 
everyone for contributing to this.  Natasha, my goodness.  The people were texting me 
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about the advertisement, and afterwards, people texted me that this was the best health 
fair they’ve ever been to, and that they’d been to plenty.  So I’m so glad that the 
community took advantage, so thank you again.  I’m elated of the outcome. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Vice Mayor, that lady who lived in Silver Falls who won 
the bike, you have to pay me, I took her home.  I had to take that bicycle all the way 
home. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: She won it. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: I’m the transporter for the bicycle. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Great event, great event.  Also, we would like to also remind the 
community to support the Tour the Broward, which is held annually at the Miramar 
Regional Park, will take place this Sunday.  For those of you, you still have time to sign 
up to run in the 5K.  For the cyclers out there, there’s also a cycling challenge for a 50K 
and 100K.  If you just Google Tour de Broward, and it’ll bring up the website, feel free to 
sign up.  It’s a great community event.  Madam Manager, reports?  City Attorney? 
 
 City Attorney Reports: 
 
None  
 
 City Manager Reports: 
 
None 
 
 
FUTURE WORKSHOP 

 
      Date   Time    Subject          Location 

 
03/01/16 

 
4:00 p.m. Ethics Training 

Commission 
Conference Room 

 
03/02/16 

 
5:30 p.m. 

 
Transportation Sales Surtax 

Commission 
Conference Room 

 
03/12/16 

 
8:30 a.m. 

 
Strategic Planning for the Future 

Commission 
Conference Room 

 
03/23/16 

 
5:30 p.m. 

 
Broward County Marijuana Ordinance 

Commission 
Conference Room 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: On that note, we are adjourned. 
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The meeting was adjourned at 9:02 p.m.  
 
 
 
________________________ 
Denise A. Gibbs, CMC 
City Clerk 
DG/cp 
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City of Miramar 

Special Commission Meeting Minutes 

March 2, 2016 

 
MINUTES OF THE CITY OF MIRAMAR 

SPECIAL COMMISSION MEETING 
 

MARCH 2, 2016                           6:30 P.M. 
 
The Special Meeting of the Miramar City Commission was called to order by 
Mayor Wayne M. Messam at 7:00 p.m. in the Commission Conference Room, 
Miramar City Hall, 2300 Civic Center Place, Miramar, Florida. 
 
Upon call of the roll, the following members of the City Commission were 
present: 

 
Mayor Wayne M. Messam     
Vice Mayor Darline B. Riggs  
Commissioner Winston F. Barnes 
Commissioner Maxwell B. Chambers 
Commissioner Yvette Colbourne 

 
The following members of staff were also present: 
 

City Manager Kathleen Woods-Richardson 
City Attorney Jamie A. Cole 
City Attorney Alison Smith 
City Attorney Matthew T. Ramenda 
City Clerk Denise A. Gibbs 

 
The meeting was closed to the public. The subject matter of the meeting was 
about settlement negotiations and strategy related to the litigation matter styled:  
Bryan Bassett vs. City of Miramar, et al 
 
The Special Meeting reconvened. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:14 p.m. 
 
 
 
___________________ 
Denise A. Gibbs, CMC 
City Clerk 
DAG/ 
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MINUTES OF THE CITY OF MIRAMAR 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

 

MARCH 2, 2016          7:00 P.M. 

 
The regular meeting of the Miramar City Commission was called to order by Mayor 
Messam at 7:29 p.m. in the Commission Chambers, Miramar City Hall, 2300 Civic 
Center Place, Miramar, Florida. 
 
Upon call of the roll, the following members of the City Commission were present: 
 

Mayor Wayne M. Messam 
Vice Mayor Darline B. Riggs 
Commissioner Winston F. Barnes  
Commissioner Maxwell B. Chambers 
Commissioner Yvette Colbourne 

 
The following members of staff were present: 
 

City Manager Kathleen Woods-Richardson 
City Attorney Jamie Cole 
City Attorney Alison Smith  
City Clerk Denise A. Gibbs 

 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

PRESENTATIONS 

 
Proclamation: Women’s History Month (Mayor Wayne M. Messam)  
 
Proclamation: Problem Gambling Awareness Month (Mayor Wayne M. Messam)  
 
Presentation: Whispering Pines Presentation (Community Liaison Jeanette Wagner and 
Principal Michael Gleason) 
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CONSENT AGENDA 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Chambers, seconded by Vice Mayor Riggs, to approve 
Consent Agenda Items 1a, 1b, 2 and 3, the Commission voted: 
 
 Commissioner Chambers Yes 
 Commissioner Barnes Yes 
 Commissioner Colbourne Yes 
 Vice Mayor Riggs Yes 
 Mayor Messam Yes 
 
1a. Minutes of the Regular Commission Meeting of February 23, 2016 
 

Approved 
 
1b. Minutes of the Special Commission Meeting of January 27, 2016 
 

Approved 
 
2. Temp. Reso. #R5987 approving the award of RFP No. 16-11-06 to Ambulance 

Medical Billing as the provider for Emergency Medical Transport Billing and 
Collection Services; authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with 
the provider for an initial term of three years with the option to renew for two 
additional one-year terms.  (Fire-Rescue Chief L. Keith Tomey III and 
Procurement Director Randy Cross) 

 
Resolution No. 16-72 

 
3. Temp. Reso. #R5998 authorizing the execution and submission of an application 

to the Florida Department of Health, Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
Matching Grants Program, for the purchase of cardiac monitor/defibrillators 
and mechanical cardio-pulmonary resuscitation devices in the amount of 
$239,000.  (Fire-Rescue Chief L. Keith Tomey III) 

Resolution No. 16-73 
 

End of the Consent 
 
 

RESOLUTIONS 
 
4. Temp. Reso. #R5994 approving an agreement with Erosion Barrier Installation 

Corporation in an amount not-to-exceed $72,000, for the construction of 
drainage system canal improvements through the utilization of the City of 
Margate Request for Proposals No. 2014-001, Supply and Installation of Canal 
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Bank Erosion Tubing.  (Public Works Director Thomas Good and Procurement 
Director Randy Cross) 

 
Public Works Director Thomas Good reviewed the proposed resolution, as detailed in 
the backup.  The City Manager recommended approval. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you, Mr. Good.  Are there any members from the public who 
wish to speak on this item?  Seeing none, I’ll bring it back to the dais.  Are there any 
comments from the dais? 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Question. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Question by Vice Mayor Riggs, you’re recognized. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Thank you.  How many properties are under priority number 
two? 
 
MR. GOOD: There are a total of 12 properties. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: How many were under priority number one? 
 
MR. GOOD: Approximately 12, maybe 13, I think. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: So that would be 24, 25 out of the 119? 
 
MR. GOOD: Yes, ma’am. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Thank you.  One more question, I’m sorry.  What’s the plan for 
the rest of the properties? 
 
MR. GOOD: What we anticipate, providing funding is continuing to be available, we’re 
looking at every four months to be coming before this Board to be taking on the next 
group of properties.  So four months from now, we anticipate being here again, asking 
for a group three; four months after that, group four, so we’re looking at July and 
November of this year for two other of those properties or groups to be addressed. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Are we looking at 12 again, like 12, 13? 
 
MR. GOOD: I think they’re approximately the same, yes, the same numbers.  It’s the 
easiest way for us to package this for bidding. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Thank you. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Are there any other questions?  Commissioner Chambers, you’re 
recognized. 
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COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: If I remember correctly, I think we have $238,000 
allocated for canal repairs? 
 
MR. GOOD: That’s approximately correct, $238,000 still available. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Are we anticipating getting some more funding? 
 
MR. GOOD: We are anticipating making future CIP requests funding, yes. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: So with this item, we’re going to cover 12 homes, right? 
 
MR. GOOD: This one item will cover 12 homes, yes. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: So we might get, maybe, 24, am I correct? 
 
MR. GOOD: We’re anticipating about that many.  It depends on the linear footage of the 
property.  The larger properties have longer or more feet per waterfront.  It will cost a 
little bit more, but it’s going to be approximately that, about 30. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: All I’m asking is that we aggressively go after funding, 
because there’s a lot of residents to cover, and this is like a drop in the bucket.  Thank 
you. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Commissioner Colbourne, you’re recognized. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Thank you.  This contract, you say, was a savings 
from the last one that was brought before us? 
 
MR. GOOD: This contract is more favorable in cost, yes it is. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: It is more favorable? 
 
MR. GOOD: Yes, ma’am. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: What type of savings?  I didn’t see any exact figures 
as to how much more reasonable this one was. 
 
MR. GOOD: We believe that this one is approximately, I’d have to say, maybe about 50 
percent less than what the other one was. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Fifty percent? 
 
MR. GOOD: Yes, ma’am. 
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COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: So future homes that will be brought before us will be 
under this contract as well, or are they being bidded out? 
 
MR. GOOD: We’re anticipating on using this contract as much as we possibly can. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Okay, thank you. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Any further questions?  I have a couple of remarks.  When the first 
set of properties that this Commission approved for advancement, for repairs, I had 
voiced some concerns regarding the communication, in terms of what would be 
presented, in terms of addressing the canal embankment improvements.  It was more 
so from the standpoint of not necessarily a knock on staff in terms of your efforts to 
resolve the issue, it was more so in terms of the communication, especially as it related 
to the Miramar Park Homeowners Group, who really championed this issue, because of 
the impact this issue has on their neighborhood.  As I mentioned before, we never want 
to be in a position where we’re putting one neighborhood or one block against the other, 
because we’re all one community.  Just as I have the fortitude and the courage to state 
disappointments in staff when those instances come, I’m also just as enthusiastic to 
applaud the efforts of staff when you get it right, and that is pretty much, what you do for 
most of the time.  When things fall short of that, it’s really the exception.  So I do 
applaud staff in terms of, not just for addressing this issue and beginning to address the 
issues in the community that really champion this issue, but in terms of how these 
projects are coming out speaks to staff’s flexibility and creativity.  Instead of saying that 
we have a big issue in the City in terms of canal erosion, it’s a multi-million dollar issue 
in the City, so instead of sitting on its hands and saying, “Well, we don’t have all the 
funding right now to address all of these properties.”  As we get the funding, we’ll begin 
to find a solution to address them, and this is how they’re coming to us.  So instead of 
sitting back and waiting until we get all of the funding, and then do one massive project, 
which indicates that staff’s due diligence didn’t necessarily present the most cost 
effective option; due to staff’s due diligence, was able to find an existing contract that’s 
out in Broward County.  As you heard, it’s saving us 50 percent, which is allowing us to 
do more properties right now, especially in the neighborhood that was crying for a 
solution.  So I thank you for being responsive, I thank you for hearing the community, 
hearing the Commission, in terms of what we expected to see.  Thank you in that effort.  
If there aren’t any other comments, I’ll entertain a motion at this time. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Mr. Mayor. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Yes, Commissioner Chambers, you’re recognized. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Something I want to address is that there’s a lot of 
residents that take it upon themselves to fix their property, and the job is not being done 
correctly, so they waste their money and their effort.  I’m wondering if there’s something 
we could do to have some meetings to assist those residents who are doing it 
themselves, to make sure it’s done properly, and give them knowledge or the 
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understanding of how it should be done correctly, so it doesn’t break away again.  I’ve 
seen a lot of money that they’ve put into it, and it wasn’t done right, so I don’t know how 
we can help these residents.  Then that makes it even more difficult to redo it, because 
now we have to take out what’s there, they have to come in and redo it, while if you 
were doing it right from the beginning, it would have been done right.  So how can we 
put something in place to assist these residents, and let them not be afraid to come to 
us to get the assistance, and to do it right.  Let’s get something together, so we can go 
out and speak to all these residents, get them online, explain to them what’s happening, 
see who needs help, who’s going to do it themselves, make sure it’s done right, and fix 
it once and be done. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you.  May I have a motion? 
 
On a motion by Vice Mayor Riggs, seconded by Commissioner Chambers, to approve 
Resolution #R5994, the Commission voted: 
 
 Commissioner Chambers Yes 
 Commissioner Barnes Yes 
 Commissioner Colbourne Yes 
 Vice Mayor Riggs Yes 
 Mayor Messam Yes 
 

Resolution No. 16-74 
 
5. Temp. Reso. #R5941 approving the renewal of the solid waste and recycling 

collection Franchise Agreement with Waste Pro of Florida, Inc., for the first 
three-year renewal period, commencing May 1, 2016; authorizing the City 
Manager to execute an amended and restated Franchise Agreement with Waste 
Pro of Florida, Inc.; authorizing a reconciliation payment to Waste Pro of Florida, 
Inc. for past services rendered.  (Public Works Director Thomas Good and 
Assistant Finance Director Barbara Hastings) 

 
Public Works Director Thomas Good and Assistant Finance Director Barbara Hastings 
presented the subject resolution, as illustrated in the backup.  The City Manager 
recommended approval. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you, Mr. Good.  At this time, do we have any questions or 
comments from the public?  If you do, if you could make your way forward.  Yes, come 
forward, ma’am.  State your name and address for the record. 
 
Debra Scialabba, 6490 SW 26 Street, Miramar, sought clarification, as she was 
confused about the City’s failure to bill 500 plus homes for waste disposal service, and 
residents going on vacation and suspending their service while away.  She believed the 
City’s utilities billing was standard, so whether someone went on vacation and shut off 
their water, this did not stop trash pickup.  Thus, if they were away for six months, there 
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should still be a bill.  She continued to pay the same $18.75 for a family of one, the 
same billed to a family of five to seven people.  She restated the positives she 
mentioned at a previous meeting about the service Waste Pro provided.  They were a 
professional company, and she hoped the Commission would approve the continuation 
of the service with Waste Pro, as taxpayers dollars paid for the subject service, and they 
appreciated contracting with a company with whose services they were happy. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Yes, sir, you’re recognized.  State your name, address, and three 
minutes. 
 
Norman Hemming, 9450 SW 18th Street, Miramar, wished to commend Waste Pro for 
their excellent service in Miramar.  He asked whether or not the Commission considered 
doing competitive bidding again with respect to the subject contract, wondering what 
other municipalities paid for the same service.  Waste Pro appeared to be an excellent 
company, but he alleged they had issues with the EPA in the past, particularly with 
respect to hazardous waste, so he found it interesting that they were able to provide 
disposal service of Miramar’s hazardous waste at no added cost to the City. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you.  Good evening, yes, ma’am. 
 
Mary Raynor, 6100 SW 21st Street, Miramar, commended the work that Waste Pro had 
done with the City of Miramar, stating the citizens did not receive such great service 
with the former trash disposal provider.  For example, they used to empty the trash and 
leave the carts in the middle of the road, and Waste Pro did not work in this manner at 
all.  Any issue regarding waste disposal brought to her attention by a resident, when she 
called Waste Pro, they immediately responded and addressed the issue.   
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you.  Are there any additional comments from the public?  
Seeing none, bringing it back to the dais.  Do you have any comments or questions?  
Commissioner Chambers, you’re recognized. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: One of my concerns is missing those 500 homes.  But I 
see we caught the problem, we’re going to address it, we’re going to put a system in 
place to make sure that doesn’t happen again, but dealing with so many homes, at 
some point you’re going to have one or two fall through the crack, because people 
move in and out, foreclosures, and new homes come online.  It’s a possibility to miss a 
few here and there.  I know 500 is quite a bit, and I’m glad that we caught that now, so I 
think we’re going to deal with the issue.  I think Waste Pro provides a good service, and 
it’s just like any company, they’re not going to be 100 percent, but the issues that come 
up, we’re going to deal with it, and I think the price that they’re giving us, I think it’s a 
pretty fair deal.  Some of the competitors would never touch it, so I think I’m okay with 
approving Waste Pro. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Commissioner Barnes. 
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COMMISSIONER BARNES: I’m not sure if staff will be able to answer this.  Ms. 
Scialabba had asked for an explanation as to the billing, versus when one is on 
vacation, as against the missed homes.  I think there needs to be a clarification as to 
that, because what I think we’re looking at is two separate things, right?  You probably 
aren’t being serviced because you went off on vacation and didn’t let us know you’re 
back, as opposed to people who are being totally missed, two separate things. 
 
MS. HASTINGS: Yes, that’s correct, because when you go on vacation, we don’t start 
billing you for water.  You get the base charge.  However, you can discontinue your 
waste collection, and then when they come back from vacation, they don’t advise the 
City that they’re back, but consumption comes on the meter, so right away, when 
there’s consumption on the meter, we just start billing.  So no one comes in and advises 
the City, the billing just continues with the additional consumption. 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: And, on the other hand, the homes that were missed for 
those years, the homes that weren’t collected, the ones that we’re compensating for in 
the agreement. 
 
MS. HASTINGS: No, eventually when they came back online, they got service, so 
Waste Pro did service the homes when they came back online. 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: What I want is a differentiation between those homes, as 
against the homes where collection probably stopped and didn’t restart at the 
appropriate time because of that vacation situation being completely different from the 
fact that we’re missing a number of homes. 
 
MS. HASTINGS: I’m sorry.  We can’t separate the two, because of the system at the 
time.  All we were able to identify is that at some point, the sanitation service was taken 
off and was never put back on, and this is longer than the term of the contract with 
Waste Pro, because we had an old system, and the conversion did not come over 
correctly.  I’m not sure if that answered your question. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Commissioner Barnes, does that resolve your question? 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: Not entirely.  In my meetings, my understanding is that 
Waste Pro wasn’t being paid for homes that were not in our system, but they had it in 
their system. 
 
MS. HASTINGS: They had it in their system, but we were not billing it.   
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: They were actually servicing these addresses? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: They were actually servicing, yes. 
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COMMISSIONER BARNES: What I wanted is an explanation differentiating the two 
situations, one where someone goes off on vacation, as against people who were just 
not in the system, although Waste Pro did pick them up. 
 
MS. HASTINGS: We would have to look at the numbers to see.  I’m sorry. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: A follow-up question in terms of the discrepancy.  Of the unbilled 
amount that was due Waste Pro, what percentage is attributed to data conversion for 
billing, versus residents who stopped service? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: We did not look at the difference.  We would have to go back and see 
what percentage.  We did not narrow it down like that to, say, 50 percent of the people 
were vacation stops, and 50 percent was conversion issues. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: So when we entered into the contract with Waste Pro, and we were 
negotiating terms of the contract, there had to be a baseline number of accounts, 
homes, properties, containers, dumpsters, whatever the classification, 37,000 that 
needed to be serviced, that would cost X amount of dollars, correct? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: Correct. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: So there was no verification of if these 37,000 are actually real? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: Waste Pro delivered cans.  They knew how many cans they delivered 
to how many homes.  They had a number.  Our system was already set up, because we 
were converting from a previous vendor, a previous carrier, so all we did was change 
the rates in the system, and we continued billing, and we know from this point forward, 
we’re paying Waste Pro.  Now the issue is Waste Pro and us never got together for 
Waste Pro to say, “Okay, we delivered 37,101 cans.”  They didn’t communicate that to 
us until quite a while when they’re running their system, and we’re running ours, we’re 
sending their payment to them, they’re posting it, and their balances tend to be higher 
than ours.  That’s what triggered the issue.  They’re saying, “But we have an accounts 
receivable of this number,” while the City had a much smaller amount.  So then we got 
together and said, “What we need to do is compare all of the accounts you have, show 
us the number of cans and the number of homes,” and then we started the 
reconciliation.  We also looked at the COs for the homes during the period of time, to 
determine what was missed there, and, yes, there was some missed COs homes as 
well, not that significant, but some were also missed.  We put a process in place now to 
prevent that with the new system.  On a weekly basis, we generate; we’ve designed a 
report that generates and picks up every home that was CO’d.  A staff member goes in, 
reviews in the system to ensure that all the services are appropriately set up, and that 
account is open.  In addition to the vacation stops, now every week our two billing clerks 
run a report, because now the system that we have can generate a report that can tell 
us really quickly what homes are missing services.  We run that report and the two 
billing clerks go into the system and fix anything that had a previous zero consumption, 
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and now there’s consumption, and services need to be added back before we do the 
billing, because we do four billings, one per week. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Couple more questions.  One, when the contract started, Waste Pro 
had to know how many accounts we had to be able to order these bins, right? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: Correct. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: So if we had accounts, homes, or properties not in the record, let’s 
say it was 37,000 even, Waste Pro would have ordered 37,000 containers.  It would 
appear to me, commonsense, that all the properties not in the system would not have 
gotten a bin, correct. 
 
MS. HASTINGS: The property was in the system, the service was not connected.  So I 
live at a property, doesn’t mean I wasn’t getting a water bill.  I was getting a water bill, 
but the sanitation service was not connected to that account.  If at any appoint we say 
how many residential accounts we have, we know exactly how many residential 
accounts, and it would equal to Waste Pro’s.  But the unfortunate thing is we couldn’t 
run a report that tells us how many accounts have sanitation services attached to them.  
That was where the problem stemmed from. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: What was the original amount?  We have before us a negotiated 
amount.  What was the original amount that stated that we were owed? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: The original amount was, of course, $1,875 for 54 months for the 505 
homes, so it’s $511,000.  Now remember, of that, we would get a franchise fee out of 
that, so not all of that would be Waste Pro.  After we reduced that by the franchise fee, 
which is approximately 32 percent, we would come up with $347,000.  Assuming 
everything was billed and collected, that would be the amount we would have paid to 
Waste Pro.  We ended up settling at the $325,000. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: So what was the audit process to verify that we actually owed what 
Waste Pro said that we owed them? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: We went in and matched every home to see which home was missing 
services, and for how long, and then simple calculation on the monthly rate, because 
they were residentials, so it was easy to calculate, because it’s a standard amount. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: And when were we notified by Waste Pro that we owed this amount 
of money?  How long into the contract? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: The reconciliation process was finished last year, it was approximately 
July of last year that we got the invoice from Waste Pro notifying us of the amount. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: So that was four years into the contract? 
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MS. HASTINGS: Yes, a little over four years, yes. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: So I guess my question to the vendor is why wait four years?  It 
took four years to know you’re being under paid? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: I would have to defer to Waste Pro. 
 
MR. GOOD: I’d like to ask Mr. Russell to come up and speak for a moment about that 
particular component that you’re speaking to. 
 
MR. RUSSELL: Russell Mackie, Regional Vice President of Waste Pro, Florida.  When 
we started, we knew exactly how many carts we delivered.  We bar coded them to an 
address.  We had an address list, and we gave that to the City, saying, “Hey, this is 
where we delivered the recycle carts.”  Because the City already had their billing, there 
was no reason to cross-reference those at the time.  As you began paying us, because 
you collect money on each individual home, but when you pay us, you pay us one big 
amount, we take the total house count of 32,000, whatever the number is, times the 
amount that we get, and we just have a round number that goes to an account every 
single month.  You had the detail, you were sending us a check, but the detail would be 
35,000 entries long of all the homes that made up that check.  So as we posted the 
money, posted the money, it seemed like the over 90 was growing, that things were 
getting out there.  We didn’t know, because the City bills on a weekly basis, we billed on 
a monthly, so there was probably a good year of saying, “Hey, maybe this is just the 
way the City collects it, and then gets the money to us.”  As we started to see the 
balance, we came forward and started to say, “We think that there’s something wrong 
there.”  We gave our, as evidence, our recycling saying, “Hey, we know we delivered a 
cart to every single one of these units,” because we bought them, purchased them.  
That started the basic City exercise of finding out how many homes that you were billing 
for, and I also believe that the County bills a small portion of forms for you, so there was 
finding out those homes.  It was a long, tedious process, and we’re very patient and 
waited and waited.  The invoice that we finally gave to you was finally, when we got 
information back from the City saying, “Hey, this is how many homes we thin, that we 
have.”  And when they started, we were able to then say, “Well, this this I what you 
owe.”  Once we said that, the City went back and then did their reconciliation of our 
records, and basically matched up every single address, when did the City bill for it, had 
they paid us for it, and what amount was due to us.  So I felt very comfortable after, 
again, long process.  We didn’t wait for four years to begin this, we started that much 
earlier on, but the data did not become clear to both parties until 12 months ago. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Commissioner Colbourne, then Commissioner Chambers. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Thank you.  I just want to say that, first of all, I’m 
pleased that the fees are not going up, that we are able to give the same rate to our 
residents, and working with Waste Pro, since I’ve been here, it’s been very few 
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complaints that I’ve gotten from residents.  In the cases where I’ve had any type of 
complaint, I do find that they have been very responsive, and they’ve been good 
corporate partners.  So I am pleased to see that the City was able to work out these 
differences, and settled on an amount, which I do believe is a lot less than what was 
actually owed if it had been paid the way it should have been paid.  It seems like the 
City is actually paying less.  So, even in that sense, it’s somewhat of a savings, so I’m 
really pleased that that issue was addressed and, moving forward, we won’t see that 
happen again. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Commissioner Chambers, you’re recognized. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Ms. Hastings, I think I just want to simplify this for some 
of my residents who are watching on TV or online.  From what I gather is, the City 
knows exactly how many homes we have, and they gave it to Waste Pro, and the 
number of homes matched.  Waste Pro knows exactly how many homes; the City 
knows exactly how many homes.  The discrepancy comes in with the billing.  A few 
homes were not billed for the services, am I correct? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: Correct. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Good.  So because we missed those, didn’t bill for 
those homes, the money came up short when we paid Waste Pro, correct? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: Correct. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Good.  So it’s not like we missed any homes.  We 
know exactly how many, the number correspond, so the problem is in the billing.  This is 
what I want to explain, that we didn’t miss any homes, we just did not bill a few homes, 
well, not a few, but quite a few homes.  My question is, can we just let Waste Pro do the 
billing, would that make it even easier, because the money that we’re billing, we don’t 
pay Waste Pro all that money, we pay them a percentage, whatever that is, right? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: We pay them a percentage, and we only pay them on what we collect, 
so if we don’t collect it, they don’t get paid. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: And that’s where the problem came in with that 
shortage, right? 
 
MS. HASTINGS: Correct.  That’s why it took so long to identify. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: To identify, correct.  Thank you. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: On this issue, I think it’s more so, not an issue, necessarily, on the 
vendor, it’s an issue in terms of the City and our systems, and the billing.  But we have 
to have this discussion, because you have residents here that receive services that 
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were billed, and paid for the service.  Yet we have 500 residents or accounts that, for 
four and a half years, five years, received service and were never billed.  That’s a 
problem, and the residents deserve an explanation.  This is not an issue regarding if the 
vendor was wrong, because the vendor did their job, they performed their contract.  In 
fact, they went above and beyond, in my estimation, in terms of weathering the storm, 
they noticed irregularities, worked with the City, “Hey, you’re a little short on what we 
think you owe us.”  So it took some time to work that out.  But this discussion is 
specifically for our residents to be able to understand.  So now the question becomes, I 
think it’s very difficult for us to go back to the residents that received service and did not 
pay for it, even though we could have every right to do so, because we rendered a 
service that we did not collect on because of the City’s mistake.  We have to take 
ownership when we make the mistake, and I’m hopeful that our new information 
systems does not allow this lapse to happen again, and I hope if we ever do another 
conversion, because we paid big dollars, when these software companies come in to 
change out an ERP system, we’re paying hundreds of thousands of dollars, in terms of 
mass conversion.  Those conversions, I mean they have their consultants in, and they 
should be testing it.  Maybe, perhaps, Mr. Attorney, purchasing, when we’re procuring 
these types of services again, when we’re doing information technology conversions 
that we hold either some kind of bond or some errors and omissions, because I think 
that’s something that should have been caught in the conversion process, but yet now 
the taxpayer is left to hold the bag on this.  So, yes, we have to own up when we make 
these errors, and when we make these errors, we treat them as lessons learned; we go 
through the process, however painful it may be, to admit it, that we always keep a level 
of transparency for the residents.  Because I know there are many residents sitting out 
in the audience and say, “Hey, I know I received my bill every month, and I had to pay.”  
So what happened to our residents, who we love and cherish, who didn’t have to pay?  
So that is why we need to have this discussion.  Thankfully, we have moved forward, 
we have reconciled, and that this issue won’t happen again. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Mayor? 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Yes, Commissioner Chambers, you’re recognized. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Maybe we need to look at another form of billing, 
because garbage collection is billed in the water bill.  Other cities have done a different 
way of billing; maybe we need to look at that, and separate the two to make sure we 
don’t have this issue.  I think we really need to take a closer look at this, and see what 
we can do much better to make sure we bill everyone, we don’t have this shortage.  And 
I know we’re going to pay Waste Pro, and it’s not going to affect our residents, because 
we already allocated this money somewhere, we’re going to find this money 
somewhere, right?  Am I correct?  Right, Mr. Good? 
 
MR. GOOD: That is correct.  These funds have been accounted for this fiscal year, yes, 
sir. 
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COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: I think, for the future, we need to look at other ways of 
doing the billing.  We really need to take a closer look. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you, Commissioner Chambers.  Commissioner Barnes, 
you’re recognized. 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: I think may be one of the things we could look back at is 
the performance components of these arrangements we have with the tech companies, 
because I think what we’re looking at here is not necessarily examination at the start of 
a contract.  But to say, “Hey, listen, we’re running for a year, go back and look how 
efficient we are.  Look if you’re doing what we’re paying you to do.”  And I think that is 
the kind of consideration we need to leave this discussion with. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Yes.  Are there any other comments or questions?  If not, I’ll 
entertain a motion. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Colbourne, seconded by Commissioner Chambers, to 
approve Resolution #R5941, the Commission voted: 
 
 Commissioner Chambers Yes 
 Commissioner Barnes Yes 
 Commissioner Colbourne Yes 
 Vice Mayor Riggs Yes 
 Mayor Messam Yes 
 

Resolution No. 16-75 
 

* * * 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Before we move on, before it gets too late, I would like to recognize 
the attendance of two of the Youth Advisory Council members.  We have Qiang Ling 
Wang and Kyle Chen.  They’re two members of our Youth Advisory Counsel, and those 
of you who were present last Commission Meeting, they gave an outstanding 
presentation on their trip to Nashville with the National League of Cities.  Thanks so 
much coming forth and being involved in the civic process. 
 

* * * 
 
6. Temp. Reso. #R6000 authorizing the lease purchase of one Emergency One 

Custom Emax Typhoon 78-Foot Quint and one Emergency One Custom 
Emax Typhoon Pumper from Hallmark Apparatus, Inc., and two AEV Custom 
Type 1 Medium Duty Ambulances from ETR, LLC, utilizing Florida Sheriff's 
Association Contract No. 15-11-0116, and one Non-Walk-In Rescue Vehicle 
from EVI, Inc., utilizing the Houston-Galveston Area Council Contract No. FS12-
15; awarding Request For Proposals No. 16-02-14 to U.S. Bancorp Government 
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Leasing and Finance, Inc. for the financing of the lease purchase in an amount 
not-to-exceed $2,458,500.  (Procurement Director Randy Cross) 

 
Fire Chief Keith Tomey, III, and Procurement Director Randy Cross went over the 
proposed resolution, as set forth in the backup.  The City Manager recommended 
approval. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you.  Are there any comments or questions from the public?  
Seeing none, bringing it back to the dais.  Are there any comments from the dais?  Yes, 
Commissioner Barnes, you’re recognized. 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: Any pictures of these trucks? 
 
CHIEF TOMEY: No, sir, not yet, but when we build them, we’ll park them out front for 
the next Commission Meeting. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Commissioner Chambers, you’re recognized. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: How are you, Chief Tomey? 
 
CHIEF TOMEY: Good. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: I just want to ask, those vehicles that we’re purchasing, 
what’s the life span? 
 
CHIEF TOMEY: According to the vehicle replacement plan, the engine and the ladder is 
15 years, the two rescues and battalion chief’s vehicle are eight years. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Great, thank you. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Are there any other questions?  If not, I’ll entertain a motion. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Chambers, seconded by Vice Mayor Riggs, to approve 
Resolution #R6000, the Commission voted: 
 
 Commissioner Barnes Yes 
 Commissioner Chambers Yes 
 Commissioner Colbourne Yes 
 Vice Mayor Riggs Yes 
 Mayor Messam Yes 
 

Resolution No. 16-76 
 
 

ORDINANCE 
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7. FIRST READING of Temp. Ord. #O1636 approving a Comprehensive Pay Plan 

for unrepresented employees for the period beginning October 1, 2015 through 
September 30, 2016; and providing for an effective date.  (Human Resources 
Director Sam Hines) 

 
CITY MANAGER WOODS-RICHARDSON: Mr. Mayor, I’d like to pull item number 
seven, so that we can allow for a workshop to discuss the FRS components of the item. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: For what specific purpose would we be withdrawing this item?  This 
is the second time it’s been pulled. 
 
CITY MANAGER WOODS-RICHARDSON: Well, there are some concerns that there is 
pending language in the Legislature that’s going to be coming through, as it relates to 
the item.  Additionally, there’s some issues in terms of we think that we can make a 
better presentation of the item with the separation of the FRS component from the pay 
plan component.  My understanding is that was on a recent development, it being there, 
we can take it out, and then we can have the two items flow separately, the way I think 
that it should be done. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I would say one of the concerns I have in terms of not moving 
forward with the item, with the FRS situation, not necessarily a specific objection 
towards that.  But one of the concerns I have with regard to withdrawing the item is that 
for almost 20 percent of our workforce, with his our unrepresented employees, their 
salary and benefit adjustments, which are due to come into effect for fiscal year (FY) 
2016, which I remind us all which started in October of 2015, which is half a year, 
almost six months, are still in the balance.  I think our employees should be receive 
what they are due, in terms of what the CPP provides.  Because, typically, we approve 
this a month or two after the budget is adopted, and it’s now March, and to continue to 
delay, and I have other concerns in regard to this item, in terms of why it’s delayed.  I 
know there’s mention regarding proposed developments in the State Legislature that 
might impact this item, but I just think that for the benefit of our residents, that we move 
those—we move the item, in terms of allowing our residents to benefit from the annual 
salary adjustments, and benefit adjustments that would be included in the CPP.  How 
do we reconcile the request to withdraw?  Who’s making the request to withdraw?  
You’re making the request to withdraw, or is someone else making the request?  Are 
the attorneys making the request?  Who’s making the request?  Who made the request 
to withdraw? 
 
CITY MANAGER WOODS-RICHARDSON: It is the desire to discuss it, to have the 
workshop.  I did get the request from Commissioner Colbourne, we can discuss the item 
some more. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Is there any reason why we can’t move forward with the items that 
can move forward. 
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COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: Mr. Mayor, if I may.  There’s been a request from the 
Manager to withdraw the item, and it’s a duly request, and I don’t see why we couldn’t 
adhere to the request.  I mean I do wish to sit in a workshop and discuss this item.  I 
think some of the issues here are pretty complex, and we have never sat and 
workshopped them.  We have workshopped items much more frivolous than this, so I 
don’t see anything wrong with the request, in why should we have a whole discussion 
on it, when we will have that opportunity at another time.  I mean that’s the whole issue 
for us to have this discussion. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Yes, let me clarify.  I’m not saying we should not workshop the item 
that is in question. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: I’m not sure what you’re saying. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Let me ask a question.  What components of the CPP are in 
question?  Or what item is in question?  This is a question for the Manager and/or the 
City Attorney. 
 
CITY MANAGER WOODS-RICHARDSON: Actually, the components of the item that 
are ready to go, are those specifically to the pay plan, as it relates to all of the regular 
employees, and what my plan is that we’re going to separate that and bring that back to 
the next meeting.  Because it’s a cleanup process, what I passed by the attorney was if 
we were able to take that portion out tonight, we could make the corrections on the 
record, and move forward with that.  But the cleanup process is to separate the two and 
then bring it back. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: Mayor, if I can.  Historically, the Comprehensive Pay Plan did 
not include the elected officials, and it was approved by resolution.  There came a point 
in time, I don’t remember when it is exactly, but there did come a point in time when the 
elected officials were added, so their salary and benefits.  When that happened, I 
advised the City that, under the Charter, the Commission salary and benefits have to be 
done by ordinance.  So the reason the CPP is being done by ordinance, and has been 
for the last several years, ever since the elected officials were added, is because it has 
to.  I think the thought is that the elected officials, everything dealing with the elected 
officials can be taken out of the CPP.  It can be approved by resolution at the next 
meeting, which would have been second reading, so it takes effect the same time.  As 
to the elected officials, everything will be separated into an ordinance, and that will be 
all addressed in that ordinance, so that way, in the future, you don’t have to do your 
CPP by ordinance, you can just do it by reso., and you can deal with anything with the 
Commission through your ordinance, and you don’t have to be changing it every year, 
unless you choose to. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: So I’ll rephrase my question. 
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MAYOR MESSAM: Is the CPP issue in question pertaining to elected officials, or is it 
pertaining to the unrepresented employees. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: I believe it’s elected officials issues that are in question. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: So it’s an elected official issue, so I’ll go back to my initial concern.  
I have no problem workshopping the issue regarding the elected officials and the FRS.  
What I’m suggesting is for the unrepresented employees who have been waiting since 
October for this passage, that if we can move this item forward, and separate the 
elected official issue tonight.  That’s my question.  I’m not questioning a budget process, 
well, not the budget process, but why we would workshop or why a workshop would be 
beneficial.  I’m just looking out for the employees that have nothing to do with the issue 
at question. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: Mayor, if you do that, you could.  Theoretically, what you 
could do is you could take the ordinance, take out the elected officials, pass it on first 
reading tonight, and then second reading on March 23rd.  Or you can do nothing tonight, 
and the Comprehensive Pay Plan that we put on the agenda on March 23rd will just be a 
resolution, which will take effect on March 23rd, so it’s going to take effect the same day 
for the nonelected officials.  For the elected officials, we’re going to have a separate 
ordinance; first reading can be on March 23rd or sometime in April, and that will take 
effect when it does, but we’re going to separate the two out, and there’s no delay for the 
non-elected officials, because it all takes effect March 23rd. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: That’s all I was asking.  I don’t want the employees to wait another 
day, to be delayed any further, and that’s the intent of my concern.  Then once we get to 
the issue with the elected officials, I can voice and will voice my other issues in terms of 
how that will be resolve, which is my final question on this issue.  Developments in the 
State or however the State Legislature decides to move forward, as it relates to the 
FRS, which would impact the item in question, when would it come into effect? 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: The session ends in, I believe, nine days, so we will know 
whether anything enacted within nine days.  That doesn’t mean the Governor is going to 
sign it, and it still wouldn’t be in effect until July 1st or October 1st, depending on the way 
they do the legislation, but at least it will give you the idea of how to address the issue 
into the future, if it’s adopted or if it’s not adopted.  And it may not be adopted, so we 
don’t know if it’s going to have any impact or not.  But we should know, at least have 
some better idea in two weeks, so even if you have the workshop, or in three weeks, 
March 23rd, we’d have an idea of that issue at that point. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: So wouldn’t it be better to resolve that issue once the legislation has 
been ratified by signature of the Governor, as opposed to coming up with a solution 
prior to we knowing that the legislation.  First of all, we don’t even know whatever bill 
that is being proposed will pass, or, once if it does pass and passes the Legislature, that 
the Governor would sign it.  So it would seem to be that it would be best to, at least for 
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the elected official portion, we can workshop now, but wait until it has been decided by 
the State, in terms of what the next direction would be. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: I think that’s a good point, but if nothing passes, we’ll know 
that in three weeks.  If something does pass that doesn’t have an impact, it won’t matter 
if it’s signed or not.  If something does pass that does have an impact, I think you’re 
right, you may want to wait, but you do still need to figure out what you’re going to do 
now.  I mean every month payments are being made, so we need to figure out what 
we’re doing.  We don’t want to delay the elected officials’ aspect for an extended period 
of time.  But it sounds like the plan, and what the City Manager had talked to me about 
was to go ahead and take out the elected officials from this, put it on as a reso. on the 
23rd, the next meeting.  The employees will be taken care of.  The elected officials will 
continue as is, until you take further action, and that will be done by a separate 
ordinance, and we’ll workshop that either the 23rd or shortly thereafter. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Are there any other questions or comments?  As long as the 
unrepresented are resolved by the next meeting, I’m okay.  Are there any other 
comments?  Commissioner Chambers. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Now my question is, are the regular employees going 
to fall under the same category as the elected officals? 
 
CITY MANAGER WOODS-RICHARDSON: No. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: As far as paying into the pension, and they’re not going 
to receive it?  No? 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: No, because only the elected officials are on the FRS 
program, so even if someone worked in Dade County or somewhere else, and was 
covered by FRS and retired, and came to work for the City, they would not be part of the 
FRS plan in the City, so this issue would not affect them.  This cannot affect anyone 
except for the  five of you. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: So what is the attorney recommending tonight, and the 
City Manager, to wait or what’s your recommendation? 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: I think, based on my conversation with the City Manager is, 
we should go ahead and do what I just mentioned.  We should go ahead and withdraw 
this tonight.  We will put on the next agenda a resolution approving the Comprehensive 
Pay Plan without the elected officials.  The elected officials issues will all be 
workshopped and, shortly thereafter, they’ll come with an ordinance, and we’ll go back 
to the way we did this ten, 15 years ago, which is all the elected officials issues are 
dealt with by ordinance and not part of the Comprehensive Paly Plan. 
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COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: And my understanding is that it’s going to be 
retroactive, so they’re not going to lose anything. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: All these are always retroactive, so, yes. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS:  Okay so that’s fine. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Any other questions or comments?  Seems like we have 
consensus?  This doesn’t require a vote, correct, just consensus? 
 
CITY ATTORNEY COLE: No.  Yes, and it doesn’t even require a consensus.  The truth 
is that the City Manager controls the agenda.  If she wants to withdraw it, she can do 
whatever she wants.  So if she’s withdrawn it, there’s nothing else that needs to be 
done. 
 
CITY MANAGER WOODS-RICHARDSON: Now you tell me. 
 
Withdrawn 
 
 

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
 
City Attorney Cole explained Miramar’s procedures regarding quasi-judicial hearings, 

stating the rules applied to items 8 and 9.   

Those providing testimony on the following quasi-judicial items were collectively sworn 
in by City Clerk Gibbs. 
 
 
8. Temp. Reso. #R5983 considering Application No. 1503202, conditional use 

approval for the expansion of the existing conditional use of the Chevron 
Service Station located at 3100 Southwest 148 Avenue.  (Community & 
Economic Development Director Eric Silva) 

 
Community & Economic Development Director Eric Silva reviewed items eight and nine 
in one presentation as set forth in the backup, though each item was voted on 
separately.  The City Manager recommended approval with staff conditions as noted in 
the backup. 
 
Paul Lingerfelt, the applicant’s representative, concurred with Mr. Silva’s presentation, 
adding that the applicant agreed to satisfy all five City staff conditions for approval. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Will there be E85 fuel available with the expansion? 
 
MR. LINGERFELT: This one does not have E85. 
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MAYOR MESSAM: Are there any other questions for staff or the applicant?  Yes, 
Commissioner Barnes, you’re recognized. 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: What is prompting the request for this expansion?  Are we 
talking about increased service, increased activities? 
 
MR. LINGERFELT: Basically, it’s a response to our customers, our clients, the residents 
and business people in the area.  During peak hours, the pump islands are crowded, 
and people are having to wait longer than they liked to wait to get fuel.  So this is 
Sunshine Gasoline Distributor is the owner, it’s their response to the public for additional 
fueling positions.  We have the room, which makes it nice, and it is a direct response to 
the public. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: At this time, are there any questions or comments from the public?  
Seeing none, coming back to the dais.  Commissioner Chambers, you’re recognized. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: I must say I use that gas station frequently, and I want 
to thank you for keeping the price low, so I recommend approval. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Any other questions or comments from the dais?  All right, so we’ll 
take these items one by one.  I’ll entertain a motion on number eight, please. 
 
On a motion by Vice Mayor Riggs, seconded by Commissioner Colbourne, to approve 
Resolution #R5983, the Commission voted: 
 
 Commissioner Barnes Yes 
 Commissioner Chambers Yes 
 Commissioner Colbourne Yes 
 Vice Mayor Riggs Yes 
 Mayor Messam Yes 
 

Resolution No. 16-77 
 
9. Temp. Reso. #R5984 considering Application No. 1503203, variance approval 

for the expansion of the amount of service pumps of the Chevron Service 
Station located at 3100 Southwest 148 Avenue.  (Community & Economic 
Development Director Eric Silva) 

 
MAYOR MESSAM: Item number nine, motion, please? 
 
On a motion by Vice Mayor Riggs, seconded by Commissioner Colbourne, to approve 
Resolution #R5984, the Commission voted: 
 
 Commissioner Barnes Yes 
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 Commissioner Chambers Yes 
 Commissioner Colbourne Yes 
 Vice Mayor Riggs Yes 
 Mayor Messam Yes 
 

Resolution No. 16-78 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 
10. Reports and Comments: 
 
 Commissioner Reports: 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I’m starting with Vice Mayor Riggs, moving down. 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Have a wonderful week, everyone.  See you next meeting. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Commissioner Barnes. 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: Just to our residents, watch out for the citizenship drive 
coming up.  I’ve been working on it.  Working on it, details are getting together. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Commissioner Chambers. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  I must say I had the pleasure to 
day of the ribbon cutting of Vicky Bakery right here in Miramar.  Great family history and 
it’s good to see more jobs creating in the City of Miramar, so I want to thank the owners 
of Vicky Bakery for setting up in Miramar.  Once again, I’d like to thank our employees, 
this great City, fire, police, GAME union, Utility, Parks, they’re doing a wonderful, so I 
want to really thank them so much.  Thank the residents a lot for providing that funding 
for keeping our City moving forward.  Thank my colleagues, Commissioners, Mayor, 
thank you all so much.  I must say that gas station, I visit frequently, I won’t be visiting 
too frequently, because I change my truck, so I’m using less gas now. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Commissioner Colbourne. 
 
COMMISSIONER COLBOURNE: I do want to echo your sentiments, Commissioner 
Chambers, on Vicky Bakery.  It was great to see the grand opening, and a lot of folks 
came out, and a lot of residents have been visiting their establishment, so it’s really 
good to have their store right here in our neighborhood, get our café con leche, and our 
pastelitos.  Also wanted to remind residents that early voting is coming up this Saturday, 
and encourage them to go out and participate in the process.   
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MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you.  A couple of announcements and comments.  I’d like to 
also wish Vicky Bakery all the best and much success.  The City Commission was well 
represented at their grand opening today, and we look forward to a successful business 
enterprise there at the Kohl’s Shopping Plaza.  Second, we have a Commission retreat 
that was scheduled for March 12th, which is next weekend, and I think, originally, each 
of us was polled.  And we were polled to see if that date worked, and there was a 
consensus that it did.  But, out of courtesy, did see communication from your office, 
Commissioner Chambers that you now, will not be able to make that date, and it’s 
important for all of us to be there, so we have to figure out when we’re going to have the 
retreat. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: I think Friday would have been a better day.  I don’t 
know if it’s possible. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I think the challenge is, is everyone available on the 11th for four 
hours in the morning, from 8:00 to 12:00?  I think why Saturday was selected was for 
the elected officials that may be working on a Friday, obviously, wouldn’t be available, 
so Saturday was the most convenient day for all of us.  Is there a possibility that you 
can keep the 12th, or you just wanted to have it on the 11th, as opposed to the 12th, or is 
there a reason? 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Saturday is more family time for me, but if I have to do 
it, fine. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: I mean we understand if there’s extenuating circumstances, so if 
there is flexibility to have it on the 12th we would like to.  And one of the reasons why we 
want to have it on the 12th is at some portion of the retreat, it could provide some 
direction for staff that will, potentially, provide direction for staff as they enter into the 
budget process.  So the further we delay it and delay it, just adds more pressure to the 
budget process. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: But this retreat, why are we having it at the City.  That’s 
a real retreat? 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: It’s not a fun thing.  
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: It’s a workshop. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: It’s a working meeting, and the reason why it’s being held at the 
City, one, it keeps costs down; two, because it’s a public noticed meeting, we had to 
make sure that our meetings are accessible to the public, as we were reminded 
yesterday in our ethics workshop.  So, in keeping with that spirit, but it sounds like the 
12th may work, and we definitely appreciate it, Commissioner Chambers, because 
family time is important for all of us, so we do know that we are sacrificing time away 
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from our family for it, for the benefit of the community.  So we definitely appreciate your 
flexibility. 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: I’m not sure if it has been noted that I responded to that 
workshop initially with a maybe, because there a number of issues that I still have to 
resolve to be able to attend the whole day. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: The time that was presented was, I think, 8:00 to 12:00? 
 
CITY MANAGER WOODS-RICHARDSON: 8:00 to 4:00. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Oh, 8:00 to 4:00. 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: Not sure. 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Can we change the hours? 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: When will you know, Commissioner? 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: As of now, I don’t have an answer. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Well, do we know a date certain of when you will  have an answer? 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Instead of the whole day, maybe four hours, and then 
maybe another four hours? 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: The only commitment I’m going to give at this time is that 
I’ll try to attend most of the day.  I cannot commit otherwise at this point in time. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Okay, but you will be present? 
 
COMMISSIONER BARNES: I will make an effort to be there. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Okay, thank you.  Commissioner Colbourne, will you be able to 
make the 12th? 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Yes. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Vice Mayor Riggs? 
 
VICE MAYOR RIGGS: Yes. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: And I will be there so we have consensus to keep it.  And, again, I 
do know that it’s a Saturday, but thanks so much for your flexibility and your willingness 
to serve the public to have the retreat.  Finally, just would like to inform the community, 
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I’ll be having on April 9th, the 3K Run/Walk here at Town Center, followed by a day of 
fitness and activities, and health fair for the children, as well as the community.  And the 
purpose of the event, as we’ve always done, last year was the first time we added the 
3K, that is, basically, a route around Town Center.  It’s to introduce and bring together 
the community.  So whether you’re in the best of shape or in no shape at all, everyone 
can walk a mile at a minimum, if you’re able to walk.  For those who want to jog or those 
who want to sprint can sprint.  But the main purpose is to bring the family, bring the kids.  
We have great corporate sponsors and partners: Joe DiMaggio, we’ll have the teddy 
bear corner, and we’ll have rock-climbing, face painting.  The Miami Dolphins will have 
an obstacle course here.  Memorial Miramar will provide free screenings, blood 
pressure.  We’ll have eye exams.  We’ll have chiropractors here, so if you want to get 
an adjustment, massages.  We’ll have fitness demonstration, spinning, yoga, aerobics, 
and jazzercise.  It’s always a great event, and it will be April the 9th from 8:30 to noon.  
Do we have any reports from Madam Manager, Mr. Attorney? 
 
COMMISSIONER CHAMBERS: Mr. Mayor, I just want to mention for families, we have 
our annual Eggapalooza coming up on the 26th, so it’s free to families, a fun day, rides, 
bounce house, Easter bunny, egg hunt, music, Home Depot workshop and so forth.  
And, Mr. Mayor, I just want to mention Big Al’s Steakhouse; we can send some support 
to that lady’s way.  It’s a small business in the plaza where Vicky Bakery just opened to 
Golden Krust.  I’m asking to support this business to make sure she keeps her business 
going.  So if we can stop by and buy from her, I’d greatly appreciated. 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: Thank you.  And have an awesome mixed green chili cheese salad.  
Meeting is adjourned. 
 
 
 City Attorney Reports: 
 
None  
 
 City Manager Reports: 
 
None 
 
 
FUTURE WORKSHOP 

 
      Date   Time    Subject          Location 

 
03/12/16 

 
8:30 a.m. 

 
Strategic Planning for the Future 

Commission 
Conference Room 

 
03/23/16 

 
5:30 p.m. 

 
Broward County Marijuana Ordinance 

Commission 
Conference Room 
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ADJOURNMENT 
 
MAYOR MESSAM: On that note, we are adjourned. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:11 p.m.  
 
 
 
________________________ 
Denise A. Gibbs, CMC 
City Clerk 
DG/cp 
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CONSENT AGENDA

March 23, 2016
CITY OF MIRAMAR

PROPOSED CITY COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

Meeting Date: March 23, 2016

Second Reading Date: 

Presenter’s Name and Title: Hong Guo, P.E., Utilities Director, on behalf of the Utilities 
Department

Temp Reso Number: 5988

Item Description:   Temp. Reso. No. 5988, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CASH SECURITY AGREEMENT AND ISSUE TO BROWARD COUNTY A 
CASH BOND IN THE AMOUNT OF $405,464 AS SECURITY FOR THE FLAMINGO ROAD RECLAIMED 
WATER DISTRIBUTION MAIN PROJECT. (Utilities Director Hong Guo)   

Consent Resolution Ordinance Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing 

Summary Explanation and Background: On May 20, 2015, the City Commission adopted 
Resolution No. 15-124, approving the award of a design-build agreement (the "Agreement") to Southern 
Underground Industries, Inc. ("Contractor"), for pre-construction services for the Flamingo Road Reclaimed 
Water Distribution Main (the "Project"). On February 23, 2016, the City Commission adopted Resolution 
No. 16-71, approving an amendment (the "Amendment") to the Agreement, for the provision of 
construction services for the Project. 

As part of its obligations imposed by the Agreement and Amendment, Contractor is required to provide a 
performance and payment bond to the City in the amount of $1,260,000, as security in the event of default 
on the Agreement.  Pursuant to the Agreement and Amendment, Contractor is also required to obtain a 
construction permit from Broward County (the "County"), which owns the Flamingo Road Right-of-Way.  

Pursuant to its Administrative Code, the County is requiring the City as the developer for the Project to 
provide additional security in the amount of $405,464 in the form of check, cash or letter of credit, for the 
issuance of the permit for the Project.  While, in the past, the County has waived this requirement for 
municipal projects based upon the surety bonds traditionally provided by contractors on construction 
projects, the County has since ceased offering the aforementioned waiver.  Pursuant to its Administrative 
Code, the County will retain the security for one year after completion of the Project.

After reviewing the each option as to the form of security, staff determined that posting a cash bond is the 
least expensive option, in part because a letter of credit obtained from a bank will require collateral, a 
percentage rate charge and fees. This Resolution is for City Commission approval of the Cash Security 
Agreement the City will be required to execute in connection with the County's security requirement, and 
for approval to issue a cash bond in the amount of $405,464 as security for the Project.

Instructions for the Office of the City Clerk: 

Public Notice – As Required by Sec.  of the City Code  and/or Sec. , Florida Statutes, public notice for this item was 

provided as follows: on , in a ad in the ; by posting the property on and/or by sending mailed notice to property 

owners within feet of the property on .  (Fill in all that apply)



Special Voting Requirement – As required by Sec. , of the City Code and/or Sec. Florida Statutes, approval of this item 

requires a (unanimous 4/5ths etc. vote of the City Commission.

Fiscal Impact:  Yes No 

REMARKS: Funding in the amount of $405,464 for the cash bond agreement is within 
Reserve Account No. 410-90-000-536-000-606499.

Content: 
•  Agenda Item Memo from the City Manager to City Commission
•  Resolution TR No. 5988
• Exhibit(s):

 - Exhibit A: Cash Security Agreement with Broward County 







Temp. Reso. No. 5988
1/27/16
3/14/16

CITY OF MIRAMAR
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA

RESOLUTION NO. _______

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CASH SECURITY AGREEMENT AND 
ISSUE TO BROWARD COUNTY A CASH BOND IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$405,464 AS SECURITY FOR THE FLAMINGO ROAD RECLAIMED 
WATER DISTRIBUTION MAIN PROJECT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on May 20, 2015, the City Commission adopted Resolution No. 15-

24, approving and authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement (the 

“Agreement”) with Southern Underground Industries, Inc. (the “Contractor”), for the 

provision of design services for the Flamingo Road Reclaimed Water Distribution Main 

(the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2016, the City Commission adopted Resolution No. 

16-71, approving and authorizing the City Manager to execute an amendment (the 

“Amendment”) to the Agreement with the Contractor, for the provision of construction 

services for the Project; and

WHEREAS, Broward County (the “County”) owns the Flamingo Road Right-of-

Way; and 

Reso. No. _____
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WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement and Amendment, which requires

Contractor to obtain a construction permit from the County, Contractor submitted to the 

County documentation necessary to obtain the required permit; and  

WHEREAS, the County is requiring additional security from the City in the form 

of check, cash or letter of credit for the amount of $405,464 for the issuance of the 

requested permit to Contractor; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends that the City Commission approve 

and authorize execution of the Cash Security Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, 

and authorize the issuance of a cash bond to the County in the amount of $405,464 as 

security for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission deems it to be in the best interest of the 

citizens and residents of the City of Miramar to approve and authorize the City Manager 

to execute the Cash Security Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and to issue to 

the County a cash bond in the amount of $405,464 as security for the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF MIRAMAR, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are hereby ratified and 

confirmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this 

Resolution.

Reso. No. _____ 2
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Section 2: That the City Manager is authorized to execute the Cash Security 

Agreement in the form attached as Exhibit “A”, together with any non-substantive 

changes as are deemed acceptable to the City Manager and approved as to form and 

legal sufficiency by the City Attorney, and to issue to Broward County a cash bond in 

the amount of $405,464 as security for the Flamingo Road Reclaimed Water 

Distribution Main Project.  

Section 3: That the appropriate City officials are hereby authorized to do all 

things necessary and expedient to carry out the aims of this Resolution.

Section 4: That the appropriate City Officials are authorized to do all things 

necessary and expedient to carry out the aims of this Resolution.

 

Reso. No. _____ 3
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Section 5: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ____________________, 2016.

________________________________
Mayor, Wayne M. Messam

________________________________
Vice Mayor, Darline B. Riggs

ATTEST:

______________________________  
City Clerk, Denise A. Gibbs

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have 
approved this RESOLUTION 
as to form:

_______________________________
City Attorney
Weiss Serota Helfman 
Cole & Bierman, P.L.

Requested by Administration Voted
Commissioner Winston F. Barnes _____
Commissioner Maxwell B. Chambers _____
Commissioner Yvette Colbourne _____
Vice Mayor Darline B. Riggs _____
Mayor Wayne M. Messam _____

Reso. No. _____ 4



CASH SECURITY AGREEMENT 
(Installation, Construction and Completion of Improvements) 

KNOWN BY ALL PRESENT:  That ____________________________________ 
___________________________, (hereafter “DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR”), herewith 
tenders unto Broward County, a political subdivision of the state of Florida, (hereafter 
“COUNTY”), the full and just sum of _______________________________ Dollars 
($_____________), lawful money of the United States of America, to which payment 
well and truly made bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors 
and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents: 

WHEREAS, DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR requested a permit (hereafter 
"PERMIT") from the COUNTY to install, construct, and complete certain road 
improvements (hereafter "Improvements"); and  

WHEREAS, said PERMIT requires DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR to install, 
construct, and complete said Improvements at DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR’s sole 
cost and expense and at no cost or expense to COUNTY, as well as maintain said 
Improvements for a period of one (1) year from the date of acceptance of said 
Improvements by the COUNTY; and 

WHEREAS, as a condition of the issuance of a PERMIT by COUNTY to 
DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR, said DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR is required to furnish 
to COUNTY satisfactory security, securing the costs for the installation, construction, 
completion, and maintenance of the Improvements; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the conditions of this obligation are such that if the above 
bound DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR shall in all respects comply or cause others to 
comply with the terms and conditions of said PERMIT, within the time specified, and 
shall in every respect fulfill the obligations herein, then this obligation shall be void; 
otherwise, to be and remain in full force and effect:  

1. DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR unconditionally covenants and agrees to install,
construct, and complete all Improvements, more specifically described in Exhibit
"A," attached hereto and made a part hereof, required by the PERMIT, and to
maintain such Improvements for a period of one (1) year from the date of written
acceptance of the Improvements by the COUNTY.

2. The estimated costs of the Improvements are ____________________________ 
Dollars ($___________________), which shall be secured by cash, cashier’s 
check, or certified check made payable to the Broward County Highway 
Construction and Engineering Division ("Engineering Division").
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3. Upon completion of the Improvements and acceptance by the COUNTY,
DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR shall notify the Engineering Division of such
completion and acceptance.  Upon a determination by the Engineering Division
that the Improvements have been installed, constructed, completed, and
accepted, and following the completion of DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR's one
(1) year maintenance obligation, the COUNTY shall have ninety (90) days to
remit the security herein to DEVELOPER/ CONTRACTOR.

4. In the event DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR fails to install, construct, complete, or
maintain the Improvements, COUNTY or its authorized agent shall provide
written notice to DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR or its authorized agent or officer,
of said failure to install, construct, complete, or maintain said Improvements.  If
DEVELOPER/ CONTRACTOR fails or refuses to comply with the requirements
herein and as contained in the PERMIT within thirty (30) days of receipt of written
notice from COUNTY, then COUNTY shall, at its option, have the right to
complete DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR’s obligations, or cause to be completed
the aforesaid installation, construction, completion, or maintenance of the
Improvements.

5. In the event COUNTY exercises the right to install, construct, complete, or
maintain said Improvements as set forth in Section 4 above,
DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR shall be liable for all costs incurred by COUNTY
and the monies tendered hereby shall be used to reimburse COUNTY for the
total cost of such installation, construction, completion, or maintenance,
including, but not limited to, engineering, legal, and contingent costs, together
with any direct or consequential damages, which may be sustained on account of
the failure of DEVELOPER/ CONTRACTOR to carry out and execute the
required maintenance for the aforesaid one (1) year period.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR has executed this Cash 
Security Agreement this ______ day of _________________, 20___. 

- 2 - 



DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR – INDIVIDUAL 

Witnesses: DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR 

__________________________ ______________________________ 
(Signature)        (Signature) 

Print name:_________________ Print name:_____________________ 

__________________________ Print address:___________________ 
(Signature) 

______________________________ 
Print name:_________________ 

____ day of ______________, 20___ 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT - INDIVIDUAL 
STATE OF    ________________) 

             )  SS. 
COUNTY OF   ________________) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________________, 20___, by ___________________________________ who is 
personally known to me, or produced_____________________ as identification.   

_____________________________ 
Notary Public 

_____________________________ 
Type or Print Name 

Commission No. _______________ 
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DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR-CORPORATION/PARTNERSHIP 

Witnesses (if partnership): ______________________________ 
Name of DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR 
(corporation/partnership)  

__________________________ By_____________________________ 
(Signature)  (Signature) 

Print name:_________________ Print name:______________________ 

Title:___________________________ 

__________________________ Address:________________________ 
(Signature)  _______________________________ 

Print name:_________________ ____ day of _______________, 20___ 

 ATTEST (if corporation): 

__________________________ (CORPORATE SEAL) 
(Secretary Signature) 

__________________________ 
Print Name of Secretary 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT - CORPORATION/PARTNERSHIP 

STATE OF    _______________) 
       )  SS. 

COUNTY OF   _______________) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 
___________________, 20___, by ___________________, as ______________ of 
______________________________, a __________ corporation/partnership, on 
behalf of the corporation/ partnership.  He or she is personally known to me or has 
produced ________________ as identification.   

_____________________________ 
Notary Public 

_____________________________ 
Type or Print Name 

Commission No. _______________ 
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3.
CONSENT AGENDA

March 23, 2016
CITY OF MIRAMAR

PROPOSED CITY COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

Meeting Date: March 23, 2016

Second Reading Date: N/A

Presenter’s Name and Title: Terrence Griffin, Parks and Recreation Director, on 
behalf of Parks and Recreation

Temp Reso Number: 5889

Item Description:   Temp. Reso. No. 5889, APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO RESOLUTION NO. 
15-09, TO CHANGE THE LOCATION FOR THE NEW PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FROM MIRAMAR 
REGIONAL PARK TO CIVIC CENTER PARK AND TO REDUCE THE APPROVED EXPENDITURE 
AMOUNT FROM $103,155 FOR THE PURCHASE OF PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FROM PLAYCORE 
WISCONSIN, INC. D/B/A GAMETIME THROUGH DOMINICA RECREATION PRODUCTS, INC. TO AN 
AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $89,290. (Parks and Recreation Director Terrence Griffin)

Consent Resolution Ordinance Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing 

Summary Explanation and Background: On November 5, 2014, through the adoption of 
Resolution No. 15-09, the City Commission approved the purchase of playground equipment for Miramar 
Regional Park and related relocation services for equipment located at the park from Playcore Wisconsin, 
Inc. d/b/a GameTime through Dominica Recreation Products, Inc.  The existing playground located next to 
the corporate pavilion had been identified for relocation to allow for adequate space and parking for the 
proposed corporate conference facility/administration office at Miramar Regional Park.

On January 13, 2015, the City issued Purchase Order No. 26193 for the purchase of the approved new 
playground equipment.  Since that time, the scope of the corporate conference facility/administration office 
has been reduced.  Therefore, the existing playground no longer requires relocation. However, because
the new playground equipment has already been ordered and manufactured, it can be utilized at a different 
location, namely the Civic Center Park.  The overall cost for the project has been reduced from an amount
not-to-exceed $103,155 to an amount not-to-exceed $89,290, using funds from the Civic Center Park 
project (Project No. 51015) rather than the funds referenced in Resolution No. 15-09. Any funds saved 
from this scope change and the playground relocation will be allocated towards the Regional Park 
Corporate Pavillion Renovation Project. 

This Resolution is for the approval of the proposed amendment to Resolution No. 15-09, to change the 
location for the new playground equipment from Miramar Regional Park to Civic Center Park, and to 
reduce the approved expenditure amount for the purchase of playground equipment from Playcore 
Wisconsin, Inc. d/b/a GameTime through Dominica Recreation Products, Inc.  

Instructions for the Office of the City Clerk: 



Public Notice – As Required by Sec.  of the City Code  and/or Sec. , Florida Statutes, public notice for this item was 

provided as follows: on , in a ad in the ; by posting the property on and/or by sending mailed notice to property 

owners within feet of the property on .  (Fill in all that apply)

Special Voting Requirement – As required by Sec. , of the City Code and/or Sec. Florida Statutes, approval of this item 

requires a (unanimous 4/5ths etc. vote of the City Commission.

Fiscal Impact:  Yes No 

REMARKS: Funding of $89,290 is available in the Police Benevolent Association/Civic 
Center Park Expansion Project already allocated in the Parks For People Grant Fund, GL 
Account 163-53-900-572-000-606510-51015.

Content: 
•  Agenda Item Memo from the City Manager to City Commission
•  Resolution TR5889 

 - Exhibit A: Resolution No. 15-09
 - Exhibit B: Purchase Order No. 26193 

•  Attachment(s)
 - Attachment 1: Resolution No. 15-09 (TR 5632) Agenda Item with Back-up
 -  Attachment 2: GameTime Proposed Cost Changes







Temp. Reso. No. 5889
1/13/16
3/14//16

CITY OF MIRAMAR
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA

RESOLUTION NO. _______

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-09, TO CHANGE THE LOCATION FOR THE 
NEW PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FROM MIRAMAR REGIONAL PARK 
TO CIVIC CENTER PARK AND TO REDUCE THE APPROVED 
EXPENDITURE AMOUNT FROM $103,155 FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FROM PLAYCORE WISCONSIN, INC. 
D/B/A GAMETIME THROUGH DOMINICA RECREATION PRODUCTS, 
INC.TO AN AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $89,290; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2014, the City Commission approved Resolution No. 14-

104, relating to the expansion of the Corporate Conference Facility/Administration Office

Building at the Miramar Regional Park; and

WHEREAS, as part of the expansion of the Corporate Conference 

Facility/Administration Office Building, it was recommended that the existing playground 

in Miramar Regional Park be relocated; and

WHEREAS, accordingly, on November 5, 2014, through the adoption of 

Resolution No. 15-09, the City Commission approved the expenditure of an amount not-

to-exceed $103,155, for the relocation of the playground equipment located at Miramar 

Regional Park and for the purchase of additional equipment from Playcore Wisconsin, 

Inc., d/b/a GameTime through Dominica Recreation Products, Inc.; and

Reso. No. _____



Temp. Reso. No. 5889
1/13/16
3/14/16

WHEREAS, since the City Commission’s adoption of Resolution No. 15-09 and 

the issuance of Purchase Order No. 26193, the scope of proposed expansion of the

Corporate Conference Facility/Administration Office Building has been reduced, thus 

eliminating the need to relocate the existing playground; and

WHEREAS, the new playground equipment can alternatively be installed at the 

Civic Center Park for a reduced amount not-to-exceed $89,290, which represents a 

substantial savings to the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends approval of the proposed amendment 

to Resolution No. 15-09, to change the location for the new playground equipment from 

Miramar Regional Park to the Civic Center Park and to reduce the approved expenditure 

amount from an amount not-to-exceed $103,155 to an amount not-to-exceed $89,290 

and to allocate the savings from this action towards funding for the Regional Park 

Corporate Pavillion Renovation Project; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds that it is in the best interest of the citizens 

and residents of the City of Miramar to amend Resolution No. 15-09, to change the 

location for the new playground equipment from Miramar Regional Park to the Civic 

Center Park and to reduce the approved expenditure amount from an amount not-to-

exceed $103,155 to an amount not-to-exceed $89,290.

Reso. No. _____ 2



Temp. Reso. No. 5889
1/13/16
3/14/16

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF MIRAMAR, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed 

and made a true and correct part of this Resolution.

Section 2: That it approves the proposed amendment to Resolution No. 15-09, 

to change the location for the new playground equipment from Miramar Regional Park to 

the Civic Center Park and to reduce the approved expenditure amount from an amount 

not-to-exceed $103,155 to an amount not-to-exceed $89,290.

Section 3: That appropriate City staff is authorized to do all things necessary 

to carry out the aims of this Resolution.

Reso. No. _____ 3



Temp. Reso. No. 5889
1/13/16
3/14/16

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ____________________, 2016.

________________________________
Mayor, Wayne M. Messam

________________________________
Vice Mayor, Darline B. Riggs

ATTEST:

______________________________  
City Clerk, Denise A. Gibbs

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have 
approved this RESOLUTION 
as to form:

_______________________________
City Attorney
Weiss Serota Helfman 
Cole & Bierman, P.L.

Requested by Administration Voted
Commissioner Winston F. Barnes _____
Commissioner Maxwell B. Chambers _____
Commissioner Yvette Colbourne _____
Vice Mayor Darline B. Riggs _____
Mayor Wayne M. Messam _____

Reso. No. _____ 4



Exhibit A 
Temp. Reso. No. 5632 
9/17/14 
10/23/14 

CITY OF MIRAMAR 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-09 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE FOR 
PLAYGROUND RELOCATION AND THE PURCHASE AND 
INSTALLATION OF PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FOR MIRAMAR 
REGIONAL PARK FROM PLAYCORE WISCONSIN, INC., DIBIA 
GAMETIME, THROUGH DOMINICA RECREATION PRODUCTS, INC. IN 
AN AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $103,155, UTILIZING CHARLOTTE 
AND MECKLENBURG COUNTIES (NORTH CAROLINA) MASTER 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
NO. 110179; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2014, the City Commission approved Resolution No. 14-

104 for architectural design services for the Corporate Conference 

Facility/Administration Office Building at the Miramar Regional Park; and 

WHEREAS, to allow for the building’s new footprint and the provision of 

adequate space and parking, it is recommended that the existing playground in Miramar 

Regional Park be relocated; and 

WHEREAS, City staff has determined that participating in the U.S. Communities 

Government Purchasing Alliance and utilizing North Carolina Charlotte-Mecklenburg 

Counties Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement No. 110179, 

with PlayCore Wisconsin, Inc., d/b/a GameTime, through Dominica Recreation 

Products, Inc., for this purchase is in the best interest of the City; and 

Reso. No. 15-09 

EXHIBIT "A"
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Temp. Reso. No. 5632 
9/17/14 
10/23/14 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-413(7) of the City Code, the City may 

participate in cooperative purchasing plans with other public agencies within this State 

and any other state if the source selection methods used are substantially equal to the 

source selection methods in the City Code; and 

WHEREAS, the total cost for removal, relocating and purchase of the playground 

equipment, site preparation, Americans with Disabilities Act-compliant surface and 

shade structure will be an amount not-to-exceed $103,155; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends approving the expenditure for 

relocation of the Miramar Regional Park playground and purchase and installation of 

additional playground equipment in an amount not-to-exceed $103,155 for Fiscal Year 

2015, utilizing North Carolina Charlotte-Mecklenburg Counties Master 

Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement No. 110179; and 

WHEREAS, the City Commission deems it to be in the best interest of the 

citizens and residents of the City of Miramar to approve the expenditure for relocation of 

the Miramar Regional Park playground and purchase and installation of additional 

playground equipment in an amount not-to-exceed $103,155 for Fiscal Year 2015, 

utilizing North Carolina Charlotte-Mecklenburg Counties Master Intergovernmental 

Cooperative Purchasing Agreement No. 110179. 

Reso. No. 15-09 	 2 



Temp. Reso. No. 5632 
9/17/14 
10/23/14 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF MIRAMAR, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: That the foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are ratified and confirmed 

as being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2: That it approves the expenditure for relocation of the Miramar 

Regional Park playground and purchase and installation of additional playground 

equipment in an amount not-to-exceed $103,155 for Fiscal Year 2015, utilizing North 

Carolina Charlotte-Mecklenburg Counties Master Intergovernmental Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement No. 110179. 

Section 3: That the appropriate City officials are authorized to do all things 

necessary and expedient in order to carry out the aims of this Resolution. 

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect Immediately upon adoption. 

Reso. No. 15-09 	 3 



Temp. Reso. No. 5632 
9/17/14 
10/23/14 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5 	day Of November 	 , 2014. 

L/wlay r, L Lor,  - C  - I  

kyo Mayor, Yvette Colbourne 
rI� i*b1i 

,piwg4II 
I HEREBY CERTIFY at I have 
approved s ES 	lION 

L -  
as to 

CityAttom y 
Weiss Se Ia Helfman Cole 
Bierman Popok, P.L. 

Reauested by Administration 
Commissioner Winston F. Barnes 
Vice Mayor Yvette Colboume 
Commissioner Alexandra P. Davis 
Commissioner Wayne M. Messam 
Mayor Lori C. Moseley 

Voted 
Yes 

Yes 

eg 
Yes 

Yes 

Reso. No. 15-09 	 4 



Attachment 1 

08/11/2015 11:17 	CITY OF MIRAMAR 	 P 	1 
ogaverill 	 I 	 1poinqury 

PURCHASE ORDER 

00026193-00 FY 2015 
BILL TO 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
CITY OF MIRAMAR 
2300 CIVIC CENTER PLACE 
MIRAIVIAR 	 , FL 33025 

VENDOR 

PLAYCORE WISCONSIN. INC. 	 ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
CITY OF MIRAMAR 

150 PLAYCORE DR SE 
	

2200 CIVIC CENTER PLACE-2ND FL 
MIRAMAR, FL 

33025 
FORT PAYNE, AL 35967 

	

Tel# 407-331-0101 
	

Requisition 

	

Fax# 407-331-4720 
	

1501337 

DATE 	VENDOR DATE 
	

FREIGHT 
ORDERED NUMBER REQUIRED 
	

METHOD/TERMS 
	

DEPARTMENT/LOCATION 

01/13/15 010997 12/24/14 
	

Construction & Fac Mgmt 

POST-IT NOTES 

i,o provicte playgrounci system anct swing tra 
me for Miramar Regional Park. Per Resolut 
ion #15-09. 

LN DESCRIPTION 	 QTY 	UOM 	UNIT PRICE NET PRICE 

001 Combination Sets, 	 83654.88 Each 	1.000 83,654.88 
Playground - Playground 
System, Swing Frame and 
Installation. Per 
Resolution #15-09 

EXHIBIT "B"
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Exhibit B 
CITY OF MIRAMAR 

PROPOSED CITY COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: November 5, 2014 

Second Reading Date: 

Presenter’s Name and Title: Terrence Griffin, Parks and Recreation Director, on 
behalf of Parks and Recreation 

Temp Reso Number: 5632 

Item Description: 	Temp. Reso. No. 5632, AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE FOR 
PLAYGROUND RELOCATION AND THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF PLAYGROUND 
EQUIPMENT FOR MIRAMAR REGIONAL PARK FROM PLAYCORE WISCONSIN, INC., D/B/A 
GAMETIME, THROUGH DOMINICA RECREATION PRODUCTS, INC. IN AN AMOUNT NOT-TO-
EXCEED $103,155, UTILIZING CHARLOTTE AND MECKLENBURG COUNTIES (NORTH CAROLINA) 
MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT NO. 110179. (Parks 
and Recreation Director Terry Griffin) 

Consent Z Resolution LI Ordinance LI Quasi-Judicialil Public Hearing LI 

Summary Explanation and Background: On April 16, 2014, the City Commission approved 
Resolution No. 14-104 for the provision of architectural design services for the development of the 
Corporate Conference Facility/Administration Office Building at the Miramar Regional Park. To 
accomodate the building’s new footprint and facilitate the provision of adequate space for use of the 
building, including parking, it is recommended that the existing playground in Miramar Regional Park be 
relocated. The playground will be removed from its current location and pieces of it will be relocated to a 
space across the street and immediately southwest of the playground’s present location. This Resolution 
also seeks approval for the purchase of new playground equipment, including an Americans with 
Disabilities Act-compliant rubberized surface and a shade structure. The new location will be safer for its 
users in that it will be fenced in and away from the daily vehicular traffic that will flow to and from the soon 
to be developed Corporate Conference Facility/Administration Building. 

Instructions for the Office of the City Clerk: None. 

Public Notice - As Required by Sec. 	of the City Code and/or Sec. 	, Florida Statutes, public notice for this item was 

provided as follows: on 	, in a 	ad in the 	by posting the property on 	and/or by sending mailed notice to 

property owners within 	feet of the property on 	. (Fill in all that apply) 

Special Voting Requirement - As required by Sec. 	, of the City Code and/or Sec. 	Florida Statutes, approval of this item 

requires a 	(unanimous 4/5ths etc. vote of the City Commission. 

Fiscal Impact: Yes Z No LI 
REMARKS: Funding of $103,155 is available in Regional Park project allocated in the 
2013 Revenue Bond, GL Account 388-53-801-572-000-606510-51002. 

Content: 
� Agenda Item Memo from the City Manager to City Commission 

ATTACHMENT "1"
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� Resolution TR5632 
� Attachments 

- Attachment 1: Price Proposal from GameTime 
- Attachment 2: Charlotte-Mecklenburg U.S. Communities Contract No. 

110179 



CITY OF MIRAMAR 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	Mayor, Vice Mayor, & City Commissioners 

FROM: 	Kathleen Woods-Richardson, City Manager 

BY: 	Terrence Griffin, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE: 	September 17, 2014 

RE: 	Temp. Reso. No. 5632, authorizing the expenditure for relocation of 
a Miramar Regional Park playground and the purchase and installation of 
playground equipment from Playcore Wisconsin, Inc. in an amount not-to-exceed 
$103,155, utilizing Charlotte and Mecklenburg Counties (North Carolina) Master 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement No. 110179. 

RECOMMENDATION: The City Manager recommends approval of Temp. Reso. 
No. 5632, authorizing the expenditure for relocation of a playground within 
Miramar Regional Park and the purchase and installation of additional playground 
equipment from PlayCore Wisconsin, Inc. d/b/a GameTime, in an amount not-to-
exceed $103,155, utilizing North Carolina Charlotte and Mecklenburg Counties 
Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement No. 110179. 

ISSUE: City Commission approval is required for all expenditures exceeding 
$50,000 per vendor. This purchase authorizes expenditures in an amount not-to-
exceed $103,155. 

BACKGROUND: On April 16, 2014, the City Commission approved Resolution 
No. 14-104 for the provision of architectural design services for the development 
of the Corporate Conference Facility/Administration Office Building at the Miramar 
Regional Park. To accomodate the building’s new footprint and facilitate the 
provision of adequate space for use of the building, including parking, it is 
recommended that the existing playground in Miramar Regional Park be 
relocated. The playground will be removed from its current location and pieces of 
it will be relocated to a space across the street and immediately southwest of the 
playground’s present location. This Resolution also seeks approval for the 
purchase of new playground equipment, including an Americans with Disabilities 



Act-compliant rubberized surface and a shade structure. The new location will be 
safer for its users in that it will be fenced in and away from the daily vehicular 
traffic that will flow to and from the soon to be developed Corporate Conference 
Facility/Adminstration Building. 

The total cost for removal of the existing playground, relocation of certain 
equipment and purchase of new equipment is $103,155, which includes $19,500 
for the removal of existing equipment from the park and $83,655 for the purchase 
of new equipment and installation. Funding is available in the Corporate 
Conference Facility project already allocated in the 2013 Revenue Bond. 

Pursuant to City Code Section 2-413(7), the City may participate in cooperative 
purchasing plans with other public agencies within this State and any other state if 
the source selection methods used are substantially equal to the source selection 
methods in the City Code. This purchase will utilize Master Intergovernmental 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement No. 110179, awarded by Charlotte and 
Mecklenburg Counties in North Carolina, as the Lead Public Agency and 
Contracting Agent for the U.S. Communities Government Purchasing Alliance. 
The Procurement Department has reviewed the contract documents and price 
quotes for Agreement No. 110179, and recommends utilization of the contract to 
procure the playground equipment under Section 2-413(7), City Code. 

Page 2 of 2 



Temp. Reso. No. 5632 
9/17/14 
10/23/14 

CITY OF MIRAMAR 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE FOR 
PLAYGROUND RELOCATION AND THE PURCHASE AND 
INSTALLATION OF PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FOR MIRAMAR 
REGIONAL PARK FROM PLAYCORE WISCONSIN, INC., DIBIA 
GAMETIME, THROUGH DOMINICA RECREATION PRODUCTS, INC. IN 
AN AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $103,155, UTILIZING CHARLOTTE 
AND MECKLENBURG COUNTIES (NORTH CAROLINA) MASTER 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
NO. 110179; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2014, the City Commission approved Resolution No. 14-

104 for architectural design services for the Corporate Conference 

Facility/Administration Office Building at the Miramar Regional Park; and 

WHEREAS, to allow for the building’s new footprint and the provision of 

adequate space and parking, it is recommended that the existing playground in Miramar 

Regional Park be relocated; and 

WHEREAS, City staff has determined that participating in the U.S. Communities 

Government Purchasing Alliance and utilizing North Carolina Charlotte-Mecklenburg 

Counties Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement No. 110179, 

with PlayCore Wisconsin, Inc., d/b/a GameTime, through Dominica Recreation 

Products, Inc., for this purchase is in the best interest of the City; and 

I  0FTTON  64  1141 



Temp. Reso. No. 5632 
9/17/14 
10/23/14 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-413(7) of the City Code, the City may 

participate in cooperative purchasing plans with other public agencies within this State 

and any other state if the source selection methods used are substantially equal to the 

source selection methods in the City Code; and 

WHEREAS, the total cost for removal, relocating and purchase of the playground 

equipment, site preparation, Americans with Disabilities Act-compliant surface and 

shade structure will be an amount not-to-exceed $103,155; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends approving the expenditure for 

relocation of the Miramar Regional Park playground and purchase and installation of 

additional playground equipment in an amount not-to-exceed $103,155 for Fiscal Year 

2015, utilizing North Carolina Charlotte-Mecklenburg Counties Master 

Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement No. 110179; and 

WHEREAS, the City Commission deems it to be in the best interest of the 

citizens and residents of the City of Miramar to approve the expenditure for relocation of 

the Miramar Regional Park playground and purchase and installation of additional 

playground equipment in an amount not-to-exceed $103,155 for Fiscal Year 2015, 

utilizing North Carolina Charlotte-Mecklenburg Counties Master Intergovernmental 

Cooperative Purchasing Agreement No. 110179. 

Reso. No. 	 2 



Temp. Reso. No. 5632 
9/17/14 
10/23/14 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF MIRAMAR, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: That the foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are ratified and confirmed 

as being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2: That it approves the expenditure for relocation of the Miramar 

Regional Park playground and purchase and installation of additional playground 

equipment in an amount not-to-exceed $103,155 for Fiscal Year 2015, utilizing North 

Carolina Charlotte-Mecklenburg Counties Master Intergovernmental Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement No. 110179. 

Section 3: That the appropriate City officials are authorized to do all things 

necessary and expedient in order to carry out the aims of this Resolution. 

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

Reso. No. 	 3 



Temp. Reso. No. 5632 
9/17/14 
10/23/14 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _____ day of 	 ,2014. 

Mayor, Lori C. Moseley 

Vice Mayor, Yvette Colbourne 
ATTEST: 

City Clerk, Denise A. Gibbs 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have 
approved this RESOLUTION 
as to form: 

City Attorney 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole 
Bierman & Popok, P.L. 

Requested by Administration 	Voted 
Commissioner Winston F. Barnes  
Vice Mayor Yvette Colbourne  
Commissioner Alexandra P. Davis  
Commissioner Wayne M. Messam  
Mayor Lori C. Moseley  

Reso. No. 	 4 



ATTACHMENT 
GameTime 
do Dominica Recreation Products, Inc. 
P.O. Box 520700 
Longwood, FL 32752-0700 
800-432-0162 * 407-331-0101 
Fax: 407-331-4720 
www.playdrp.com  

QUOTE 
1168258 

07/15/2014 

Miramar Regional Park - Equipment Removal (7-15-14) 

Miramar Parks & Recreation Department 	 Ship To Zip: 33027 
Attn: Ricardo Major 
2200 Civic Center Place 
Miramar, FL 33025 
Phone: 954-602-3191 
rcmajor@ci.miratnar.fl.us  

Qilallfity  ~  Par(  11 	Ii1luM1 	 Aniount 
INSTALL 	5-Star Plus - Park Tear Out - 	 $19,500.00 	$19,500.00 

Scope of Work to Remove Existing Park 
Playground Equipment, Shade Structures, 
and Fencing 

� Removal of equipment and shade 
c Shade to be torched & saw cut at base 
o Footers to remain 

� Labor for removal & Tool Rental 
� Fence Removal 

Not in Scope of Work - 	 SubTotal: 	$19,500.00 
� Removal of Sand from site 	 Total Amount: 	$19,500.00 
� Surfacing Rubber to be removed 
� Concrete sub-bases, etc. 
� Re-grading of area 
� Unknown site conditions when work begins 

This quote was prepared by Rob Dominica, President. 
For questions or to order please call - 800-432-0162 ext. 113 robdgametime.com  

Payment Terms: Governmental Purchase Order. 
Purchases in excess of $1,000.00 to be supported by your written purchase order made out to GameTime. 
Net 30 days subject to approval by GameTime Credit Manager. A completed Credit Application and Bank Reference Authorization, must be 
received with the order. The decision on credit is the sole discretion of GameTime/PlayCoro. A 15% per month finance charge will be imposed 
on all past due accounts. 
Multiple Invoices: Invoices will be generated upon services rendered. When equipment ships it will be invoiced seperately from installation 
and/or other services. Terms are Net 30 for each individual invoice. 
This Quotation is subject to policies in the current GameTime Park and Playground Catalog and the following terms and conditions. Our 
quotation is based on shipment of all items at one time to a single destination, unless noted, and changes are subject to price adjustment. 
Pricing: Firm for 60 days from date of quotation. 
Shipment: F.O.B. factory, order shall ship within 30-45 days after GameTime’s receipt and acceptance of your purchase order, color selections, 
approved submittals, and receipt of payment. 
Taxes: State and local taxes will be added at time of invoicing, if not already included, unless a tax exempt certificate is provided at the time of 
order entry. 
Exclusions: Unless specifically discussed, this quotation excludes all sitework and landscaping; removal of existing equipment; acceptance of 
equipment and off-loading; storage of goods prior to installation; security of equipment (on site and at night); equipment assembly and 
installation; safety surfacing; borders; drainage; signed/sealed drawings; or permits. 

Installation Terms: Shall be by a Certified Installer. If playground equipment, installer will be NPSI and Factory Trained and Certified.. 
Customer shall be responsible for scheduling and coordination with the installer. Site should be level and allow for unrestricted access of trucks 
and machinery. Customer shall be responsible for unknown conditions such as buried utilities, tree stumps, rock, or any concealed materials or 
conditions that may result in additional labor or material costs. Customer will be billed hourly or per job directly by the installer for any 
additional costs that were not previously included. 	 - 
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Miramar Regional Park - Equipment Removal (7-15 -14) 

Acceptance of quotation: 

Accepted By (printed): - 	 P.O. No: 

Signature: 
	

Date: 

Title: 
	

Phone: 

QUOTE 
#68258 

07/15/2014 

E-Mail: 	Purchase Amount: $19,500.00 

Page 2 of 2 



’ 	ccreation products, .inco 	 QUOTE 

�. 	n.mr 
 

’11,01OO4, F1,3215241 	
#60125 

 

	

A pyco conv 	 06/26/2014 
laydrp.c’iin 

Mia mar RegLonal Park Optku 132 

	

tk&..cieation Department 	 Ship. To Zip: 33027 
Attn: RiardoMaJoi 
2200 Ctvc Cejtç1 Place 
Miiaffia FL3025 
Piono: 04-602-3101 
ihioveiaJ1tis 

(1)4840-- Ans.weiWhe1.Assy ,  
(2) 80000 -- 49" qPunched Steel Dock 
(4)80001 -- 	 :Stco1.Je.ok. 
(1)80688 -2 1 TuTfi Plajfin 
(1)80931 -- 
�(1)81666--lunSef 
().) 81:691 -- Sing-lo Steoiing.WheeI 

Ciunh.Bt(PS2L5 
81699 -- Boio 

’01-1’0020 I tfey 	- Baioi 
(I) 90021 	2’ 11 anfer 	trn 3j l 
(1)90106 4 1m:6 IOVIet c1fbet 
(2) 90266 8’ Upi iht Asrt (1unf) 
(4) 

 
90267--9’Upi’igh Ass’’ (ADnni) 

(2)90268 10’ UptihAss1’(Aiuin) 
() p0269 . II’ Ut AV tlurn) 
0 )4030 	AliWtqJt (134) 
01,90399 Funfli Biido, ’t 16k an W/Pàtr’ 
(1) 90425 Lettet Me 	det,k 
(t)90430 SingleO1zrnb IanI 
(() O530 2’/t4 Ltt(l ootSt1dew/Eno1osuij 
(t) 90578 ZpSwve fde(singIe4 6 o 

() 90579 ZipvVjve flleØo1.)1) 4 ° 
’19 092 Ridgo Ciig1) 

(1) 90669 Spiral Sç 	1thbr(! 0) $05’ s") 
(3)91209 C1irnbottywty larie 

U?1 	Omei’me 	loSwingame 	 4,100 00 
(I) I 28 	PrIItth 	yiig lapo 3 j  f Od 

ritho WIIgAddA 	I/fl cj 
l 	elt 	I2 

(I SS856 I 3 I /2" 
CnIFotat 1 1/2"I8’ High /Cle/1a 

(2 S’S891 0 Belt Seat 3 I2" 	’’/ClpsII’ 

. 	.P�1o3 



Miramar Regional Park - Option B2 
QUOTE 

#68125 

06/26/2014 

Qty 	Part -11  Description  List $ Selling$ Ext.sclling$ 

I 	INSTALL Game Time .. GameTime Playground Installation $8,724.00 $8,724.00 $8,724.00 
$31,481 x 32% = $10,073 ACTUAL = $8,724 

I 	Sealed 5-Star Plus - Signed/Sealed FBC 2010 Building Code $850.00 $850.00 
Drawings 

3450 digout GT-Impax.’ Digout/Sitework of area (per sq. ft.) - $1.00 $3,450.00 
Spoils lefi somewhere in park 

1550 Crush- OT-Impax - Crushed & Compacted Stone Sub-Base $3.91 $3.25 $5,037.50 
(sq.ft.)- 
List = $4.77, USCOM = $3.91, Actual = $3.25 

1550 	Poured-6- OT-Impax - Poured Rubber Surfacing -6’ fall height - $13.78 $12.75 $19,762.50 
50% Standard Color - Aromatic Binder - 112" EPDM 
Cap - 5-year warranty 
List = $16.81, USCOM= $13.78, Actual = $12.75 

I 	Sand OT-Impax - Sand Delivered & Installed $4,000.00 $4,000.00 

1 	3022 GT-Shade - 26 X 30 flip 10’ Hi 90/10 $6,836.00 $6,562.56 $6,562.56 

I 	3680 01-Shade - Sealed Drawings $747.00 $747.00 

1 	INSTALL 01-Shade - GlShade Installation. $3,800.00 $3,800.00 
$6,846x 60% = $4,101.60 Actual = $3,800.00 

I 	Permits 5-Star Plus - Building Permits - Approximately 4% of $3,300.00 $3,300.00 
Project - 
Estimated Costs of Permits. If actual permit fees are 
significantly higher or lower, final invoice will he 
adjusted accordingly. Site Plans are to he provided by 
the owner/or the permit application. 

Curbing or Borders by othersi SubTotal: $80,897.12 
Contract: USC 

0 Freight: $2,757.76 
Total Amount: $83,654.88 

This quote was prepared by Rob Dominica, President, 
For questions or to order please call - 800-432-0162 ext. 113 robd.gsmctime.com  

All pricing in accordance with U.S. Communities Contract #110179. 
All terms In the U.S. Communities Contract take precedence over terms shown below. 
For more information on the U.S. Communities contract please visit www.uscommunities.org/yametIme  

1.11 	&W’ 
Page 2of3 	 0i4 



Miramar Regional Park - Option B2 
QUOTE 

#68125 

06/26/2014 

Payment Terms: Governmental Purchase Order. 
Purchases in excess of $1,000.00 to be supported by your written purchase order made out to GameTimc. 
Net 30 days subject to approval by Gamelime Credit Manager. A completed Credit Application and Bank Reference Authorization, must be 
received with the order, The decision on credit is the sole discretion of GameTime/PlayCore. A 1,5% per month finance charge will be imposed 
on all past due accounts. 
Multiple invoices: Invoices will be generated upon services rendered. When equipment ships it will be invoiced seperately from installation 
and/or other services. Terms are Not 30 for each individual invoice. 

~rofl

This Quotation is subject to policies in the current GameTime Park and Playground Catalog and the following terms and conditions. Our 

ng
uationisbased on shipmentofaliems at one time to a single destination, ’unless noted, and changes are subject to price adjustment. 

: Firm for 60 days from date of quotation. 
Shipment: F.O.B, factoiy, ordet’ shall ship within 30-45 days after GameTime’s receipt and acceptance of your purchase order, color selections, 
approved submuttals, and receipt of payment. 
l axes: State and local taxes will be added at tune of invoicing, it’not already included, unless a tax exempt certificate is provided at the time of 
order entry. 
Exclusions: Unless specifically discussed, this quotation excludes all sitework and landscaping; removal of existing equipment; acceptance of 
equipment and off-loading; storage of goods prior to Installation; security of equipment (on site and at night); equipment assembly and 
Installation; safety surfacing; borders; drainage; signed/sealed drawings; or permits. 
Installation Terms: Shall be by a Certified Installer, If playground equipment, Installer will be NPSI and Factory Trained and Certified, 
Customer shall be responsible for scheduling and coordination with the Installer. Site should be level and allow for unrestricted access of trucks 
and machinery. Customer shall be responsible for unknown conditions such as buried utilities, tree stumps, rock, or any concealed materials or 
conditions that may result in additional labor or material costs. Customer will be billed hourly or pet’ job directly by the installer for any 
additional costs that were not previously included. 

Unitary Surfacing Notes : The installer of the Unitary Surfbcing (l’oured, Bonded, ’furl’, ’Files) is not the same installer of the playground 
equipment. However, your certified equipment Installer will coordinate the timing of the unitary surfacing installation, but more than likely they 
will not be on-site at the time. They will continue to be your contact should you have any questions. Security is needed to protect surfacing at 
night or after installation as the product set, Normally It Is not needed or a concern, however in some areas additional security is needed to 
prevent vandalism. Security is not included. Vandalism will be the responsible of the owner. 

SHADE TERMS: 
� Winds greater than 90 mph, require the removal of the shade fabric to prevent damage. 

Quote does not include any provisions for lighting protection. 
� 

 

Lead Time for Shade Is about 6 weeks AP’FRR approval of permits (if required). 
� Installer not responsible for site conditions. For Large Shades holes may be upwards of 8 deep or wide, if additional drilling or digging is 

needed duo to rock, coral, utilities, or other unknown Items; additional charges may be applied to order. 

Accepted By (printed): 
	

P.O. No: 

Signature: 
	

Date: 

Title: 
	

Phone: 

B-Mail: 
	 purchase Amount: $83,654.88 
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ATTACHMENT 2 

U 
17 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNtY OF MECKLENBUIW 	

CONTRACT NO. /1 	7 
AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT, 
SURFACtNG, SITE 90.,’M 	GS AND RELATED 
PRODUCTS AND. SERVICES 

This Areeindnt (the "Agreement") is entered into as of this l7  Day of September, ZOlQXthe "Effective Date"), by 
and bateen Ptaycore Wisconsin, Inc. .dba GapieTime (the "Company".)corporation doing business. ln North 
Caroline (the "Company ), and Meoklcnbui Coupt>r a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina (the 
T*CountyU) 

Statement of Background and Intent 

A. Tts County Issued a Request for Propesuls (REP Number 269.2010483). dated March 19, 2010 requesting 
prposals Item qualified firms: toprovide the. County and other Participating Public Agencies with Playground 
Bqipment, Surfacing, Site Furnishings, and Related Products and Services hereafter refôrred to as 

46duo10) This Request for Proposals, together with all attachments and any amendments, ta referred to 
her1n asthe "R171"°,. 

13. Tl Conpany submitted, aproposaUh;response toRFP Number 269-2010483 :onMay 5, 2010 This, bid, 
together with all attachments and separateLy sealed confidential trade secrets, is refhrred to here,in as the- 

C. The Cowity awarded This. contract on .$V .6 201O1 to Company to provide Phiygroun4 Equipment, $u1ng, 
Sn4 Fwn1Sbfligs, and P,elated Prociticts and Services  to the County all in accordance with the term and 
co)ftfltiop set tbrth..berein 

D. Ct4rlotte-Mcok1enburg (herein "Lead PublLe.Agency"), in cooperation with ibU$. Corn nunhies <iovçrnn.ient 
P4i*asIng Alliance (herein "U .S. Communities"), and on behalf etothor public ,  iogeacies that eIec to aeess 
thØ1aater Agreonient (herein "ParttopaffOg Public Aeneies"), compctidvely stiheltod and awarded the Meeter 
Aeetnei1t t the Company Loitd Pub1 Ageio’ ,ha desigpated O’& Communities s th ad iatrath’ and 
niketingeonduittbr the distribution oflhe.Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies... 

Lhuhlic Agency is. act as the ,  ’Coitraoting Agent" for the Partiolpa g .Public Agencies, antLba1I.notbe 
1ulØ o regonslhIo fl,r any costs damages. latn1ity or other obkgatmte incurred by the Pardoipatnig Pubio 
Agtkbtes ’flie Qłmpany shall deal duuct’ with each nrticiparmg Public Agency concerning the pIatemeaV ot 
oribcs, 	litiie of  Our chase orders, contractual disputes, involcling, payment and all other matters relating or 
refitring(o such Partleipating Publi 	emicfs access to:the MsterAgrccm0nt. 

The Master Agreement shall be constnied to be in accordance with and gqverned by the laws Of the gtte itt 
wcb the Pottlłipat W Eublic Agency eiais Pai’tnilpatlng Public Ageteies are required to register ott-hue with 
U Cdnrnmtnflfes at ww.tisoutmtl5 ott, The registration aU*vS the Participating Public Agency to 
rn4 a Master intergovernmental Cooperativo Putchasrng Agreement ("MLCJPA"), which Is intended to allow 
th1!atttelpat’ing Pibiiu Agencies ni .iect: applioab.ia legal. rcquircmeuita. and.1oilitato access to the Master 
A# 	ovagd. ike Company 

Game uteCuetmot 	 September I:7:,..2010 
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NOWi THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
aclujoMedged, and in further consideration of the covenants and conditions contained in this Agrecrtiont the parties 
agree a follows: 

AGREEMENT 

I. INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS. The following Exhibuts are attached to this Agreement and incorporated 
into and made a part of this Agreement by referencei 

Exhibit A: Contract Pricing, Discount Structures and Pcing Incentives 

Exhibit B: Installation Fees 

Exhibit C: National Network of Distributors and Ccrtltkd Installers 

Exhibit D: U.S. Communities AdniinistrativeAgrcement 

Exhibit S: Freight Rate Schedules 

Exhibit F: Product Warrnnttc 

Exhibit-G: Company’s PropsaL.(not attaohed but incorporate4 herein by reference) 

Exhibit. H: "P #269-2010-1 -03 nOt ttaob4but incorporatedhetcin by reference)  

13oh reference to the Agtcerttentsball be deemed to include. all Exhibits. Any .conUct between language in an 
Edubit to this Agreement and the main body of this Agreement shalt be resolved in favor of the main body of 
tlis Agreement rukoh reference to OsmeTimo In the kbi6ity, and Appendices shall be deemed to moan the 
Cotupany. 

2. DIFINITtONS. The following terms shalt have th following meanings for purposes of this Agreement 
ik16tuding all Exhibit* 

2.1, AGREEMENT. The t.om ’Agreisncnt" &000A tids Agreement I ludiflg the Company’s Ptopsal 
the R.FP and till attachments, uchlbus, antI ddłda (all as defined In the Statement of Background and 
Intent),  

22 DocUMEW7łtON. The term "Dccuniontathni shall, mean all written, ojoQjrcnIq j  or recorded work, 
and all enhancements and updates thereto, that deaixnbe the use, fWtttleS, (eatuteS, or purpose of the 
Products and Services, Including without fthttioa aU ti,iJional a’ I hmtail specifications 1  end user 
nianua1, gui4e and other mterial wh1b relate to the ?toducts and SctvtcCs, or whkh are necessary to 
fully uilize ThnPtoduetsand SeCes 

2,3 DIL1VBR141J11l’S The term "Deliverables" ahaU mean all equipment matar*ttls drawings, data, wirIng, 
ab1, Instalititlonetvees, incidentalS atiçt itit otho itamS that the Cotupatiy is required to complete and 

deliver to theCoUbQ: in cot me(  .geectnt 

DEFECT� The term 4’Dthct’ shall, mean ;yllure of the Products or any component th4r.e4 t 
conform fully to the Specifications and Roqufrerneons Non contonrny Is nt a DOW If ft results ftotn 
the Countyniisuso:impropor .łf the Proiluta. 

23.. EFPEC771D41ll the term "Effehvd I)af a" refers to the date this Agreement is fully executed by all 
partto to thnAgrcenient 

24 PA!riCJPAflNOJ?UIiUC.4GRYGZ The 	ShiàU.ftieM any nnd:ttfl tatO5 ftiea :gecrmnents school. 
districts, and higher education institutions and Othçt public agencies and nonptotlt organizations that 
haveauthortty (q pureb strom MORO 	 wpe.titivl o1ic1tcd contract, 

tj5fltemeCQflttaCt 	 September 112010. 



2.7 PRODUCTS. The term "Products’ shall mean Playground Equipment, surfacing, Site Furnishings, and 
Related Products that the Company agreed to provide in the Company’s  Proposal. 

28 SERVICES. The tern ’Scrviccs" shall include all services that the Company agreed to provide in the 
Company’s Proposal, including all design, assembly, installation, :rcportin and optional work, 

29 SPEC1FICATION$ AND REQUIRRMRI’/TS. The. terinSpeciticatioflSand Rquiretnents" shall mean all 
definitions, descriptions, requirements, ritoria, warranties and performance standards relating to the 
Products and Services which are sot forth or referenced hi: (a) this Agteenient, Including all Exhibits; (b) 
the company’s proposal; (c) the RFP; (d) the Documentation; and (e) any functional and/or technical 
specifications which are published or provided by the Company or its licensors or suppliers from time to 
time with respect to all or any Part of the Products Notwithstanding the forgoing, if the Company 
improves the Products or ServIces over time to tnlorporte new technology or improved features or 
t’unctiontthty, and provided the improved Products or Sorviecs wider this Agteernent the descriptions, 
sp.ecifiations and requirements fbr such improvements hail bn deemed part of the Specifications and 
.tequfrements. Also notwithstanding the forgoing, the Company’s Bid shall only take precedence over 
Abe ITS to the extent the Company property took exception to the terms of the LTD in the manner 
required by the ITS.. 

3.1 TERM. 
13 The initial term or this Agreement will be for flve)ya.from the Effective Date with an option to renew 

for two (2) additional one-year terms, This Agreement may be extended only by a written amendment to 
3 the contract signed by btt1tpat3ties 

4. 3 I GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF PRODUCTS A$D.$WtCE$, 
’titeCoinpany shall provide the Products and Services ttacordancwith the iezins.of the Company’s 
proposal, and in compliance with all other conditions, covenants, stipulations, torus and provisions 

1 coutaktcdTh this Agreement. 

I jSHIPPING AND DELIVERY.  
A attipinents shall be FAD. destination with freight oharges ; uropaid and listed separately. Actual freight 
charges shall be added at tIme of invoicing as determined and supported by the carrier’s freight bill 
Estimated freight cha ltgesshito be provided at the time olquotattott utilizing the freight rate schedules 

Jnceiporeted Into this -Agivoidrit.as DduIbit fi. 

TALLATON,.INT1iAI4 10E AND SA
he County and Participating fubllc Agencies shall b 	1flalI fbt cnttactlrg instalitsion services on a 
rojeet-by project basis as needed Tf:atluded with purchuise, all egslpmcnt shall ho installed by a ;_-*1 
aineThie Installer In acordace with the atandards estahlfhed by the terms, specifications, drawings, and 

3004structIon notes fOr each project and meet manufiretureæi specifications and industry standards County 
id artiolpatung Pulihe .404610 shall be reponaibi ferihi4uflng coordination and site preparation 

Site should be level and peimit Installation equip meut ancs ttkipatlng Public Ageraiy, shall be 
( rsponsiblo for unknown eorithtins such as buried utlllti, tree stumps, bedrock or any concealed 

matcrkaIs or conditions thatinay result in additional labor or matoriOl costs 

7. 	IOMPtNSATiON. 
Ii. The. County shfll.pj theCoiepany for Produeto. and Sc 	compiiant With the Specifications and 

r9uirements of W6 Ateemont based Ont JKltc percentage discounts lom the current 
manufacturer’s prino*nUex as fdentltied mid inco wig nt  tlti Agreement t$ lhduihk 

2 ’the Company agt*es the fice4 percentage jseOunt vill 	for the ennreeontct term 

37  Pricing shall remain In effct until December 3 1, 20111 Thereafter, the Company shall advise the 
Char otte4vIect4cnbur Procurement $ervues l)qpnttment in writing of any proposed price increases 
Colater than sixty (j days prior t the ffeetivO 4aioflhir*ucsred inciease 

eptember 17,201101.. . 	 . 	3 



7.4. The Company shall be responsible for furnishing and delivering approved price lists and the most 
current catalogs to the County and other participating public endties, upon request. 

73. The Company agrees that if a public agency is otherwise eligible .tbr lower pricing through a federal, 
state, regional, or Local contraot,:the Company will match the pricing. 

8.

 

OPTIONAL WORK. 
The County and Participating Public Agencies may elect to request quotations for additional services not 
specifically lasted an the Company’s proposal or this Agreement The Company shall provide quotations for 
optional products and services as requested, to provide a full turnkey sólutin. 

9. BILLING. 
l3nch invoice sent by the Company shall detail all items delivered which are necessary to entitle the 
Company to the requested payment under the terms of this Agreement.. FlicCompany shall mall all 
invoices ti 

MockLonbutgcounty 
Finance Accounts Payable 
&0O East 4nst. 
dbattcC 8202 

� The.:Connty will pay all accurate, properly submitted, uncontested 1nvoics within thirty (30) days of 
receipt Proposals may include an Incentive discount for early paytnt Invoices must include suite and 
loqal.saEcstax 

10. GENERAL WARRANTIES. 
onipany represents and warrants that 

j:ØJ 	ft is a corporation duly incorporated, validly existing ndingoo4:sranding under the laws of the 
state of North Carolina, and Is qualified to do business an Notth (aolma, 

tQ 	It as all the requisite corporate power and authority toexecutelnIlver and perform it obligations 
thisAgreement; 	 H 

;U0.3 	The execution, delivety, and performance of this Agrecinant have been dilly authorized by 
� 	Company; 

104 	Np approval, authorization; or, consent of any governnenta 	r$ilatOry authority is required tł 
he obtained or made by It In order for it to enter utto am* pei’t*m its obligations tinder this 

� 	renient: 	 H 

i cntuietfon with 	ulgtthpxa under this Agreenien it shall comply with all applicable 
fbderalstate and local jaWsi anL f4p.1glons and shall obtain alL applicable permits and ltonnses 

� 	and 

106 	The Company shall not violate  pn agreement with any third plirty ly entering into or performing 
this. Agreement. 	��� 

1 L.U4AL.REPRESENTATIQNS AND.WARRANTIES. 
qoat, 	 CaeUta warrants and covenants that 

ThCScrvices shall satisfy nil requirements set forth in this Agreements Including but not liarmited to 
the ÆttachedExhibits 

OaMOT �.$eptnmher�17 21110 	 4 



11,2 	All work performed by the Company, and/or its subcontractors puant to this Agreement shall 
meat industry accepted standards, and shall be performed in a professional and workmanlike 
marino:r by staff with the necessary skills, experience -  and knowledge; 

11.3 	Neither, the Services, nor any Deliverables provided by the Company under this Agreement will 
infringe or misappropriate any patent, copyright, trademark or trade secret rights of any third 
party; and 

11.4 	ThuCompany has taken and will continua to take precautions sufficient to ensure that it will not 
be 	iitd. from performing all or part of its obligations under this Agreement by virtue of 
interruptions in the computar.systetns used by the Company. 

12. 	TERMINATIO,. 
12 1 TERIyIIRATION WITHOUT CAUSE The County may temuuato this Agruement at any time 

without cause by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Compflny.  

112. T8RIN471ONFOR DEPAUL.T.B.YEIWER PI1RT. By giv wrttteti ułtie. Ito the other party, 
either, paiy may terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of one or .noru of the following 

(a) The other party violates or fails, to perform any covenant, provision, obligation, term or 
condition contained in this Agreement, provided that, uxt  lot  Otherwise stated in this 
Agreement, such tailuro or violation shall not be cause tbr t0twitiffl.300 if both of the 
following- Wfiditions are satisfied (I) such default is reasonably susceptible to cure, and (ii) 
the other party cures such 4afltul within thIrty (30) days of receipt of written notice of 
’dafauItftot the .n’on-deIaultingptty;Or 

(b) Ti*oherpatty attempts’toasslgi, tcrniinate.or cancel this AgrObti’t conttary to the terms 

’lhethe.r party ceases to do hi1i4css s a: going concern, nakes.an assignment for the 
bent1t of creditors, admits in writing ts inability to pay dehts as they beconie due, files a 
petition Jai bankruptcy or has an involuntary bankruptuy pcthio1. titØ against it (except in 
onueutipn with a reorgarnatLon under which the business ot atleli party is continued and 

performance of all its obligarons under this Agreement shall continue), or if a receiver, 
trusro e ltqu*dator is appo1nttt for it or any substantial part of other party’s assets or 
proeties. 

A tet1cs oftitlfault pursuant to this So9tion. shalUdentilY andattite the’ 	’sttflnt to terminate 
is not cure tWithin the specified perid. 

1. 3 jDAMM QR0UM0SF0RiD8FAUbrTERM1N4TJQY’TCOCWTf ’By giving writtei 
nłtic to the Coupatry, the County Inay also terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of 
one or rttore of the following evetts (Whoh shaO each constitute grpunds for termination without a. 
cure period and Without the occurrence tif Viy. of the othór ,  eventS of dafauJt previously listed) 

(a) The Company makes or allows to be made any material wrItten ndsrcpreaentation or 
prtividCs any materially nusleadlug 	 co written mfomiatien in 	nneotlon with this 
Agreement, Company’s Pr9oml, or any covenant, agreement, obligation, term or 
’condItion c utsined intlija Agtmłm; or 

(b) The Company takes or fails to take any action which oit1tntOS gr*tuds for immediate 
emilnaUoa under the terms i dt this Agreement, Including hut trot ihufted to faiLure to 

obtailt or maintain the iSurSnQG policies and endqrsemiita as required by this 
Agreement, dr:fltilure to provid the prof:insuran eaqitbyths Agreement. 
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12.4. CANCELLATION OF ORDERS AND SUBCONTRACTS. 
In the event this Agreement is terminated by the County for any reason prior to the end of the 
term the Company hall, upon termination immediately discontinue all service in connection with 
this Agreement And proixipily cancel all existing orders and subcontracts, which are chargeable to 
this Agrc.nionr As soon as praetu.able after receipt of notice of termitiatian, the Company ’thaU 
submit a statement to the County showing in deti1 the services performed under tins Agreement 
to thedate of termination. 

12.5. NO EFFECT QEX$, FEES, CHARGES,. OR REPORTS. 
Any tennmattOn of the Agreement shall not relieve the Company of the obligation to pay any tee’, 
taxes or other obarges theti due to the County, nor relieve the Company of the obligation to file 
any daily, montby, quarterly or annual reports covering thu period to termumatmoMer relieve the 
Company fromony claim for damages previousty’aeorued or then aecruungagalnst. the :company. 

126 OBL1G4T1QV’s U/WRXP1RADIOVOR TERMINA7’JOAV Upon expiration or terimaatton of this 
Agreement, the C. mrarty. shall promptly (a) totem to the County all omputer programs riles,  
documentationi data, media, related material and any other recordtn dmiices, bitbrrnatmon, or 
compact discs that are owned by the County, (b) deliver to the County all Work Produt, 
(o) allow the Cwny or a new service provider access to the systems, software, infrastructure, or 
processes of the Con1pany that are necessary to migrate the Services to a new ,  service provider, 
and (d) refund to the County all pro paid Wstranty Fees (other thau prepaid Warranty.  Fees for 
the then curreitt’yeai. 

12.7. NO SU$PEN$LON In 11t event that the Cou*ty disputes n geod.faith an allegatton of detuuh by 
the Company, notwtthstttnding anything to the coultary n this Agreement, the Company agrees 
that it will not terminate this Agreement or suspend or limit the delivety of Ptoduets r SetviCes or 
any warranties ot repsess, disable or render unusable any Software supplied by the Company, 
unless (m) the prttes agree in writing, or (ii) an order of a court or  competent jurlsdntmon 
determines..thwl,. 

12,8. A U7YHOWT  % M!N4DR;.The County :Manaer .r their designee is authorized to terminate 
th.Agreemen.onbohalfoftieCounty. 

1:2.9, AUDIT. Dun 	lie lerm of the Agreement and for � pniiqd.of one (I) yoar 44orp tormitiAtion. or 
expiration of thu Agreement for any reason, the County shall bttvc the right U ttdd either itself 
or through a third- Pad all books and rords (Ineludiug but not HWtted to the tohhlc teooiis) 
and fawliUcs of tie (lompany necessary to evaluate Company’s compltmmee With the terms and 

 ’rt., I" ..,, 	 ..1 I 	 ., . 	 ., 
V1IUIUVUS Ut (UC 	 UI uic L jtiiiiy 	Jdy&IIII UL?tItiIWLI. t LI ...UUIILy DUIflII Fax 	VY 

expenses, relating tosUch audits, but shall not have to pay any expenses or additional. costs of the 
Company. Howovr, if non-compliance is found that would have cost the Cou nty in excess of 
$5,000 but for the audit, then the Company shall be required to reimburse the county for the cost 
of the audit. 

13. 	:TRANSITtON SbRVICES UPON TERMINATION. Upon termination or expiration of this 
Agreement, the Company shall cooperate with the County to assist with the orderly tninstr of th Services, 
functions and operations provided by the Company hereunder to another provider or to the County as 
determined by the County iii its sole discietioji. The transition services he C shall that tompany 	perform if 
requested  byiho County include but arc not limited to: 

a. Woikin with the County to jointly develop a mutually agreed upon transition services plan to 
facilitate the termination of the Services; and 

01"I’llp 
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b. Notifying all affected. service providers and subcontractors of the Company of transition 
activities; 

o. Performing the tiansition service plan activities; 

.d. Answering questions regarding the products and services on an as-needed basis; and 

a. Providing such other seasonable services needed to effectuate an orderly transition to a now 
system. 

14. #iMN.DMENTS. lathe eveatchanges to the Agreement become necessary or desirable to the parties, the 
patties shall follow the procedures set forth in this Section A Change shall be effective only when 
docuniented by a written, dated agreement executed by both pittites  which expressly refcrcnes and is 
attached to this Agreement (an Amnndment"), The Amendment shaD set forth in detail: (I) the Change 
requested, including all modifications of the duties of the parties, (a) the reason for the proposed Cheap, 
and (iii). a detailed, analysis of the .impałt of the Change on the results of the Services and time, for 
complUort of Services, inolp4iq the Impact on any assooiated.price. 

In theovonf either party desires an Amendment, the party shall submit to the-other party a proposed change 
� If the receiving party does notaeeopi the Contract Ainendalent in writing within ten (tO) days, the 
receiving party shall be deemed. to have rejected the proposed change, if the parties cannot reach 

reernent on a proposed change the Company shall nevertheless cositinue to render performanbe ides 
� tW A.Sroomont [At aecortlance wlth:itS (unchanged) terms and co.ndhhns.. 

15. MMcATION. The company shait indemnify, defend and. hold harmless the County and the. 
Counts’ $ Officers, emplo3’ees and 44-0,04 ftOm and against any an all losae$, damages, Costs, expCnss 
includurg reasonable attoranys thea), obligations and other liabilities (ineluding settlement amounts) paid 

� or incurred say of thomas a:result ofany claIms, demands, lawsuits, actions, or Proceedings: (I) copyright, 
trademark or patent infringement or other inftmgement of proprietary rights with respect to any of the 
Products or torv4= delivered to. ,  the County pursuant to this Agreement (ulnfringereont Claims1’), (ii) 
se4w pa’inmt for labor or ruaterinls purqliased or supplied by the orflpany or its 	 in 
cofttlot with this Agreement, or (10) anslng from the Company’s fliflure to perfoun its Obligations 
under this Agreement, or from any net of negligence or witifol misconduct by the> Company or any: of Its 
agents, employees 	tors or subcontrac 	rotating to this Agreement, moluduig but not limited to any liability 
auscd by an aeident or other oecuirenm.e resulting in bodily mjury 1  death, sickness or dtbeaSe to any PO 

	or damage or destruction to any pnpextyb rca! or personal, taog&(1e or intangible, or (iv) arisuig 
tom any lawt that a Cotapany emuptoyce  Or subcontractor is an eniployee of the County, including claims 
rslathtgto wp–cr’s comensatio, fattine twithhold taxes and the :liko. 

If an lnfliiigemeni Claim occurs, the company shall either: (I) 1rocur for the County the right to CoUtifluc 
using the affected Product or Service; or (ii) repair or replace the infringing Product or Service so that it 
becomes apu-intlinging, provided l Vstlii peribrniancc of the System or ,  ny a Omponent ilicucof shall tiot 
headversely affected by such replacement or modification. If the Company is unable. to comply with the 
preceding sentence within thirty diys  after the County is directed to cciisc use of a Product or Scrwiec, the 
Company shall promptly refund to the County all amounts paid under ,  this Agreement, other than Extended 
Maintcnanc Fce. 

The indemnilication requirement is not intended to cover, and the Company is not responsible Ar, any 
damages, that result from lack of maintenance; inadequate supervision; negligonce; intentional OR  of 
anyone other than the Company or their affiliates: inadequate surfacing; or vandalism. 

It is the intent of any insurance provided by the company to indemnify for product liability claims arising 
solely than the 40,gligent design or manufacture of the Playgroutul Equipnt when such goods and 
services are provided by Companyor Company’s subcontractors. This clarifies and supersedes any other 
section of the contract concerning indemnification that could be intpictcd otherwise. 
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16. 	INSURANCE, Throughout the term of this Agreement, the company shall comply with the insurance 
requirements described in this Section In the oveott the Company fads to procure and inamtarn each type 
of insurance required by this Agreement, or in .t ’ent the Company fails to provide the County with the 
required certificates of insurance, the County shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement immediately 
upon written notice to the Company. 

16.1. General Requirements. 
(a) The Company shall not commcnco.’any work in connection with, this Agreement until it has 

obtained all of the types of insurance set forth in this Section and such insurance has been 
approved by the County The CornpAliy shall not allow any subontra..tor, to commence work 
on ha subcontract until all similar insurance required of the sub000tractor has been obtained 
and approved. 

(b) MI insurtince policies shall be. with insurers qualified and doing business in North Carolina 
recognirnd by the Secretary of State and the Insurance Commissioner a Office The 
Coinpatly shall fiirmsh the Cijitaty with proof of insurance coverage by certificates of 
insurance accompanying this Agern.eut and shall name the County as an additional named 
insured under the comxnercial..general. liability. 

(o) The County shall be exempt bm and info way liable for any sums of money which may 
represent a deductible in any inturattee policy. The payment of suob deductible shall be the 
sole responsibility of the Company atd’Or subcontractor providiggs.u.44 hlsurance 

16.2. Types of  Insurance. The Company agrees to purchase and maintain during the life of this 
Agreement with an insurance co *riy, acceptable to the County 1  auth*rttred t* th buairtess In the 
State oVN:odhCaroiina the followixignsurattoe:. 

(a) Autxihitb :Ub1tKy. .o4i1y injury and property damage liability noedng all owned, non-
owned and lured automobiles 40 4641% otot less than $1,000,000 bodily injury each person, 
each accident and $1 )00(000 popert damage, or $1,000,000 comblttcdsingLe limit bodily 
’ijury. and. property. damage. 

(b) C 	etóid2Conera Liability. JiOdily injury. and property damage :llabillty as shall protect 
the Ceinpany and any subcOul*otOr perlbnnmg work under this Agreement 0om claims of 
bodily. Injury or property damage which arjse from operation of this Agreemcnt, whether such ,  
operations arc performed by the Company, any suhcontracto4 or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by either The amounts of such insurance shall not be loss than l0i 3O00 bodily 
injury each ocouueneefagregato and $1,000,000 property damage each 
cope etOaI grgte, or $ 1,000)100 bodily jury and property danlae- conibined single 
limits each occur ence/aggrc$ate TWO ihnrange shall fnbl-440 coverage for produets, 
operations personal injury liability turd contractual liability, assumed under the indemutty ,  
proviaLon.ohlsAgrpcnient. 

(c) WOW’ 00WOOMation Incuranceb The Company shall meet the statutory requirements of 
the Etan or )orti Catolirsi, tt0,OOO 	ppidctit limit, $50Q,)00 disease per policy Limit, 
$I00000 disease eath emplo)ree Uttttt 

The County shalt be named as additional insitrcd under the conunerciat general luibthty Inaurance (Or1.

peratsons or sttvmees rOndered under. this Agreement Certificates of all retuired insurance shall be 
A4nulshod to the COtthty afld sbnfl eoItam the provision that the County will be given thirty (30) day written 
not1Qe of any .intpttt atrdr’tepj.inale by UI1 tbeS,tued.qr the insurieØæy. 

It is understood thatLayground tqulpment will be in the care, custody, and cdntrol of the County or.  
1artto1pating ubfl Agonqy fvlliwlng jmta1laton It is tbrther understood (lint the Company cannot 
addonally Insure th ovCntliat oWners ctbe ejuipflieiit for Participating Pulfli Mieneics nationwide for 

.any damags that tesult fO kdfl,tnine4an aticquate suporvislon neIigenceor.intunticna1 acts 
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by anyone other than the Company or their affiliates; inadequate surfacing, or vandalism. The 
responsibility for maintenance and supervision belongs to the County or Participating Public Agency and 
the public user respectively. 

17. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES, The relationship of the parties established by tith Agreement is 
solely that of independent conlxaotors, and nothing contamed in this Agreement shall he construed to (a) 
give any party the power to direct or control the da’ to-day activities of the other, (ii) constitute such 
parties as partners, joint ventures, txa-owners or otherwise as participants in a joint or coruntonundortaking; 
(iii) make either party an agent of the other for any purpose whatsoever, or (iv) give either party the 
authority to act for, bind, or :otheise create or assume any obligation on behalf of the. other. Nothing 
heroin shall be deemed to tiinate any fiduciary duty on the part of the Company to the County that may 
arise under law or under tho’miaoAgreeient. 

18. SUBCONTRACTING, The Company $hall not subcontract any of its obligations under this Agreement 
without the County’s prior written consent. In the event the County does ConSent in writing to a 
subcontracting arrangement, Company shall be the pe contractor and shall remain fully responsibLe for rim  
performance of all obligations which it is required to :,perform under this Agreement. Any, subcontract 
entered into by Company shall name the County as a third party beneficiary. 

Ii. 	NON-IMSCRIMINATION. The Company agrees that it has adopted tand will maintain and enlbree a 
policy of nondiscrimination on (ho ,40$i4 of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, or disability. 

The Company agrees that it will irfornt the County of any , alleged violation(s) of employment practices 
involving any employees who work on the Project which arc asserted in any claims filed with the Equal 
Employment opportunity Commission, Labor Department or any other federal or stare compliance agency. 
The Company will also inform theCounty of the final disposition of such cases. 

19. AUDIT. During the term of this Agreement amid for at period of one (1) year after Lerniination or expiration 
of this Agreeneiat for any reason, the County shall have the right to audit, either itseif or through a third 
party, the hooks and records (including but not limited to the technical records) of the Compamy in 
connection with this Agreement, to ensure the Company’s compliance with all the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement or the County’s payment obligations. 

COMPANY WILL NOT *tL. :OR bCLOSE flT4 The company will tai. s cnidentil 
information all data pro ded.bytheieunty in connectiOn with this agreement. County datapreeessed by 
the Company shall remain he citolualve property of thoi County The Company will not reproduce, copy, 
duplicate, disclose, or In any way treat the data supplied by the County in any manner except "that 
.*ntempIate4 by this agreement,  

21. 	1 WORK ON COUNTS PXUI1flSEL The Company iIl ensure that its employce awL agents shall,
1hexiever On the CQUaty 	Obey all rntruotl*fttS mid dlreetiens issued by the County’s prejeet 

managor with respect to wot sgt ttc County’s premises The Company agrees that tts peisonnel and the 
ersonnel of its subcontniàtrswil’ iply with all rules .regulattmis aud security prereduras of the 

County when on the County’s promises. 

22 	DRUG-PREE WO PLAC1II The County as a drugtree workplace employer. The Company hereby H1 i ertd’ies that It has or it will, within tharty (30) days after execufton of this Agreetuent’ 

22.1. Notify employees thatthł tmlmMtui manufacture, distribution, dispensation, p.ossoSslOii or. use of 
controlled substance Is prohibtted an the workplACe anti specit’lng aetloas that will be (alien for 
violations ofauohpt ohbjtiOn 

Z2 2 Establish a drugfree awarencas program to Into employees about (a) the dantpts otdrug abuse 
in the workptacc.. 	cottpiuiy’s. policy .fmaintanisg a dt’ugftce workptaea01 ’40y 
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available drug counseling,.rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and (iv) the penalties 
that may be imposed upon..employees for drug abuse violations; 

22.3. Not each employee that sa. a conditIon of ethployment, the employee will (I) abide by the erms 
of the prohibition outlines a (a) above and (ii). notify the Company of any criminal drug statute 
conviction for aviolat ion occurring in the workplace not latar than five days after such conviction; 

22.4. Impose a sanction on, or requiring the satisfactory participation in a drug counseling, rehabilitation 
or abuse program by ca employ$ convicted ofa drug crime; 

1 22.5. Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug4ree workplace for employees; and 

22.64 Require any party to which it .sub:eontracts any portion of the work under the contract to comply 
with the provisions of this :SOtion, 

A falo certification or the failure tocomply With the abovł dreg fte workplace requirements during the 
peforthuice of this Agreement shall be gnund :P.r .twpensiłn, tnlnati:del*tment. 

23. 	NOTICES. Any notice, consent or other e6mrnunication, equ;lrodor dtntemplated by this Agreotnentahali 
be in writing, and shall be delivered in person, by Ulg. mAil, by ovoriight courier, by electronic mad Or by 
telefax to the Intended recipient at the address set ibrth below. Notice shall be effective upon thel date of 
receipt by the intended recipient, provided that any notice which is sent by teleliuc or electronic mall shall 
alo be simultaneously sent by maI dcposted with the U S Postal Service or by overnight t.ourler. Each 
patty may change its address for n00144on purposes b)’ givuig the ether party written notice of the new 
address and the datcupoii whiehit.shall bndthe:eftbetie.. 

23.1. Communications that reinte t :iy. l*cach, defhult, termination, delay in performance pteycntin 
of performance, modification, :bthnsion, amendment or waiver of any provision of this 
Agreement shall be sent to: 

AU. other  notlees shall be sent to the bl 	ats rrojcct Manager at the most recent address provided itt 
wMqgby iMOiherparty. 	 . 

24 1 .MI8ELLANEOUS. 
24 1 ENTIRE AGRBEMEN 	This #grccntent, (including all Thrhb1tn) and the Coiidtiaflty 

Agreement constitute the :entfrdagekiieiWbetWcen the partle With Spect to the subjst matter 
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herein. There are no other representuti0ftig, utidctstanWngs or agreements between the parties with 
respect to such subject matter. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations, 
representations, and proposals, written or oral. 

24,2. AMENDMENT. No amendment or; change to this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and 
signed by the party against whom enforcement is sought. 

24.3. GOVERNING LAW AND JUIUSDiCTØN. North Carolina law shall govern the interpretation 
and enforcement of this Agreement,.and any other matters relating to this Agreement (all without 
regard to North Carolina conflicts of 14W principles) All legal actions or other proceedings 
relating to this Agreement shall be brought ’itt a state or federal court sitting in Mecklenburg 
County, North Carolina. By execution of:tbi5 Agreement, the parties submit to the jurisdiction of 
said courts and hereby irrevocably waivoany and all objections which they may have with respect 
to venue in any court sitting in MeeklcnburgCounty, North Carolina, 

BINDING NATURE AND ASSIGNMENT, This Agreement shall bind the parties and their 
successors and perm, tted assigns Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the Other. Anyassi9ntilOtrt sttompte4 without the Written consent of the other 
party ’hall be void For purposes of this Section, a Chimgo in Control, as defined in iSection 25.10 
constitute on assignment. 

24.S. FORCE MAJEURE Neither party shall beiiabló for any Thilute or delay in: the performance of its 
obligations pursuant to tins Coatnict, and such tbilure or delay shall not in.. deemed a default of 
this Cont net or grounds for termination hereunder. Wall of the following condition,-, are satisfied: 
a) 	If sucb tiilhlre or delay: 

� 	 i. could not have been pr ntedy rsasoiable precaution; 

� 	 IL cannot  reasonably be eireunweiited. by the non..performltig party through the use of 
altornate sources, work.ntntini.Lplans,:ot othłrmeans; and 

Ill. I1 and to the extent, snob ibilura or ,  delay is caused, directly çr indirectly, by fire, 
flood, earthquake, hurricane;elemenis. of nature or acts of God, acts of war, terrorism, 
riots, pivil disorders,rehelliöi*or revolutions or eourt’ordor 

(b) An event which satities 4RO’tthOiWft.d1tlons pt forth above shall be referred to as a 
"force Majeure Event-" U0ofi the ocputte f a Force Mje*re llç’ent, the Service 
Provider shall be excused from any Thrther pertorta4nce of those of its obligations which 
are acted by the Force Majeu .rent;fbr 55: long as (4) such onm ftb 	 Majeuro Event 
contiaue and (b) the Sc yipePovu1er pontinues to use ccnimcrcsally reasonable efforts 
to reomxneitce pfor 	p. 	Ainan4 t whatever extpntpossibte withOut delay. 

(c) upon ti* occurrence of a I’oree Majetire43vent th Sorvten 	uex haft iuutiethately 
uotkt, the County by tclephoose popflripd y wtitton todc within two (2) days of 
the lncqptlon of the failure ordelæy) of the orourtence of a Fre MtjOttre Event and shall 
describe in reasonable detail the nature of the Force Mijcure Event If any Force 
MtJbure Event prevents gervie Provider from performing Its obugatlons tbr snore than 
five ($) days, the County shaft have the right to terinitsate this Agreement by written 
notice to the Sprviçe Pro’vtdei 

Strikes, slowdowns, lockouts, walkouts, lndutttaL dlturbanCcs and other Labor disputes shall not 
cons5ttup Foe Iv(ajeure EventS and ahall nt e*cusn the Service Provider from the pertbrmanee 
of ft. ligutions underthis Agreement.:. 

An event wbteh  satifie aft of the condftrot set ortb abttve shall be t 	to As it "Force 
Majetire Th’ent tlpon the occurrence of a Force MhJcure EvCnt,, the afleeted party shall be 
excited from any fhrther performance of those of Its obligations winch arc affected by the Force 
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Miijeurc Event for as long as (a) such Force Majeure Event continues and (b) the affected party 
continues to use reasonable efforts to recoriithence performance whenever audio whatever extent 
possible without delay. 

Upon the occurrence of a Force Majeure Eventj the affected party shall promptly notify the other 
by telephoni.. (to be confirmed by written notice within live (5) days of the inception of the failure 
or deIy) of the occurrence of a Force Majeuro lvent and shall describe in reasonable detail the 
nature of the Force Majoure Event If any Votco Majcure Event prevents the Company from 
performing its obligations for more than fifteen (1$) days the County shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement by written notice to the Company. 

24$ SBVERAi3I[ATY. The invalidity of one or more of the phrases, seutecesClQtlses or sections 
contained in thls Agreement shall not affect the: validity .01 the remaining portion of this 
Agreement so long as the material purposes oCthxs Agreement can be determined and effectuated 
If any provision of this Agreement is bald to be uenforeable, then both parties shall be relieved 
of alt obligations arising under such provisto but otly to the extent that such provision is 
unenforceable, and this Agreement Shall be deemed atitended by modifying such provision to the 
extent necessary to make it enforceable while prosorving its intent 

247. NO PUBLICITY. No advertising, sales promttioit.orther materials of the Coroiany or its agents 
or representations may identify or reference this Agreement or the County in atiy manner without 
the prior written consoCt of the County Notwithstanding the fergoing, the parties agree that the 
Company may list the County as a reference in responses to requests tbr proposals, arid may 
identify the County as a. customer in presentutlłns topotential customers. 

WAIVER. No delay or omission  by either party to Oxoxeise: any right or power it has under this 
Agreement shall impair or be construed as a, walvre of uh tight or power. A waiver by either 
party of any covenant or, breach of this Agreement shall nor constitute or operate as a waiver of 
any succeeding breach of that covenant or of any othet covenant No waiver of any provision of 
:thi Agreement hli be ffec;iv unleas in wrftirian4 aigned.by the party waivingthe riht. 

24 9 CIIANOB IN CONTRL In the event of a change iti aControl" of the Company (aa defined 
below), the County shaft have tlo option f term1nthng this Agreement by written notice to the 
Company The Compaq shall notify the County wtthhi ten dnys  of the occurrence of a change in 
control As used in this Agreement, the term ’Ci)ntroi’ shall mean the possession, direct or 
ndlrect, of either (i) the ownorship of or ability to diroet tIle vt1ng of, as the case may be fifty one 

percent (51%) or more of the equity interests value or voting power in the Company or (ii) the 
power  to direct or eate the direction, of the management and policies of the Company whether 
through the ownership ofvotmgsecuntus, by contract oit thorwise 

4iO NO BRIBERY f he (oU4*ny cotllfles that nethcr it any of 1w, affiliates or snbcontractors not 
any employees of any *tthc ibg&ng has bribed or tftmpte to bribe an officer or enijkiyec of 
theCounty In eonnection’with this Agtnement 

I 	I FAMILIARITY AND COMPLIANCI3 WItIt LAWS A$f) Ol&t)INANC$ The Company 
agrees to make itself, aware of arid comply with all 1oc4 atate atct fadetal ottlances, stUtules, 
laws rules and regulations lopplicable to the Services The Contparty further agrees that it will at 
alt tunes during tho ’toriA of this Agreement be in compliance with all appllcabtc federal, state 
and/or local laws rearn joynienL practmes Bitch lawa will include, but shall not be limited 
to wrkcrs compensittkm, th Pair Labor SitindArdS Act 1LSA) the Americans with Dtsabxiitles 
Act (ADA), the Family and Medical Leave Act 11A) 04 ’04 OSIA rogubtoons applicable to 
the worl. . 

11,94,32. TAXES, The Company shall. pay all applioablo fedtaI tatC. and. local taxes wi*th miay be 
churgiiblm against the performance of the Serviees 
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22.13 ł’A1P7.R OFRIGWT TO JURY TRIAL, The County and Company waive and will, waive all rights 
t hitve a trial by jury in any action 4  proceeding, olaini or counterclaim brought by either of thorn 
against the other on any matter whatsoever arising out of or in any way related to or connected 
with ’this Agreement. 

25. 	NonApp’roprlattcn of Funds. if the B.nard of County CoMmissioars does tpt appropriate the funding 
needed by the County to make payments under this Agreement for a given fiscal. year, the County will not 
be obligated topay amounts due beyond the end of the last fiscal year ror which litrd were appropriated 
In such event. the County will promptly noti’t3’ the Company of the non-appropriation and this Agreement 
will be tennated at the end of the last fiscal year for which funds were appropriated No act or onussion 
by the County, which is attributable to non appropriation of funds shalt constitute a breach of or default 
under this Agreement, 

Gamae Contrae ’, 	 Sp.tetnber 17,20W 



CONTRACT #1L Q,L7. 

IN WZT’1SS VHIROF, and hi acknowledgment that the parties hereto have read and understood eaIt and every 
prey ton ftereuk the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date first written above. 

PLAYC 	WISCONSN,1NC. 
dba.tAflME: 

(. 

Company lgnuture 	
’ 

.D.011ald R. King 	 Mary Cole 
DirecUor of Sales Adtninistration $41es Adrttiriistt.tiOfl Maiaer 
l’Ltk 	I 	 . 	 Title 

j

FST:

ktBoaorco:flQ’thsiOflOrs  tim 

l7 2010 
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EXHIBIT A 
Contract Pricing and Discount Structures 

The atche4 Lktcing Shoots is We ON into and made a part of tbo Agreenient tu.provide Playground 
Equip4ent, Surfacing Site ’Furnishings and Related Products and Sorvice (the "Agreement ) between 
Meckl*iburg County, (the "County’ and:PlayCoreWisconsin, Inc. dba GameTime (the "Company"). qnWss 
otherie defined heroin, capitalized terms in this Exhibit shalt have the some rneanngs.as are assigned to such 
terms t the 1FP. 

1$ 



ZaA PLAYCOU 	COMPANY mdlimefi 
Enriching ChiLdhoOd Through Ptay 

GameTime Division 
PlayCore Wisconsin, Inc. 
150 PlayCore Drive, S.E. 
Fort Payne, Alabama 35967 
Telephone: 256/845-5610 
Facsimile: 256/845-9361 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL #269-2010-183 

PRICING SCHEDULES 

Accompanying Pricing Schedules: 

1. Game Time Year One U.S. Communities Contract Net Price List 
2. Snug Year One U.S. Communities Contract Not Price List 
3. GTlmpax Year One U.S. Communities Contract Net Price List 
4. Ultra Play Year One U.S. Communities Contract Net Price List 
5. G  Grandstands Year One U.S. Communities Contract Net Price List 
6. RCP Shelters Price List RCP402524016 
7. GTH2O Year One U.S. Communities Contract Net Price List 
& Everlast Year One U.S. Communities Contract Net Price List 
9. Spohn Ranch U.S. Communities Year One Budget Pricing 
10.Recreation Equipment Manufacturing Year One U.S. Communities Contract Net Price List 
11.Game Time Year One U.S. Communities Discounts and Installation charges 

GameTime Discounts: 
a. Equipment (including components): 

Freestanding Events: 
Snug Early Childhood Play Equipment: 
PlayWorx GFRC ThemeScapes: 

b. Surfacing: 
c. Site Furnishing: 
d. Related Products: 

Fitness and Sports: 
GTShade Structures and Shelters: 
GTH20 Water Slides: 
GTH20 Spray Grounds: 
GTNets Climbing Nets: 
Everlast Indoor Climbing Walls: 
NaturŁROCKS Climbing Boulders: 
Shelters: 

24% (see Quantity Discounts below) 
16% 
6% 
6% 

18% 
6% 
6% 
9% 
4% 
3% 
3% 
3% 

10% 
5% 
4% 

51512010 	 RFP 269-2010-183 	 Page 10-1 



PRICING SCHEDULES 

Dog Parks: 
	

6% 
Skate Parks: 
	 6% 

Drinking Fountains: 
	

5% 
e. Services: 
	 All Services Net Pricing 

Playground Equipment Installation 
Safety Surfacing Installation 
Sitework Services 
Community Build Supervision 
Design Services 
Maintenance and Repairs 
CPSI Initial Playground Safety Audit 
CPSI Low-Frequency Playground Safety Inspection 
CPSI Maintenance and Inspection Training (Quotations on a case-by-case basis) 

Volume Discounts: 
Volume single purchases of composite play systems at U.S. Communities net pricing shall be 
eligible for an additional discount of 5% for orders totaling from $50,000 to $75,000; 10% from 
$75,000 to $100,000 and 15% for orders exceeding $100,000. 

Cash With Order Discount 
Orders for playground equipment paid for at the time of placement are entitled to a 3% cash-
with-order discount. 

Product, Design and Price Comparison for SamDle Playground Designs: 
See Proposed Solutions, Tab 15 

Installation Fees 
See accompanying GameTime Year One U.S. Communities Discounts and Installation charges 

Shipping and Delivery - Shipping Program 
Shipments shall be f.o.b. destination with freight charges prepaid and listed separately. Actual 
freight charges shall be added at time of invoicing as determined and supported by the carrier’s 
Freight Bill. Estimated freight charges shall be provided at time of quotation utilizing the 
accompanying freight rate schedules. 

Price Adiustments 
Pricing shall remain In effect until December 31, 2011. Thereafter, GameTime pricing shall be 
adjusted the first of each year with the printing and distribution of the company’s annual product 
catalogs. 

5/5/2010 	 RFP 269-2010183 	 Page 10-2 



Attachment 2 
GameTime 	 Cost Changes 	 7/8/2015 

Moving Playground Equipment from Regional Park to Civic Center Park 

Original GT Quote #68125 & P0 26193-00 

Item 	 Description 	 Change in cost 
Swing 	 Removing Swing Frame - $3,854 x 85% (15% restocking) 	 ($3,275.90) 
Add Stock Car and MegaRock 	Previously was being pulled from existing ($4,027 x 24% disc) 	 $3,060.52 
Digout 	 Digout to be removed 	 ($3,450.00) 
Crushed Stone 	 Crushed Stone to be removed 	 ($5,037.50) 
Poured Rubber 	 Poured Rubber to be removed 	 ($19,762.50) 
Sand 	 Sand to be removed 	 ($4,000.00) 

Digout 	 New amount of Digout for new area 1,800 sq. ft. 	 $1,800.00 
Concrete Curb 	 New Concrete Curb to contain turf 170 In. ft. x $22 (USCOM Price = $27.28) 	 $3,740.00 
Turf 	 New Turf Surfacing (includes sub-base) 1800 x $15.95 (USCOM Price = $18.63) 	$28,710.00 
Sealed Drawings 	 Redo the Sealed drawings for new area 	 $850.00 
Permits 	 Repay for new Permits 	 $3,000.00 

ADDITIONAL CHANGE ORDER 	 $5,634.62 

Original P0 Amount 26193-00 	 $83,654.88 
Plus Change Order above 	 $5,634.62 

New Total 	 $89,289.50 

ATTACHMENT "2"

havazquez
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4.
RESOLUTIONS
March 23, 2016

CITY OF MIRAMAR
PROPOSED CITY COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

Meeting Date: March 23, 2016

Second Reading Date:

Presenter’s Name and Title: Sam Hines, Director of Human Resources, and Randy 
Cross, Director of Procurement

Temp Reso Number: 5979

Item Description: Temp. Reso. No. 5979, APPROVING THE AWARD OF REQUEST FOR 
PROPOSALS NO. 15-09-47 FOR THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION SERVICES TO 
GALLAGHER BASSETT SERVICES, INC.; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH GALLAGHER BASSETT SERVICES, INC. FOR A THREE YEAR TERM, 
COMMENCING APRIL 1, 2016, WITH TWO ONE YEAR RENEWAL OPTIONS. (Sam Hines, Human 
Resources Director and Randy Cross, Procurement Director)

Consent Resolution Ordinance Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing 

Summary Explanation and Background: In 2011, the City issued a Request for Proposals to 
secure a new contract for Third Party Claims Administration Services.  As a result of the 2011 Request for 
Proposals, Gallagher Bassett Services, Inc. ("Gallagher Bassett") was awarded a 3 year agreement, with 2 
one-year renewal options expiring in March 2016. In November 2015, the City advertised RFP No. 15-09-
47 (the "RFP") to select a new provider in anticipation of the expiration of the current agreement with 
Gallagher Bassett. Gallagher Bassett was the only company to respond to the RFP. A Selection 
Committee reviewed the proposal and determined that Gallagher Bassett's proposal was responsive and 
responsible. This Resolution seeks City Commission approval of the RFP and contract award for Third 
Party Claims Administration Services to Gallagher Bassett .  The proposed contract provides for an initial
three year term, commencing April 1, 2016, with two one-year renewal options.

Instructions for the Office of the City Clerk:

PublicNotice – As Required by Sec. of the City Code  and/or Sec. , Florida Statutes, public notice for this item was 

provided as follows: on , in a ad in the ; by posting the property on and/or by sending mailed notice to property 

owners within feet of the property on .  (Fill in all that apply)

Special Voting Requirement – As required by Sec. , of the City Code and/or Sec. Florida Statutes, approval of this item 

requires a (unanimous 4/5ths etc. vote of the City Commission.

Fiscal Impact:  Yes No 

REMARKS: For contract term April 2016 thru March 2017, the contracted amount of 
$117,600 will be split equally across two fiscal years.   In the FY16 Risk Management 
budget, $58,800 has been budgeted for the first six months (April through September 
2016) of the contract term, and the remaining $58,800 will be budgeted in the FY17 Risk 



Management budget for October 2016 through March 2017.  Due to the nature of the 
types of services rendered in this contract, specific amounts are not usually associated 
with any one account as claims are unpredictable.  In both fiscal years, the budgeted 
amount of $58,800 will be applied to the following GL accounts based on the types of 
claims processed. 

• 502-90-000-590-000-604501 – Surety Bonds Premium
• 502-90-000-590-000-604504 – State Workers’ Compensation Premium
• 502-90-000-590-000-604941 – Insurance Claims-Workers’ Comp
• 502-90-000-590-000-604942 – Insurance Claims-Liability
• 502-90-000-590-000-604943 – Insurance Claims-Property
• 502-90-000-590-000-603080 – Other Insurance Premium
• 502-90-000-590-000-603127 – Legal Svc-Litigation

Content: 
•  Agenda Item Memo from the City Manager to City Commission
•  Resolution TR No. 5979

- Exhibit A: Draft Contract with Gallagher Bassett Services,  Inc.
- Attachment 1:  RFP No. 15-09-47; 

 - Attachment 2:  Bid Tabulation Sheet
 - Attachment 3:  Gallagher Bassett Services and Costs Sheet              







Temp. Reso. No. 5979
2/25/16
3/14/16

CITY OF MIRAMAR
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE AWARD OF REQUEST FOR 
PROPOSALS NO. 15-09-47 FOR THIRD PARTY CLAIMS 
ADMINISTRATION SERVICES TO GALLAGHER BASSETT SERVICES, 
INC.; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH GALLAGHER BASSETT SERVICES, INC. FOR A 
THREE YEAR TERM, COMMENCING APRIL 1, 2016, WITH TWO ONE 
YEAR RENEWAL OPTIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.

WHEREAS, over the past 26 years, the City has maintained an aggressive claims 

management program, which includes management of claims and reporting of information in 

areas such as automobile liability, bodily injury and property damage, general liability, 

professional liability and workers’ compensation, as part of the City’s self-funded risk 

management program; and

WHEREAS, in 2011, the City Commission issued a Request for Proposals for claims 

administration services and awarded a three-year agreement, with two one-year renewal 

options, to Gallagher Bassett Services, Inc. (“Gallagher Bassett”); and

WHEREAS, the existing agreement with Gallagher Bassett expires in March 2016; 

and

WHEREAS, on November 16, 2015, the City issued Request For Proposals No. 15-

09-47 for Third Party Claims Administration Services (the “RFP”), and Gallagher Bassett 

submitted the sole response by the deadline for receipt of Proposals; and

Reso. No.  _______

Fdejean
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Temp. Reso. No. 5979
2/25/16
3/14/16

WHEREAS, the Selection Committee made up of City staff evaluated Gallagher 

Bassett’s proposal pursuant to the criteria and point ranges provided for in the RFP, 

determined that their proposal was responsive and responsible and recommended award of 

the RFP to Gallagher Bassett; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends awarding the RFP for third party claims 

administration services to Gallagher Bassett, and authorizing the City Manager to execute 

an agreement with Gallagher Bassett, in substantial conformity with the sample contract 

attached as Exhibit “A”, for a three year term commencing April 1, 2016, with two one-year 

renewal options (the “Claims Administration Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the City Commission deems it to be in the best interest of the citizens 

and residents of the City to approve the award of the RFP to Gallagher Bassett, and to 

authorize the City Manager to execute the Claims Administration Agreement with Gallagher 

Bassett, attached as Exhibit “A”. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

MIRAMAR, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Resolution.

Section 2: That the City Commission approves the award of RFP No. 15-09-47 to 

Gallagher Bassett.

Reso. No. _____ 2



Temp. Reso. No. 5979
2/25/16
3/14/16

Section 3: That the City Manager is authorized to execute the Claims 

Administration Agreement with Gallagher Bassett, in substantial conformity with the contract 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, together with such non-substantial changes as are deemed

necessary by the City Manager and approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the City 

Attorney.

Section 4: That the appropriate City officials are authorized to do all things 

necessary and expedient to carry out the aims of this Resolution.

Reso. No. _____ 3



Temp. Reso. No. 5979 
2/25/16 
3/14/16 

 
Section 5: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this _________ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
 

  ________________________________ 
 Mayor, Wayne M. Messam 

 
 

________________________________ 
 Vice Mayor, Darline B. Riggs 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________    
City Clerk, Denise A. Gibbs 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have  
approved this RESOLUTION  
as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Attorney 
Weiss Serota Helfman  
Cole & Bierman, P.L. 

 
Requested by Administration  Voted 

    Commissioner Winston F. Barnes  _____  
Commissioner Maxwell B. Chambers _____  

    Commissioner Yvette Colbourne  _____ 
    Vice Mayor Darline B. Riggs  _____ 
    Mayor Wayne M. Messam   _____ 

 
 
 
  
Reso. No. _____    4  
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SECTION 4:  (SAMPLE CONTRACT) 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN  
 

THE CITY OF MIRAMAR 
 

 AND  

________________________________________. 

FOR THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 
 
 

This Agreement is entered into this ____ day of __________, 2016, by and between the 
City of Miramar, Florida, a Florida municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as 
“City”, 
 AND 
 
__________________________, , a __________________ corporation with its principal 
business address located at ____________, hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City issued REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS No 15-09-47 for 
THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION SERVICES (the “RFP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractor was determined to be the highest evaluation scoring, 
responsive, responsible Proposer and whose Proposal was most advantageous to the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on _____________________, 2016, the City Commission approved 
the award of the RFP and a Contract for THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION 
SERVICES to Contractor. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms and conditions, promises, 
and covenants hereinafter set forth, City and Contractor agree as follows: 

 
 

SECTION 1 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
Contractor agrees to provide the following Services to the City (the “Services”) during 
the Term of this Agreement: 
 

This Agreement is subject to, and Contractor shall provide Services in accordance 
with, the Scope of Services, terms, conditions and requirements of City of Miramar 

Exhibit “A” 
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS No. 15-09-47 (the “RFP”), the Contractor’s Proposal 
as accepted by the City and any subsequently negotiated changes to same, which 
documents or agreements are incorporated by reference herein.  In the case of any 
conflict between the provisions of this Contract, the RFP and the Proposal, the 
conflict shall be resolved in the following order of priority: terms of this Contract; 
terms of the RFP; terms of the Proposal.  

 
SECTION 2 

COMPENSATION 
 

In consideration for the Services to be provided by Proposer, the City agrees to pay 
Proposer on the price schedule (tab 8 of the RFP response) which shall be payable on 
a monthly basis within 30 calendar days following submission of an invoice by the 
Proposer to the City.  In the event of City’s termination of this Contract prior to the end 
of the Contract Term pursuant to Sections 4 or 7, City shall pay Proposer on a pro-rata 
basis for the Services performed by Proposer prior to the City’s termination of this 
Contract. 

 
 SECTION 3 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 

The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of five years commencing on the date 
this Contract is executed by both parties, with two one year successive options to renew 
for additional one year terms, unless terminated earlier pursuant to Section 4 of this 
Agreement.  The Chief Procurement Officer may authorize up to a 90 day extension of 
this Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; and the City Manager or 
his/her designee is authorized to extend this Agreement, for operational purposes only, 
for a maximum of 180 days.   

 
SECTION 4 

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
 City may terminate this Agreement for convenience by giving the Contractor 30 
calendar day’s written notice.  City may terminate this Agreement for cause by giving 
Contractor five calendar days written notice upon the failure of the Contractor to cure 
any default after being provided with written notice of that default and a demand for cure 
within ten (10) calendar days.  The termination of this Agreement shall not relieve either 
party of any liability that accrued prior to such termination and any such accrued liability 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.  

 
SECTION 5 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 Contractor is an independent contractor under this Agreement.  Services 
provided by Contractor shall be by employees of Contractor and subject to supervision 
by Contractor, and not as officers, employees or agents of City.  Personnel policies, tax 
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responsibilities, social security, health insurance, employee benefits, travel, per diem 
policy, and purchasing policies under the Agreement shall be the sole responsibility of 
Contractor.  Contractor shall have no rights under the City's worker's compensation, 
employment, insurance benefits or similar laws or benefits. 
 
 

SECTION 6 
 INDEMNIFICATION / HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE 
 
 Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City, its officers, officials, 
agents, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all liability, suits, actions, 
damages, costs, losses and expenses, including attorneys' fees, demands and claims 
for personal injury, bodily injury, sickness, diseases or death or damage or destruction 
of tangible property or loss of use resulting therefrom, arising out of any errors, 
omissions, misconduct or negligent acts of Contractor, its respective officials, agents, 
employees or subcontractors in the Contractor’s performance of Services pursuant to 
this Agreement. 

 
 

SECTION 7 
NON-APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS 

 
 In the event no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted or are 
otherwise unavailable in any fiscal year for payments due under this Agreement, then 
the City, upon written notice to Contractor of such occurrence, shall have the unqualified 
right to terminate this Agreement without any penalty or expense to the City. 
 

SECTION 8 
INSURANCE 

 
 For programs that are active in nature, which shall be determined in the sole and 
exclusive discretion of the City, Contractor shall maintain liability insurance in an 
amount acceptable to the City’s Risk Manager and naming the City of Miramar as an 
additional insured. 

 
Contractor shall maintain the following required types and minimum limits of 

insurance coverage during the term of this Agreement: 
 

  General Liability  Per Occurrence  Aggregate 
  Professional Liability $ 500,000   $1,000,000 
 
 
  Workers’ Compensation 
  Statutory Amount 
 
This Agreement shall not be deemed approved until the Contractor has obtained 

all insurance required under this section and has supplied the City of Miramar with 
evidence of such coverage in the form of a Certificate of Insurance and endorsement.  
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The City of Miramar shall approve such certificates prior to the performance of any 
Services pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
ALL INSURANCE COMPANIES PROVIDED SHALL:  Be rated at least A VII per 

Best’s Key Rating Guide and be licensed to do business in Florida.  Contractor’s liability 
insurance policies shall be endorsed to add the City of Miramar as an additional 
insured.  The Contractor’s liability insurance shall be primary to any liability insurance 
policies that may be carried by the City.  The Contractor shall be responsible for all 
deductibles and self-insured retentions on their liability insurance policies. 

 
All of the policies of insurance so required to be purchased and maintained shall 

contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded shall not be cancelled, 
materially changed or renewal refused until at least 30 calendar days written notice has 
been given to the City by certified mail. 

 
 

SECTION 9 
 MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 Contractor shall, without additional expense to the City, be responsible for paying 
any taxes, obtaining any necessary licenses and for complying with all applicable 
federal, state, county, and municipal laws, ordinances and regulations in connection 
with the performance of the Services specified herein.   
 

SECTION 10 
AUDIT AND INSPECTION RIGHTS 

 
10.1 The City may, at reasonable times, and for a period of up to three years following 
the date of final performance of Services by Contractor under this Agreement, audit, or 
cause to be audited, those books and records of Contractor which are related to 
Contractor’s performance under this Agreement.  Contractor agrees to maintain all such 
books and records at its principal place of business for a period of three years after final 
payment is made under this Agreement. 
 
10.2 The City may, at reasonable times during the term hereof, perform such 
inspections, as the City deems reasonably necessary to determine whether the 
Services required to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement conform to the 
terms of this Agreement.  Contractor shall make available to the City all reasonable 
assistance to facilitate the performance of inspections by the City’s representatives. 
  

SECTION 11 
 AMENDMENTS AND ASSIGNMENT 
 
11.1 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Contractor and City 
and all negotiations and oral understandings between the parties are merged herein.  
The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement supersede any and all previous 
agreements, promises, negotiations or representations.  Any other agreements, 
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promises, negotiations or representations not expressly set forth in this Agreement are 
of no force and effect.   
 
11.2 No modification, amendment or alteration of the terms and conditions contained 
herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document executed with the same 
formality as this Agreement. 
 
11.3 Contractor shall not transfer or assign the performance of Services called for in 
the Agreement without the prior written consent of the City, which may be withheld or 
conditioned in the City’s sole discretion. 

 
SECTION 12 

GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 
 

 This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the 
laws of the State of Florida.  Venue for any action arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement shall be in Broward County, Florida.  
 

SECTION 13 
NOTICES 

 
 Whenever either party desires to give notice to the other, it must be given by 
written notice, sent by certified United States mail, return receipt requested, addressed 
to the party for whom it is intended, at the place last specified in writing, and the place 
for giving of notice in compliance with the provisions of this paragraph.  For the present, 
the parties designate the following as the respective places for giving of notice, to-wit: 
 
 
FOR CONTRACTOR: 
  
    

___________________ 
___________________ 
___________________ 
___________________ 

 
 

FOR CITY: 
 

Kathleen Woods-Richardson 
City Manager 

2300 Civic Center Place 
Miramar, Florida 33025 

Telephone: (954) 602-XXX 
Facsimile: (954) 602-XXXX 
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With A Copy to: 
 

Jamie Alan Cole, Esq. 
City Attorney 

Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
200 East Broward Boulevard, Suite 1900 

Fort Lauderdale, Florida  33301 
Telephone: 954- 763-4242 
Facsimile: 954-764-7770 

 
 

SECTION 14 
NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 
 Contractor represents and warrants to the City that Contractor does not and will 
not engage in discriminatory practices and that there shall be no discrimination in 
connection with Contractor’s performance under this Agreement on account of race, 
age, religion, color, gender, sexual orientation,  national origin, marital status, physical 
or mental disability, political affiliation or any other factor which cannot be lawfully used 
as a basis for delivery of Services.  Contractor further covenants that no otherwise 
qualified individual shall, solely by reason of his/her race, age, religion, color, gender, 
sexual orientation, national origin, marital status, physical or mental disability, political 
affiliation or any other factor which cannot be lawfully used as a basis for delivery of 
Services, be excluded from participation in, be denied Services, or be subject to 
discrimination under any provision of this Agreement. 
 
 

SECTION 15 
PUBLIC RECORDS 

 
Contractor acknowledges that the public shall have access, at all reasonable 

times, to certain documents and information pertaining to City contracts, pursuant to the 
provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  Contractor agrees to maintain public 
records in Contractor’s possession or control in connection with Contractor’s 
performance under this Agreement and to provide the public with access to public 
records in accordance with the record maintenance, production and cost requirements 
set forth in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise required by law.  Contractor 
shall ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law.   

 
Unless otherwise provided by law, any and all reports, surveys, and other data and 

documents provided or created in connection with this Agreement are and shall remain 
the property of City.  In the event of termination of this Agreement by either party, any 
reports, photographs, surveys and other data and documents and public records 
prepared by, or in the possession or control of, Contractor, whether finished or 
unfinished, shall become the property of City and shall be delivered by Contractor to the 
City Manager, at no cost to the City, within seven days of termination of this 
Agreement.  All such records stored electronically by Contractor shall be delivered to 
the City in a format that is compatible with the City’s information technology systems.  
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Upon termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public 
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure.  Any 
compensation due to Contractor shall be withheld until all documents are received as 
provided herein.  Contractor’s failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this 
section shall result in the immediate termination of this Agreement by the City. 
 
  

SECTION 16 
HEADINGS, CONFLICT OF PROVISIONS, 
WAIVER OR BREACH OF PROVISIONS 

 
 Headings are for convenience of reference only and shall not be considered in 
any interpretation of this Agreement.  In the event of conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and any terms or conditions contained in any attached documents, the 
terms in this Agreement shall prevail.  No waiver or breach of any provision of this 
Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other 
provision, and no waiver shall be effective unless made in writing. 

 
SECTION 17 

SEVERABILITY 
 

 If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or 
situation shall to any extent be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 
Agreement, and the application of such provisions to persons or situations other than 
those as to which it shall have been held invalid or unenforceable shall not be affected 
thereby, and shall continue in full force and effect, and be enforced to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. 
 

SECTION 18 
SURVIVAL 

 
 All representations and other relevant provisions herein shall survive and 
continue in full force and effect upon termination of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 19 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the 
City and Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or 
agreements, either written or oral. 

SECTION 20 
JOINT PREPARATION 

 
 The parties acknowledge that they have sought and received whatever 
competent advice and counsel as was necessary for them to form a full and complete 
understanding of all rights and obligations herein, and that the preparation  of this 
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Agreement has been a joint effort of the parties, the language has been agreed to by 
parties to express their mutual intent and the resulting document shall not, solely as a 
matter of judicial construction, be construed more severely against  one of the parties 
than the other. 

SECTION 21 
COUNTERPARTS 

 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute 

an original, but all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same 
Agreement.  
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement 
on the respective dates under each signature:  City, signing by and through its City 
Manager, attested to and duly authorized to execute same by the City Commission of 
the City of Miramar and by the Contractor, by and through its ____________, attested 
to and duly authorized to execute same. 

 
 CITY 

      
ATTEST:      CITY OF MIRAMAR 
 
 
 
___________________________  By:        
Denise Gibbs, City Clerk                 Kathleen Woods-Richardson, City Manager 
       
 

 This ___day of __________ , 2015. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL  
SUFFICIENCY FOR THE USE OF AND  
RELIANCE BY THE CITY OF MIRAMAR ONLY: 
 
 
      
City Attorney 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
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 CONTRACTOR 
           

WITNESSES:      
 
 
 
_____________________________  By: ______________________________ 
         
Print Name:    ___   
        
     ___ 
       Date: __________________________ 
Print Name:    ___    
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Each Proposal submitted to the City of Miramar (the “City”) will have the following 

information clearly marked on the face of the envelope: 
 
  a) Proposer's name and return address; 

  
b) Solicitation number; 

 
 c) Solicitation Due Date and Time; and 

 
 d) Title of the Solicitation. 

 
Failure to include this information may result in your Proposal being deemed “Non-

Responsive” if the City determines that the Proposal resulted in prejudice to other 
Proposers.  A Proposer shall have no grounds to protest should a Proposal that has failed 
to include the information described above be opened in error. 
 

All Proposals must be submitted on 8 ½ inch by 11 inch paper, neatly typed on one 
side only, with one inch margins and single line spacing.  The original document package 
must not be bound, although the document package copies should be individually bound.  
An unbound one-sided original and five bound copies (a total of six) and one CD-ROM 
or USB with an electronic version of the complete Proposal must be received by the 
deadline for receipt of Proposals specified in the Solicitation Timetable.  The original and 
all copies must be in a sealed envelope or container setting forth the information listed in 
items a) through d) and submitted to: 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
CITY OF MIRAMAR 

2300 CIVIC CENTER PLACE 
MIRAMAR, FL  33025 

 
Proposals submitted at the same time for different Requests for Proposals shall be 

placed in separate envelopes and each envelope shall separately set forth the information 
listed in items a) through d) above.  Failure to comply with this requirement shall result in 
any such incorrectly packaged Proposals not being considered. 

 
NOTE:  The RFP number must be stated clearly on the envelope or box 

containing the Proposal.  All required forms must be completed by the Firm 
submitting the Proposal.  
 
          SUBMITTING A PROPOSAL TO THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK ON OR 
BEFORE THE STATED DATE AND TIME OF: 
 

 Thursday, December 10, 2015 AT 2:00 P.M. EST. 
    

IS SOLELY AND STRICTLY THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PROPOSER.  THE 
CITY IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR DELAYS CAUSED BY ANY MAIL, PACKAGE OR 
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COURIER SERVICE, INCLUDING THE POSTAL SERVICE, OR DELAYS CAUSED BY 
ANY OTHER OCCURRENCE.  ANY PROPOSAL RECEIVED AFTER THE DEADLINE 
FOR RECEIPT OF PROPOSALS STATED IN THE SOLICITATION TIMETABLE IN THIS 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SHALL NOT BE OPENED AND SHALL NOT BE 
CONSIDERED.  TELEGRAPHIC OR FACSIMILE PROPOSALS SHALL NOT BE 
CONSIDERED. 

 
Hand-carried Proposals may be delivered to the above address during the City‟s 

regular business hours, Monday through Thursday, between the hours of 7:00 A.M. to 
6:00 P.M., excluding holidays observed by the City, but not beyond the Due Date and 
Time.  Proposers are solely responsible for informing any commercial delivery service, if 
used, of all delivery requirements and for ensuring that the required information appears 
on the outer wrapper or envelope used by such service. 
 

The Proposal must be signed by an authorized officer of the Proposer who is 
legally authorized to enter into a contractual relationship in the name of the Proposer.  The 
submittal of a Proposal by a Proposer will be considered by the City as constituting an 
offer by the Proposer to perform the required Services and/or provide the required Goods 
at the price stated by the Proposer. 
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SECTION 1 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
1-1 
DEFINITIONS 
 

The term “Chief Procurement Officer” shall refer to the Director of the City‟s 
Procurement Department. 

 
The term "City" shall refer to the City of Miramar, Florida, or its City Commission, as 

applicable. 
 

The term "Contract" shall refer to the Contract that may result from this Request for 
Proposals. 

 
The terms “CBE Firm” or “SBE Firm” shall respectively refer to a County Business 

Enterprise (“CBE”) or Small Business Enterprise (“SBE”) as defined by Sections 1-81.1(c) 
of the Code of Ordinances of Broward County, Florida, that has a Broward County 
Business Tax Receipt, is located and doing business in Broward County, and is certified 
as such by the Broward County Office of Economic Development and Small Business 
Development.  

 
The term “Due Date and Time” shall refer to the due date and time listed in the 

SOLICITATION TIMETABLE. 
 

The term "Goods” shall refer to all materials and commodities that will be required 
to be provided by the Successful Proposer in accordance with the Scope of Work, and the 
Terms and Conditions of this Solicitation. 

 
The term “Local Business” shall refer to a firm that has an office and is actively 

doing business within the City of Miramar, is domiciled within the City of Miramar City 
limits, and is in compliance with all City of Miramar licensing requirements and be current 
on all City taxes. 
 

The term "Procurement Office" shall refer to the Procurement Department of the 
City of Miramar. 
 

The term "Proposal" shall refer to any offer(s) submitted in response to this 
Request for Proposals. 

 
The term “Proposal Forms” shall refer to any and all forms required to be 

completed by the Proposer in submitting a Proposal in response to this Solicitation.  
 

The terms “Proposer” or the “Firm” shall refer to any person or entity submitting a 
Proposal in response to this Request for Proposals. 

 



RFP No.  15-09-47 
Third Party Claim Administration Services 

Page 8 of 74 

 

The terms "Provider" or "Successful Proposer" shall refer to the Proposer receiving 
an award as a result of this Request for Proposals. 

 
The terms "Request for Proposals", “RFP” or “Solicitation” shall mean this Request 

for Proposals, including all Exhibits and Attachments as approved by the City, and 
amendments or change orders issued by the Procurement Department. 

  
The term “Specifications” shall refer to any and all requirements set forth in this 

Solicitation relating to the Goods and/or Services to be provided by the Successful 
Proposer.  

 
The term "Subcontractor" or “Subconsultant” shall refer to any person, firm, entity, 

or organization, other than the employees of the Successful Proposer, who contract with 
the Successful Proposer to furnish labor, or labor and materials, in connection with the 
Work or Services to the City, whether directly or indirectly, on behalf of the Successful 
Proposer. 
 

The terms "Work", "Services", “Program”, “Project”, or “Engagement” shall refer to 
all matters and things that will be required to be done by the Successful Proposer in 
accordance with the Scope of Work, and the Terms and Conditions of this Solicitation. 
 
1-2 
AVAILABILITY OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

Copies of this Solicitation package may be accessed on DemandStar at 
www.demandstar.com or by calling (800) 711-1712.  DemandStar distributes the City‟s 
solicitations through electronic download, by facsimile, or through the U.S. Postal Service.  
Proposers are not required to register with DemandStar to receive a copy of any City 
solicitation.  Registration with DemandStar is optional, at the sole discretion of the 
Proposer.  DemandStar charges a nominal fee for distribution of solicitation packages. 
 

Proposers choosing to register with DemandStar may do so online at 
www.demandstar.com or by requesting a faxed registration form by calling 
(800) 711-1712.  Note: If you are already registered with DemandStar for Broward 
County, you do NOT need to register again. 

 
Proposers who obtain copies of this Solicitation from sources other than 

DemandStar or the City‟s Procurement Department run the risk of not receiving 
amendments to the Solicitation because their names will not be included on the list of 
firms participating in the process for this particular Solicitation.  Such Proposers are solely 
responsible for those risks. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.demandstar.com/
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1-3 
CONE OF SILENCE 

 
Proposers are notified that this Solicitation is subject to a “Cone of Silence”, which 

shall be imposed upon each request for proposal, request for qualifications, request for 
letters of interest or invitation for bids at the time of short listing by the selection team for 
responses to the particular solicitation, and for procurements, such as a bid, where a short 
listing is not created, in which case the cone of silence shall be imposed at the bid 
opening or at the time responses are received.  This Cone of Silence does not apply to 
oral communications at pre-Proposal conferences; oral presentations before evaluation 
committees; Contract negotiations; public presentations made to the City Commission 
during any duly noticed public meeting; or communications in writing at any time with any 
City employee, official, or member of the City Commission regarding matters not 
concerning this Solicitation. 
 

The Cone of Silence shall terminate at the time the City Manager or her designee 
makes a recommendation to the City Commission at a duly scheduled meeting of the City 
Commission; provided, however, that if the City Commission refers the City Manager's 
recommendation back to the City Manager or staff for further review, the Cone of Silence 
shall be re imposed until such time as the City Manager makes a subsequent 
recommendation. 

 
1-4 
INTERPRETATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS 
 

If any person contemplating submitting a Proposal is in doubt as to the true meaning 
of any part of this RFP, he/she may submit to the City a written request for an interpretation 
thereof.  The person submitting the request will be responsible for its prompt delivery.  Any 
interpretation will be made only by an addendum.  Failure on the part of the prospective 
Proposer to receive a written interpretation before the submission deadline will not be 
grounds for withdrawal of a Proposal.  Proposer will acknowledge receipt of each 
addendum issued by stating so in his/her Proposal.  No oral explanation or instruction of 
any kind or nature whatsoever given before the award of a Contract to a Proposer shall be 
binding.  The Proposer shall not rely on any representation, statement or explanation other 
than those made in this Solicitation document or in any addenda issued.  Where there 
appears to be a conflict between this Solicitation and any addenda issued, the last 
addendum issued will prevail.  See also Section 1-5 below. 

 
1-5  
RECEIPT OF ADDENDA AND SUBSTITUTE PROPOSAL FORMS 

It is the Proposer‟s responsibility to ensure receipt of all addenda and to substitute 
Proposal Forms.  It is the Proposer‟s further responsibility to verify with the Procurement 
Office, prior to submitting a Proposal, that all addenda have been received.  

All inquiries regarding this Proposal must be written and should be emailed to:  
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Procurement Office 
City of Miramar 

2300 Civic Center Place 
Miramar, FL33025 

Gary A. Bannister 
Procurement Analyst 
954-602-3257 Phone 

954-602-1853 Cell 
954-602-3712 Fax 

gabannister@ci.miramar.fl.us  
 or 

Adriel Brown 
Procurement Specialist 

Office 954-602-3249 
Cell 954-651-8158 

ajbrown@ci.miramar.fl.us 
 

1-6  

PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE  

No pre-Proposal conference will be held.   
 
1-7 
CONTENTS OF SOLICITATION 
 

 a) General Conditions. 
 1) It is the sole responsibility of the Proposer to become 
thoroughly familiar with the Solicitation requirements and all terms and 
conditions affecting the performance of this Solicitation.  Pleas of ignorance 
by the Proposer of conditions that exist, or that may exist, will not be 
accepted as a basis for varying the requirements of the City or the 
compensation to be paid to the Provider. 
 
 2) The Proposer is advised that this Solicitation is subject to all 
legal requirements and all other applicable City and county ordinances 
and/or state and federal statutes, rules and regulations. 

 
 b) Additional Information/Amendment. 

 
  1) Requests for additional information, explanation, clarification or 

interpretation must be made in writing to the Procurement Office at the 
address identified above.  A request must be received by the Procurement 
Office no later than seven working days prior to the Solicitation Due Date 
and Time.  Any request received after that time may not be reviewed for 
inclusion in this Solicitation.  The request shall contain the requester's name, 
address, and telephone number. 

mailto:gabannister@ci.miramar.fl.us
mailto:ajbrown@ci.miramar.fl.us
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  2) The Procurement Office may issue a response to any inquiry if 

it deems necessary, by written amendment in the form of an addendum to 
the Solicitation, which shall be issued prior to the Solicitation Due Date and 
Time.  The Proposer shall not rely on any representation, statement or 
explanation other than those made in this Solicitation document or in any 
amendments/addenda issued.  

 
  3) It is the Proposer's sole responsibility to ensure receipt of all 

amendments/addenda and substitute Proposal Forms.  It is the Proposer's 
further responsibility to verify with the Procurement Office, prior to submitting 
a Proposal, that all amendments/addenda have been received.  Proposers 
shall submit the Proposal form entitled “ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
FORM” with their Proposals. 

 
 c) Conflicts in this Solicitation. 

 
Where there appears to be a conflict between the General Terms and 
Conditions, the Special Conditions, the Specifications or Statement of Work, 
the Contract or any amendment/addendum issued, the order of precedence 
shall be: the last addendum issued; the Specifications or Statement of Work; 
the Special Conditions; the General Terms and Conditions, and then the 
Contract. 

 
Where there appears to be a conflict of the Due Date and Time listed 
anywhere in this Solicitation, it is the sole responsibility of the potential 
Proposer to verify the Due Date and Time by calling the City‟s Procurement 
Office at (954) 602-3054. 

 
1-8 
PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION OF A PROPOSAL 
 
  a) Preparation/Submission 
  

   1) The Proposal Forms shall be used when submitting a 
Proposal.  Use of any other forms may result in the Proposer's Proposal 
being deemed “Non-Responsive.” 

 
  2) The Proposal shall either be typed or completed legibly in ink. 

The Proposer's authorized agent shall sign the Proposal Forms in ink and all 
corrections made by the Proposer shall be initialed in ink by the authorized 
agent.  The use of pencil or erasable ink or the failure to comply with any of 
the foregoing may result in the rejection of the Proposal. 

 
3) Upon request, the City will provide a tax exemption certificate, 

if applicable.  Any special tax requirements will be specified either in the 
Special Conditions or in the Specifications. 
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  4) Telegraphic or facsimile Proposals shall not be considered. 
 
  5) The apparent silence of the Specifications, and any 

amendment regarding any details, or the omission from the Specifications of 
a detailed description concerning any materials or Services requested, shall 
be regarded and interpreted as meaning that only the best commercial 
practices are to prevail, and that only materials and workmanship of first 
quality are to be used.  All interpretations of the Specifications shall be made 
upon the basis of this Solicitation. 

 
 b) Criminal Conviction Disclosure 

 
Any individual Proposer who has been convicted of a felony during the past  
10 years and any corporation, partnership, joint venture or other legal entity 
Proposer having an officer, director, member/manager or executive who has 
been convicted of a felony during the past 10 years shall disclose this 
information prior to entering into a Contract with or receiving funding from 
the City.  Forms for the disclosure of such a criminal conviction are available 
from the Procurement Office. 

 
c) Sworn Statement on Public Entity Crimes 
 
Pursuant to Paragraph 2(a) of Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, "A person 
or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a 
conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply 
on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not 
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the 
construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit 
bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may 
not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or 
consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact 
business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in 
s. 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the 
date of being placed on the convicted vendor list." 
 
d) Preference for Local Bidders 
 
Except where federal, state or county law mandates to the contrary, or as 
otherwise provided herein, the City, pursuant to its purchasing authority, 
shall grant a preference in the amount of five percent of any bid or five 
points of any Proposal score to a Local Business.  Such preference shall 
apply to bids or Proposals for commodities, Services and construction. 
 
e)  Preference for Businesses Employing Miramar Residents 
 
A vendor located outside of the City of Miramar City limits is considered 
equivalent to a Miramar vendor and accorded the same preference if it 
employs a minimum of 10 full time equivalent (“FTE”) Miramar residents or 
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Miramar residents constitute 20 percent of the FTE of the company‟s local 
workforce (in Broward and Miami-Dade Counties), whichever is larger.  Such 
preference shall apply to bids or Proposals for commodities, Services and 
construction. 
 
f)  Preference for CBE or SBE Firms  
 
Except where federal, state or county law mandates to the contrary, or as 
otherwise provided herein, the City, pursuant to its purchasing authority, 
shall grant a preference in the amount of five percent of any bid or five 
points of any Proposal score to a CBE or SBE Firm.  Such preference shall 
apply to bids or Proposals for commodities, Services and construction. 
 
g) Application of Preferences   

 
In the application of any price preference granted by the Miramar 
Procurement Code or Policies, the preference is applied by granting the 
specified percent price reduction to the price of the bidder/Proposer allowed 
the preference. Preferences shall be additive and computed as a whole on 
the bid or Proposal. 
 
h) Drug-free Workplace Preference 
 
All public bids or Proposals are subject to the City of Miramar Preference to 
Businesses with Drug-free Workplace Programs as set forth in Section 2-
260 of the City‟s Code.  The City grants a preference to a business with a 
drug-free workplace program whenever two or more proposals are equal 
with respect to price, quality, and services.  The Drug-free Workplace 
Vendor shall have the burden of demonstrating that its program complies 
with Section 287.087, Florida Statutes, and all other applicable state law.  All 
Proposers shall submit the form entitled “DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
AFFIDAVIT”. 
 
i) Anti-Kickback Affidavit 
 
All Proposers shall submit the duly signed and notarized form entitled “ANTI-

KICKBACK AFFIDAVIT”. 
 
j) Non-Collusion Declaration 
 
All Proposers shall affirm that they have not and shall not collude, conspire, 
connive or agree, directly or indirectly, with any other Proposer, firm, or 
person to submit a collusive or sham Proposal in connection with the Work 
for which their Proposal has been submitted, or to refrain from offering a 
Proposal in connection with such Work; or, in any manner, directly or 
indirectly, been sought by another person to fix the price or prices in the 
Proposal or of any other Proposer, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost 
elements of the Proposal price or the Proposal price of any other Proposer, 
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or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful 
agreement any advantage against any other Proposer, or any person 
interested in the proposed Work.  All Proposers shall submit the duly signed 
form entitled “NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION”. 
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k)     Non-Discrimination Affidavit 
 
All Proposers shall affirm that their organization shall not discriminate 
against any person in its operations, activities or delivery of Services.  
Proposers shall also affirmatively comply with all applicable provisions of 
federal, state and local equal employment laws and shall not engage in or 
commit any discriminatory practice against any person based on race, age, 
religion, color, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, marital status, 
physical or mental disability, political affiliation or any other factor that cannot 
lawfully be used as a basis for Service delivery.  All Proposers shall submit 
the duly signed and notarized form entitled “NON-DISCRIMINATION 
AFFIDAVIT”. 
 
l) Business/Vendor Profile Survey 
 
All Proposers shall provide the City with the information requested in the 
Business/Vendor Profile Survey prior to being recommended for award of 
any Contract resulting from this Solicitation. 
 
m) Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification 
 
All Proposers shall provide the City with their Taxpayer Identification 
Number prior to being recommended for award of any Contract resulting 
from this Solicitation. 
 
n) Antitrust Laws 
 
By submitting a signed Proposal, the Successful Proposer acknowledges 
compliance with all antitrust laws of the United States and the State of 
Florida in order to protect the public from restraint of trade, which illegally 
increases prices. 
 
o) Conflicts of Interest 
 
The award of the Contract is subject to the provisions of Chapter 112, 
Florida Statutes.  Proposers shall disclose the name of any officer, director, 
partner, associate, or agent who is also an officer, appointee, or employee of 
the City at the time of the Proposal or at the time of an occurrence of a 
conflict of interest. 
 
p) Collection of Fees and Taxes 
 
By accepting the award of a Contract, the Successful Proposer 
acknowledges compliance with the requirement that all delinquent and 
currently due fees and taxes have been paid.  The City may require 
verification and satisfaction of all delinquencies and currently due fees and 
taxes prior to recommending a Proposer for the award of any Contract. 
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1-9 
MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF A PROPOSAL 
 

a) Modification of a Proposal 
 
Any modification of a Proposal by the Proposer shall be submitted to the 
Office of the City Clerk prior to the Solicitation Due Date and Time.  The 
Proposer shall submit the new Proposal and a letter, on company letterhead, 
signed by an authorized agent of the Proposer stating that the new submittal 
supersedes the previously submitted Proposal.  The sealed envelope shall 
contain the same information as required for submitting the original 
Proposal.  In addition, the envelope shall be marked with a statement that 
“This Proposal Replaces The Previously Submitted Proposal.”  No 
modifications of a Proposal shall be accepted after the Solicitation Due Date 
and Time. 
 
b) Withdrawal of a Proposal 
 
A Proposal may be withdrawn at any time prior to the Solicitation Due Date 
and Time.  A Proposal may also be withdrawn 180 or more calendar days 
after the Solicitation Due Date and Time, provided that the Proposal is 
withdrawn prior to a recommendation for the award of the Contract is made.  
Withdrawals may only be made by written communication delivered to the 
Office of the City Clerk at the address identified in this Solicitation.  The 
withdrawal letter must be on company letterhead and signed by an 
authorized agent of the Proposer. 

 
1-10 
LATE PROPOSALS, LATE MODIFICATIONS, AND LATE WITHDRAWALS 
 
 Proposals received after the Solicitation Due Date and Time will not be accepted, 
opened, or considered.  Modifications of Proposals received after the Solicitation Due 
Date and Time will also not be accepted or considered.  Withdrawals of Proposals 
received after the Solicitation Due Date and Time or prior to the expiration of 180 calendar 
days after the Solicitation Due Date and Time will not be accepted or considered. 
 
1-11 
SOLICITATION POSTPONEMENT OR CANCELLATION 
 
 The City may, at its sole and absolute discretion, reject any and all, or parts of any 
and all Proposals, re-advertise this Solicitation, postpone or cancel, at any time, this 
Solicitation process, or waive any irregularities in this Solicitation or in the Proposals 
received as a result of this Solicitation. 
 
1-12 
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COST OF PROPOSALS 
 
 All expenses involved with the preparation and submission of Proposals to the City, 
or any Work performed in connection therewith, shall be borne by the Proposer(s).  No 
payment shall be made for any responses received or for any other effort required of or 
made by the Proposer(s) prior to commencement of Work as defined by a Contract duly 
approved by the City Commission. 
 
1-13 
ORAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
 The City may require Proposers to perform an oral presentation in support of their 
Proposals or to exhibit or otherwise demonstrate the information contained therein.  This 
presentation or demonstration may be performed before the Evaluation/Selection 
Committee or the City Commission.  If required, the City shall notify Proposers with as 
much advance notice as possible prior to the date of such a presentation. 
 
1-14 
EXCEPTIONS TO THE SOLICITATION 
 
 Proposers may take exception to any of the terms of this Solicitation unless the 
Solicitation specifically states where exceptions may not be taken.  All exceptions taken 
shall be submitted in writing by the date for the deadline for questions.  
 
 Where exceptions are taken, the City, in its sole discretion, shall determine whether 
to consider the exception and/or the acceptability of the proposed exceptions.   
 
 The City is under no obligation to accept or consider any exceptions or accept any 
Proposal with an exception.  Proposers are reminded that they may submit one Proposal 
without exceptions and an alternate Proposal with exceptions. 
 
1-15 
PROPRIETARY AND/ OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
 
 Proposers are notified that all information submitted as part of or in support of 
Proposals will be available for public inspection after opening of the Proposals, in 
compliance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, popularly known as the “Public Records 
Law”.  Any person wishing to view the Proposals in person may make an appointment by 
calling the Procurement Office at (954) 602-3054. 
 
 All Proposals submitted in response to this Solicitation become the property of the 
City.  Unless the information submitted is proprietary, copyrighted, trademarked, or 
patented, the City reserves the right to utilize any or all information, ideas, conceptions, or 
portions of any Proposal when determined to be in the City‟s best interest.  Acceptance or 
rejection of any Proposal shall not nullify the City‟s rights hereunder.  
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1-16 
EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS 
 

 a) Rejection of Proposal. 
 

  1) The City may reject any Proposer's Proposal and award the 
Contract to the next highest evaluation scoring, responsive, responsible 
Proposer; 

 
  or 
 
  The City may reject the entire or any portion of all Proposals 

submitted and re-advertise for all or any part of this Solicitation, whenever it 
is deemed in the best interest of the City.  The City shall be the sole judge of 
what is in its "best interest." 

 
  2) The City may reject any Proposal if the Proposer does not 

accept or attempts to modify the terms and conditions of this Solicitation. 
 

 b) Elimination from Consideration. 
 

No Contract shall be awarded to any person or firm that is in default to the 
City as a result of any debt, taxes, or any other obligation whatsoever. 

 
 c) Waiver of Informalities. 

 
The City reserves the right to waive any informalities or irregularities in this 
Solicitation. 

 
  d) Demonstration of Competency. 
 

  1) A Proposal shall only be considered from a Firm that is 
regularly engaged in the business of providing the Goods and/or Services 
required by this Solicitation.  Proposers must be able to demonstrate a good 
record of performance and have sufficient financial resources, equipment 
and organization to ensure that they can satisfactorily provide the Goods 
and/or Services if awarded the Contract as a result of this Solicitation. 

 
  2) The City may conduct a pre-award inspection of the Proposer‟s 

site or hold a pre-award qualification hearing to determine if the Proposer 
possesses the requirement(s) as outlined in the above paragraph and is 
capable of performing the requirement(s) of this Solicitation.  The City may 
consider any evidence available regarding the financial, technical or other 
qualifications and abilities of the Proposer, including past performance 
(experience) with the City or any other governmental entity in making the 
award of a Contract. 
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  3) The City may require the Proposer to show evidence that it has 
been designated as an authorized representative of a manufacturer, supplier 
and/or distributor if required by this Solicitation. 

 
  4) The City reserves the right to audit all records, financial or 

otherwise, pertaining to and resulting from any award as a result of this 
Solicitation. 

 
1-17 
NEGOTIATIONS 
 
 The City may award a Contract on the basis of initial offers received, without 
discussions.  Therefore, each initial offer should contain the Proposer‟s best efforts.  The 
City, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to enter into Contract negotiations with the 
highest evaluation scoring, responsive, responsible Proposer and whose Proposal is most 
advantageous to the City.  Should the City and that Proposer fail to reach agreement on a 
mutually acceptable Contract, the City shall have the right to terminate Contract 
negotiations and to negotiate same with the next highest evaluation scoring, responsive, 
responsible Proposer.  No Proposer shall have any rights against the City arising from 
such negotiations until a Contract acceptable to the City has been awarded and 
executed.               
 

To assure full understanding of and responsiveness to the Solicitation requirements 
and full understanding of qualified Proposals or offers, discussions may be conducted with 
qualified Proposers or offerors who submit responses determined to be reasonably 
acceptable of being selected for award for the purpose of clarification and to assure full 
understanding of and responsiveness to the Solicitation requirements.  The respondents 
shall be accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to any opportunity for discussion 
and revision of responses, and such revisions may be permitted through negotiations prior 
to award for the purpose of obtaining best and final Proposals or offers.  
 
1-18 
AWARD OF CONTRACT(S) 
 

 a) Contract(s) 
 

 This Solicitation contains the Contract to be awarded as a result of this 
Solicitation, entitled “CONTRACT”.  After award, a Contract similar to the Contract, 
inclusive of all attachments and any modifications that the City in its sole 
discretion may make, and reflecting all requirements, terms and conditions of this 
Solicitation and any negotiated changes, will constitute the entire Contract between 
the parties.  No rights shall inure to the benefit of any Proposer pursuant to this 
Solicitation until the Contract has been executed by both parties.  The Proposer 
shall provide with its Proposal any contract forms desired for consideration 
by the City as part of the final agreement to be executed. 
 
 b) Additional Information 
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 The award of a Contract may be preconditioned on the subsequent 
submission of other documents specified in the Special Conditions or 
Specifications.  The Successful Proposer shall be deemed “Non-Responsive” if 
such documents are not submitted in a timely manner and in the form required by 
the City.  Where the Successful Proposer is deemed “Non-Responsive” as a result 
of such failure to provide the required documents, the City may award the Contract 
to the next highest evaluation scoring, responsive, responsible Proposer. 

 
c) Independent Contractor 

 
 The Successful Proposer shall be a contractor operating independently from 
the City.  All employees and contractors of the Successful Proposer shall be 
considered to be, at all times, the sole employees or contractors of the Successful 
Proposer, under the Successful Proposer‟s sole discretion, and not an employee, 
contractor, or agent of the City.  Nor shall employees and contractors of the 
Successful Proposer enjoy any privity of contract with the City.  Neither the 
Successful Proposer nor any of its employees shall receive any City benefits 
available to employees of the City.  The Successful Proposer shall supply 
competent and physically capable employees and contractors.  The City may 
require the Successful Proposer to remove any employee or contractor the City 
deems careless, incompetent, insubordinate, or otherwise objectionable and/or 
whose continued performance of the Services is not in the best interest of the City. 
 

d) Contract Extension 
 
 The City reserves the right to automatically extend any Contract for up to 
180 calendar days beyond the stated Contract term under the same terms and 
conditions of said Contract.  The City shall notify the Successful Proposer in writing 
of such extensions.  Additional extensions beyond the first 180 day extension may 
occur if approved by the City Commission, with the mutual agreement of the City 
and the Successful Proposer. 
 

e) Limited Contract Extension 
 
 Any specific Work assignment which commences prior to the termination 
date of any Contract and which will extend beyond the termination date shall, 
unless terminated by mutual written agreement of both parties, continue until 
completion at the same prices, terms and conditions as set forth in the Contract. 

 
f) Warranty 

 
 Any implied warranty granted under the Uniform Commercial Code shall 
apply to all Goods purchased under any Contract. 
 

 
 g) Estimated Quantities 
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 Estimated quantities or estimated dollars, if provided, are for Proposer's 
guidance only.  No guarantee is expressed or implied as to quantities or dollars that 
will be used during the period of the Contract.  The City is not obligated to place 
any order for a given amount subsequent to the award of any Contract.  Estimates 
are based upon the City's actual needs and/or usage during a previous contract 
period.  Said estimates may be used by the City for purposes of determining the 
highest evaluation scoring, responsive, responsible Proposer meeting the 
Specifications. 

 
 h) Non-Exclusive Contract 

 
 Although the purpose of this Solicitation is to secure a Contract that can 
satisfy the total needs of the City, it is agreed and understood that any Contract 
awarded does not create the exclusive rights of the Successful Proposer to receive 
all orders that may be generated by the City in connection with the types of 
products and/or Services requested, unless otherwise stated herein. 

 
1-19 
RIGHT TO APPEAL AWARD RECOMMENDATION 
 

After a notice of intent to award a Contract is posted, any actual or prospective 
bidder/Proposer who is aggrieved in connection with the pending award of the Contract or 
any element of the process leading to the award of the Contract may protest to the Chief 
Procurement Officer.  A protest must be filed within five business days after posting or any 
right to protest is forfeited.  The protest must be in writing, must identify the name and 
address of the protester, and must include a factual summary of, and the basis for, the 
protest.  Filing shall be considered complete when the protest and accompanying fee is 
received by the Chief Procurement Officer. 

 
A nonrefundable filing fee from protester is required to compensate the City for the 

expenses of administering the protest.  The fee shall be in the form of cash or a cashier's 
check, and in accordance with the schedule set forth below: 
 
Contract Award                              Amount Filing Fee 
$10,000-$50,000                                             $500.00 
$50,001-$250,000                                        $1,000.00 
$250,001 and greater                      1% of the pending award or $5,000.00, 

   whichever is greater 
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1-20 
RESULTING CONTRACTOR OBLIGATIONS 
 

a) Rules, Regulations, Licensing, and Other Requirements 
 
The Proposer shall comply with all laws and regulations applicable to the 

Goods and/or Services requested in this Solicitation.  The Proposer is presumed to 
be familiar with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, codes and regulations 
that may in any way affect the Goods and/or Services offered. 

 
b) Condition of Packaging and Packaging Materials 
 
If applicable, and unless otherwise specified in the Special Conditions or 

Specifications, all containers shall be suitable for shipment and/or storage and 
recyclable to the greatest extent possible. 

 
1-21 
REQUIRED LISTING OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS 

 
All Contracts with the City for the purchase of supplies, materials, or Services, 

including professional services that involve the expenditure of $25,000.00 or more, shall 
require that the Proposer submits with its Proposal a list of all first-tier Subcontractors or 
Subconsultants who will perform any part of the Contract Work and all suppliers who will 
provide materials for the Contract Work directly to the Successful Proposer.  In addition, 
the Successful Proposer shall not change or substitute Subcontractors, Subconsultants or 
suppliers from those listed in the Proposal, except upon written approval of the City. 
 
 All Proposers shall submit the completed Proposal form entitled “PROPOSER’S 
DISCLOSURE OF SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, AND SUPPLIERS” with 
their Proposal(s).  FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS REQUIREMENT MAY RENDER 
THE PROPOSAL “NON-RESPONSIVE”. 
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SECTION 2 
SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
2-1 
PURPOSE:  TO ESTABLISH ONE CONTRACT BETWEEN ONE PROVIDER AND THE 
CITY OF MIRAMAR FOR THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES. 
  

The purpose of this Solicitation is to establish a Contract for the City for the 
Services specified herein from an entity or individual that will provide prompt and 
professional Service.  Specifically, the purpose is to select a Provider to furnish Third 
Party Administrative Services according to the Scope of Services in SECTION 3. 
 
 The City is requesting Proposals from experienced individual(s), group(s), or 
company(ies), hereinafter referred to as the “Proposer”, to provide the described Services 
for the City. 
 
2-2 
SOLICITATION TIMETABLE 
 
 The anticipated schedule* for this Solicitation and the award of any resulting 
Contract shall be as follows: 
 
Milestone        Timeframe 
RFP Issuance      Monday, November 16, 2015 
Deadline for Clarification Questions Monday, November 23, 5:00 P.M. EST 
Proposal is Due to City      Thursday, December 10, 2015, 2:00 P.M. EST.  
Final ranking of Proposers      TBA 
City Commission approval of ranking 
and authorization of negotiations     TBA 
Contract negotiations     
Award of Contract by City Commission              TBA 
 
* The part of this schedule occurring after the Proposal Due Date may be amended 
by the City in its sole discretion, and no rights shall inure to any Proposer due to 
such amendment. 
 
2-3 
TERM OF CONTRACT: FOR AN INITIAL TERM OF THREE YEARS WITH TWO 
OPTIONAL ONE-YEAR RENEWAL PERIODS. 
 

The term of the Contract resulting from this Solicitation shall be for a period of time, 
commencing on the date on which the Contract has been signed by both parties, or, if 
provided, the commencement date specified in the Contract, with successive options to 
renew as determined in the best interest of the City.  Renewal after the initial term may be 
exercised upon the same terms and conditions, or per changes mutually agreed to, at the 
sole discretion of the City, and may be evidenced in writing as a modification to the 
Contract executed and signed by the City and Provider prior to the expiration date of the 
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existing Contract or any valid extension thereof.  In addition to any renewal, if provided for, 
the Chief Procurement Officer may authorize up to a 90 day extension of a Contract in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract, and the City Manager or her 
designee is authorized to extend, for operational purposes only, for a maximum of 180 
days, any Contract entered into by the City pursuant to City Commission approval.  Any 
further extensions of such Contract require the approval of the City Commission.   
 
2-4 
METHOD OF AWARD 
 

The award of any Contract resulting from this Solicitation will be made to the 
highest evaluation scoring, responsive, responsible Proposer whose Proposal will be the 
most advantageous to the City, taking into consideration price and the other evaluation 
factors set forth in this Solicitation.  
 
2-5 
METHOD OF PAYMENT:  PERIODIC INVOICES FOR SERVICES RENDERED 
 
 The Successful Proposer shall submit fully documented invoices within 30 calendar 
days after the Services have been rendered.  These invoices shall be submitted to the 
City of Miramar, ATTN: Accounts Payable, 2300 Civic Center Place, Miramar, Florida  
33025.  All documentation shall reference the appropriate Contract number, the type of 
Service(s) provided, and the dates or period that the Services were provided in the prior 
30 days. 
 
2-6 
CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL 

 
The contents of the Proposal shall be as required by this RFP, including the 

information required in Section 3-9 (“CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL”) below.  
 

2-7 

COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL LAWS 
 
 The Successful Proposer understands that agreements between private entities 
and local governments are subject to certain laws and regulations, including laws 
pertaining to public records, conflict of interest, record keeping, etc.  The City and 
Successful Proposer agree to comply with and observe all applicable laws, codes and 
ordinances as they may be amended from time to time. 
 
2-8 
ACCEPTANCE OF SERVICES BY THE CITY 
 
 The Services shall be performed by the Provider consistent with the highest 
professional standards.  Any Work not performed as required shall be corrected by the 
Provider to the extent possible at no cost to the City. 
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2-9 
INSURANCE 

 
For programs that are active in nature, which shall be determined in the sole and 

exclusive discretion of the City, Proposers shall maintain commercial general, automobile 
(where applicable), workers compensation and professional liability insurance in an 
amount acceptable to the City‟s Risk Manager.   

  
2-10 
Minimum Limits of Insurance 

 
Proposers shall maintain the following minimum limits of insurance (unless higher 

limits are required by law or statute): 
 
1.  Commercial General Liability:  $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per 
occurrence, property damage and medical expense $10,000, personal injury and 
advertising injury liability $1,000,000; products and completed operations policy 
aggregate $2,000,000 and general aggregate $2,000,000.  
 

2. Employer's Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury by accident or 
disease.  
 
3. Workers‟ Compensation:  Statutory. 
 

2-11 
POINT OF CONTACT 
 
 For any additional information regarding the Scope of Work and requirements of 
this Solicitation, contact the Procurement Office at: 
 

Procurement Office 
City of Miramar 

2300 Civic Center Place 
Miramar, FL33025 

Gary A. Bannister 
Procurement Analyst 
954-602-3257 Phone 

954-602-1853 Cell 
954-602-3712 Fax 

gabannister@ci.miramar.fl.us  
 or 

Adriel Brown 
Procurement Specialist 

Off 954-602-3249 
Cell 954-651-8158 

ajbrown@ci.miramar.fl.us 

mailto:gabannister@ci.miramar.fl.us
mailto:ajbrown@ci.miramar.fl.us
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SECTION 3 

 
STATEMENT OF WORK AND SCOPE OF SERVICES AND 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS; PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND 
CRITERIA; CONTENT OF PROPOSAL 

 
3-1 

PURPOSE AND INTENT OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

Purpose 

The City of Miramar is seeking a professional and experienced contractor to 
aggressively and effectively manage its workers‟ compensation, auto, property and 
other liability claims, accounting for insurance expenses and subrogation.  The City 
invites well-qualified contractors to respond to this RFP to provide the City with the best 
required Services that will maximize the effectiveness of the City‟s workers‟ 
compensation, property/casualty insurance program.  The City‟s intent is to acquire the 
solution that provides the best value to the City and meets or exceeds both the functional 
and technical requirements identified in this RFP.  

The City will transfer the administration for all active claims (run-off/tail claims) as 
of April 1, 2016 to the awarded Proposer, if not awarded to the incumbent Provider. 
 
3-2 
Background  

The City of Miramar is a growing municipality located in southeast Florida, 
approximately halfway between Miami and Fort Lauderdale.  Miramar has experienced 
unprecedented growth over the past 10 years, increasing its population from 72,739 in 
2000 to 130,288 in 2013.  Miramar is a long and narrow city, approximately 2.5 miles 
wide (north to south) and 14 miles long (east to west). 
 

3-3 
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 

For the purposes of this RFP Scope of Work, the term “Proposer” shall have the 
same meaning as “Contractor”. 

1. Contractor shall provide workers‟ compensation and liability third-party claims 
administration services for the City‟s self-insured workers‟ compensation fund in 
accordance with Florida Statutes Section 440, applicable Florida Administrative 
Code(s), and applicable City Code(s), resolution(s) or Collective Bargaining 
Agreement(s).  City shall provide Contractor with copies of applicable City 
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Code(s), resolution(s) or Collective Bargaining Agreement(s) as necessary.  This 
includes the necessary medical benefits, expenses and other services usual and 
customary to the administration and management of workers‟ compensation 
claims, if not otherwise noted herein. 

2. Contractor agrees to notify the City of proposed or enacted changes in workers‟ 
compensation regulatory requirements or legislative acts that may affect the 
City‟s claims. 

3. Contractor, as a custodian of records for the City, shall comply and cooperate 
with all applicable City and state record retention and exemption laws, including 
but not limited to Florida Statutes Chapters 119, 440, 760 and 112 as they 
pertain to protected medical, personal and/or work product information. 

4. Contractor shall comply with all past, current and new future excess workers‟ 
compensation coverage agreements, including reporting requirements affording 
potential or existing coverage on all and any open (or re-opened claims) claims, 
including but not limited to reporting: 

a.  A copy of the notice of injury to be sent with each claim. 
b. A complete ledger identifying the type, amount, payee, and date of service 

for each payment. 
c. A narrative summary that includes the: 

i. Description of the accident 
ii. Past, current, and future medical care 
iii. Litigated issues, defenses and anticipated outcomes 
iv. Current type of indemnity being paid and the future expectations of 

impairment or permanent total disability. 
d. Reserve table that includes aggregate paid, outstanding, recovered, and 

total incurred amounts. 
e. Types and expectations of third party recoveries. 
f.  Adjuster name, phone, email, fax and address. 
g. All documentation is to be sent via electronic media to the excess carrier, 

unless otherwise instructed. 
h. Any action or suit commenced against the City or excess workers‟ 
compensation carrier. 
i. All fatalities. 
j. Any proceeding, event, or development which, in the judgment of the 

Contractor might result in a claim upon the City‟s excess workers‟ 
compensation carrier, including but not limited to the following: 

I. B
rain injuries resulting in impairment of physical functions 

II. Spinal injuries resulting in partial or total paralysis of upper or lower 
extremities 

III. Amputation or permanent loss of use of upper or lower extremities 
IV. Severe burn cases 
V. All other injuries likely to result in a permanent impairment disability 

rating of 50% or more 
VI. All workers‟ compensation claims alleging permanent total disability 

VII. All workers‟ compensation claims involving disability of more than 
three years 

VIII. All claims where there is a diagnosis of Hepatitis C 
IX. All claims that are asserting a presumption under Florida Statutes 

Section 112. 
k. Any claim in which the total incurred for all reserves reach 50% of the City‟s 

self-insured retention. 
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l. Shall forward promptly to the City‟s excess workers‟ compensation carrier 
copies of such pleadings and reports of investigation as may be requested. 

m. No voluntary settlement involving loss to the City‟s excess workers‟ 
compensation carrier shall be made hereunder except with the written 
consent of the City‟s excess workers‟ compensation carrier. 

n. City‟s excess workers‟ compensation carrier, at its own election and 
expense, shall have the right to participate with the City in the defense or 
appeal of any action, suit or proceeding in which it may, in its judgment, 
become involved. 

5. Contractor shall be responsible for any penalties, declined coverage, reservation 
of rights issued, diminished coverage benefits imposed by City‟s excess workers‟ 
compensation carrier(s) due to Contractor‟s failure to properly report new or 
existing claims as required by each carriers‟ coverage agreement reporting 
requirements. 

6. Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining copies of each excess workers‟ 
compensation carriers coverage agreement(s) that provide potential or existing 
coverage for all and any open (or re-opened ) claims. 

7. Contractor shall set up all claims within 24 hours after notification. Assigned 
adjuster, supervisor or nurse case manager shall make a three point contact to the 
City, the injured employee and the initial medical provider(s) within 48 hours. 

8. Contractor shall provide automated acknowledgement the receipt of each claim. 
The acknowledgement shall include but not be limited to the following: claim 
number, assigned adjuster name, email and telephone number, claimant's name, 
and date of loss. 

9. Contractor shall attend in person or via telephonically all mediations.  The City 
shall endeavor to have a Risk Management staff member, or designee, at all 
mediations and hearings. 

10. Contractor shall have the ability to provide prescription drug authorization on the 
same day as injury. 

11. Contractor shall provide triage to every notice of injured employee, with an initial 
review by a claims supervisor of the notice of injury, a nurse review of medicals, 
and assigned adjuster‟s review of entire claim file. 

12. Contractor shall agree to maintain at least a SAS 70 Type II audit on controls 
placed in operations and tests for operating effectiveness, and agree to provide 
copies to the City as requested. 

13. City reserves the right to select its own workers‟ compensation defense counsel to 
manage any and all litigation for the City‟s workers‟ compensation and employer‟s 
liability program, and/or to seek pre-litigation legal advice and claim strategy.  The 
City‟s Risk Management Representative has the authority to approve the workers‟ 
compensation defense counsel‟s fee, cost schedule and/or any allocated legal 
claim adjustment expenses.  Contractor shall agree to work with City‟s chosen 
workers‟ compensation defense counsel.  In the event the Contactor is unable to 
work with the City‟s workers‟ compensation defense counsel or has a conflict of 
interest, then City reserves the right to deem the Contractor‟s proposal Non-
Responsive, or terminate the Contractor‟s Contract pursuant to Section 9, 
Termination For Cause, or Section 10, Termination for Convenience of the City‟s 
Standard Contract. 

14. The City reserves the right, but not the obligation, to approve the selection of all 
vendor partners and ancillary Services that are part of the workers‟ compensation 
allocated claim expense or reserve. 

15. Contractor shall provide the City with a designated adjuster for medical only 
claims, designated adjuster for lost-time claims and a designated adjuster for 
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litigated claims.  The City has the sole discretion over the selection and 
replacement of adjusters handling the City‟s account, as it deems necessary and 
prudent. 

16. Contractor shall utilize the City‟s solely selected and approved financial institution 
for the funding of workers‟ compensation claim payments and settlements. 
Contractor agrees to comply with the City‟s Positive Pay (fraud detection) banking 
standards and must do a daily data feed to the City‟s financial institution for fraud 
detection. 

17. Contractor shall send original invoices to the attention of the City‟s Risk Manager, 
or designee, by U.S. mail or express mail as requested by the City, to the City of 
Miramar, Human Resources Department, Risk Management Division, 2300 Civic 
Center Place, Miramar, Florida, 33025, unless otherwise instructed. 

18. Contractor shall mail the City‟s monthly financial institution reconciliations. 
19. Contractor shall maintain a Quality Assurance Program at all times, and provide 

any and all necessary documentation to the City as requested.  Such 
documentation may include but not be limited to copies of Quality Assurance 
Program minutes from meetings, AHCA audit reports, and/or any internal audit 
reports on claims handling by Contractor. 

20. Contractor shall be audited by the City at the City‟s sole discretion and cost. 
21. Contractor shall be audited by the City‟s excess workers‟ compensation claims 

insurance carrier at carrier‟s sole discretion and cost. 
22. Contractor shall invoice the City monthly for its administrative claim fee. 
23. Contractor shall provide the City with electronic loss runs, claim reports or ad hocs 

as required by City.  City may require the Contractor to provide hard copies at no 
additional cost if required by City‟s auditors or actuary. 

24. Contractor shall provide the City with telephonic case management Services on all 
claims as a allocated loss adjustment expense, unless otherwise directed by City. 

25. Contractor shall provide the City with field case management Services, catastrophic 
case management Services, medical cost projections, life care planning, Medicare 
set-aside assessments, development and reports, surveillance, peer review, 
utilization review and reasonable and customary savings review, bill review, 
percentage of PPO savings and any other usual and customary workers‟ 
compensation claims administration claims practice, strategy or activity as all 
allocated loss adjustment expenses, unless such expenses are more appropriately 
allocated as a medical expense under the claim per Florida Statutes or Contractor‟s 
judgment. 

26. Contractor shall be responsible for all Medicare reporting obligations under the 
Medicare Secondary Payer Act and/or under similar or new legislation. 

27. Contractor shall provide the City with OSHA 300 log reporting, as requested by 
City. 

28. Contractor shall handle subrogation claims and file lien notices on behalf of the 
City to protect the City‟s interests in rights of recovery from third-party tortfeasors. 
Contractor shall not proceed with any legal action against a third-party tortfeasor 
without the HR Director‟s and City Attorney‟s concurrent approval.  All funds 
received from subrogation shall be considered revenue of the City. 

29. Contractor shall process and handle all electronic data interchange requirements 
on behalf of the City, as required by the State of Florida. 
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30. Contractor shall provide the City‟s HR Director and Risk Manager, or their 

designees, access and training to utilize the Contractor‟s Risk Management 
Information System to facilitate with accessing injured employee diary notes, 
medical records, other claim documentation, and monitoring the adjuster‟s claim 
activity on the file. 

31. Contractor shall provide average case load of no more than 150 claims for the 
designated medical only adjuster, 130 claims for the designated lost-time adjuster, 
and 100 claims for the designated litigation adjuster assigned to handling the 
City‟s account, unless approved by City. 

32. Contractor shall provide a list of provider networks affiliated with the Contractor, as 
requested by City. 

33. Contractor shall evaluate and qualify various service providers recommended by 
the City to service its account, provided such service providers do not present a 
perceived or potential conflict of interest. 

34. Contractor shall accept all current claims and/or re-opened claims as run-in claims 
to the Contractor if it is selected as the new TPA for the City. 

35. Contractor shall provide on behalf of the City all self-insurer reporting to the Self 
Insurance Bureau, Division of Workers‟ Compensation, State of Florida, for all 
annual reports, unit statistical, modification factor, assessment of indemnity, 
medical and any and all forms required by the State of Florida which a self- insurer 
for workers‟ compensation must provide.  Contractor shall assist the City in the 
filing of periodic reports and renewal applications required by state administrative 
agencies for all self-insurance qualifications.  All fees and assessments in 
connection with same are the obligation of the City. 

36. Contractor shall review and seek approval from the City for any loss reserve 
adjustment increases. 

37. Contractor agrees all negotiated settlement agreements shall require City 
Commission approval.  Such settlements would include agreements to wash-out 
an entire claim, settle a negotiated lien, settle a negotiated attorney fee, or any 
other type of settlement that is not otherwise considered the administration of a 
medical, indemnity or other expense that would otherwise be due and owing in 
accordance with Florida law. 

38. Contractor shall agree to quarterly claim reviews, in person at the City‟s discretion, 
to review all litigated cases, legacy cases, catastrophic cases, or non-litigated 
complex cases. 

39. Contractor shall agree all claim files, reports, and other data prepared or provided 
in connection with a claim are and shall remain the property of the City. 

40. Contractor shall keep complete and accurate records and accounts in connection 
with each claim.  Such records will be available at all reasonable times for 
examination by the City, or its „designee, and shall be kept for a period of not less 
than three years after the completion of all Work to be performed.  Incomplete or 
incorrect entries in such records may be grounds for disallowance by City of any 
fees or expenses based upon such entries.  Contractor shall send City all closed 
claim files that are mutually agreed upon to be inactive. 

41. Contractor shall provide Risk Control Consulting Services. 
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42. Contractor shall utilize any recommended medical primary care physicians or 

specialists as directed by City, regardless if they are in the Contractor‟s network, if 
it is in the best interest of the injured employee or the City.  This would include 
authorizing treatment by non-occupational or non-network physicians or providers 
that have treated an injured employee under emergency or exigent circumstances 
in an emergency room or other facility, if such treatment would be considered 
prudent and reasonable for continuity of care purposes. 

43. Contractor shall provide the City with the ability to report notices of injury 
electronically, by facsimile or by phone based on the severity, circumstances or 
nature of the injury, at no additional cost. 

44. Contractor shall take extraordinary measures if it is selected as the new TPA for 
the City to ensure data and file conversion and transfer is done with as little 
disruption to the City and its injured employees to ensure continuity in care and 
continued best workers‟ compensation claims management practices. 

45. Contractor agrees to transfer or ship the electronic file data or hard copy file data at 
the request and as directed by the City at no cost other than actual incurred 
reasonable shipping fees.  Contractor agrees there shall be no charges to transfer 
electronic data on a per data file basis or other transfer related fees or charges 
unless agreed upon in writing by City.  All electronic data transferred or hard copy 
data shipped shall be done within 60 days upon receipt of written notice from City.  
Paper data shall be shipped overnight by FED EX, DHL, UPS or equivalent 
common carrier agreed to by City.  Electronic data shall be transferred by disk/tape 
or over internet as requested by City provided the data files are adequately 
protected and secured.  Electronic file data means all claims information and related 
claim file information maintain in a electronic computer file format, whether stored on 
a hard drive, tape backup or CD.  Hard copy data means all claim information or 
related claim file information maintained in a paper, binders, reports, pictures, video 
tape or computer disks or compact disk format, medical films, and all other mediums 
other than electronic data format.  Upon exiting, client data will be provided to the 
new TPA either by a series of attachments to one or more email messages 
containing zip files which can be password-protected or via CD ROMS.  The claim 
files may exist as paper files and will be shipped as such.  If the claim files are 
stored as images in a document retrieval system, they will be provided via CD ROM 
or the most current means of providing data.  Aggregate costs shall not exceed 
$5,000, unless authorized by City‟s representative in the Contract. 

46. Contractor shall review each claim and loss report submitted by the City. 
47. Contractor shall conduct an investigation of each qualified claim or loss to the 

extent deemed necessary. 
48. Contractor shall maintain a file for each qualified claim or loss that shall be available 

for review by the City. 
49. Perform necessary and customary administrative and clerical work in connection 

with each qualified claim or loss, including the preparation of checks or vouchers, 
releases, agreements and other documents needed to finalize a claim. 

50. Contractor shall establish and update claim reserves as needed, with the approval 
of the Risk Manager. 

51. Contractor shall notify City, City‟s agent or carriers, as designated by the City, of all 
qualified claims or losses which may exceed the City retention and, if requested, 
provide information on the status of those claims or losses. 

52. Contractor shall coordinate investigations on litigated claims with attorneys 
representing the City and with representatives of the excess carrier, as required.  It 
is expressly understood that all legal costs and loss payments will be charged to the 
City. 
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53. Contractor shall Investigate and pursue subrogation possibilities on behalf of the 

City in all states permitting subrogation.  Funds received from all subrogation 
collections shall be considered revenue of the City. 

54. Contractor shall provide forms as needed to administer the City‟s program. 
55. Contractor shall assist the City in selecting appropriate experts or specialists as the 

claims may require. 
56. Contractor shall provide personnel needed to perform the Services agreed to 

herein. 
57. Contractor shall assist the City in the filing of periodic reports and renewal 

applications required by state administrative agencies for all self-insurance 
qualifications.  All fees and assessments in connection with same are the 
obligation of the City. 

58. Contractor shall work closely and effectively with the City‟s Risk Management 
Division to ensure that workers‟ compensation, auto, property and other liability 
claims are effectively and aggressively managed and that the accounting for 
insurance expenses and subrogation is effectively managed. 

59. The City requires the Contractor to provide a risk management information system 
to record loss data into organized, meaningful information to allow timely and 
intelligent risk management decisions.  

60. The Contractor system must collect and store complete, accurate information about 
every claim and be available to City staff 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.  The 
Provider shall provide “Train-the-Trainer” onsite courses to City employees as well 
as user-friendly on-line training on an ongoing basis. 

61. Contractor shall complete a stewardship report on a quarterly and annual basis 
that at a minimum identifies: 

a. What Services have been performed over the past year and how they have 
benefited the City 

b. Insurance program costs 
c. Activities and trends as well as suggested corrective actions for negative 

trends. 
62. Contractor shall assist in all obligations related to the City‟s obligation to perform 

Mandatory Insurer Reporting ("MIR') as set forth in Section 111 of the Medicare, 
Medicaid and SCHIP (State Children's Health Insurance Program) Extension Act of 
2007 (all of which together shall be referred to as "MMSEA") (P.L. 110-173).  
MMSEA adds new mandatory reporting requirements for group health plan 
arrangements and for liability insurance (including self-insurance), no-fault 
insurance, and workers' compensation (see 42 U.S.C.1395 (b)(7) & (8)) and is 
currently going into effect, as well as any other similar requirements and reports. 

63. The Contractor shall provide an on-line check issuance and banking communication 
system that provides for automated payments and control. 

64. The Contractor shall actively participate in quarterly claims review meetings with 
representatives from the broker/administrator and other City representatives. 

65. All data furnished by the City, or generated as a result of Services performed and 
other information designated by the City in writing shall be treated as confidential.  

66. The Contractor shall maintain files necessary for legal defense of claims and other 
litigation, subrogation, contribution for indemnity and/or recovery on behalf of the 
City.  These files must be made available to the City as requested. 
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67. The Contractor shall retain claim files in mutually agreed to storage facilities for 36 

months following date of closure.  Thereafter, it will be the City‟s responsibility for 
continued file storage either based on a reassignment of that responsibility with the 
designated storage facility from the Provider, or by return of the files to the City or to 
a location designated by the City. 

68. Any Property loss involving ten (10) or more buildings as a result of a single event 
(i.e., hurricane, tornado, flood, earthquake, etc.) will be billed on a time and expense 
basis, and paid as an allocated claim expense against the claim file.  

69. Provider can, at its discretion, utilize outside resources (adjusters) for the purpose of 
expediting the claim handling as a result of a catastrophic event.  

70. If outside resources are used, their fees will also be billed as an allocated claim 
expense against the claim file. 

 
3-4 

PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND CRITERIA: 

 
The City reserves the right to accept or reject, in whole or in part, any or all 

Proposals, to waive irregularities and technicalities, to request re-submittals, to adjust the 
time table as needed, and to enter into negotiations with Proposers as warranted.  There 
is no obligation on the part of the City to award the Contract to the Proposer offering the 
lowest price to the City.  The City reserves the right to award a Contract to the firm whose 
Proposal is judged most advantageous to and is in the best interest of the City utilizing 
the evaluation method set forth below.  The City shall be the sole judge of which Proposal 
is in the best interest of the City.  The City reserves the right to obtain any information 
deemed necessary to determine the ability of the Proposer to carry out their obligations 
under the Contract, to include information needed to review the experience and financial 
capability of the Proposer to complete the requirements of this RFP. 

 
All Proposals will be evaluated by a Selection Committee appointed by the City.  

The Selection Committee may be comprised of any combination of City staff, 
consultants or citizens, or other non-City persons, all of whom have the appropriate 
experience and knowledge relating to the Services sought by this Solicitation, while 
striving to ensure a well-balanced committee.  The Committee shall reserve the right to 
require oral presentations from one or more of the Proposers, either before or after the 
initial ranking, and shall have the option to short-list and re-rank after the receipt of 
additional information from such presentations, follow-up questions and answers, on-site 
Proposer demonstrations (including module and/or functionality demonstrations, 
technical demonstrations, Service presentation and other due diligence), completed 
reference checks or site visits.  After the final ranking, again based on the criteria and 
points set forth below, the City Commission will be asked to approve the Committee‟s 
ranking and to authorize the City Manager or his designee to enter into Contract 
negotiations with the highest evaluation scoring, responsive, responsible Proposer and 
whose Proposal will be the most advantageous to the City.  Should the City and the 
latter Proposer fail to reach agreement on a mutually acceptable Contract, the City shall 
have the right to terminate negotiations and to negotiate with the next highest ranked 
firm.  The City Commission will then approve the award of the successfully negotiated 
Contract.   
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MAJOR CRITERIA   
POINT
S  

1. 
To facilitate the analysis of responses to this RFP, Proposers are required to 
prepare their Proposals in accordance with the instructions outlined in the 
RPF.  Proposers must respond in full to all RFP sections and follow the 
indicated RFP format (section numbering, etc.) in their Proposal.  Failure to 
follow these instructions may result in rejection. 

10 

2 Proposer‟s ability to perform Scope of Work and meet deliverables          35 

3 Proposer‟s company/staff experience and qualifications  25 

4 Proposer‟s price on response form    20 

5 Proposer‟s current and past references    5 

6 Experience with Florida Government Agencies  10 

7 City Local Preference    5 

8 County Business Enterprise or Small Business Enterprise    5 

     Total Points                                                                                                            110     
 
 NOTE PAD:
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POINTS FORMULA: 
 
 
* The lowest cost Proposal receives a total of 20 points.  The total possible points 
for the lowest cost Proposal overall is 20 points.  All other Proposals will receive 
cost score (points) based on the following formula: 
 
 
Lowest Cost Proposal divided by Proposer “X” Cost Proposal times maximum 
available cost points = Proposer “X” Cost Score 
 
Example: 
Firm “A” cost Proposal is $14.00 and is the lowest cost Proposal 
Firm “B” cost Proposal is $16.00 
Firm “C” cost Proposal is $20.00 
 
Cost Points Available: 20 
 
Calculation: 
Firm “A”:  Lowest price and receives 20 points  
Firm “B”:  ($14.00)/ ($16.00) X 20 points =17 points 
Firm “C”:  ($14.00)/ ($20.00) X 20 points = 14 points 

 

The following is a description of the above criteria: 

1. Proposer’s ability to perform Scope of Work and meet deliverables: 

 
Proposer will be evaluated by its confirmation, ability and willingness to perform 

all of the Services on behalf of the City identified in Scope of Work – WC & Liability TPA 
Services.  Proposer will also be evaluated based on any exceptions, limitations or 
deviations they identify in their response to the Scope of Work – WC & Liability TPA 
Services. 

Proposer will be evaluated on whether it provided and met all the requirements 
and deliverables requested in the RFP – Additional requirements and Deliverables. 

Proposer will be evaluated based on its Quality Assurance Program, and the 
quality of their initial contact letter and welcome package acknowledging the notice of 
injury. 

Proposer will be evaluated on how comprehensive and broad a selection of 
physicians and facilities that are available in their medical, physical therapy and 
prescription drug networks. 

Proposer will be evaluated based on the quality, ease of use and access of their 
Risk Management Information System and menu of standard loss run reports available. 
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2. Proposer’s company/staff experience and qualifications:  

 
Proposer‟s company will be evaluated based on whether it submits to a SAS 70 

Type II audit on controls placed in operations and tests for operating effectiveness. 

Proposer will be evaluated based on its company‟s organization chart, profile and 
office responsible for servicing the City‟s account. 

Proposer will be evaluated based on the experience and qualifications 
(resumes) of the Proposer‟s staff who will be assigned to the City‟s account as primary 
account manager, claims manager, medical only adjuster, lost-time adjuster, litigation 
adjuster, and nurse case manager (note whether employees or subcontractor 
employees). 

Proposer will be evaluated based on whether it has maintained a Third-Party 
Claims Administrator license with the State of Florida for a minimum of 10 years, with 
experience in handling presumption claims. 

3. Proposer’s current and past references:  
 

Proposer will be evaluated based on references submitted.  References will be 
interviewed and evaluated based on the names of three government agency/client with 
whom you have been awarded a contract specifically for Workers‟ Compensation Third-
Party Claims Administration Services within the last three years.  The names of three 
former government agency/client with whom you have specifically provided Workers‟ 
Compensation Third Party Claims Administration Services, who have not renewed or 
awarded your company a new contract as incumbent within the last three years. 

4. Proposer’s price on response form: 
  

Proposer will be evaluated based on fees and responses submitted under Option#1 
Flat Annual Fee Minimum and Deposit, Option#2 Life of Contract – Per Claim Flat Fees, 
Option#3 Life of Contract – Per Claim Blended Fees, and Other Fees in Addition to Option 
#1, #2 or #3 fees charged for various workers‟ compensation claims management 
Services outlined on the Exhibit “C” Response Form – WC TPA Services.  The City 
reserves the right to reject any Proposal in which pricing is considered exhorbitant or 
unreasonable.  The City shall be the sole judge as to what is exhorbitant or unreasonable. 
 
3-5 
CONTENT OF PROPOSAL 
 
Proposal Format  

To facilitate the analysis of responses to this RFP, Proposers are required to 
prepare their Proposals in accordance with the instructions outlined in this section.  
Proposers must respond in full to all RFP sections and follow the indicated RFP format 
(section numbering, etc.) in their Proposal.  Failure to follow these instructions may result 
in rejection.  
 

For each question asked in the RFP, Proposers shall provide in their Proposals, 
the question asked and their answer using the section numbering of the RFP.  
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Proposals shall be prepared to satisfy the requirements of the RFP.  EMPHASIS 
SHOULD BE CONCENTRATED ON ACCURACY, COMPLETENESS, AND CLARITY 
OF CONTENT.  All parts, pages, figures, and tables should be numbered and labeled 
clearly.  The Proposal should be organized as follows:  

 

Tab Title 
- Proposal Signature Form 
1 Executive Summary 
2 Qualifications and experience of the firm and persons 

assigned to perform the services outlined in this RFP  
3 Proposed Method of Contract Performance    
 4 Information/data management abilities and on-line, 

Internet accessibility for claims reporting and/or 
monitoring 

 5 References checks with other clients 
 6 Financial stability  
 7 Proposer Background 
 7-A                                           Proposer Information Form 
 7-B                                          Business/Vendor Survey   
 8 Exceptions and Deviations 
 9 Other Required Forms and Attachments 
10 Price Proposal Sheet 
11 Addenda 

 
     

Instructions relative to each part of the response to this RFP are defined in the 
remainder of this section.  
  

Costs for the Proposer‟s proposed solution should be submitted on the Proposal 
Pricing Forms provided.  Costs should include the complete costs for the solution, 
including travel and operating costs.  Use additional pages as needed.  See “Cost 
Proposal” below.  

 
 

Executive Summary (Tab 1)  

This part of the response to the RFP should be limited to a brief narrative not 
to exceed two pages describing the proposed solution.  The summary should contain as 
little technical jargon as possible and should be oriented toward non-technical personnel.  
The Executive Summary should not include cost quotations.  
 
Minimal Qualifications  
 

 Licensed to do business in the State of Florida. 

 At least five years in business as a firm. 

 Minimum five years in public entity market. 
 

 Evaluation Factors 
 

Qualifications and experience of the firm and persons to be assigned to 
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perform the Services outlined in this RFP (Tab 2)  

Providers must provide information about their company so that the City can 
evaluate the Providers‟ stability and ability to support the commitments set forth in 
response to the RFP.  Information that Providers should provide in this section is as 
follows:  
 

1. The company's background including a brief description (e.g., past history, 
present status, future plans, company size, etc.) and organization charts.  

 
2. Privately-held companies wishing to maintain confidential financial information 

must provide information detailing the company‟s long-term stability.  Please 
provide a current Dunn & Bradstreet report (D&B) as part of the Provider 
Proposal response.  

 
3. If the Provider is proposing to use a subcontractor on this Project, please 

provide background information on the subcontractor, Provider relationship 
with that firm and the specific Services and/or products that the subcontractor 
will be providing on the Project.  A complete list of subcontractors is required. 
The City has the right to approve all subcontractors of the Provider at any time. 

 
4. Include names of professional representatives, professional background and 

qualifications, with titles and areas of expertise, which will be directly 
responsible for the City‟s account. 

 
5. Describe the expertise of your third party claims administrator.  

  

Proposed Method of Contract Performance (Tab 3)  
 
 

1. Describe your firm's geographic location, including branch offices, and 
provide detail concerning which branch is proposed to provide the Third Party 
Administrator Services for City of Miramar. 

 
2. Describe your firm's proposed investigative unit, including methods used to 

recognize potential suspicious claim activity.  Do you have any limitations on 
outside investigations? 

 
3. Describe your firm's proposed claims office staffing, including centralized 

and/or standard claims handling processes, claim reporting process, 
analytical reporting, notification process, claim/reserve reporting, quality 
assurance program and account management program. 

 
4. Describe your firm's medical management/vocational rehabilitation program, 

including the following: 
a. Please explain how claim and managed care services interface. 
b. Do your case managers and claim adjusters enter and review case 

notes electronically? 
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c. Please identify your branch office structure where field case managers, 
telephonic case manager and bill review personnel are located. 

 
5. What is the average caseload for field case managers and telephonic case 

managers? 
 

6. Do you have Managed Care and/or PPO/HCO Certification? 
 

7. Describe your firm's proposed reserving philosophy.  When reserves are first 
posted? 

 
8. Describe your firm's proposed litigation management program, including your 

attorney  
Audit / bill review program. [I cannot fix the formatting here] 
 

9. Provide a description of how your firm proposes to prepare a claim file for 
submission to a defense attorney. 

 
10. Describe your firm's proposed claims caseload/evaluation/disposition 

program, including the following: 
a. Do you offer designated/dedicated claim teams?  If yes, please 

describe. 
b. What is your optimal number of pending claims per adjuster by line? 

(Best Practices) 
c. How often are adjuster's pending caseloads reviewed? 
d. What action can be expected when a large disparity in an adjuster's 

caseload becomes apparent? 
e. What are your average closing ratios? 
f. Describe how your adjusters‟ work is supervised. 
g. How often do you ensure that your adjusters are adhering to the 

client's special handling instructions? 
h. What is your standard level of settlement authority for adjusters?  For 

supervisors? 
i. What are your criteria for converting medical only to indemnity? 
 

11. Describe your firm's proposed loss control program, including: 
a. Specific programs for Cities/Public Agencies. 
b. Outline services proposed for Workers Compensation loss control. 
c. What is your FL OSHA capability?  Do you produce the OSHA 300? 
d. Describe your proposed loss control services/safety training and 

education program and/or surveys. 
  

12. Describe your firm's banking options. 
  
13. Do you co-mingle accounts?  Do you have ACH capability? 
 
  



RFP No.  15-09-47 
Third Party Claim Administration Services 

Page 40 of 74 

 

14. Describe your experience in administering Labor Code 4850 and Stress 
Leave claims. 

Information/data management abilities and on-line, Internet accessibility for claims 
reporting and/or monitoring (Tab 4) 
 

1. Describe your firm's proposed database management system in detail, including 
on-line inquiries and upgrade capabilities. 
  
2. Describe your firm's proposed claims management information system, including: 

a. Describe your electronic claim management system available to your 
clients. 

b. Describe your ad hoc report producing capacity.  Provide a sample of a 
year-end summary by department and division. 

c. Describe your client access options for electronic claim files, loss reports 
and ad hoc reports. 

d. Describe your location structure as well as nature and cause codes. 
3. Describe your firm's proposed data producing capability to provide the reporting 
requirements outlined in this RFP as well as a sufficient records and electronic data 
retention and back-up and business recovery plan. 
4. Do you have any experience with an electronic interface to a payroll/personnel 
system?  

 
 

References checks with other clients (Tab 5)  

 
1. Submit three public entity accounts in Florida that include Police & Fire 
Departments, comparable in size and nature to Miramar, written within the last three 
years that will qualify the respondent to handle the City of Miramar‟s insurance 
program. 
 
2. Please provide five current clients along with contact names and telephone 
numbers. 
 
3. Please provide three current City or other Public Agency clients along with 
contact names and telephone numbers. 
 
4. Please provide a list of three former clients who have given notice not to renew 
your contract within the last 12 months. 
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Financial stability   (Tab 6) 

 
The Contractor must indicate if their company is rated (check all that apply)   
and their rating from each agency: 
                                   Rating 
                                                
Moody’s                          _______ 
 
 
Standard & Poor’s _______ 
 
 
Fitch       ______ 

 
 

ALL INSURANCE COMPANIES PROVIDED SHALL:  Be rated at least A VII per 
Best‟s Key Rating Guide and be licensed to do business in Florida.  Contractor‟s liability 
insurance policies shall be endorsed to add the City of Miramar as an additional 
insured.  The Contractor‟s liability insurance shall be primary to any liability insurance 
policies that may be carried by the City.  The Contractor shall be responsible for all 
deductibles and self-insured retentions on their liability insurance policies. 

 
All of the policies of insurance so required to be purchased and maintained shall 

contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded shall not be cancelled, 
materially changed or renewal refused until at least 30 calendar days‟ written notice has 
been given to the City by certified mail. 

 

Financial stability as evidenced by submitted financial statements and/or other 
information gathered by the City of Miramar during the evaluation process (Tab 6)  
 

Audited financial information for the past TWO completed fiscal years that 
includes income statements, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows. 
 
Provider Background Questionnaires (Tab 7a-c)  

The Provider must respond to the Provider Background Questionnaires in Section 
5 of this RFP.  
 

Exceptions and Deviations (Tab 8)  

If the Provider finds it impossible or impractical to adhere to any portion of these 
Specifications and all attachments, it shall be so stated in its Proposal, with all deviations 
grouped together in a separate section entitled “Exceptions/Deviations from Proposal 
Requirements.”  This section will be all-inclusive and will contain a definition statement of 
each and every objection or deviation with adherence to specific RFP sections. 
Objections or deviations expressed only in other parts of the Proposal, either directly or 
by implication, will not be accepted as deviations, and the Proposer in  
submitting a Proposal, will accept this stipulation without recourse.  Also see the provisions 
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of Section 1-12 above. 
 

Other Required Forms and Attachments (Tab 9) 

  
Place all other forms that have not been identified as associated with another tab 

under this tab.  This should include any contract forms desired for consideration as part 
of the final agreement to be executed. 

 

Price Proposal Sheet (Tab 10)  

Costs for the Proposer‟s proposed solution should be submitted on the Price 
Proposal Sheet Forms provided at Section 5 below.  The Proposer shall provide price 
information for each separate component of the proposed Work.  

In the event the product or Service is provided at no additional cost, the item 
should be noted as "no charge" or words to that effect.  

In the event the product or Service is not being included in the Proposal, the  
item should be noted as "No Bid".  

Proposers shall provide all pricing alternatives in these cost sheets.  

Proposers shall provide prices in U.S. dollars.  

Proposers shall make clear the rationale and basis of calculation for all fees.  

Proposers shall show separate subtotals for the required elements of the 
proposed solution, and for any layers of optional elements.  
 

The City prefers that Proposers provide separate prices for each item in the 
proposed solution.  However, the Proposer is also encouraged to present alternatives to 
itemized costs and discounts, such as bundled pricing, if such pricing would be 
advantageous to the City.  Prices shall be guaranteed for the entire initial term of the 
agreement. 

The City reserves the right to pursue direct purchase of all items and Services 
proposed, as well as to obtain independent financing.  
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Addenda (Tab 11)  

Include all original, signed copies of addenda in this section.  
 
Affidavits and Acknowledgements. 

 
The following forms are attached at Section 5 on page 11 and shall be completed 
and provided as part of your Proposal.  FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND 
RETURN THESE FORMS MAY DEEM YOUR PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE: 
 
1)    PROPOSAL COVER PAGE 
2)    PRICE PROPOSAL SHEET 
3)    ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 
4)    PROPOSER INFORMATION FORM 
5)    PROPOSER'S DISCLOSURE OF SUBCONTRACTORS, AND SUPPLIERS  
6)    DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE AFFIDAVIT 
7)    ANTI-KICKBACK AFFIDAVIT 
8)    NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT 
9)    NON-DISCRIMINATION AFFIDAVIT 
10)   BUSINESS/VENDOR PROFILE SURVEY 
11)   EXCEPTIONS AND DEVIATIONS FORM  
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SECTION 4: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN  
 

THE CITY OF MIRAMAR 
 

 AND  

________________________________________. 

FOR THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ADMONISTRATION SERVICES 
 
 

This Agreement is entered into this ____ day of __________, 2016, by and 
between the City of Miramar, Florida, a Florida municipal corporation, hereinafter 
referred to as “City”, 
 AND 
 
__________________________, , a __________________ corporation with its principal 
business address located at ____________, hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City issued REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS No 15-09-47 for 
THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION SERVICES (the “RFP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractor was determined to be the highest evaluation scoring, 
responsive, responsible Proposer and whose Proposal was most advantageous to the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on _____________________, 2016, the City Commission approved 
the award of the RFP and a Contract for THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION 
SERVICES to Contractor. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms and conditions, promises, 
and covenants hereinafter set forth, City and Contractor agree as follows: 

 
SECTION 1 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

Contractor agrees to provide the following Services to the City (the “Services”) 
during the Term of this Agreement: 
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This Agreement is subject to, and Contractor shall provide Services in 
accordance with, the Scope of Services, terms, conditions and requirements of City of 
Miramar REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS No. 15-09-47 (the “RFP”), the Contractor‟s 
Proposal as accepted by the City and any subsequently negotiated changes to same, 
which documents or agreements are incorporated by reference herein.  In the case of 
any conflict between the provisions of this Contract, the RFP and the Proposal, the 
conflict shall be resolved in the following order of priority: terms of this Contract; terms 
of the RFP; terms of the Proposal.  
 

SECTION 2 
COMPENSATION 

 
In consideration for the Services to be provided by Proposer, the City agrees to 

pay Proposer as set forth on the price schedule (tab 8 of the RFP response), which 
shall be payable on a monthly basis within 30 calendar days following submission of an 
invoice by the Proposer to the City.  In the event of City‟s termination of this Contract 
prior to the end of the Contract Term pursuant to Sections 4 or 7, City shall pay 
Proposer on a pro-rata basis for the Services performed by Proposer prior to the City‟s 
termination of this Contract. 

 
 SECTION 3 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 

The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of five years commencing on the 
date this Contract is executed by both parties, with two one year successive options to 
renew for additional one year terms, unless terminated earlier pursuant to Section 4 of 
this Agreement.  The Chief Procurement Officer may authorize up to a 90 day extension 
of this Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; and the City Manager or 
his/her designee is authorized to extend this Agreement, for operational purposes only, 
for a maximum of 180 days.   

 
SECTION 4 

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
 City may terminate this Agreement for convenience by giving the Contractor 30 
calendar day‟s written notice.  City may terminate this Agreement for cause by giving 
Contractor five calendar days‟ written notice upon the failure of the Contractor to cure 
any default after being provided with written notice of that default and a demand for cure 
within ten (10) calendar days.  The termination of this Agreement shall not relieve either 
party of any liability that accrued prior to such termination and any such accrued liability 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.  

 
SECTION 5 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 Contractor is an independent contractor under this Agreement.  Services 
provided by Contractor shall be by employees of Contractor and subject to supervision 
by Contractor, and not as officers, employees or agents of City.  Personnel policies, tax 
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responsibilities, social security, health insurance, employee benefits, travel, per diem 
policy, and purchasing policies under the Agreement shall be the sole responsibility of 
Contractor.  Contractor shall have no rights under the City's worker's compensation, 
employment, insurance benefits or similar laws or benefits. 
 

SECTION 6 
 INDEMNIFICATION / HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE 
 
 Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City, its officers, officials, 
agents, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all liability, suits, actions, 
damages, costs, losses and expenses, including attorneys' fees, demands and claims 
for personal injury, bodily injury, sickness, diseases or death or damage or destruction 
of tangible property or loss of use resulting therefrom, arising out of any errors, 
omissions, misconduct or negligent acts of Contractor, its respective officials, agents, 
employees or subcontractors in the Contractor‟s performance of Services pursuant to 
this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 7 

NON-APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS 
 

 In the event no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted or are 
otherwise unavailable in any fiscal year for payments due under this Agreement, then 
the City, upon written notice to Contractor of such occurrence, shall have the unqualified 
right to terminate this Agreement without any penalty or expense to the City. 
 

SECTION 8 
INSURANCE 

 
 For programs that are active in nature, which shall be determined in the sole and 
exclusive discretion of the City, Contractor shall maintain liability insurance in an 
amount acceptable to the City‟s Risk Manager and naming the City of Miramar as an 
additional insured. 

 
Contractor shall maintain the following required types and minimum limits of 

insurance coverage during the term of this Agreement: 
 

  General Liability  Per Occurrence  Aggregate 
  Professional Liability $ 500,000   $1,000,000 
 
 
  Workers‟ Compensation 
  Statutory Amount 
 
This Agreement shall not be deemed approved until the Contractor has obtained 

all insurance required under this section and has supplied the City with evidence of 
such coverage in the form of a Certificate of Insurance and endorsement.  The City shall 
approve such certificates prior to the performance of any Services pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
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ALL INSURANCE COMPANIES PROVIDED SHALL:  Be rated at least A VII per 
Best‟s Key Rating Guide and be licensed to do business in Florida.  Contractor‟s liability 
insurance policies shall be endorsed to add the City of Miramar as an additional 
insured.  The Contractor‟s liability insurance shall be primary to any liability insurance 
policies that may be carried by the City.  The Contractor shall be responsible for all 
deductibles and self-insured retentions on their liability insurance policies. 

 
All of the policies of insurance so required to be purchased and maintained shall 

contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded shall not be cancelled, 
materially changed or renewal refused until at least 30 calendar days written notice has 
been given to the City by certified mail. 

 
SECTION 9 

 MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 Contractor shall, without additional expense to the City, be responsible for paying 
any taxes, obtaining any necessary licenses and for complying with all applicable 
federal, state, county, and municipal laws, ordinances and regulations in connection 
with the performance of the Services specified herein.   
 

SECTION 10 
AUDIT AND INSPECTION RIGHTS 

 
10.1 The City may, at reasonable times and for a period of up to three years following 
the date of final performance of Services by Contractor under this Agreement, audit, or 
cause to be audited, those books and records of Contractor which are related to 
Contractor‟s performance under this Agreement.  Contractor agrees to maintain all such 
books and records at its principal place of business for a period of three years after final 
payment is made under this Agreement. 
 
10.2 The City may, at reasonable times during the term hereof, perform such 
inspections, as the City deems reasonably necessary to determine whether the 
Services required to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement conform to the 
terms of this Agreement.  Contractor shall make available to the City all reasonable 
assistance to facilitate the performance of inspections by the City‟s representatives. 
  

SECTION 11 
 AMENDMENTS AND ASSIGNMENT 
 
11.1 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Contractor and City 
and all negotiations and oral understandings between the parties are merged herein.  
The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement supersede any and all previous 
agreements, promises, negotiations or representations.  Any other agreements, 
promises, negotiations or representations not expressly set forth in this Agreement are 
of no force and effect.   
 
11.2 No modification, amendment or alteration of the terms and conditions contained 
herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document executed with the same 
formality as this Agreement. 
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11.3 Contractor shall not transfer or assign the performance of Services called for in 
the Agreement without the prior written consent of the City, which may be withheld or 
conditioned in the City‟s sole discretion. 

 
SECTION 12 

GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 
 

 This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the 
laws of the State of Florida.  Venue for any action arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement shall be in Broward County, Florida.  
 

SECTION 13 
NOTICES 

 
 Whenever either party desires to give notice to the other, it must be given by 
written notice, sent by certified United States mail, return receipt requested, addressed 
to the party for whom it is intended, at the place last specified in writing, and the place 
for giving of notice in compliance with the provisions of this paragraph.  For the present, 
the parties designate the following as the respective places for giving of notice, to-wit: 
 
 
FOR CONTRACTOR: 
  
    

___________________ 
___________________ 
___________________ 
___________________ 

 
 

FOR CITY: 
 

___________________ 
City Manager 

City of Miramar 
2300 Civic Center Place 
Miramar, Florida 33025 

Telephone: (954) 602-XXX 
Facsimile: (954) 602-XXXX 

 
 

With A Copy to: 
 

Jamie Alan Cole, Esq. 
City Attorney 

Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
200 East Broward Boulevard, Suite 1900 

Fort Lauderdale, Florida  33301 
Telephone: 954- 763-4242 
Facsimile: 954-764-7770 
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SECTION 14 
NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 
 Contractor represents and warrants to the City that Contractor does not and will 
not engage in discriminatory practices and that there shall be no discrimination in 
connection with Contractor‟s performance under this Agreement on account of race, 
age, religion, color, gender, sexual orientation,  national origin, marital status, physical 
or mental disability, political affiliation or any other factor which cannot be lawfully used 
as a basis for delivery of Services.  Contractor further covenants that no otherwise 
qualified individual shall, solely by reason of his/her race, age, religion, color, gender, 
sexual orientation, national origin, marital status, physical or mental disability, political 
affiliation or any other factor which cannot be lawfully used as a basis for delivery of 
Services, be excluded from participation in, be denied Services, or be subject to 
discrimination under any provision of this Agreement. 
 
 

SECTION 15 
PUBLIC RECORDS 

 
Contractor acknowledges that the public shall have access, at all reasonable 

times, to certain documents and information pertaining to City contracts, pursuant to the 
provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  Contractor agrees to maintain public 
records in Contractor‟s possession or control in connection with Contractor‟s 
performance under this Agreement and to provide the public with access to public 
records in accordance with the record maintenance, production and cost requirements 
set forth in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise required by law.  Contractor 
shall ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law.   

 
Unless otherwise provided by law, any and all reports, surveys, and other data 

and documents provided or created in connection with this Agreement are and shall 
remain the property of City.  In the event of termination of this Agreement by either 
party, any reports, photographs, surveys and other data and documents and public 
records prepared by, or in the possession or control of, Contractor, whether finished or 
unfinished, shall become the property of City and shall be delivered by Contractor to the 
City Manager, at no cost to the City, within seven days of termination of this 
Agreement.  All such records stored electronically by Contractor shall be delivered to 
the City in a format that is compatible with the City‟s information technology systems.  
Upon termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public 
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure.  Any 
compensation due to Contractor shall be withheld until all documents are received as 
provided herein.  Contractor‟s failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this 
section shall result in the immediate termination of this Agreement by the City. 
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SECTION 16 

HEADINGS, CONFLICT OF PROVISIONS, 
WAIVER OR BREACH OF PROVISIONS 

 
 Headings are for convenience of reference only and shall not be considered in 
any interpretation of this Agreement.  In the event of conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and any terms or conditions contained in any attached documents, the 
terms in this Agreement shall prevail.  No waiver or breach of any provision of this 
Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other 
provision, and no waiver shall be effective unless made in writing. 

 
SECTION 17 

SEVERABILITY 
 

 If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or 
situation shall to any extent be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 
Agreement, and the application of such provisions to persons or situations other than 
those as to which it shall have been held invalid or unenforceable shall not be affected 
thereby, and shall continue in full force and effect, and be enforced to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. 
 

SECTION 18 
SURVIVAL 

 
 All representations and other relevant provisions herein shall survive and 
continue in full force and effect upon termination of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 19 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the 
City and Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or 
agreements, either written or oral. 

SECTION 20 
JOINT PREPARATION 

 
 The parties acknowledge that they have sought and received whatever 
competent advice and counsel as was necessary for them to form a full and complete 
understanding of all rights and obligations herein, and that the preparation  of  this 
Agreement has been a joint effort of the parties, the language has been agreed to by 
parties to express their mutual intent and the resulting document shall not, solely as a 
matter of judicial construction, be construed more severely against  one of the parties 
than the other. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement 
on the respective dates under each signature:  City, signing by and through its City 
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Manager, attested to and duly authorized to execute same by the City Commission of 
the City of Miramar and by the Contractor, by and through its ____________, attested 
to and duly authorized to execute same. 

 
CITY 

      
ATTEST:      CITY OF MIRAMAR 
 
 
 
___________________________  By:        
Denise Gibbs, City Clerk    Kathleen Woods-Richardson, City Manager 
       
 

 This ___day of __________ , 2015. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL  
SUFFICIENCY FOR THE USE OF AND  
RELIANCE BY THE CITY OF MIRAMAR ONLY: 
 
 
      
City Attorney 
Weiss Serota Helfman  
Cole & Bierman, P.L. 

 
CONTRACTOR 

           
WITNESSES:      
 
 
 
_____________________________  By: ______________________________ 
         
Print Name:    ___   
        
     ___ 
       Date: __________________________ 
Print Name:    ___    
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SECTION 15 

NON-DISCRIMINATION 
 

Contractor represents and warrants to the City that Contractor does not and will 
not engage in discriminatory practices and that there shall be no discrimination in 
connection with Contractor‟s performance under this Agreement on account of race, 
age, religion, color, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, marital status, physical or 
mental disability, political affiliation or any other factor which cannot be lawfully used as 
a basis for delivery of Services.  Contractor further covenants that no otherwise qualified 
individual shall, solely by reason of his/her race, age, religion, color, gender, sexual 
orientation, national origin, marital status, physical or mental disability, political affiliation 
or any other factor which cannot be lawfully used as a basis for delivery of Services, be 
excluded from participation in, be denied Services, or be subject to discrimination under 
any provision of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 16 

PUBLIC RECORDS 
 

 Contractor acknowledges that the public shall have access, at all reasonable 
times, to certain documents and information pertaining to City contracts, pursuant to the 
provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  Contractor agrees to maintain public 
records in Contractor‟s possession or control in connection with Contractor‟s 
performance under this Agreement and to provide the public with access to public 
records in accordance with the record maintenance, production and cost requirements 
set forth in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise required by law.  Contractor 
shall ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law.   
 
 Unless otherwise provided by law, any and all reports, surveys, and other data 
and documents provided or created in connection with this Agreement are and shall 
remain the property of City.  In the event of termination of this Agreement by either 
party, any reports, photographs, surveys and other data and documents and public 
records prepared by, or in the possession or control of, Contractor, whether finished or 
unfinished, shall become the property of City and shall be delivered by Contractor to the 
City Manager, at no cost to the City, within seven days of termination of this 
Agreement.  All such records stored electronically by Contractor shall be delivered to 
the City in a format that is compatible with the City‟s information technology systems.  
Upon termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public 
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure.  Any 
compensation due to Contractor shall be withheld until all documents are received as 
provided herein.  Contractor‟s failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this 
section shall result in the immediate termination of this Agreement by the City. 
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SECTION 17 

HEADINGS, CONFLICT OF PROVISIONS, 
WAIVER OR BREACH OF PROVISIONS 

 
 Headings are for convenience of reference only and shall not be considered in 
any interpretation of this Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and any terms or conditions contained in any attached documents, the 
terms in this Agreement shall prevail.  No waiver or breach of any provision of this 
Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other 
provision, and no waiver shall be effective unless made in writing. 

 
SECTION 18 

SEVERABILITY 
 

 If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or 
situation shall to any extent be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 
Agreement, and the application of such provisions to persons or situations other than 
those as to which it shall have been held invalid or unenforceable shall not be affected 
thereby, and shall continue in full force and effect and be enforced to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. 
 

SECTION 19 
SURVIVAL 

 
 All representations and other relevant provisions herein shall survive and 
continue in full force and effect upon termination of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 20 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the 
City and Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or 
agreements, either written or oral. 

SECTION 21 
JOINT PREPARATION 

 
 Contractor and the City acknowledge that they have sought and received 
whatever competent advice and counsel as was necessary for them to form a full and 
complete understanding of all rights and obligations herein, and that the preparation of 
this Agreement has been a joint effort of the parties, the language has been agreed to 
by parties to express their mutual intent and the resulting document shall not, solely as 
a matter of judicial construction, be construed more severely against one of the parties 
than the other. 
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SECTION 22 

COUNTERPARTS 
 

 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute 
an original, but all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same 
Agreement.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement 
on the respective dates under each signature:  City, signing by and through its City 
Manager, attested to and duly authorized to execute same by the City Commission of 
the City of Miramar, and by the Contractor, by and through its ____________, attested 
to and duly authorized to execute same. 
 

CITY 
      
ATTEST:      CITY OF MIRAMAR 
 
 
       By:        
Denise A. Gibbs, City Clerk        Kathleen Woods-Richardson,  
            City Manager 
       

 This day of _________, 2015. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND  
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY FOR THE  
USE OF AND RELIANCE BY  
THE CITY OF MIRAMAR ONLY: 
 
 
       
City Attorney 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole 
& Bierman, P.L. 
 

CONTRACTOR 
           

WITNESSES:      
 
 
       By:         
         
Print Name:    ___    
       
       
       Date:         
Print Name:        

         By: ______________________________ 
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SECTION 5 
SUBMITTAL FORMS 

PROPOSAL COVER SHEET AND SIGNATURE FORM RFP No. 15-09-47 (Pre-Tab 1) 
 

  PROPOSER'S NAME (Name of firm, entity, or organization):   

    

   FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:   

    

   NAME AND TITLE OF PROPOSER'S CONTACT PERSON:   

    

   Name:                                                                                                                             Title: 

   MAILING ADDRESS:   

    

   Street Address: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

    

   City, State, Zip: __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   TELEPHONE:     FAX: 

      ( _______ ) __________________________________ 

   ( _______ ) __________________________________        

   PROPOSER'S ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE:  EMAIL ________________________________________ 

    

   ______ Corporation        ______ Partnership        ______ Proprietorship        ______ Joint Venture     _______ Other (explain): 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

   IF CORPORATION:   

   Date Incorporated/Organized: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

    

   State of Incorporation/Organization: __________________________________________________________________________ 

    

   States registered in as foreign Corporation: ____________________________________________________________________ 

  PROPOSER'S SERVICES OR BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OTHER THAN WHAT IS SOUGHT THROUGH THIS SOLICITATION: 

  
  
 

    

   LIST NAMES OF PROPOSER'S SUBCONTRACTORS AND/OR SUBCONTRACTORS FOR THIS PROJECT: 

  

   

   

  PROPOSER'S AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:   

 The undersigned hereby certifies that this Proposal is submitted in response to this Solicitation. 

    

Signed by: ____________________________________________________     Date: __________________________________ 

    

    Print name: ___________________________________________________     Title: ___________________________________ 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN THIS FORM 
MAY DEEM YOUR PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE
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PROPOSER REFERENCES FORM (TAB 5) 
Please list five references: 

 
(1) Agency Name:  _________________________________________________ 

 
  Address:  ___________________________________________________ 
                 
  City, State, & Zip Code:  _______________________________________ 
 
  Contact‟s Name & Phone #: ____________________________________ 
   
  Email: _____________________________________________________ 
 

(2) Agency Name:  _________________________________________________ 
 
  Address:____________________________________________________ 
      

City, State, & Zip Code:  _______________________________________ 
 
  Contact‟s Name & Phone #: ____________________________________ 
 
  Email: _____________________________________________________ 
  

(3) Agency Name:  _________________________________________________ 
 

Address:  ___________________________________________________       
 

City, State, & Zip Code:________________________________________ 
 
  Contact‟s Name & Phone #: ____________________________________ 
 
  Email: _____________________________________________________ 
 

(4) Agency Name:  ________________________________________________ 
 
  Address:____________________________________________________ 
 
  City, State, & Zip Code: ________________________________________ 
 
  Contact‟s Name & Phone #:_____________________________________ 
  Email:  _____________________________________________________ 
  

(5) Agency Name: _________________________________________________ 
 
  Address:  ___________________________________________________ 
        
  City, State, & Zip Code: ________________________________________ 
  

Contact‟s Name & Phone #: ____________________________________ 
  Email:  _____________________________________________________ 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM 
MAY DEEM YOUR PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE 
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PROPOSER INFORMATION FORM (Tab 7a) 
 

All information supplied in connection with this form is subject to review and 
verification.  Any and all determinations concerning this information will be used to determine 
eligibility for participation in the award.  Inaccurate or incomplete answers may result in your 
Proposal being deemed “Non-Responsive.” 
 
(1) How many years has your organization been in business under your present business 

name? 
_________________ years 

 
(2) State of Florida occupational license type and number:  ___________________ 
 
(3) County (state county) Business Tax Receipt type and number:  ______________ 
 
(4) City of Miramar Business Tax Receipt type and number:  ___________________ 

  
(A CITY OF MIRAMAR BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT MAY NOT BE NECESSARY IF THE BUSINESS IS NOT LOCATED 
WITHIN THE CITY OF MIRAMAR) 

 
PROPOSERS MUST INCLUDE A COPY OF EACH LICENSE LISTED WITH PROPOSAL 

 
(5) Describe experience providing Services/Commodities for similar (government) 

organizations: 
 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 
 (6) Have you ever had a contract terminated (either as a prime contractor or 

subcontractor) for failure to comply, breach, or default? 
 
  ___________________     yes  ______________________   no 
 

(IF YES, PLEASE ENCLOSE A DETAILED EXPLANATION ON SEPARATE SHEET) 
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BUSINESS/VENDOR PROFILE SURVEY (Tab 7B) 
 
Name of Business: _______________________________________________ 
 
Address: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone No.: ______________________________________________________ 
 
Contact Person (Regarding This Form): ______________________________ 
 
Type of Business (check the appropriate type): 
 

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES - Firms involved in the process of building, altering, repairing, 
improving or demolishing any structure, building or real property. 

 
 ARCHITECTURE AND ENGINEERING (A&E) SERVICES - Firms involved in architectural 

design, engineering services, inspections and environmental consulting (materials and soil 
testing) and surveying. 

 
 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - Includes those services that require special licensing, 

educational degrees, and unusually highly specialized expertise. 
 

 BUSINESS SERVICES - Involves any services that are labor intensive and not a construction 
related or professional service. 

 
 COMMODITIES - Includes all tangible personal property services, including equipment, leases 

of equipment, printing, food, building materials, office supplies. 

 
 A CBE or SBE firm: a Small Business Enterprise (SBE) or a County Business Enterprise 

(CBE), has a Broward County Business Tax Receipt, is located in, and doing Business in 
Broward County, and certified by the Broward County Office of Economic Development and 
Small Business Development. 
 

Business is claiming the CBE/SBE Preference; YES____  NO ______ 
 Please attach the Broward County Office of Economic Development and Small Business Development 

certification to this form. 

 

 Business is claiming local Business Preference YES _____   NO _____  
 (Choose below as applicable) 

 A Businesses Employing Miramar Residents located outside of the City of Miramar City and 
employing a minimum of 10 full time equivalent (“FTE”) Miramar residents or Miramar residents 
constitute 20% FTE of the company‟s local workforce (Broward and Miami-Dade Counties), 
whichever is larger. Proof of Miramar residents employed will be required prior to AWARD. 

 
 Business is domiciled within the City of Miramar City limits, complies with all City of Miramar 

licensing requirements and is current on all taxes. 

 
FAILURE TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM 

MAY DEEM YOUR OFFER NON-RESPONSIVE 
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Exceptions and Deviations Form (Tab 8) 
 

Contract Terms and Conditions Exception  
 

Proposers must identify clause by number and name and specify Exception. 
Exceptions must be fully explained on the bottom portion of this page.  The City 
reserves the right to reject any Proposal for noncompliance with one or more of the 
requirements. 
 
#     Title     Exception                          
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________________________  
Proposer’s Signature  

 
 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN THIS FORM  
MAY DEEM YOUR PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE 
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PRICE PROPOSAL SHEET (Tab 10) 
  

COST OR PRICING DATA FOR PRICE PROPOSAL 
 

Proposers shall submit (attached to this form) Cost or Pricing Data of sufficient detail 
to allow the evaluators to determine the reasonableness of the Price Proposal, reflecting 
Cost Realism, including all information other than Cost and Pricing Data, and explaining how 
the lump sum figure was derived. 

 
a) Cost or Pricing Data shall mean all facts, that as of the date of 

submission of the Proposal, prudent buyers and sellers would reasonably expect to affect 
price negotiations significantly.  Cost or Pricing Data are data that are factual, not 
judgmental, and are verifiable.  While they do not indicate the accuracy of the Proposer‟s 
judgment about estimated future costs or projections, they do include the data forming the 
basis for that judgment.  Cost or Pricing Data are more than historical accounting data, they 
are all the facts that can be reasonably expected to contribute to the soundness of estimates 
of future costs and to the validity of determinations of costs already incurred.  They also 
include such factors as:  vendor quotations; nonrecurring costs; information on changes in 
production or purchasing volume; data supporting projections of business prospects and 
objective and related operations cost; unit-cost trends such as those associated with labor 
efficiency; make-or-buy decisions; estimated resources to attain business goals; and 
information on management decisions that could have a significant bearing on costs. 

 
a) “Cost Realism” shall mean that the costs in Proposer‟s Proposal: (1) are 

realistic for the Work to be performed; (2) reflect a clear understanding of the requirements; 
and (3) are consistent with the various elements of the Proposer‟s Proposal. 

 
c) Information other than Cost and Pricing Data shall mean any type of 

information that is non-numeric that is necessary to determine price reasonableness or Cost 
Realism. 

 
d) Price, as used in this Solicitation, shall mean cost plus any fee or profit 

applicable. 
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PRICE PROPOSAL SHEET (CONT.) (Tab 10) 
                    OPTION# 1: FLAT ANNUAL FEE MINIMUM AND DEPOSIT 
  If you do not offer the requested pricing, please indicate “N/A” or if pricing is 
included or at no additional charge indicate “Included” or “No Additional Charge” where 
applicable. 

              Service Per 
Claimant 
Fee 

    Life of Partnership 

Workers Compensation   

Medical Only   

Indemnity   

            Total Workers’ Compensation    

Liability   

General Bodily Injury   

General Property Damage   

Auto Bodily Injury   

Auto Property Damage   

Auto Physical Damage   

Professional Liability   

Sexual Misconduct   

Property   

Total Liability   

Ancillary Services   

Administration   

Data Management   

Account Management (Designated)   

Banking/SIMMS Fee   

Claim Reporting - Web or e-Fax   

Medicare Reporting Cost   

 Electronic Incidents-Notice of Injury   

 Voucher   

 Loss Funding   

Loss Notice Program Rpt. Level $ 50,000   

Detailed Status Rpt. Level $ 50,000    

Meetings   

         Total Ancillary Services 
 

  

Data Conversion Fee   

Electronic transfer of all claim and detailed 
data. 

  

Physical file reconciliation to master loss 
run report. 

  

              
 Service 

 
Per 
Claimant 
Fee 

     
Life of Partnership 
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 Service 

 
Per 
Claimant 
Fee 

     
Life of Partnership 

Claim review from Notice of Injury to most 
current Information 

  

Overall reconciliation to transferred date   

Receipt and storage of all open claims files   

Data Mapping   

Data conversion   

Data reconciliation   

Physical file audit   

Physical file reconciliation   

    Total Data Conversion Fee   

   

Other Fee in addition to Option 1 or 2 
 

  

System Access for two users   

Risk Control Consulting Services-State # of 
Hours 
 

  

Loss Control -State # of Hours 
 

  

Custom/Ad hoc reports   

Subrogation and /or liens fee percentage   

Bill Review fee to include State fee 
schedule reduction 

  

Electronic Data Interchange filed with State 
of Florida 

  

Percentage of Utilization Review and 
Reasonable & Customary Savings 

  

Settlement Authority $ 5,000   

Client education   

Self-Insurance Qualifications   

Managed Care  (Paid off File)   

Acknowledges    

 
Information Technology Services 
 

  

Standard Loss run reports   

Custom/Ad hoc reports   

Standard loss run reports include but are 
not limited to the following: 

  

    Claims alpha listing report   

    Disbursement report   
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    Register by location report   

   Detail loss run by claimant name report   

   Detail loss run – total pages only report   

              Service Per 
Claimant 
Fee 

    Life of Partnership 

   Loss listing report   

   Payment check register report   

    Potential recovery report   

    Summary sheet – all claims open or  
    closed by fiscal year report 

  

   

                                                       Total:   

                               Grand Total:   

   

 

THIS IS AN OPTION# 1: FLAT ANNUAL FEE MINIMUM AND DEPOSIT 

 
 

 
Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)   
 
_______________________ 
 
 
PROPOSER: __________________________________________ 
           (Company Name) 
 
  __________________________________________ 
                    (Signature) 
  __________________________________________ 

 
__________________________________________ 

             (Printed Name and Title) 
 
 
 
 

 
FAILURE TO SIGN THIS FORM MAY DEEM 

YOUR RESPONSE NON-RESPONSIVE
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          OPTION# 2: LIFE OF CONTRACT – PER CLAIM FLAT FEE   
If you do not offer the requested pricing, please indicate “N/A” or if pricing is included 
or at no additional charge indicate “Included” or “No Additional Charge” where 
applicable. 
 

              Service Per 
Claimant 
Fee 

    Life of Partnership 

Workers Compensation   

Medical Only   

Indemnity   

            Total Workers’ Compensation    

Liability   

General Bodily Injury   

General Property Damage   

Auto Bodily Injury   

Auto Property Damage   

Auto Physical Damage   

Professional Liability   

Sexual Misconduct   

Property   

Total Liability   

Ancillary Services 
 

  

Administration   

Data Management   

Account Management (Designated)   

Banking/SIMMS Fee   

Claim Reporting - Web or e-Fax   

Medicare Reporting Cost   

 Electronic Incidents-Notice of Injury   

 Voucher   

 Loss Funding   

Loss Notice Program Rpt. Level $ 50,000   

Detailed Status Rpts Rpt. Level $ 50,000    

Meetings   

         Total Ancillary Services 
 

  

Data Conversion Fee 
 

  

Electronic transfer of all claim and detailed 
data. 

  

Physical file reconciliation to master loss 
run report. 

  

Claim review from Notice of Injury to most 
current Information. 

  

              Service Per     Life of Partnership 
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Claimant 
Fee 

Overall reconciliation to transferred date   

Receipt and storage of all open claims files   

Data Mapping   

Data conversion   

Data reconciliation   

Physical file audit   

Physical file reconciliation   

    Total Data Conversion Fee   

   

Other Fee in addition to Option 1 or 2   

System Access for two users   

Risk Control Consulting Services-State # 
of Hrs 
 

  

Loss Control -State # of Hrs 
 

  

Custom/Ad hoc reports   

Subrogation and /or liens fee percentage   

Bill Review fee to include State fee 
schedule reduction 

  

Electronic Data Interchange filed with 
State of Florida 

  

Percentage of Utilization Review and 
Reasonable & Customary Savings 

  

Settlement Authority $ 5,000   

Client education   

Self-Insurance Qualifications   

Managed Care  (Paid off File)   

Acknowledges    

Information Technology Services   

Standard Loss run reports   

Custom/Ad hoc reports   

Standard loss run reports include but are 
not limited to the following: 

  

    Claims alpha listing report   

    Disbursement report   

    Register by location report   

   Detail loss run by claimant name report   

   Detail loss run – total pages only report   

   Loss listing report   

   Payment check register report   

    Potential recovery report   

              Service Per 
Claimant 
Fee 

    Life of Partnership 
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    Summary sheet – all claims open or  
    closed by fiscal year report 

  

   

                                                       Total:   

                               Grand Total:   

 
 
 

THIS IS AN OPTION#2: LIFE OF CONTRACT – PER CLAIM FLAT FEE 

 
 
 
 

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)   
 
_______________________ 
 
 
PROPOSER: __________________________________________ 
           (Company Name) 
 
  __________________________________________ 
                    (Signature) 
  __________________________________________ 

 
__________________________________________ 

             (Printed Name and Title) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN THIS FORM SHALL DEEM YOUR 
PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE 
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DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE AFFIDAVIT (Tab 10a) 
FLORIDA STATE STATUTE 287.087 

 
Identical Tie Bids: Preference shall be given to business with drug-free workplace 

programs.  Whenever two or more bids which are equal with respect to price, quality, and 
Service are received by the state or by any political subdivision for the procurement of 
commodities or contractual Services, a bid received from a business that certifies that it has 
implemented a drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the award process.  
Established procedures for processing tie bids will be followed if none of the tied vendors 
have a drug-free workplace program.  In order to have a drug-free workplace program, a 
business shall: 
 

a) Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the 
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of 
such prohibition. 

 
b) Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the 

business‟s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, 
rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed 
upon employees for drug abuse violations. 

 
(1) Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual 

Services that are under Bid a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1). 
 

(2) In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as 
a condition of working on the commodities or contractual Services that are under Bid, the 
employee will abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any 
conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any violation of chapter 893 or of any 
controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the 
workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction. 

 
(3) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug 

abuse assistance or rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee‟s community, 
by any employee who is so convicted. 

 
(4) Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace 

through the implementation of this section. 
 

As the person authorized to sign the statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with 
the above requirements. 

 
 _______________________________________________ 
 Vendor‟s Signature 

 
FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN THIS FORM 
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MAY DEEM YOUR PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE 
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ANTI-KICKBACK AFFIDAVIT (Tab 10b) 

 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
                                           )  SS:  
COUNTY OF BROWARD ) 
 

I, the undersigned, hereby duly sworn, depose and say that no portion of the sum 
herein bid will be paid to any employees of the City of Miramar, its elected officials, and 
______________________________ or its design Contractors, as a commission, kickback, 
reward or gift, directly or indirectly by me or any member of my firm or by an officer of the 
corporation. 
 

 
By: ____________________________ 

 
Title: ___________________________ 

 
 
 
Sworn and subscribed before me this 
 
_____ day of______________, 20___ 
 
__________________________________________ 
Notary Public 
State of Florida at Large 
 
My commission expires: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN THIS FORM 
MAY DEEM YOUR PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE  
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NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT (Tab 10c) 

 
State of     ) 
                                ) SS: 
County of     ) 
 
  I, the undersigned, being first duly sworn, depose and say that: 

 
a) He/she is the (Owner, Partner, Officer, Representative or Agent) of                                    

__________________________ the Proposer that has submitted the attached 
Proposal; 

 
b) He/she is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the 

attached Proposal and of all pertinent circumstances respecting such Proposal; 
 
c) Such Proposal is genuine and is not collusive or a sham Proposal; 
 
d) Neither the said Proposer nor any of its officers, partners, owners, 

agents, representatives, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, have in 
any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other 
Proposer, firm, or person to submit a collusive or sham Proposal in connection with the 
Work for which the attached Proposal has been submitted; or to refrain from proposing 
in connection with such Work; or have in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by 
person to fix the price or prices in the attached Proposal or of any other Proposer, or to 
fix any overhead, profit, or cost elements of the Proposal price or the Proposal price of 
any other Proposer, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or 
unlawful agreement any advantage against (Recipient), or any person interested in the 
proposed Work; 

 
e) The price or prices quoted in the attached Proposal are fair and proper 

and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on 
the part of the Proposer or any other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees 
or parties in interest, including this affiant. 

 
Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of: 
 
Witness: 
 
            By:  ________________________________________                                              
 
___________________________      _____________________________                                                 
              (PRINT NAME)    (TITLE) 

 
 

FAILURE COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN THIS FORM 
MAY DEEM YOUR PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE 
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NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT (CONTINUED) (Tab 10c) 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 

State of     ) 
 

                                 )  SS: 
 
County of     ) 
 
 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority personally appeared to me well known and 
known by me to be the person described herein and who executed the foregoing Affidavit and 
acknowledged to and before me that _____________ executed said Affidavit for the purpose 
therein expressed. 
 

WITNESS, my hand and official seal this _____ day of ________, 20___.    
 
___________                                            
Notary Public 
State of Florida at Large  
 
My commission expires: 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN THIS FORM 
MAY DEEM YOUR PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE  
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NON-DISCRIMINATION AFFIDAVIT (Tab 10d) 
 
 

I, the undersigned, hereby duly sworn, depose and say that the organization, business 
or entity represented herein shall not discriminate against any person in its operations, 
activities or delivery of Services under any agreement it enters into with the City of Miramar.  
The same shall affirmatively comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local 
equal employment laws and shall not engage in or commit any discriminatory practice against 
any person based on race, age, religion, color, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, 
marital status, physical or mental disability, political affiliation or any other factor which cannot 
be lawfully used as a basis for Service delivery. 
 

 
By: ____________________________ 

 
Title: ___________________________ 

 
 
 
Sworn and subscribed before me this 
 
_____ day of ______________, 20_____ 
 
__________________________ 
Notary Public 
State of Florida at Large 
 
My commission expires: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN THIS FORM 
MAY DEEM YOUR PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE   
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ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM (Tab 11) 

 
 

 Addendum # Date Received   
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSER: __________________________________________ 
   (Company Name) 

 
 
  __________________________________________ 
        (Signature) 
 
 
  __________________________________________ 
            (Printed Name and Title) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN THIS FORM 
MAY DEEM YOUR PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE   
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5.
RESOLUTIONS
March 23, 2016

CITY OF MIRAMAR
PROPOSED CITY COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

Meeting Date: March 23, 2016

Second Reading Date: 

Presenter’s Name and Title: Sheron Harding, Risk Manager on behalf of Sam Hines, 
Human Resources Director

Temp Reso Number: 5996

Item Description:   Temp. Reso. No. 5996, AUTHORIZING THE RENEWAL OF VARIOUS 
INSURANCE COVERAGES FOR THE CITY'S PROTECTED SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM AS PART 
OF THE CITY'S COMPREHENSIVE RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM, EFFECTIVE APRIL 1, 2016
THROUGH MARCH 31, 2017 (THE "INSURANCE RENEWALS"); APPROVING A PROJECTED 
PREMIUM COST NOT-TO-EXCEED $2,206,171, INCLUDING TAXES AND FEES; DECLARING BY 
FOUR-FIFTHS AFFIRMATIVE VOTE THAT APPLYING THE CITY'S COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT 
PROCEDURES TO THE INSURANCE RENEWALS IS NOT IN THE CITY'S BEST INTEREST, 
THEREBY EXEMPTING THE INSURANCE RENEWALS FROM THE CITY'S COMPETITIVE 
PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS; AUTHORIZING THE HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR TO 
NEGOTIATE LOWER PREMIUM AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THE INSURANCE RENEWALS; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE INSURANCE RENEWAL AGREEMENTS. 
(Director of Human Resources Sam Hines)

Consent Resolution Ordinance Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing 

Summary Explanation and Background: This Resolution authorizes the renwal of coverage for 
the City's Protected Self-Insurance Program, which is a key part of the City's Comprehensive Risk 
Management  Program.  This renewal is recommended for the 12 month period from April 1, 2016 through 
March 31, 2017.

Instructions for the Office of the City Clerk: None

Public Notice – As Required by Sec.  of the City Code  and/or Sec. , Florida Statutes, public notice for this item was 

provided as follows: on , in a ad in the ; by posting the property on and/or by sending mailed notice to property 

owners within feet of the property on .  (Fill in all that apply)

Special Voting Requirement – As required by Sec. , of the City Code and/or Sec. Florida Statutes, approval of this item 

requires a (unanimous 4/5ths etc. vote of the City Commission.

Fiscal Impact:  Yes No 

REMARKS: For the six month period covering April 2016 through September 2016, the 
projected premium of $1,103,085 will be budgeted in FY16 GL Account No. 502-90-000-
590-000-604501, “Surety Bonds Premium”.  For the remaining six months of the contract 



term (October 2016 – March 2017), funding of $1,103,085 will be budgeted in the FY17 
approved budget utilizing the aforementioned GL account number.

Content: 
•  Agenda Item Memo from the City Manager to City Commission
•  Resolution TR 5996

 - Exhibit A: Year over Year Price Comparision
 - Exhibit B: Insured Values and Premium Comparisons







Temp. Reso. No. 5996
2/11/16
3/14/16

CITY OF MIRAMAR
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA

RESOLUTION NO. _______

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE RENEWAL OF VARIOUS 
INSURANCE COVERAGES FOR THE CITY'S PROTECTED SELF-
INSURANCE PROGRAM AS PART OF THE CITY'S COMPREHENSIVE 
RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM, EFFECTIVE APRIL 1, 2016 
THROUGH MARCH 31, 2017 (THE "INSURANCE RENEWALS"); 
APPROVING A PROJECTED PREMIUM COST NOT-TO-EXCEED 
$2,206,171, INCLUDING TAXES AND FEES; DECLARING BY FOUR-
FIFTHS AFFIRMATIVE VOTE THAT APPLYING THE CITY'S 
COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES TO THE INSURANCE 
RENEWALS IS NOT IN THE CITY'S BEST INTEREST, THEREBY 
EXEMPTING THE INSURANCE RENEWALS FROM THE CITY'S 
COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS; AUTHORIZING 
THE HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR TO NEGOTIATE LOWER 
PREMIUM AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THE INSURANCE RENEWALS; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE INSURANCE 
RENEWAL AGREEMENTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.

WHEREAS, the City has retained insurance broker and consultant Arthur J. 

Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. (the “Consultant”) to negotiate with multiple 

insurance carriers and to recommend insurance coverage to the City for the City’s 

Liability Protection Program; and

WHEREAS, the selection of such insurance coverage is best accomplished 

through negotiations conducted by the Consultant rather than by traditional formal 

competitive procurement procedures due to constant risk insurance premium 

fluctuations, the global location of industry participants and the efficiency of broker 

negotiations with the multiple insurance carriers for various insurance coverages; and

Reso. No. ______

Fdejean
Typewritten Text



Temp. Reso. No. 5996
2/11/16
3/14/16

WHEREAS, Section 2-413(8) of the City Code provides that purchases of, and 

contracts for, commodities or services are exempt from the City’s competitive 

procurement requirements when the City Commission declares by a four-fifths 

affirmative vote that the City’s competitive procurement procedures are not in the best

interest of the City for the purchase; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has reviewed the recommendations of the 

Consultant and City staff to renew various levels of insurance coverage in accordance 

with Exhibits “A” and “B”, effective April 1, 2016 through March 31, 2017 (the “Insurance 

Renewals”); and

WHEREAS, the Insurance Renewals are essential for the City to effectively 

mitigate its potential liabilities; and

WHEREAS, effective April 1, 2016 through March 31, 2017, City premium costs 

are projected to decrease by $22,285 to an amount not-to-exceed $2,206,171, or 

approximately 1% for the 12 month renewal term; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission deems it to be in the best interest of the 

citizens and residents of the City of Miramar to authorize the Insurance Renewals in an 

amount not-to-exceed $2,206,171, to declare by a four-fifths affirmative vote that 

applying the City’s competitive procurement procedures to the Insurance Renewals is 

not in the City’s best interest, thereby exempting the insurance renewals from the City’s

competitive procurement procedures, to authorize the Human Resources Director to

Reso. No. _____ 2
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3/14/16

negotiate lower premium amounts, if possible, and to authorize the City Manager to 

execute the agreements for the Insurance Renewals.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF MIRAMAR, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1:  That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed 

as being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Resolution.

Section 2:  That the City Commission finds that the selection of insurance 

coverage for the City’s Liability Protection Program is best accomplished through 

negotiations conducted by the City’s Consultant rather than by traditional formal 

competitive procurement procedures and declares, by a minimum four-fifths affirmative 

vote, that utilizing the City’s competitive procurement procedures for the Insurance 

Renewals is not in the best interest of the City, thereby exempting the Insurance 

Renewals from the City’s competitive procurement procedures.  

Section 3:  That the Insurance Renewals reflected in Exhibit “A” are approved in 

an amount not-to-exceed $2,206,171 for the period of April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017.

Section 4: That the Human Resources Director is authorized to negotiate lower 

premium amounts due under the Insurance Renewals.

Section 5:  That the City Manager is authorized to execute the necessary 

agreements on behalf of the City to implement the Insurance Renewals for the City’s 

Liability Protection Program.

Reso. No. _____ 3
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Section 6:  That the appropriate City officials are authorized to do all things 

necessary and expedient in order to carry out the aims of this Resolution.

Section 7:  That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ____________________, 2016.

________________________________
Mayor, Wayne M. Messam

________________________________
Vice Mayor, Darline B. Riggs

ATTEST:

______________________________  
City Clerk, Denise A. Gibbs

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have 
approved this RESOLUTION 
as to form:

_______________________________
City Attorney
Weiss Serota Helfman 
Cole & Bierman, P.L.

Requested by Administration Voted
Commissioner Winston F. Barnes _____
Commissioner Maxwell B. Chambers _____
Commissioner Yvette Colbourne _____
Vice Mayor Darline B. Riggs _____
Mayor Wayne M. Messam _____

Reso. No. _____ 4



CITY OF MIRAMAR - RENEWAL PROGRAM

April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017

EXHIBIT "A"     

Coverage Carrier / Policy #

2015-2016  

Renewal 

Premium 

2016-2017  

Renewal 

Premium 

Difference

Premier Public Entity Package. Lloyd's       PK1007114 650,000.00$       625,000.00$      (25,000.00)$      

Excess Property ($49M xs $1M = 

$50M Program Total)
Various Carriers - see chart below 1,143,750.00$    1,087,775.00$   (55,975.00)$      

Excess Workers Compensation and 

Employers Liability
Safety National  SP4052764 209,959.00$       203,426.00$      (6,533.00)$        

Public Officials and Employment 

Practices Liability

ACE American  EONM00596231 

004
59,724.00$         59,722.00$        (2.00)$               

Pollution Liability and Remediation 

Expense* (3-Yr expires 4/1/18)
Great American PEL862985802 16,797.66$         16,797.66$        -$                  

E.M.T. Professional Liability Lloyd's of London PGIARK00351-05 35,000.00$         35,000.00$        -$                  

Boiler and Machinery Zurich American BM937661511 7,870.00$           7,492.00$          (378.00)$           

Accidental Death and 

Dismemberment
ACE American ADDN04213518 8,115.00$           8,040.00$          (75.00)$             

Excess Crime Hartford Fire 00FA0268950 15 7,979.00$           8,126.00$          147.00$            

Property Terrorism Lloyd's of London     FP0037615 17,000.00$         13,000.00$        (4,000.00)$        

Cyber Risk Liability AIG Specialty      011465340 32,859.00$         29,000.00$        (3,859.00)$        

Senior Management Fiduciary U.S. Specialty Ins.    U71551709 3,177.00$           3,310.00$          133.00$            

Parking Lot General Liability Scottsdale CPS2169725 6,670.00$           6,576.00$          (94.00)$             

Fidelity Bond - Celeste Lucia Hartford Fire 21BSBET4269 400.00$              -$                   (400.00)$           

2,199,300.66$    2,103,264.66$   (96,036.00)$      

Premier Public Excess Liability  New 

Coverage Options:                                                       

#1 $2M/$4M; #2 $4M/$4M

Lloyd's                            tbd -$                    92,000.00$        92,000.00$       

Cyber Excess Liability Aspen Specialty Ins. LP82074 11,000.00$         10,700.00$        (300.00)$           

11,000.00$         102,700.00$      91,700.00$       

17,937.50$         -$                   (17,937.50)$      

-$                    -$                   -$                  

100.00$              100.00$             -$                  

70.00$                70.00$               -$                  

11.01$                -$                   (11.01)$             

36.00$                36.00$               -$                  

Total of Florida Surcharges 18,154.51$         206.00$             (17,948.51)$      

2,228,455.17$    2,206,170.66$   (22,284.51)$      

Subtotal New Policies

TOTAL PROGRAM COST

EMPA

Subtotal Expiring Policies

FHCF Assessment (1.3%)

Citizens Assessment (1%)

Fiduciary - Recourse Fee 

General Liability (Parking Lot)/EMT's PLI - Policy Fee 

Boiler & Machinery/PO Liab - FL Insurance Guaranty Fund 



 

  EXHIBIT “B” 



6. 
RESOLUTIONS 
March 23, 2016 

CITY OF MIRAMAR 
PROPOSED CITY COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

Meeting Date: March 23, 2016     
 
Second Reading Date:       
 
Presenter’s Name and Title:   Sam Hines, Director of Human Resources, on behalf of 
Human Resources  
 
Temp Reso Number: TR6018 
 
Item Description:   Temp. Reso. No. 6018,  APPROVING A COMPREHENSIVE PAY PLAN FOR 

UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2015 THROUGH 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.(Human Resources Director Sam 
Hines) 
 
Consent    Resolution    Ordinance    Quasi-Judicial    Public Hearing  

 

Summary Explanation and Background: The Comprehensive Pay Plan ("CPP") is a 

compensation and benefit guide for unrepresented full-time and some part-time employees approved on 
an annual basis.  The CPP was last approved for the period October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015 
("FY 2015").  City Commission approval is required to adopt the CPP for the period October 1, 2015 
through September 30, 2016 Fiscal Year 2016 ("FY2016").  Among other things, the FY2016 CPP 
proposes a 2.5% cost of living increase, which includes corresponding salary range adjustments for non-
represented employees.  The FY 2016 CPP applies only to City employees and does not address Elected 
Officials.  The provisions of the CPP in effect for FY 2015 that relate to Elected Officials remain in full force 
and effect until an ordinance is passed superseding the provisions contained therein that pertain to Elected 
Officials.  The FY 2016 CPP is being adopted by Resolution, instead of by Ordinance, because it no longer 
contains provisions related to the salary and benefits of Elected Officials. 
 
Instructions for the Office of the City Clerk: NONE 
 
Public Notice – As Required by Sec.        of the City Code  and/or Sec.      , Florida Statutes, public notice for this item was 

provided as follows: on      , in a       ad in the     ; by posting the property on       and/or by sending mailed notice to 

property owners within       feet of the property on      .  (Fill in all that apply) 

 
Special Voting Requirement – As required by Sec.      , of the City Code and/or Sec.       Florida Statutes, approval of this item 

requires a       (unanimous 4/5ths etc. vote of the City Commission.  

 
Fiscal Impact:  Yes    No  
 
REMARKS: Fiscal Impact: $704,300  
 

Content:  
•  Agenda Item Memo from the City Manager to City Commission 
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•  Resolution TR 6018 
       - Exhibit A:  Comprehensive Pay Plan for FY2016  
       - Schedule I - FY2016 Salary Schedule FT 
       -  Schedule 2 - FY2016 Salary Schedule PT 
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Temp. Reso. No. 6018 
3/3/16 
3/19/16 
 

 
 

CITY OF MIRAMAR 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA, APPROVING A COMPREHENSIVE PAY PLAN 
FOR UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING 
OCTOBER 1, 2015 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2016; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Commission recognizes the need to adopt a 

Comprehensive Pay Plan (“CPP”) for unrepresented employees for Fiscal Year 2016 

(“FY2016”) (i.e., October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016), in the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” in order to maintain competitive employment conditions; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends approval of the CPP by adoption of 

this resolution; and   

 WHEREAS, the City Commission deems it to be in the best interest of the 

citizens and residents of the City of Miramar to approve the CPP, attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF MIRAMAR, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:  

Section 1: That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed 

as being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Resolution. 

 

Reso. No. _____ 



Temp. Reso. No. 6018 
3/3/16 
3/19/16 
 

Section 2: That the City Commission approves the Comprehensive Pay Plan 

for unrepresented employees, attached as Exhibit “A,” together with such non-

substantial changes as are acceptable to the City Manager and approved as to form 

and legal sufficiency by the City Attorney. 

Section 3: The provisions of the CPP in effect for FY 2015 that relate to 

Elected Officials remain in full force and effect until an Ordinance is passed superseding 

the provisions that are contained therein pertaining to Elected Officials.   

Section 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable, 

and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Resolution shall for any reason be 

held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections, sentences, clauses and phrases of 

this resolution, 

Section 5: That all Resolutions or parts thereof, in conflict with this resolution 

are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reso. No. _____    2 



Temp. Reso. No. 6018 
3/3/16 
3/19/16 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ____________________, 2016. 
 
 

  ________________________________ 
Mayor, Wayne M. Messam 

 
________________________________ 
Vice Mayor, Darline B. Riggs 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________           
City Clerk, Denise A. Gibbs 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have  
approved this RESOLUTION  
as to form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Attorney 
Weiss Serota Helfman  
Cole & Bierman, P.L. 

Requested by Administration  Voted 
     Commissioner Winston F. Barnes  _____ 
     Commissioner Maxwell B. Chambers _____ 
     Commissioner Yvette Colbourne  _____ 
     Vice Mayor Darline B. Riggs  _____  
     Mayor Wayne M. Messam   _____ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reso. No. _____    3  
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Exhibit “A” 
CITY OF MIRAMAR 

COMPREHENSIVE PAY PLAN 
2016 

 
SECTION 1.  ESTABLISHMENT 
 

 There is hereby established a Comprehensive Pay Plan (hereinafter referred to as Pay 
Plan) for the City of Miramar (the “City”) for Fiscal Year 2016 (i.e., October 1, 2015 
through September 30, 2016), pertaining to all classes of job positions included in the 
attached Schedules I and II and those job positions not specified elsewhere in existing 
negotiated collective bargaining agreements.  All references to Regular Employees in 
this document refer to unrepresented Full Time employees/positions as outlined herein 
except for Part-time Employees identified in Section 11 and Schedule II. All references 
to “All Employees” refer to Regular Employees and Part-time Employees.   

 
SECTION 2.  COMPOSITION of SALARY RANGES GENERALLY 

 
A. The Pay Plan shall establish a salary range for each position of employment for 

Regular Employees and hourly rates for all Part time Employees in the City of 
Miramar. 
 

SECTION 3.  MINIMUM ENTRANCE SALARY 
 
A. Regular and Part-time Employees shall be paid a minimum Living Wage in 

accordance with Ordinance 1620 approved by the City of Miramar Commission in 
FY15.  For pay purposes, the Living Wage for FY16 shall be set at $12.50 per 
hour.  The City Manager may amend the salary schedules within the fiscal year 
because of changes in any relevant final orders from the Public Employment 
Relations Commission regarding bargaining unit clarifications, or for reasons of 
salary equity, compression and appropriate position classification.  

 
B. The minimum rate of pay for each Regular and Part-time job position shall be 

paid to an employee upon original appointment to the City unless there has been 
a demonstrated inability to recruit at the minimum rate of pay, or the applicant 
possesses exceptional qualifications, warranting employment at a higher rate of 
pay.  In such cases, the City Manager may authorize the Director of Human 
Resources to approve a higher salary rate so long as sufficient funds are 
available in the budget. 
 

SECTION 4.  ALL EMPLOYEES COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY 
 
Salaries and benefits for All Employees in the City will be maintained in a reasonable, 
innovative and competitive manner in relation to the City‟s recruitment and retention 
needs.  Notwithstanding the above, salary and benefit increases or reductions for All 
Employees will be in accordance with the expenditure assumptions included in the 
City‟s overall financial business plan. 
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SECTION 5.  ANNUAL SALARY AND SALARY RANGE ADJUSTMENT 
 
Salary ranges in Schedules I & II are increased by 2.5%.  All Employees, excluding 
Commission Staff (i.e., Regular Employees, Part-time Employees and Limited-benefit 
Employees), employed on the date that this Pay Plan is approved by the City 
Commission, shall receive a 2.5% COLA retroactive to October 1, 2015.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, there shall continue to be no merit increases and/or 
advancement in step-pay plans, as defined by the respective collective bargaining 
agreements (the “contract(s)”) for employees who are paid in accordance with a step-
pay plan.   
 
SECTION 6.  SALARY RANGE FOR DEPARTMENT DIRECTORS 
 
Salary range maximums for Department Directors shall be at least 10% higher than the 
salary range maximum of their next lower ranked subordinates.   

 
SECTION 7.  PROVISIONS FOR SENIOR MANAGERS 
 
Effective July 1, 2010 and for All Employees, the City may, in the sole discretion of the 
City Manager, cease its contribution of any percentage of the annual salary of its 
employees to an authorized Deferred Compensation Plan (i.e., 457 or 401a Plans) 
and/or other approved tax deferred program into which contributions are made on a pre-
tax basis, and earnings accrue on a tax deferred basis.  If the City Manager exercises 
such discretion, these Deferred Compensation Plans and/or other approved tax 
deferred programs only shall be funded by employee contributions.  
  
SECTION 8.   PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
 
A. Regular Employees who are not members of any collective bargaining unit will be 

evaluated during the first quarter of each Fiscal Year.  This process will not affect 
the employment and/or promotion anniversary dates of such employees.  Failure 
by the City to conduct an annual job evaluation will not alter the terms or 
conditions of this Pay Plan. 

 
B. Regular Employees covered by the Civil Service system who have not completed 

their initial probationary period will receive their evaluation on their one year 
anniversary date. 
 
 
 

C. All Employees whose performance is considered by the City Manager to be 
“Below Average” or “Unsatisfactory” may be required to enter into an Action Plan 
or Performance Improvement Plan developed by the senior management of their 
department to improve their performance.  At the end of not more than six 
months (180 days), they may receive a Special Evaluation.  This in no way, 
however, changes the “at will” employment status of non-civil service employees. 
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SECTION 9.  PROMOTIONS & ADJUSTMENTS 
 
A. A promoted employee shall receive a 7.5% increase over their present salary, or 

the minimum pay rate for the new classification, whichever is higher.  This 
increase shall establish the employee‟s new annual salary.  Salary compression 
issues will be assessed on a case-by-case basis.  Promotional increases greater 
than 7.5% and above the minimum of the new salary range, can be granted 
when the promoted employee demonstrates a high competency for the new 
position or other factors such as prior performance, tenure, market demands, 
education/certifications, etc. Any increase above the 7.5%, require the approval 
of the City Manager or his/her designee.   

 
B. A promoted employee covered by the City‟s Civil Service system shall serve a six 

month probationary period in the new job classification.  At the end of the 
probationary period, the employee shall receive a performance evaluation.  If the 
probationary period has been completed successfully, a new anniversary date 
will be established based on the date of promotion.  If the employee does not 
successfully complete the probationary period, as determined by the City, he/she 
may, upon the City Manager or his/her Designee‟s approval, be granted a 
probationary extension, not to exceed 60 days.  If the City Manager or his/her 
Designee denies an extension, the employee shall be demoted to his/her 
previous classification and their salary shall be reduced by 10% or to the top of 
the new salary grade.  The probationary evaluation will not contain a salary 
increase.  If an employee is promoted within their first year of service with the 
City, their probationary period is extended to the end of the six month 
promotional probation, or at least to the end of the employee‟s one year 
anniversary, whichever is longer. 
 

C. An employee who is temporarily promoted to a higher classification due to 
resignation, termination or promotion of the employee occupying that higher 
classification, shall receive a retroactive (to the effective date of the promotion) 
7.5% salary increase, or the minimum pay rate for the new classification, 
whichever is higher, for the entire period of time that the employee works in that 
higher classification, provided that the promoted individual is in the position for 30 
days or more.  This type of promotion will ordinarily occur during the process for 
filling the vacated position. 
 

D. Notwithstanding the above, the City Manager or his/her Designee shall have the 
sole discretion to authorize a salary adjustment to address issues of retention, 
recruitment, salary compression, reorganization or for other job-related reasons 
as prescribed by City policy, which is based on industry bench market standards. 

E. The City Manager is authorized to make and approve changes in salary grades 
and/or benefits for All Employees throughout the City to prevent salary grade 
compaction or to insure that relative salary range equity and benefits are 
maintained. 
 

SECTION 10.  BLOCK BUDGETING  
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Notwithstanding other rules and regulations, and in furtherance of employee 
development and positive recruitment and retention of employees with outstanding 
performance and behavior records, the City Manager may authorize the implementation 
of the concept of “block budgeting”, as defined by Departmental administrative policies.  
Block Budgeting may be authorized for the advancement of trainee level professionals 
to entry level, entry level to journey level, and journey level to lead classification levels 
as established by market industry standards. 
 
SECTION 11.  PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT 
 
A. Part-time Employees shall be paid hourly wages in bi-weekly increments.  Part-

time Employees are not eligible for cash payments, but may receive an annual 
salary adjustment, if specified in the Annual Comprehensive Pay Plan. 

 
B. Performance appraisals shall be conducted on an annual basis for all non-

seasonal part time employees on their anniversary date.  Failure by the City to 
conduct an annual job evaluation will not alter the terms or conditions of this Pay 
Plan. 
 

C. Non-seasonal Part-time Employees, who average 30 hours or more of work per 
pay period for a period of one year, shall accrue the following City paid leave 
benefit after one year of employment: 1 hour of sick leave per pay period and 1.5 
hours of vacation leave per pay period.  Sick leave for those job classifications 
covered by the GAME Collective Bargaining Agreement will accrue as specified 
in the contract.  The City shall also provide a $5,000 life insurance and accidental 
death and dismemberment benefit. Non-seasonal Part-time Employees will be 
limited on the amount of vacation leave remaining at the end of the calendar 
year, which can be carried over to the following year.  At the end of the calendar 
leave year (December 31),, vacation leave in excess of 80 hours, shall be 
credited to the employee‟s sick leave account.  Credits will be accumulated from 
January 1 to December 31. 
 

D. For Part-time Employees who work an average of 30 hours or more per week for 
a period of one year, the City shall provide single coverage HMO health and 
DHMO dental insurance.  The employee will pay $15 per pay period for the 
single coverage under the health insurance plan.  
 

E. The following paid holidays will also be provided at a rate of six hours for non-
seasonal Part-time Employees: 

Labor Day 
Veteran‟s Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Friday following Thanksgiving 
Christmas Day 
 

New Year‟s Day 
Martin Luther King Day 
President‟s Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 

 
 
F. All overtime hours will be paid according to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), 

that is, overtime hours are hours worked in excess of 40 hours for the workweek. 
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SECTION 12.  EMPLOYMENT BY DIFFERENT DEPARTMENTS 
 
The prescribed rates of pay include payment for all work performed in the work 
category, even though the work may be performed in more than one department.  The 
City Manager may assign personnel to work in one or more Departments to meet the 
needs of the City.  For extended periods of such assignment, each department may be 
charged the appropriate share of such services; however, the total compensation 
received by such employees shall not exceed the prescribed rate of pay for the position.  
No employee shall be allowed to work in two positions concurrently with the City. 
 
 
SECTION 13.  TEMPORARY APPOINTMENT 
 
A. The City Manager may appoint personnel temporarily, or in an acting capacity, 

for an appointed period not to exceed 180 days per appointment, or as specified 
in the City Code, provided that background checks have been conducted and 
excess budgeted funds exist because of past vacancies in authorized 
employment positions, or within the departmental activity budget that contains 
the designated position. 

 
B. Said appointment shall be renewable for one additional appointment period only, 

provided, however, that all budgeted employment position funds, minus any 
monies required to be expended for the support of temporary appointments 
authorized above, shall be adequate to meet all employment and payroll related 
expenses for the balance of the renewed contract or funds are available within 
the departmental activity budget that contains the designated position. 

 
SECTION 14.  POST– EMPLOYMENT HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS 
 
A. The City will continue to permit post-employment access to health and dental 

insurance benefits, including the dependent coverage choices, if any, made 
during the open enrollment immediately prior to separation from the City for All 
Employees who honorably separate from City service, as long as the full costs 
for such insurance premiums, as they may change from time to time, are paid at 
the former employee‟s expense, subject to reasonable administrative rules. 

 
B. The City will continue to provide a retiree health insurance stipend for Regular 

Employees retired after October 1, 2006 under the following conditions: 
 

1. The amount of the stipend will be a monthly payment equal to $10 
per year of service to a maximum of $250 per month. 

 
2. The health insurance stipend will cease upon the 65th birthday of 

the retiree.  
C. The benefits provided under this Section shall be considered as vested benefit 

entitlements for persons employed as of the effective date of the Ordinance 
adopting the FY 2011 Comprehensive Pay Plan. 
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SECTION 15.  CITY PAID LIFE INSURANCE 
 
Term life insurance benefit will be provided to Regular Employees in the amount of one 
and one half times the employee‟s base salary, at the City‟s expense. 
 
SECTION 16.  LONGEVITY INCENTIVE 
 
All Regular Employees shall continue to be eligible for the following longevity incentive 
pay, applicable to their base salary, with the understanding that the amounts are non-
cumulative.  For example, an employee who has been with the City for 24 years will 
receive their annual salary of $50,000 and 3%, for a total annual salary of $51,500: 
 

                     Length of Service      Longevity Incentive 
 

                     15 to 19 years (completed 15 years)              1% during these years  
                     20 to 23 years (completed 20 years)              2% during these years 
                     23 years or more (completed 23 years)           3% during these years 

 
SECTION 17.  EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
 
1. The City supports employees who wish to continue their education to secure 

increased responsibility and growth within their professional careers while with the 
City. In keeping with this philosophy, the City has established an educational 
assistance program for expenses incurred through accredited institutions of higher 
learning. An accredited institution of higher learning is one whose programs have 
been reviewed and approved by one or more of the commonly recognized 
educational commissions for organizations legally authorized to review and accredit 
higher learning programs.  The major institutions utilized by the large majority of City 
employees for tuition reimbursement already meet the standard.  These includes 
universities and colleges including BC, FIU and FAU, as well as the larger and well 
established private organizations such as NSU, Florida Memorial University, Barry 
University, University of Phoenix, and University of Miami. 

 
2. All regular employees who have completed their initial probationary period are 

eligible for participation in this program as long as the courses will prepare City 
employees for job growth while they are employed with the City. The City shall 
reimburse each eligible employee who participates in the Educational  
Reimbursement Program as set forth herein, up to $5,000 per calendar year for 
undergraduate courses, not more than $7,000 per calendar year for graduate 
courses, and not more than $7,000 for any combination of undergraduate and 
graduate courses.  The reimbursement is provided based on the class dates as 
defined in the course catalog and not on the submission date of the receipt.  
Participation in degreed programs and/or non-credit coursework must be approved 
by the Department Director and Human Resources Director or designee prior to 
taking the actual coursework.  Failure to do so will result in denial of reimbursement 
requests.  All reimbursement requests must include proper supporting 
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documentation, and be submitted to the Human Resources Department within 30 
days of the completion of coursework each period.   Details and forms are available 
in the Human Resource Department.  

 
Within the context of the Education Assistance Program, the City shall reimburse 
eligible employees, up to the maximum amount set forth above, as follows: 

 
A. One hundred percent (100%) of state college tuition or community college tuition   

rates for courses at educational institutions that are directly related to the 
employee's position or career growth with the City. 

 
B. Reimbursement shall be made provided the employee receives a grade of "C" or 

better, pass in pass/fail or 75 or better where such grades are given. 
 
C. Books and lab fees will be reimbursed on a tiered scale after successful 

completion of the class as follows:  50% - for a grade of 2.0-2.9 (C), 75% for a 
grade of 3.0-3.9 (B), and 100% for a grade of 4.0 (A). 

 
D. Employees shall request preapproval under this Program by submitting the 

"Request for Educational Assistance" form to the Department Director. Once the 
Department Director approves, the form is sent the Director of Human Resources 
for review, approval and processing.  Employees must pay for their own tuition 
for which the City will reimburse after approval as outlined above upon the 
successful completion of each course and supply such proof of attending the 
course.  Papers required for verification shall be a payment receipt and a report 
of grades received.  Reimbursement requests must be timely and submitted to 
the Human Resources Department within 30 days of the completion of 
coursework each period. 

 
E. If an employee voluntarily terminates his/her employment with the City within one     

year following the completion of any eligible educational program under Section 1 
or license fees or tuition costs for training under Section 3, for which such 
employee has received a refund, then the amount refunded in the prior 12 
months shall be repaid by the employee immediately.  The amount of any such 
reimbursement shall be deducted from the employee's final paycheck, in the 
event that the employee fails to reimburse the City as provided above, and 
requires the services of any attorney to collect any of said amounts, such 
attorney's fees and court fees will be added to the amounts owed by the 
employee to the City. 

 
 
 
 
SECTION 18.  INCENTIVES FOR EMPLOYEES EXEMPT FROM FLSA OVERTIME 
 
A. Regular Employees exempt from the overtime provisions of the Fair Labor 

Standards Act (“FLSA”) shall receive 120 hours of Position Basis Leave (“PBL”) 
at the beginning of each fiscal year (October 1).  Regular Employees hired into 
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PBL eligible positions or promoted from a non-PBL eligible position into a PBL 
eligible position between October 1st and March 31st will have 120 hours 
credited to their leave balance.  Regular Employees hired into PBL eligible 
positions or promoted from a non-PBL eligible position into a PBL eligible 
position between April 1st and June 30th, will have 60 hours credited to their 
leave balance.  New employees are not eligible to use vacation time or PBL for 
their first 90 days of employment.  PBL cannot be carried over to a new fiscal 
year and may be converted to cash as set forth in Section 24(C). 

 
B. Notwithstanding the above, the Assistant City Managers, Chief Administration 

Officer, Chief Operations Officer, the City Manager‟s Executive staff, Department 
Directors, and Assistant Department Directors, will receive a total 160 hours of 
Position Basis Leave or 80 hours as specified above for hire dates. 
 

C. For FLSA exempt Regular Employees, the City Manager is authorized to approve 
additional PBL for those who work extraordinary amounts of additional time or 
who have completed a significant project which may include work during the 
period of a declared emergency such as a Hurricane event.  Additional PBL 
granted in these circumstances will be governed by the same rules outlined in 
paragraph „A‟ above.  Any additional PBL time must be authorized in writing and 
signed by the City Manager.    
 

SECTION 19.  VEHICLE AUTHORITY 
 

A. Consistent with the City‟s vehicle assignment policy, the City Manager may 
authorize the assignment of a vehicle or the payment of a vehicle allowance to 
an employee covered by this plan.  Except for Police and Fire personnel, all 
employees utilizing vehicles pursuant to this section shall be responsible for the 
payment of all fuel that is for personal, non-job related use. 

 
B. The City Manager may revise or amend the vehicle use policy in his or her 

discretion without further approval of the City Commission. 
 
SECTION 20.  PROVISIONS FOR MANAGEMENT PENSION PLAN MEMBERS  
 
Effective July 1, 2010, the employee‟s contribution rate into the City of Miramar 
Management Retirement Plan (the “Plan”) shall be fixed at 13.515% of the employee‟s 
compensation.  Also, effective July 1, 2010, the City shall make an annual contribution 
to the Plan in an amount equal to the difference in each year between the total of 
member contributions for the year and the total cost for the year as shown by the most 
recent actuarial valuation for the plan.  The total cost for any year shall be defined as 
the total of normal cost plus the additional amount sufficient to amortize the unfunded 
accrued past service liability over a thirty year period commencing with the effective 
date of the Plan. 

 
 

SECTION 21.  HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS  
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The City shall pay the cost of the employee-only premium for health insurance for its 
Regular Employees and Part Time Employees who work an average of 30 hours or 
more per week as explained in Section 11, Paragraph „D‟, except for an employee share 
of premium equal to $15 per bi-weekly pay period.  However, the City Manager in 
his/her sole discretion may change the Regular Employee‟s share of the premium, the 
health insurance benefit levels, the types of health insurance plans offered, and/or the 
insurance carriers.  
 
SECTION 22.  LIMITED-BENEFIT EMPLOYEES 
 
A. Limited-benefit Employees are prior employees who have faithfully served the 

City and the City desires to retain such employees.  Limited-benefit Employees 
provide a cost-savings to the City because they perform certain important 
services without many of the costs associated with Regular Employees. 

 
B. The City Manager, in his/her sole discretion, may designate certain employees 

as Limited-benefit Employees.  Salaries for Limited-benefit Employees as well as 
any increases/decreases in such salaries shall be determined by the City 
Manager in his/her sole discretion. 
 

C. Limited-benefit Employees shall not be considered members of any of the City‟s 
Pension Plans while serving as Limited-benefit Employees.  However, this shall 
not preclude Limited-benefit Employees from receiving a retirement benefit from 
a City Pension Plan for their years of service prior to being a Limited-benefit 
Employee. 
 

D. Limited-benefit Employees shall not be entitled to life insurance benefits, sick and 
vacation leave, holiday pay, bereavement leave or any other benefits offered to 
Regular Employees, except the following: 

 
1. If the Limited-benefit Employee regularly works more than thirty (30) 

hours per week, he or she will be provided health insurance benefits in 
accordance with the Affordable Care Act. 

2. Personal leave commensurate with a Regular Employee with like years 
of service with the City.  Personal leave not used during the fiscal year may 
not be carried over to the next fiscal year or cashed out. 

3. Assignment of a City Vehicle, or payment of a vehicle allowance if the 
City Manager determines in his/her sole discretion that the position requires 
such a vehicle or allowance. 

4. Except for pension benefits, other benefits as determined by the City 
Manager in his/her sole discretion. 

 
E. Limited-benefit Employees shall be at-will employees.  This means that the 

employment relationship may be terminated by either the employee or the City 
for any reason not expressly prohibited by law.  All federal, state and local 
employment laws shall be applicable to these Limited-benefit Employees. 

 
 



 10 

SECTION 23.  CONTRACT EMPLOYEES 
 
The City Manager may outsource current job positions if he/she determines in his/her 
sole discretion that outsourcing saves the City money, improves service quality and/or 
increases efficiency, subject to the City‟s Code.  
 
SECTION 24.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  
 
A. Upon the sole discretion of the City Manager, Unrepresented sworn Regular 

Employees of the Fire Rescue and Police Departments may be eligible to receive 
benefits at least equal in the City Manager‟s judgment to the generally prevailing 
salary incentives for respective Fire and Police Collective Bargaining Units, 
subject to availability of funds.  In the sole discretion of the City Manager, other 
Regular Employees may be eligible to receive GAME contract benefits, if any, 
which the City Manager may conclude exceeds the level of unrepresented 
benefits. 

B. All Employees will be permitted, at their own expense, to contribute to Roth IRAs 
and/or section 529 College Savings Plans through payroll deduction for any such 
program approved by the City Manager. 
 

C. Regular Employees may continue the option to convert to cash accrued paid 
leave up to 120 hours annually when a balance of no less than 80 hours per 
accrual bank remains and is subject to Department Director approval unless such 
employee is a participant in the City‟s Police or Fire Pension Plans, or a member 
of a Defined Benefit Plan that allows the deposit of accrued time by members, in 
which case, such employee is excluded from the option to cash-out such accrued 
sick, vacation and compensatory leave.  Regular Employees may likewise 
convert accrued vacation time to sick leave or vice versa, but converted hours 
are not subject to cash out and may be subject to accrual caps as outlined by 
City policy. 
 

D. Regular Employees shall have the option to convert to cash up to 80 hours of 
Position Basis Leave. 
 

E. The City Manager shall have the option to implement furlough days for Regular 
Employees in lieu of salary reductions. 
 

F. Other benefits currently in place for All Employees that are not addressed within 
this Pay Plan will remain unchanged, except by action of the City Commission 
amending the Comprehensive Pay Plan. 

 
G. This Comprehensive Pay Plan is the complete plan and supersedes all 

previously established pay plans for unrepresented employees (other than 
elected officials, whose salary and benefits shall continue to be governed by the 
FY 2015 CPP until an Ordinance is passed superseding the provisions that are 
contained therein pertaining to Elected Officials).  
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1008 ACCOUNTING MANAGER EXEMPT 28 66,629.86$      112,590.52$     

1011 ACCOUNTING SYSTEM ANALYST EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1012 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE SUPERVISOR NON-EXEMPT 16 43,971.61$      74,301.08$       

1345 ACTIVITY COORDINATOR NON-EXEMPT 14 40,194.67$      67,918.94$       

1402 ADMINISTRATION SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1149 ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1021 ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISOR NON-EXEMPT 15 42,082.52$      72,835.80$       

1490 ADULT DAY CARE SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1025 AQUATIC COORDINATOR EXEMPT 18 47,748.56$      80,682.35$       

1088 ARTS & EDUCATION ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1027 ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER EXEMPT 46 100,622.20$    186,924.13$     

1028 ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER EXEMPT 46 100,622.20$    186,924.13$     

1515 ASSISTANT DIR OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY EXEMPT 34 77,960.53$      140,874.98$     

1550 ASSISTANT DIR OF MANAGEMENT &  BUDGET EXEMPT 31 72,296.78$      127,289.63$     

1446 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR  OF   BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT & MARKETING EXEMPT 34 77,960.53$      140,874.98$     

1502 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT EXEMPT 31 72,296.78$      127,289.63$     

1445 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF CONSTRUCTION & FACILITIES MANAGEMENT EXEMPT 34 77,960.53$      140,874.98$     

1029 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS EXEMPT 31 72,296.78$      127,289.63$     

1030 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL SERVICES EXEMPT 34 77,960.53$      140,874.98$     

1031 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES EXEMPT 34 77,960.53$      140,874.98$     

1393 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF PARKS RECREATION EXEMPT 34 77,960.53$      140,874.98$     

1099 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF PROCUREMENT EXEMPT 34 77,960.53$      140,874.98$     

1032 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS EXEMPT 31 72,296.78$      127,289.63$     

1655 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES EXEMPT 34 77,960.53$      140,874.98$     

1084 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF UTILITIES EXEMPT 34 77,960.53$      140,874.98$     

1033 ASSISTANT FACILITIES MANAGER EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1448 ASSISTANT FIELD OPERATIONS MANAGER EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1449 ASSISTANT FIRE MARSHALL/PLANS EXAMINER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1381 ASSISTANT GRANTS MANAGER EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1382 ASSISTANT PAYROLL MANAGER EXEMPT 21 53,412.17$      90,255.68$       

1450 ASSISTANT PLANNER NON-EXEMPT 13 38,305.57$      64,727.12$       

1035 ASSISTANT POLICE CHIEF EXEMPT 36 81,738.23$      157,210.40$     

1036 ASSISTANT RISK MANAGER EXEMPT 26 62,858.45$      106,213.15$     

1037 ASSISTANT TREASURER EXEMPT 26 62,858.45$      106,213.15$     

1968 ASSISTANT UTILITY FIELD OPERATIONS MANAGER EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1038 ASSISTANT UTILITY MANAGER EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1039 ASSISTANT UTILITY PLANT MANAGER EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1040 ASSISTANT WATER SYSTEM MANAGER EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1042 ATHLETIC PROGRAM COORDINATOR EXEMPT 18 47,748.56$      80,682.35$       

1045 BENEFITS ANALYST EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1237 BOX OFFICE ASSISTANT NON-EXEMPT 7 28,249.00$      45,849.28$       

1399 BOX OFFICE MANAGER EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1401 BOX OFFICE SUPERVISOR NON-EXEMPT 15 42,082.52$      72,835.80$       

1434 BUDGET ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1503 BUDGET ANALYST I EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1383 BUDGET ANALYST II EXEMPT 21 53,412.17$      90,255.68$       

1057 BUDGET MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1050 BUILDING OFFICIAL EXEMPT 30 70,407.69$      123,166.05$     

1052 BUREAU ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1059 CHIEF ACCOUNTANT EXEMPT 30 70,407.69$      123,166.05$     

1060 CHIEF CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICER EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1062 CHIEF MECHANICAL INSPECTOR/ABO EXEMPT 28 66,629.86$      112,590.52$     

1482 CHIEF OF MARKETING & PUBLIC RELATIONS EXEMPT 46 100,622.20$    186,924.13$     

1063 CHIEF OPERATION OFFICER EXEMPT 41 91,180.23$      178,022.00$     

1064 CHIEF PLUMBING   INSPECTOR/ABO EXEMPT 28 66,629.86$      112,590.52$     

1451 CHIEF STRUCTURAL INSPECTOR/ABO EXEMPT 28 66,629.86$      112,590.52$     

1065 CITY CLERK EXEMPT 38 85,039.30$      143,698.26$     

1066 CITY ENGINEER EXEMPT 36 81,738.23$      157,210.40$     

1068 CIVIL ENGINEER III EXEMPT 20 51,524.23$      87,063.85$       

1570 CIVIL ENGINEER IV EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

Salary Schedule I
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1069 CLIENT SERVICES COORDINATOR III EXEMPT 20 51,524.23$      87,063.85$       

1572 CLIENT SERVICES MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1071 CODE COMPLIANCE MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1615 COMMUNITY RELATIONS & PROGRAM ADMINSTRATOR EXEMPT 28 66,629.86$      112,590.52$     

1087 COMMUNITY SERVICES ADMINISTRATION OFFICER EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1228 COMPLIANCE OFFICER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1435 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION MANAGER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1756 CREATIVE ARTS & GRAPHIC DESIGNER EXEMPT 21 53,412.17$      90,255.68$       

1427 CRIME PROGRAM ANALYST EXEMPT 20 51,524.23$      87,063.85$       

1089 CULTURAL AFFAIRS PROGRAM COORDINATOR EXEMPT 18 47,748.56$      80,682.35$       

1380 CULTURAL EVENT AIDE NON-EXEMPT 7 28,249.00$      45,849.28$       

1094 DEPARTMENT  BUDGET COORDINATOR EXEMPT 18 47,748.56$      80,682.35$       

1447 DEPARTMENT FINANCE COORDINATOR EXEMPT 18 47,748.56$      80,682.35$       

1095 DEPUTY CITY CLERK EXEMPT 26 62,858.45$      106,213.15$     

1096 DEPUTY CITY MANAGER EXEMPT 48 138,067.50$    217,556.25$     

1097 DEPUTY FIRE CHIEF EXEMPT 36 81,738.23$      157,210.40$     

1098 DEVELOPMENT & CAPITAL MANAGEMENT COORDINATOR EXEMPT 28 66,629.86$      112,590.52$     

1368 DEVELOPMENT ENGINEER EXEMPT 28 66,629.86$      112,590.52$     

1103 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT EXEMPT 40 89,291.14$      151,258.33$     

1101 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT EXEMPT 40 89,291.14$      151,258.33$     

1100 DIRECTOR OF CONSTRUCTION & FACILITIES MANAGEMENT EXEMPT 40 89,291.14$      151,258.33$     

1462 DIRECTOR OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS EXEMPT 38 85,039.30$      143,698.26$     

1105 DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES EXEMPT 38 85,039.30$      143,698.26$     

1106 DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL SERVICES EXEMPT 40 89,291.14$      151,258.33$     

1107 DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES EXEMPT 41 91,180.23$      178,022.00$     

1108 DIRECTOR OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY EXEMPT 40 89,291.14$      151,258.33$     

1281 DIRECTOR OF MANAGEMENT &  BUDGET EXEMPT 38 85,039.30$      143,698.26$     

1102 DIRECTOR OF PARKS AND RECREATION EXEMPT 40 89,291.14$      151,258.33$     

1104 DIRECTOR OF PARKS AND RECREATION EXEMPT 36 81,738.23$      157,210.40$     

1109 DIRECTOR OF PROCUREMENT EXEMPT 38 85,039.30$      143,698.26$     

1110 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY EXEMPT 46 100,622.20$    186,924.13$     

1111 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS EXEMPT 40 89,291.14$      151,258.33$     

1112 DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES EXEMPT 38 85,039.30$      143,698.26$     

1113 DIRECTOR OF UTILITIES EXEMPT 43 96,845.14$      163,645.01$     

1115 DIVISION MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1123 EARLY CHILDHOOD SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1132 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLANNER EXEMPT 20 51,524.23$      87,063.85$       

1392 ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN FT NON-EXEMPT 15 42,082.52$      72,835.80$       

1513 EVENTS SERVICES MANAGER EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1424 EVENTS& VENUE PROMOTIONS ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1966 EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1140 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER NON-EXEMPT 15 42,082.52$      72,835.80$       

1141 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO CITY MANAGER NON-EXEMPT 17 45,859.45$      77,899.63$       

1142 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO DEPARTMENT NON-EXEMPT 14 40,194.67$      67,918.94$       

1395 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO DIRECTOR NON-EXEMPT 14 40,194.67$      67,918.94$       

1144 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO FIRE CHIEF NON-EXEMPT 15 42,082.52$      72,835.80$       

1145 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO POLICE CHIEF NON-EXEMPT 15 42,082.52$      72,835.80$       

1146 FACILITIES MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1147 FACILITIES PLANNER NON-EXEMPT 15 42,082.52$      72,835.80$       

1148 FAMILY SERVICES SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1174 FIELD SERVICES MANAGER EXEMPT 28 66,629.86$      112,590.52$     

1264 FIELD SERVICES SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1153 FIRE CHIEF EXEMPT 41 91,180.23$      178,022.00$     

1156 FIRE COMM TECHNOLOGIST EXEMPT 21 53,412.17$      90,255.68$       

1158 FIRE DIVISION CHIEF EXEMPT 33 76,073.73$      148,144.28$     

1161 FIRE MARSHAL EXEMPT 31 72,296.78$      127,289.63$     

1305 FISCAL OPERATIONS MANAGER EXEMPT 26 62,858.45$      106,213.15$     

1334 FISCAL OPERATIONS MANAGER EXEMPT 26 62,858.45$      106,213.15$     

1431 FLEET SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1372 FOOD  &  BEVERAGE SUPVERSIOR NON-EXEMPT 15 42,082.52$      72,835.80$       
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1171 FOOD &   BEVERAGE OPERATIONS MANAGER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1137 FOOD & BEVERAGE SERVICES COORDINATOR NON-EXEMPT 14 40,194.67$      67,918.94$       

1172 GENERAL MANAGER EXEMPT 30 70,407.69$      123,166.05$     

1176 GIS ANALYST II EXEMPT 21 53,412.17$      90,255.68$       

1177 GIS DATABASE ADMINISTRATOR II EXEMPT 21 53,412.17$      90,255.68$       

1181 GRANT/ACCREDITATION MANAGER EXEMPT 26 62,858.45$      106,213.15$     

1182 GRANTS COORDINATOR NON-EXEMPT 17 45,859.45$      77,899.63$       

1180 GRANTS MANAGER EXEMPT 30 70,407.69$      123,166.05$     

1506 HELP DESK MANAGER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1189 HR ANALYST II EXEMPT 18 47,748.56$      80,682.35$       

1190 HR COORDINATOR NON-EXEMPT 13 38,305.57$      64,727.12$       

1488 HR GENERALIST EXEMPT 26 62,858.45$      106,213.15$     

1192 HR MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1282 HR OFFICER EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1480 HR REPRESENTATIVE EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1397 HUMAN RESOURCES ASSISTANT NON-EXEMPT 7 28,249.00$      45,849.28$       

1492 INFORMATION SECURITY MANAGER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1491 INFORMATION SYSTEMS MANAGER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1193 INTERNAL AUDITOR EXEMPT 38 85,039.30$      143,698.26$     

1311 IT ANALYST I EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1312 IT ANALYST II EXEMPT 21 53,412.17$      90,255.68$       

1283 IT ANALYST III EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1370 IT ANALYST PRINCIPAL EXEMPT 26 62,858.45$      106,213.15$     

1496 LANDSCAPE & GROUNDS SPECIALIST NON-EXEMPT 17 45,859.45$      77,899.63$       

1612 MARKETING COORDINATOR NON-EXEMPT 13 38,305.57$      64,727.12$       

1225 MEDIA COORDINATOR EXEMPT 21 53,412.17$      90,255.68$       

1493 MULTIMEDIA AND  BROADCAST MGER EXEMPT 30 70,407.69$      123,166.05$     

1229 NETWORK & INFRASTRUCTURE SECURITY PLANNER EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1421 OFFICE ASSISTANT FT NON-EXEMPT 6 26,650.00$      42,082.40$       

1347 OFFICE SPECIALIST NON-EXEMPT 11 34,529.76$      58,347.69$       

1454 OPERATIONS & LOGICSTICS MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1439 OPERATIONS LOGISTICS COORDINATOR NON-EXEMPT 9 30,596.84$      51,701.60$       

1232 OPERATIONS MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1227 OPERATIONS SERVICE ADMINSTR EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1233 OPERATIONS SYSTEM MANAGER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1270 PARKS & RECREATION ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1299 PARKS SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1242 PLANNER I NON-EXEMPT 15 42,082.52$      72,835.80$       

1243 PLANNER II NON-EXEMPT 17 45,859.45$      77,899.63$       

1385 POLICE ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 18 47,748.56$      80,682.35$       

1248 POLICE CAPTAIN EXEMPT 31 72,296.78$      127,289.63$     

1249 POLICE CHIEF EXEMPT 41 91,180.23$      178,022.00$     

1250 POLICE MAJOR EXEMPT 33 76,073.73$      148,144.28$     

1253 POLICE PLANNER EXEMPT 20 51,524.23$      87,063.85$       

1509 PRINCIPAL   BUDGET ANALYST EXEMPT 26 62,858.45$      106,213.15$     

1507 PRINCIPAL PLANNER EXEMPT 28 66,629.86$      112,590.52$     

1416 PROCESS IMPROVEMENT ANALYST EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1255 PROCUREMENT ANALYST EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1426 PROCUREMENT ANALYST II EXEMPT 23 57,189.88$      95,820.08$       

1422 PRODUCTION & OPERATIONS MANAGER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1423 PRODUCTION ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 26 62,858.45$      106,213.15$     

1398 PRODUCTION MANAGER EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1400 PRODUCTION SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1585 PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1461 PROGRAM MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1494 PROGRAM PRODUCER EXEMPT 30 70,407.69$      123,166.05$     

1258 PROGRAMMING ENGINEER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1259 PROJECT ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1175 PROJECT COORDINATOR NON-EXEMPT 9 30,596.84$      51,701.60$       

1260 PROJECT MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     



City of Miramar 

Human Resources Department 

Comprehensive Pay Plan

 FY 2016

Salary Schedule I

Job Class 

Number Position Title Exempt Status Grade

 Minimum 

Salary 

 Maximum 

Salary 

1261 PROJECT MANAGER III EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1263 PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER EXEMPT 33 76,073.73$      148,144.28$     

1396 PW OUTREACH ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1487 RECEPTIONIST NON-EXEMPT 6 26,650.00$      42,082.40$       

1444 RECYCLING COORDINATOR NON-EXEMPT 13 38,305.57$      64,727.12$       

1276 REGIONAL PARK MANAGER EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1366 REGULATORY COMPLIANCE SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1412 REPORTING & TRAINING OFFICER EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1379 RISK MANAGEMENT CLAIMS ANALYST EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1279 SENIOR  BUDGET ANALYST EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1553 SENIOR ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER EXEMPT 30 70,407.69$      123,166.05$     

1600 SENIOR COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER EXEMPT 30 70,407.69$      123,166.05$     

SENIOR HR MANAGER EXEMPT 30 70,407.69$      123,166.05$     

1285 SENIOR PLANNER EXEMPT 21 53,412.17$      90,255.68$       

1477 SENIOR PROCUREMENT ANALYST EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1499 SENIOR SALES MANAGER EXEMPT 30 70,407.69$      123,166.05$     

1288 SENIOR SERVICES SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1489 SENIOR TALENT ACQUISITION SPECIALIST EXEMPT 26 62,858.45$      106,213.15$     

1221 SOCIAL MEDIA MANAGER EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1294 SOCIAL SERVICES OPERATIONS MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1295 SOCIAL SERVICES PROGRAM COORD EXEMPT 18 47,748.56$      80,682.35$       

1016 SOCIAL SERVICES PROGRAM MANAGER EXEMPT 27 64,744.13$      109,402.35$     

1297 SOLID WASTE MANAGER EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1468 SOLID WASTE TECHNICIAN NON-EXEMPT 11 34,529.76$      58,347.69$       

1220 SR MARKETING & PU  LIC REL MANAGER EXEMPT 30 70,407.69$      123,166.05$     

1302 STRATEGIC ADMINISTRATION OFFICER EXEMPT 41 91,180.23$      178,022.00$     

1303 STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT OFFICER EXEMPT 34 77,960.53$      140,874.98$     

1436 STRATEGIC PLANNING ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1304 STRATEGIC PLANNING MANAGER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1457 STREETS & DRAINAGE ENGINEER EXEMPT 31 72,296.78$      127,289.63$     

1314 TELECOMMUNICATIONS MANAGER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1173 TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT COORDINATOR EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1315 TRAINING COORDINATOR NON-EXEMPT 17 45,859.45$      77,899.63$       

1316 TRAINING SPECIALIST NON-EXEMPT 17 45,859.45$      77,899.63$       

1170 TRANSPORTATION  ADMIN SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1443 TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR NON-EXEMPT 13 38,305.57$      64,727.12$       

1498 TRANSPORTATION MANAGER EXEMPT 24 59,299.33$      96,845.08$       

1320 TREASURER/ACCOUNTS PAYABLE MANAGER EXEMPT 34 77,960.53$      140,874.98$     

1321 UASI INVENTORY COORDINATOR NON-EXEMPT 17 45,859.45$      77,899.63$       

1322 UASI PROGRAM MANAGER EXEMPT 20 51,524.23$      87,063.85$       

1324 UTILITY  BILLING MANAGER EXEMPT 22 55,300.41$      94,795.08$       

1328 UTILITY  BILLING SUPERVISOR NON-EXEMPT 16 43,971.61$      74,301.08$       

1418 UTILITY ENGINEER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1329 UTILITY FIELD OPERATIONS MANAGER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1555 UTLITY SERVICE ADMINISTRATOR EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1335 VICTIM ADVOCATE II NON-EXEMPT 15 42,082.52$      72,835.80$       

1339 WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       

1353 WATER RESOURCES MANAGER EXEMPT 29 68,519.84$      115,782.74$     

1484 WATER SYSTEM SUPERINTENDENT EXEMPT 19 49,636.40$      83,873.54$       
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1024 AQUATIC ATTENDANT - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1378 BANQUET SERVER NON-EXEMPT PT 23,400.00      15.00              

1376 BARTENDER NON-EXEMPT PT 23,400.00      15.00              

1237 BOX OFFICE ASSISTANT-PT NON-EXEMPT PT 19,843.20      12.72              

BUILDING MAINTENANCE TRAINEE NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1377 CHEF NON-EXEMPT PT 23,400.00      15.00              

1125 CLIENT SERVICES COORD  PT NON-EXEMPT PT 28,080.00      18.00              

1428 CONTRACT PROJECT MANAGER EXEMPT PT 59,997.60      38.46              

1464 CONTRACTOR NON-EXEMPT PT 32,760.00      21.00              

1090 CULTURAL ARTS AIDE - PART-TIME NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1091 CUSTODIAN - PART-TIME NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1364 CUSTOMER SERVICE SUPPORT NON-EXEMPT PT 28,080.00      18.00              

1386 DATA ENTRY CLERK NON-EXEMPT PT 23,400.00      15.00              

1120 EARLY CHILDHOOD  HOUSEKEEPING AIDE PT NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1118 EARLY CHILDHOOD AIDE II - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 20,124.00 12.90              

1119 EARLY CHILDHOOD AIDE III - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 20,748.00      13.30              

1121 EARLY CHILDHOOD INSTRUCT I PT NON-EXEMPT PT 21,450.00      13.75              

1122 EARLY CHILDHOOD INSTRUCT II PT NON-EXEMPT PT 22,230.00      14.25              

1116 EARLY CHLD CURR SPECIALIST PT NON-EXEMPT PT 22,308.00      14.30              

1126 EDUCATION INSTRUCTOR - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 31,200.00      20.00              

1136 EVENT AIDE-PT NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1440 FIELD SERVICE WORKER-PT NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1179 GRANT ASSISTANT-PT NON-EXEMPT PT 23,400.00      15.00              

1511 GRANT ANALYST-PT NON-EXEMPT PT 32,760.00      21.00              

HR COORDINATOR  PT NON-EXEMPT PT 28,080.00      18.00              

1373 LEAD USHER NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1408 LEGISLATIVE SECRETARY- PT NON-EXEMPT PT 34,320.00      22.00              

SALARY SCHEDULE II
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Job Class 

Number Position Title

Exempt 

Status Grade

 Minimum 

Salary 

 Mininum 

Hourly Rate 

1207 LIFEGUARD - PART-TIME NON-EXEMPT PT 21,060.00      13.50              

1218 MAINTENANCE TRAINEE - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1219 MAINTENANCE WORKER-PT NON-EXEMPT PT 21,418.80      13.73              

1313 MIS ANALYST II-PT NON-EXEMPT PT 54,600.00      35.00              

1362 MIS LABOR TEMP NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1231 OFFICE AIDE III NON-EXEMPT PT 20,748.00      13.30              

1234 PARK AIDE II - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 20,124.00 12.90              

1235 PARK AIDE III - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 20,748.00      13.30              

1236 PARK RANGER - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 21,450.00      13.75              

1252 POLICE OFFICER-PT NON-EXEMPT PT 34,226.40      21.94              

1427 PRIME ANALYST NON-EXEMPT PT 38,251.20      24.52              

1416 PROCESS IMPROVEMENT ANALYST PT EXEMPT PT 47,377.20      30.37              

1486 PRODUCTION ASSISTANT-PT NON-EXEMPT PT 23,400.00      15.00              

1267 RECREATION AIDE I - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1268 RECREATION AIDE II - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 20,124.00      12.90              

1269 RECREATION AIDE III - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 20,748.00      13.30              

1286 SENIOR PROCURE ANALYST - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 43,383.60      27.81              

1420 SOCIAL SERVICES AIDE I NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1293 SOCIAL SERVICES AIDE II - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 20,124.00      12.90              

1475 SOCIAL SERVICES AIDE III - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 20,748.00      13.30              

SPECIAL EVENTS AIDE NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1403 STAGE ASSISTANT I NON-EXEMPT PT 24,960.00      16.00              

1404 STAGE ASSISTANT II NON-EXEMPT PT 28,080.00      18.00              

1405 STAGE ASSISTANT III NON-EXEMPT PT 34,320.00      22.00              

1406 STAGE ASSISTANT IV NON-EXEMPT PT 35,880.00      23.00              

1470 UTILITIES INTERN NON-EXEMPT PT 19,500.00      12.50              

1354 WATER SAFETY INSTRUCTOR - PT NON-EXEMPT PT 25,740.00      16.50              

Fdejean
Typewritten Text



7.
PUBLIC HEARING

March 23, 2016
CITY OF MIRAMAR

PROPOSED CITY COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

Meeting Date: March 23, 2016

Second Reading Date: N/A

Presenter’s Name and Title: Eric Silva, Director, on behalf of Community and 
Economic Development Department  

Temp Reso Number: 5992

Item Description:   Temp. Reso. No.5992, ADOPTING THE LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PLAN 
("LHAP") FOR THE CITY OF MIRAMAR'S STATE HOUSING INITIATIVES PARTNERSHIP ("SHIP") 
PROGRAM FOR FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017, 2017-2018, AND 2018-2019; AUTHORIZING 
SUBMISSION OF THE LHAP TO THE FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION. (Community 
and Economic Development Director Eric Silva)

Consent Resolution Ordinance Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing 

Summary Explanation and Background: The State Housing Initiatives Partnership ("SHIP") Act 
requires local governments to adopt a one to three-year Local Housing Assistance Plan ("LHAP") outlining 
the anticipated utilization of funds.  The existing LHAP expires on June 30, 2016.  The proposed LHAP 
covers the next three fiscal years and retains all of the existing housing strategies (i.e., housing 
rehabilitation, purchase assistance, foreclosure prevention, security and/or utility deposits, and disaster 
mitigation) and two new strategies; namely, Emergency Repair and Community Land Trust, highlighted in 
yellow. The proposed LHAP also includes some technical revisions as provided by SHIP, and changes to 
the terms and income categories. The incentives strategies have been updated to include approved 
recommendations from the 2015 Affordable Housing Advisory Committee.

Instructions for the Office of the City Clerk: Public notice and hearing required by 
Federal Regulation 24 CFR 91 Subpart B.

Public Notice – As Required by Sec.  N/A of the City Code  and/or Sec. N/A, Florida Statutes, public notice for this item was 

provided as follows: on February 7, 2016, in a display ad in the Miami Herald and the Sun Sentinel; by posting the property on N/A

and/or by sending mailed notice to property owners within N/A feet of the property on N/A.  (Fill in all that apply)

Special Voting Requirement – As required by Sec. N/A, of the City Code and/or Sec. N/A Florida Statutes, approval of this item 

requires a N/A (unanimous 4/5ths etc. vote of the City Commission.

Fiscal Impact:  Yes No 

REMARKS: 

Content: 
•  Agenda Item Memo from the City Manager to City Commission



•  Resolution TR 5992
 - Exhibit A: SHIP Local Housing Assistance Plan (LHAP) 2016-2017, 2017-

2018, and 2018-2019
•  Attachment(s)

 - Attachment 1: Public Notice







Temp. Reso. No. 5992
02/12/16

CITY OF MIRAMAR
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA

RESOLUTION NO. _______

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE LOCAL HOUSING 
ASSISTANCE PLAN ("LHAP") FOR THE CITY OF MIRAMAR'S STATE 
HOUSING INITIATIVES PARTNERSHIP ("SHIP") PROGRAM FOR 
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017, 2017-2018, AND 2018-2019; 
AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF THE LHAP TO THE FLORIDA 
HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Act, Sections 

420.907-420.9079, Florida Statutes, and Rule 67-37 of the Florida Administrative Code, 

entitled “State Housing Initiatives Partnership Program”, require local governments to 

develop a one to three-year Local Housing Assistance Plan outlining the anticipated 

utilization of funds; and

WHEREAS, the SHIP Act requires local governments to establish the maximum 

SHIP funds allowable for each housing strategy; and

WHEREAS, local governments are required by the State of Florida to submit an 

action plan, entitled “Local Housing Assistance Plan”, covering fiscal years 2016-2017, 

2017-2018 and 2018-2019; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends adopting the Local Housing 

Assistance Plan for fiscal years 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019, attached as  

Exhibit “A” (the “LHAP”), and authorizing the appropriate City officials to submit the 

LHAP to the Florida Housing Finance Corporation; and

Reso. No. _____
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02/12/16

WHEREAS, the City Commission deems it in the best interest of the citizens and 

residents of the City of Miramar to adopt the LHAP for fiscal years 2016-2017, 2017-

2018 and 2018-2019, attached as Exhibit “A”, and to authorize the appropriate City 

officials to submit the LHAP to the Florida Housing Finance Corporation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF MIRAMAR, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed 

as being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Resolution.

Section 2: That the LHAP for fiscal years 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-

2019, attached as Exhibit “A”, is adopted.

Section 3: That the appropriate City officials are authorized to submit the 

LHAP to the Florida Housing Finance Corporation.

Section 4: That the appropriate City officials are authorized to do all things 

necessary and expedient to carry out the aims of this Resolution.

Reso. No. _____                                    2
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Section 5: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ____________________, 2016.

________________________________
Mayor, Wayne M. Messam

________________________________
Vice Mayor, Darline B. Riggs

ATTEST:

______________________________  
City Clerk, Denise A. Gibbs

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have 
approved this RESOLUTION 
as to form:

_______________________________
City Attorney
Weiss Serota Helfman
Cole & Bierman, P.L.

Requested by Administration Voted
Commissioner Winston F. Barnes _____
Commissioner Maxwell B. Chambers _____
Commissioner Yvette Colbourne _____
Vice Mayor Darline B. Riggs _____
Mayor Wayne M. Messam _____

Reso. No. _____ 3
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I, 	Program Details: 

A. Name of the participating local government: 

The City of Miramar 

Is there an Interlocal Agreement: 	Yes x 	No 

B. Purpose of the program: 
I. To meet the housing needs of the very low, low, and moderate income households; 
2. To expand production of and preserve affordable housing; and 
3. To further the housing element of the local government comprehensive plan specific to 

affordable housing. 

C. Fiscal years covered by the Plan: 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 

D. Governance: 
The SHIP Program is established in accordance with Section 420.907-9079, Florida Statutes 
and Chapter 67-37, Florida Administrative Code. Cities and Counties must be in compliance 
with these applicable statutes, rules and any additional requirements as established through 
the Legislative process. 

E. Local Housing Partnership: 
The SHIP Program encourages building active partnerships between government, lenders, 
builders and developers, real estate professionals, advocates for low-income persons and 
community groups. 

F. Leveraging: 
The Plan is intended to increase the availability of affordable residential units by combining 
local resources and cost saving measures into a local housing partnership and using public 
and private funds to reduce the cost of housing. SHIP funds may be leveraged with or used 
to supplement other Florida Housing Finance Corporation programs and to provide local 
match to obtain federal housing grants or programs. 

G. Public Input: 
Public input was solicited through face to face meetings with housing providers, social 
service providers and local lenders and neighborhood associations. Public input was 
solicited through the local newspaper in the advertising of the Local Housing Assistance 
Plan and the Notice of Funding Availability. 

H. Advertising and Outreach: 
SHIP funding availability shall be advertised in a newspaper of general circulation and 
periodicals serving ethnic and diverse neighborhoods, at least 30 days before the beginning 
of the application period. If no funding is available due to a waiting list, no notice of funding 
availability is required. 

1. Waiting List/Priorities: 
A waiting list will be established when there are eligible applicants for strategies that no 
longer have funding available. Those households on the waiting list will be notified of their 
status. Applicants will be maintained in an order that is consistent with the time applications 
were submitted as well as any established funding priorities as described in this plan. 

am 
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Priorities for funding described here apply to all strategies unless otherwise stated in the 
strategy: The City of Miramar will not maintain waiting lists. 

The City of Miramar will accept applications following the public notice period. Applicants 
will have 21 days from date of Intake Appointment to submit all required documentation in 
order to be deemed eligible. 

J. Discrimination: 
In accordance with the provisions of ss.760.20-760.37, it is unlawful to discriminate on the 
basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap, or marital status in the 
award application process for eligible housing. 

K. Support Services and Counseling: 
Support services are available from various sources. Available support services may include 
but are not limited to: Homeownership Counseling (Pre and Post and Green Housing), 
Budget/Credit Counseling, Construction Services Home Inspections and Work 
Specifications for Rehabilitation/Barrier Free Accessibility Modifications, and Tenant 
Counseling. 

L. Purchase Price Limits: 
The sales price or value of new or existing eligible housing may not exceed 90% of the 
average area purchase price in the statistical area in which the eligible housing is located. 
Such average area purchase price may be that calculated for any 12-month period beginning 
not earlier than the fourth calendar year prior to the year in which the award occurs. The 
sales price of new and existing units, which can be lower but may not exceed 90% of the 
median area purchase price established by the U.S. Treasury Department or as described 
above. 

The purchase price limit that is established by the U.S. Treasury Department is not to be 
misconstrued as the target price for affordable housing in the City of Miramar. One of the 
objectives of the City’s housing program is not to develop policies that concentrate income 
groups within the City into one area. Raising the limits promotes housing choices for 
purchase assistance applicants, promotes mixed-income communities and provides an 
opportunity to assist more owner-occupied households in areas where assessed housing 
values have greatly appreciated but residents still fall into very low, low and moderate 
income categories based on income data provided by the Federal government. 

The methodology used is: 
U. S. Treasury Department 

Local HFA Numbers 

M. Income Limits, Rent Limits and Affordability: 
The Income and Rent Limits used in the SHIP Program are updated annually by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development and posted at www.floridahousing.org . 

Affordable means that monthly rents or mortgage payments including taxes and insurance do 
not exceed 30 percent of that amount which represents the percentage of the median annual 
gross income for the households as indicated in Sections 420.9071, F.S. However, it is not 
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the intent to limit an individual household’s ability to devote more than 30% of its income 
for housing, and housing for which a household devotes more than 30% of its income shall 
be deemed Affordable if the first institutional mortgage lender is satisfied that the household 
can afford mortgage payments in excess of the 30% benchmark and in the case of rental 
housing does not exceed those rental limits adjusted for bedroom size. 

N. Welfare Transition Program: 
Should an eligible sponsor be used, a qualification system and selection criteria for 
applications for Awards to eligible sponsors shall be developed, which includes a description 
that demonstrates how eligible sponsors that employ personnel from the Welfare Transition 
Program will be given preference in the selection process. 

0. Monitoring and First Right of Refusal: 
In the case of rental housing, the staff and any entity that has administrative authority for 
implementing the local housing assistance plan assisting rental developments shall annually 
monitor and determine tenant eligibility or, to the extent another governmental entity 
provides the same monitoring and determination, a municipality, county or local housing 
financing authority may rely on such monitoring and determination of tenant eligibility. 
However, any loan or grant in the original amount of $4,500 or less shall not be subject to 
these annual monitoring and determination of tenant eligibility requirements. Tenant 
eligibility will be monitored annually for no less than 15 years or the term of assistance 
whichever is longer unless as specified above. 

Eligible sponsors that offer rental housing for sale before 15 years or that have remaining 
mortgages funded under this program must give a first right of refusal to eligible nonprofit 
organizations for purchase at the current market value for continued occupancy by eligible 
persons. 

P. Administrative Budget: 
A line-item budget of proposed Administrative Expenditures is attached as Exhibit A. 
The City of Miramar 	finds that the moneys deposited in the local housing assistance trust 
fund shall be used to administer and implement the local housing assistance plan. 
Section 420.9075 Florida Statute and Chapter 67-37, Florida Administrative Code, 
states: 
"A county or an eligible municipality may not exceed the 5 percent limitation on 
administrative costs, unless its governing body finds, by resolution, that 5 percent of the local 
housing distribution plus 5 percent of program income is insufficient to adequately pay the 
necessary costs of administering the local housing assistance plan." 
Section 420,9075 Florida Statute and Chapter 67-37, Florida Administrative Code, 
further states: 
"The cost of administering the program may not exceed 10 percent of the local housing 
distribution plus 5 percent of program income deposited into the trust fund, except that small 
counties, as defined in s. 120.52(17), and eligible municipalities receiving a local housing 
distribution of up to $350,000 may use up to 10 percent of program income for 
administrative costs." 
The applicable local jurisdiction has adopted the above findings in the resolution attached as 
Exhibit E (If changed from the original creating ordinance). 

Q. Program Administration: 
Administration of the local housing assistance plan will be wholly performed and maintained 
by the City. 
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A third party entity or consultant will be contracted for all or part of the administration of the 
program. The name of the entity is: Community Redevelopment Associates of Florida, Inc. 

The administrative duties they will provide are: 

R. Project Delivery Costs: In addition to the administrative costs listed above, a reasonable project 
delivery cost will be charged to cover inspections performed for rehabilitation projects. The 
fee will be included in the amount of the recorded mortgage and note. The City’s 
Consultant’s are responsible for the following (as outlined in Contract); 

Preparation of Local Housing Assistance Plan Including Assisting C&ED 
Department with the Development and Revision of Strategies. 

� 	Implementation of Local Housing Assistance Plan Strategies. 

� 	Facilitate the Selection and Monitoring of Sponsors and Counseling Services. 

� 	Maintain SHIP Tracking Report. 

� 	Reconcile SHIP Tracking with Finance. 

� 	Authorize Payments for SHIP Expenditure. 

� 	Conduct Marketing and Outreach of Programs. 

� 	Preparation of SHIP Annual Reports, 

S. Essential Service Personnel Definition: For purpose of SHIP funding, the city considers the 
following groups as Essential Services to our city: First Responders, Educators in K-12, 
Health Care and Social Assistance, Accommodation and Food Services, Active Military, 
National Guard stationed in the county. 

T. Describe efforts to incorporate Green Building and Energy Saving products and processes: The 
City will, when economically feasible, employ the following Green Building requirements 
on rehabilitation and emergency repairs: 

1. Energy Star qualified appliances - refrigerators, stoves, water heaters, 
2. Ceiling fans in living and bedrooms 
3. Motion sensor light switches 
4. Cool roofing - single polymer cover or elastomeric coating 
5. Programmable thermostat 
6. WaterSense Faucets, Toilets, shower heads 
7. Green Label Certified Floor Coverings 
8. Mold/Lead/Asbestos Removal 
9. Extended warranty items 
10. Quality standards for materials 
II. New construction projects that are accessible by public transportation 

These requirements may be adjusted for rental developments if the requirements of other 
construction funding sources require a more prescriptive list. 

-6- 
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Section II. LHAP Strategies: 

A. 

Owner Occupied Rehabilitation 	 Code 3,11 

a. Summary of Strategy: SHIP funds will be awarded to households in need of repairs to 
correct code violations, health and safety issues, electrical, plumbing, roofing, windows 
and other structural items. The primary purpose of the program is to provide repairs 
necessary to provide safe and decent housing, eliminate any instances of substandard 
housing, and preserve the City’s affordable housing stock. 

Loan funds shall be used to fund the following repairs/improvements subject to funding 
availability: 

1. Eliminate building code violations. 
2. Replace damaged roofs. 
3. Repair/Replace/Install windows/door openings (Storm Mitigation) 
4. Repair, upgrade, or replace major building systems, as necessary. 

Major building systems include: Structural, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Heating, Ventilation, Air Conditioning and Sewer Systems. 

5. Abate any health and safety issues in the home. 
6. Address emergency conditions as determined by City’s Building Department. 
7. Painting will be limited to the exterior of the home. Interior painting will be 

addressed only as part of interior repair/rehabilitation. 
8. Prevent weather penetration; promote energy efficiency/green initiatives as 

described below, including the use of Energy Star products in the home. 

Repairs and Improvements: Owner-occupied households, assisted in the order in 
which they applied for the program, will receive an inspection. Repair work 
specifications will address the program priorities above. 

Demolition/Reconstruction: The City has instances where homeowners purchased 
units where spaces such as garages or carports, were illegally converted to create 
additional rooms. These are considered code violations and will be corrected by 
reconstructing the illegal addition(s) to a legal room addition. If the option to 
legalize the structure exceeds 50% of the maximum allowable grant amount, the HO 
will be given the opportunity to either bring the room(s) back to its permissible use 
or to opt out of the program. In the event that reverting the structure back to its 
permissible use exceeds 50% of the maximum allowable grant amount, the home 
owner will not be permitted to move forward. City gjay approve deviation on a case 
by case basis when there is elderly, disabled, mold or life/safety issues present. 

Substantial Repairs, Economically Unfeasible Repairs/Replacement Housing: 
Inventory of the homes in the City’s target area do not suggest that there are 
structurally unsound units that need to be replaced. However, should a situation like 
this occur where code, healthy/safety priority repairs are substantial (more than 50% 
of the value of the home); the unit may be assisted. 
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If repairs exceed the cost to replace the home, the home may be assisted under the 
City’s home repair programs. The household may be assisted under another 
strategy, where the home can be acquired, demolished to provide for safe 
replacement housing or receive assistance in purchasing a new home. 

If a household must be temporarily or permanently relocated, the guidelines of the 
City’s uniform relocation policy will apply. 

The Community & Economic Development Director or his designee has the sole 
discretion as to the award/improvements to be made, with priority given to code and 
life threatening or health and safety issues and to owner-occupied households where 
elderly and/or disabled residents reside. 

Prior to repairs, all homes shall be inspected and work specifications will be written 
for each project. Work specifications shall focus on priority repairs unless in the 
case where a waiting list exists and an emergency determination has been made by 
the City. In these cases, only the emergency issue will be inspected and 
specifications for the emergency issue will be addressed in the work specification. 

Change Orders 

Cumulative change orders greater than 10% above the original contract amount will 
be paid by City only if those repairs are necessary to correct code violations to meet 
local property standards, or address issues that could not be accurately assessed 
before the work started. Change orders will not be granted for purely cosmetic 
repairs. The City reserves the right to reject a change order that does not address 
code or property standard issues. Change orders are paid only when prior approval 
from owner, home inspector, and City is on file. Change orders for non code 
violations or health and safety issues will be denied. The purpose of the initial 
inspection is to provide a thorough list of eligible repairs that the owner agrees upon 
before work goes out to bid. 

Where SHIP assistance is leveraged with federal sources and housing units are 
required to be brought up to code at time of assistance, repairs will be inspected to 
meet local housing code and local property standards. HOME funds cannot be used 
to leverage SHIP dollars for emergency repairs. In addition when funds are 
leveraged, lead based paint, asbestos, environmental and historic preservation 
regulations will be complied with per the site specific environmental review 
checklist maintained in each file and part of the City’s Environmental Review 
Record (ERR). 

The City intends to leverage SHIP funds, with Community Development Block 
Grant, HOME Investment Partnership, and other available Federal and State 
Resources that support rehabilitation activities where feasible. 

Repairs are considered complete once all work has been inspected according to 
specifications or emergency situation specified and necessary building permits have 
been finalized by the City’s Building Department. Final inspections by the 
program’s inspector will be requested by staff upon receipt of invoice package, final 
release of liens and owner’s satisfaction. Any items not completed per 
specifications, must be completed and re-inspected prior to close-out. 
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Partial Payments and Draw Schedules 

Contractors may be entitled to one draw request per project. All invoices for work 
not I 00% completed must be have an in-progress inspection to be processed for 
payment. The remainder of the project will be invoiced when 100% complete. 

b. Fiscal Years Covered: 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019

c. Income Categories to be served: Very-low, Low

d. Maximum award: $50,000

e. Terms

1. Loan/grant: Funds will be awarded as a deferred loan secured by a recorded
subordinate m01igage and note.

2. Interest Rate: 0%

3. Term: 10 years

4. Forgiveness/Repayment: The loan is forgivable in its entirety at the end of
(10) ten years from the recordation date of mortgage and note. There will be
no yearly write-down of the loan. Full repayment of the loan is due if the
home is sold, title is transferred or conveyed, or the home ceases to be the
primary residence of the owner during the ten (10) year occupancy period.

Homeowners, who have received assistance from the City, cannot re-apply 
for ten (10) years. Homeowners who have received assistance may 
re-apply prior to the ten (10) year time limit ONLY in cases where 
emergency repairs are needed as determined by the City's Building 
Official or his designee, Special Needs applicants cannot re-apply for five 
(5) years. 

5. Default/Recapture: Projects under $5,000 may be granted and will not 
require the signing or recordation of the program's mortgage and note.

The loan will be determined to be in default if any of the following occurs 
during the Loan term: sale, transfer, or conveyance of property; conversion 
to a rental property; loss of homestead exemption status; or failure to occupy 
the home as primary residence. If any of these occur, the outstanding 
balance will be due and payable.

In cases where the qualifying homeowner(s) die(s) during the loan term, the 
loan may be assumed by a SHIP eligible heir who will occupy the home as a 
primary residence. If the legal heir is not SHIP eligible or chooses not to 
occupy the home, the outstanding balance of the loan will be due and 
payable.

In the event of default where there is failure to make required payments on a 
loan secured by a first mortgage which leads to foreclosure and/or loss of 
property ownership, the City may foreclose to recover funds made available 
for assistance which is secured by mortgage and note on the property. 

- 9 -
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Special Needs Owner-Occupied Households: Assistance is in the form of 
a 5 year, 0% interest deferred loan, written down each year. 

f. Recipient Selection Criteria: Applicants will be ranked for assistance based on a
first-qualified, first-served basis with the priorities for Special Needs, Essential
Services Personnel and income groups as described in section I. (I) of this plan.

Applications must be I 00% complete to be certified eligible for the program. 
Additional information may be requested upon review of application to determine 
program eligibility. 

Property must be owner occupied. Verification of ownership, income, homeowners 
insurance, flood insurance (if required) and payment of prope11y taxes will be 
conducted to determine eligibility. A warranty deed, or quit claim deed will be 
utilized to verify ownership and primary residences should maintain homestead 
exemption. Life Estates also quality. Hazard and flood insurance should be in place 
at time of award and be maintained as long as first and/or second mortgage remains 
on property. If a property is not required to have flood insurance then the file will be 
documented that flood insurance is not required. In the event prope11y is not insured 
and there is a severe case of hardship by household to maintain insurance and repairs 

are needed to eliminate substandard, code, health and safety issue, the Community & 
Economic Development Director or his designee may waive insurance requirements, 
as long as project is not leveraged with Federal funds, where flood insurance is 
required. 

Hardship is defined as: 

1) Condition of property makes it uninsurable

or

2) At time of application household had no insurance and housing and
insurance expenses exceed 50% of a fixed income household.

Program is not credit driven and credit reports will not be reviewed to determine 
eligibility for assistance. 

Mortgage must be current and will be verified with mortgage statement or third 
party - verification of mortgage. 

Title searches will be conducted. There must be evidence that there is no pending 
foreclosure on the property. 

The prope11y's assessed value must not exceed the value noted in the plan for new 
and existing homes. The current assessed value indicated on Broward County 
Property Appraiser's website shall be used to determine the value of the property 
after SHIP is provided. 

Applicants will be required to sign program disclosures, including a conflict of 
interest disclosure prior to completing application or the application being 
processed. 
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g. Sponsor/Developer Selection Criteria: Eligible contractors will be selected through a 
bid process to perform repairs under this program. Non construction related services 
will be selected through a bid process or other process in compliance with the City’s 
procurement policies. The selection will be based on certification, experience, past 
performance and financial stability to perform services. Preference will be given to 
eligible contractors that employ personnel from Welfare Transition Program. 

The City or City’s consultant will maintain a contractor pool in which it openly 
recruits contractors to participate in the program after pre-screening. All contractors 
must be licensed with the State of Florida, Department of Business and Professional 
Regulation and be in good standing with local licensing requirements. Contractors 
must not appear on the Federal government’s Excluded Parties List prior to the 
award of any contract. 

The City conducts outreach to encourage the participation of Minority and Women 
Owned enterprises in its housing assistance programs. 

Only contractors who have been pre-screened will be allowed to bid on the housing 
rehabilitation projects. Prior to bidding on the project, contractors must visit each 
property. The program prohibits contractors from working on the properties of 
persons they are related to or where other potential conflict of interests may exist. 

In instances, where a General Contractor is needed to complete repairs such as roof 
only, plumbing only, or shutters only, the bid quotes from pre-screened contractors 
will be solicited to make necessary repairs/improvements. Where a General 
Contractor is not needed, the services of a licensed contractor able to perform the 
services will be utilized. 

h. Additional Information: The home must be located within the City limits, In the 
event of a disaster, declared by Executive Order by the President and disaster 
mitigation funds are no longer available, this program will assist with disaster 
related repairs as well. For home repair activities, the program is not designed to 
remodel, upgrade homes with purely cosmetic repairs or replace working appliances 
because owner wants to upgrade. 

In the event the property owner defaults on the first mortgage and foreclosure 
prevention assistance is not enough to prevent foreclosure, the City shall have first 
right of refusal to purchase property. At closing owner will be made aware of the 
resources available to them. 

The City’s current subordination policy, maintained at the City Clerk’s office shall 
apply for any refinance transactions. This subordination policy may be viewed by 
the public upon request to the City Clerk. 

Housing units that have a pending foreclosure (Lis Pendens) from a mortgage 
company or homeowners/condo association cannot be assisted until resolved. 
Properties with a lien from the homeowners/condo association also will not be 
assisted until resolved. Households undergoing a loan modification will not be 
assisted until the modification is completed and a new mortgage acceptable to the 
program is provided. 
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Units that meet one of the above conditions may not be assisted with HOME 
funding if work beyond the limited repair assistance is required to bring the home up 
to full rehabilitation standards. When units are assisted in whole or in part with 
HOME funds all required repairs to meet rehabilitation standards must be addressed. 

B. 

Purchase Assistance with/without Rehabilitation 	 Code 1, 2,11 

a. 	Summary of Strategy: SHIP funds will be awarded to assist eligible first-time 
homebuyers with a deferred payment loan to be applied towards the costs of 
purchasing existing or newly constructed (with a Certificate of Occupancy) eligible 
affordable housing. Eligible costs include the following: down payment, closing 
costs, mortgage buy down, rehabilitation, and other costs associated with purchasing 
a home. Eligible housing includes single-family homes, townhomes, condominiums, 
eligible manufactured homes, PUDs, and villas. 

Fiscal Years Covered: 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 

Income Categories to be served: Very-Low, Low and Moderate 

Maximum award: Very Low: $50,000 50% AMI or Less 
Low 
	

$40,000 5 1-80% AMI 
Moderate 
	

$30,000 81-120% AM! 
Terms: 

1. Loan/grant: Funds will be awarded as a deferred subordinate loan secured 
by a recorded subordinate mortgage and note. 

2. Interest Rate: 0% 

3. Term: 10 years 

4. Forgiveness/Repayment: The loan is forgivable in its entirety at the end of 
(10) ten years from the recordation date of mortgage and note. There will be 
no yearly write-down of the loan. Full repayment of the loan is due if the 
home is sold, title is transferred or conveyed, or the home ceases to be the 
primary residence of the owner during the ten (10) year occupancy period. 

Default/Recapture: The loan will be determined to be in default if any of the 
following occurs during the Loan term: sale, transfer, or conveyance of 
property; conversion to a rental property; loss of homestead exemption 
status; or failure to occupy the home as primary residence. If any of these 
occur, the outstanding balance will be due and payable. 

In cases where the qualifying homeowner(s) die(s) during the loan term, the 
loan may be assumed by a SHIP eligible heir who will occupy the home as a 
primary residence. If the legal heir is not SHIP eligible or chooses not to 
occupy the home, the outstanding balance of the loan will be due and 
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payable. 

In the event of default where there is failure to make required payments on a 
loan secured by a first mortgage which leads to foreclosure and/or loss of 
property ownership, the City may foreclose to recover funds made available 
for assistance which is secured by mortgage and note on the property. 

Special Needs Owner-Occupied Households: Assistance is in the form of 
a 5 year, 0% interest deferred loan, written down each year. 

The City is a recipient of Federal Neighborhood Stabilization Program 
(NSP) funds. The City will utilize NSP funds for purchase assistance 
activities of foreclosed properties until exhausted. The terms of the NSP 
program are more restrictive than the City's regular SHIP program. Chapter 
67-37.007 (12) F.A.C. provides that "any units receiving assistance from 
SHIP and other federal, State or local programs shall be required to comply 
with any requirements specified by the other program in addition to SHIP 
Program requirements.

In the event both programs have restrictions on the same issue, the more 
restrictive regulation shall take precedence. If one program is silent on an 
issue, the program with a regulation on the issue shall apply." 

f. Recipient Selection Criteria: Applicants will be ranked for assistance based on a
first-qualified, first-served basis with the priorities for Special Needs, Essential
Services Personnel and income groups as described in section I. (I) of this plan.

Applications must be 100% complete to be certified eligible for the program. 
Additional information may be requested upon review of application to determine 
program eligibility. 

Applicants will be required to sign program disclosures, including a conflict of 
interest disclosure prior to completing application or the application being 
processed. 

The applicant must be a first-time homebuyer. A first-time homebuyer is defined as 
one that has never owned a home, or one that has not owned a home within the last 
three years, a single parent with children under the age of 18 who has recently been 
divorced and displaced, a displaced victim of domestic abuse, or a person displaced 
as a result of a governmental action. Residents displaced from mobile home parks 
seeking to purchase a non mobile home unit will also be considered first-time 
homebuyers. 

Applicants must not own any other property used for residential purposes, and the 
home to be purchased must be located within the City limits. Applicant must use the 
mortgage programs offered by the mortgage providers in the City's lenders 
consortium. 

Applicants are responsible for the upfront fee associated with the credit report in the 
form of a money order. 
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g. Sponsor/Developer Selection Criteria: The City of Miramar utilizes a lender’s 
consortium. The opportunity for lenders to participate in the program is open 
periodically to interested lenders. Lenders must adhere to the guidelines for 
participating in the program. 

h. Additional Information: Applicants must secure a first mortgage by an approved 
lender. 

The applicant must contribute a minimum of 1% of the sales price (including pre-
plaids) towards the purchase of the home. The Purchase Assistance Program cannot 
be utilized when the seller of the property is providing the financing for the 
mortgage. Funds may be leveraged with Broward County, HOME, CDBG or other 
purchase assistance related activities. In the case where bond or County assistance is 
being provided in conjunction with the City’s SHIP funds, the City will take no less 
third position in the transaction. 

To qualify under the construction set-aside requirement for SHIP, files shall be 
documented using one of the following ways: 

Evidence of repairs or affidavit and/or receipt from sellers that repairs were 
conducted within 12 months prior to sale of home. 

Evidence of repairs completed from inspection reports. Funds will be held in 
escrow or leveraged from CBDG. Once repairs are completed and inspected, 
contractor will submit invoice for payment and repairs will be made. 
Repairs will be completed by pre-screened contractors or general contractors 
in the contractor’s pool. 

C. 

	

Emergency Repair 	 Code 6,11 

a. Summary of Strategy: Funds will be awarded to applicants in need of rehabilitation 
of their home related to a dire situation that needs to be mitigated immediately. This 
includes: damaged roofing that is leaking, damaged windows causing exposure to 
the elements, or electrical or plumbing problems that could cause damage (fire) to 
the home or is an immediate health hazard to the occupants. This strategy will only 
be used for an applicant who has applied for, but will not receive assistance through 
the owner occupied rehabilitation strategy within the next three months. When an 
applicant is assisted with emergency repairs, they will not lose their place on the 
rehabilitation waiting list, if one exists. However, the amount of funds expended for 
the emergency repairs will be counted towards the maximum award if the applicant 
receives subsequent assistance through the rehabilitation strategy. Funds may also be 
awarded to pay insurance deductibles for any emergency repairs covered by the 
homeowner’s policy. 

b. Fiscal Years Covered: 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 
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C. 	Income Categories to be served: Very-low, low and Moderate 

d. 	Maximum award: $25,000 

Terms: 

1. Loan/grant: Funds will be awarded as a forgivable loan secured by a recorded 
subordinate mortgage and note. 

2. Interest Rate: 0% 

3. Term: 5 years 

Forgiveness/Repayment: The loan is forgivable in its entirety at the end of (5) 
years from the recordation date of mortgage and note. There will be no yearly 
write-down of the loan. Full repayment of the loan is due if the home is sold, 
title is transferred or conveyed, or the home ceases to be the primary residence 
of the owner during the five (5) year occupancy period. 

Default/Recapture: Projects under $5,000 may be granted and will not require 
the signing or recordation of the program’s mortgage and note. 

The loan will be determined to be in default if any of the following occurs 
during the Loan term: sale, transfer, or conveyance of property; conversion to a 
rental property; loss of homestead exemption status; or failure to occupy the 
home as primary residence. If any of these occur, the outstanding balance will 
be due and payable. 

In cases where the qualifying homeowner(s) die(s) during the loan term, the loan 
may be assumed by a SHIP eligible heir who will occupy the home as a primary 
residence. If the legal heir is not SHIP eligible or chooses not to occupy the 
home, the outstanding balance of the loan will be due and payable. 

In the event of default where there is failure to make required payments on a 
loan secured by a first mortgage which leads to foreclosure and/or loss of 
property ownership, the City may foreclose to recover funds made available for 
assistance which is secured by mortgage and note on the property. 

Special Needs Owner-Occupied Households: Assistance is in the form of a 5 
year, 0% interest deferred loan, written down each year. 

Recipient Selection Criteria: Applications must be 100% complete to be certified 
eligible for the program. Additional information may be requested upon review of 
application to determine program eligibility. 

Property must be owner occupied. Verification of ownership, income, homeowners 
insurance, flood insurance (if required) and payment of property taxes will be 
conducted to determine eligibility. A warranty deed, or quit claim deed will be 
utilized to verify ownership and primary residences should maintain homestead 
exemption. Life Estates also qualify. Hazard and flood insurance should be in place 
at time of award and be maintained as long as first and/or second mortgage remains 
on property. If a property is not required to have flood insurance then the file will be 
documented that flood insurance is not required. In the event property is not insured 
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and there is a severe case of hardship by household to maintain insurance and repairs 
are needed to eliminate substandard, code, health and safety issue, the Community & 
Economic Development Director or his designee may waive insurance requirements, 
as long as project is not leveraged with Federal funds, where flood insurance is 
required. 

Hardship is defined as: 

1) Condition of property makes it uninsurable 

,ii 

2) At time of application household had no insurance and housing and 
insurance expenses exceed 50% of a fixed income household. 

Program is not credit driven and credit reports will not be reviewed to determine 
eligibility for assistance. 

Mortgage must be current and will be verified with mortgage statement or third 
party - verification of mortgage. 

Title searches will be conducted. There must be evidence that there is no pending 
foreclosure on the property. 

The property’s assessed value must not exceed the value noted in the plan for new 
and existing homes. The current assessed value indicated on Broward County 
Property Appraiser’s website shall be used to determine the value of the property 
after SHIP is provided. 

Applicants will be required to sign program disclosures, including a conflict of 
interest disclosure prior to completing application or the application being 
processed. 

Sponsor/Developer Selection Criteria: Eligible contractors will be selected through a 
bid process to perform repairs under this program. Non construction related services 
will be selected through a bid process or other process in compliance with the City’s 
procurement policies. The selection will be based on certification, experience, past 
performance and financial stability to perform services. Preference will be given to 
eligible contractors that employ personnel from Welfare Transition Program. 

The City or City’s consultant will maintain a contractor pool in which it openly 
recruits contractors to participate in the program after pre-screening. All contractors 
must be licensed with the State of Florida, Department of Business and Professional 
Regulation and be in good standing with local licensing requirements. Contractors 
must not appear on the Federal government’s Excluded Parties List prior to the 
award of any contract. 

The City conducts outreach to encourage the participation of Minority and Women 
Owned enterprises in its housing assistance programs. 

Only contractors who have been pre-screened will be allowed to bid on the housing 

’Fr 
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rehabilitation projects. Prior to bidding on the project, contractors must visit each 
property. The program prohibits contractors from working on the properties of 
persons they are related to or where other potential conflict of interests may exist. 

In instances, where a General Contractor is needed to complete repairs such as roof 
only, plumbing only, or shutters only, the bid quotes from pre-screened contractors 
will be solicited to make necessary repairs/improvements. Where a General 
Contractor is not needed, the services of a licensed contractor able to perform the 
services will be utilized. 

h. 	Additional Information: An applicant requesting an emergency repair will be 
required to: 

1. Allow the rehabilitation specialist to access the home for an inspection to 
determine the need for the repair. 

2. Provide proof of homeowner’s insurance policy and any proof whether or 
not the insurance will cover any part of the repair. 

D. 
Foreclosure Prevention 	 Code 7 

a. Summary of Strategy: The Foreclosure Prevention Program provides qualified 
homeowners the opportunity to avoid foreclosures and retain their homes. The 
program is designed to assist households that need immediate financial assistance to 
either stop their homes from being foreclosed, sold for non-payment of taxes, or 
protect it if it is damaged. Funds will be provided as a deferred loan to eligible 
homeowners to assist them in bringing current their first and/or subordinate 
mortgage payments (Principal, Interest, Taxes and Insurance) Attorneys Fees, Late 
Fees, HOA, Assessments, and other customary fees. Evidence that mortgage or fee 
is no less than 30 days late is required and evidenced by current mortgage statement 
or applicable statement. 

b. Fiscal Years Covered: 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 

C. 	Income Categories to be served: Very-Low, Low and Moderate 

d. Maximum award: $10,000 

e. Terms: 

1. Loan/grant: Funds will be awarded as a deferred loan secured by a recorded 
subordinate mortgage and note 

2. Interest Rate: 0% 

3. Term: 10 years 

4. Forgiveness/Repayment: The loan is forgivable in its entirety at the end of (10) 
ten years from the recordation date of mortgage and note. There will be no 
yearly write-down of the loan. Full repayment of the loan is due if the home is 
sold, title is transferred or conveyed, or the home ceases to be the primary 
residence of the owner during the ten (10) year occupancy period. 
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This is a one time assistance program and homeowners may not re-apply for this 
assistance, but may apply for assistance such as home repair/improvements if 
there is equity in property. 

5. Default/Recapture: Projects under $5,000 may be granted and will not require 
the signing or recordation of the program’s mortgage and note. 

The loan will be determined to be in default if any of the following occurs 
during the Loan term: sale, transfer, or conveyance of property; conversion to a 
rental property; loss of homestead exemption status; or failure to occupy the 
home as primary residence. If any of these occur, the outstanding balance will 
be due and payable. 

In cases where the qualifying homeowner(s) die(s) during the loan term, the loan 
may be assumed by a SHIP eligible heir who will occupy the home as a primary 
residence. If the legal heir is not SHIP eligible or chooses not to occupy the 
home, the outstanding balance of the loan will be due and payable. 

In the event of default where there is failure to make required payments on a 
loan secured by a first mortgage which leads to foreclosure and/or loss of 
property ownership, the City may foreclose to recover funds made available for 
assistance which is secured by mortgage and note on the property. 

Special Needs Owner-Occupied Households: Assistance is in the form of a 5 
year, 0% interest deferred loan, written down each year. 

This is a one time assistance program and homeowners may not re-apply for this 
assistance, but may apply for assistance such as home repair/improvements. 

f. 	Recipient Selection Criteria: In addition to being selected on a first-qualified, first - 
served basis, all special needs households, as defined by Chapter 67-37.002(13), 
F.A.0 will be given priority by income (very-low/low and moderate income) 
respectively. The applicant(s) must show their ability to continue to maintain their 
mortgage payment after assistance is given. The City will pay 100% of the 
delinquent mortgage amount - up to $10,000. If this is not enough to bring the 
situation current, the homeowner must pay the remainder to bring the situation 
current. Applicants must show the non payment of their mortgage is due to the 
following eligible reasons: 

1. Loss of Pay due to involuntary job loss; 
2. Divorce or separation which resulted in temporary loss of income; 

3. Death of a spouse which resulted in a temporary loss of income; 
4. Sudden unforeseen medical expenses; or 
5. Unforeseen emergency home repairs including condo/homeowner association 

assessments. 
6. Involuntarily loss of verifiable income from other sources (Temporary or 

permanent). 
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Applicant will be responsible for the fees associated with the credit report, title 
report and overnight courier. Applicant shall make payment for such fees in the 
form of a money order. 

g. Sponsor/Developer Selection Criteria: Credit and Budget Counseling services will 
be offered through the same entity that provides the services for first time home 
buyer applicants. Another sponsor may be selected to provide these counseling 
services if deemed necessary. Sponsor will have to demonstrate capacity and 
experience. 

h. Additional Information: Applicants may be required to apply to other foreclosure 
assistance programs (Hardest Hit Fund, Foreclosure Counseling Program) for 
assistance prior to being approved for assistance under this strategy. 

The applicant must undergo budget/credit counseling from an approved credit 
counseling service. Priority will be given to persons who received prior down 
payment/purchase or rehabilitation assistance through the City’s program. 

E. 

Disaster Mitigation 	 Code 5,16 

a. Summary of Strategy: Funds will be awarded to applicants in need of home repairs 
directly caused by a disaster that is declared by an Executive Order of the President 
or Governor. Funds may be used for items such as, but not limited to, temporary 
rental assistance (up to 6 months), emergency interim repairs for eligible households 
to avoid further damage, tree and debris removal required to make the individual 
housing unit habitable, condos and homeowner’s assessments for post disaster 
repair, post disaster assistance for eligible non-insured repairs and soft costs required 
to process assistance applications. This strategy will only be implemented in the 
event of a natural disaster using any funds that have not yet been encumbered. 

Deductibles: In the event of a natural disaster, the City of Miramar is able to assist 
individual income eligible households with insurance deductibles for eligible 
disaster related damage up to $5,000. This form of assistance will occur only after 
the income eligible household applies to participate in the City’s Residential 
Rehabilitation Program. Storm related property damage will be assessed and an 
estimate will be prepared by the City’s inspector. Any expense in excess of the actual 
deductible is the responsibility of the homeowner. All other Residential 
Rehabilitation Program guidelines apply. 

b. Fiscal Years Covered: 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 

C. 	Income Categories to be served: Very-Low, Low and Moderate 

d. Maximum award: $50,000 

e. Terms: 

1. Loan/grant: Funds will be awarded as a deferred loan secured by a recorded 
subordinate mortgage and note 
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2. Interest Rate: 0% 

3. Term: 10 years 

4. Forgiveness/Repayment: The loan is forgivable in its entirety at the end of (10) 
ten years from the recordation date of mortgage and note. There will be no 
yearly write-down of the loan. Full repayment of the loan is due if the home is 
sold, title is transferred or conveyed, or the home ceases to be the primary 
residence of the owner during the ten (10) year occupancy period. 

This is a one time assistance program and homeowners may not re-apply for this 
assistance, but may apply for assistance such as home repair/improvements if 
there is equity in property. 

5. Default/Recapture: Projects under $5,000 may be granted and will not require 
the signing or recordation of the program’s mortgage and note. 

The loan will be determined to be in default if any of the following occurs 
during the Loan term: sale, transfer, or conveyance of property; conversion to a 
rental property; loss of homestead exemption status; or failure to occupy the 
home as primary residence. If any of these occur, the outstanding balance will 
be due and payable. 

In cases where the qualifying homeowner(s) die(s) during the loan term, the loan 
may be assumed by a SHIP eligible heir who will occupy the home as a primary 
residence. If the legal heir is not SHIP eligible or chooses not to occupy the 
home, the outstanding balance of the loan will be due and payable. 

In the event of default where there is failure to make required payments on a 
loan secured by a first mortgage which leads to foreclosure and/or loss of 
property ownership, the City may foreclose to recover funds made available for 
assistance which is secured by mortgage and note on the property. 

Special Needs Owner-Occupied Households: Assistance is in the form of a 5 
year, 0% interest deferred loan, written down each year. 

This is a one time assistance program and homeowners may not re-apply for this 
assistance, but may apply for assistance such as home repair/improvements if 
there is equity in property. 

Recipient Selection Criteria: Eligible applicants will be selected from a national or 
state disaster registry on a first qualified and first served basis, within income 
groups. If no names are on the registry, applicants who request disaster mitigation 
assistance, will be assisted. Applications for disaster assistance will be given priority 
above others on a waiting list for other strategies. Eligibility will be performed on an 
expedited basis and may include alternative forms of documentation, such as current 
pay stubs and benefit letters, as well as oral verification of employment wages, other 
income, and assets. 
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Applicants will be assisted on a first-qualified, first-served basis with the following 
additional requirements: 

1. Must provide proof of homeowner’s insurance 
2. Must file for and use proceeds from insurance as first option 

g. 	Sponsor/Developer Selection Criteria: N/A 

Additional Information: Funds will not be allocated to this strategy except in the 
case of a federal or state disaster. SHIP funds may leverage other federal and/or 
state emergency programs. The expenditure of funds must be for eligible activities 
as permitted by SHIP statute, rule and/or emergency rule as published by the Florida 
Housing Finance Corporation. 

The Corporation shall disburse funds for disaster relief proportionately as provided 
in Section 420.9073(2)(b), F.S. Local governments may use unencumbered SHIP 
funds to carry out activities of disaster relief. Recipients of SHIP funds under a local 
government’s disaster strategy shall be required to verify income by executing a 
Disaster Self Certification of Income Form (08/04), hereby adopted and incorporated 
by reference with an effective date of 1-30-05 or a local government’s form that 
requires the same information. Pay check stubs and other forms of proof are 
required, if available. Other documentation required for SHIP income qualification 
may be waived if unavailable. The county or eligible municipality shall make every 
effort reasonable to insure that the recipients of SHIP funds are income qualified. 

Funds for disaster mitigation will only be allocated from unencumbered funds or 
additional funds awarded through Florida Housing Finance Corporation for the 
disaster. 

F. 

Community Land Trust 	 Codes 1,2,9 

Summary of Strategy: SHIP funds may be used to provide down payment assistance 
to buyers of newly constructed or existing community land trust homes. The down 
payment assistance will be used to write down the purchase price of the property. 
Home rehabilitation is also an eligible use, as needed when purchasing existing 
homes. Up to $50,000 may be spent to address health & safety concerns, fix code 
violations and increase energy efficiency. 

b. 	Fiscal Years Covered: 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 

Income Categories to be served: Very-Low, Low and Moderate 

d. 	Maximum award: $50,000 

Terms: 

1. Loan/grant: Funds will be awarded as a deferred loan secured by a recorded 
subordinate mortgage and note 

2. Interest Rate: 0%. 
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3. Term: For a period not to exceed 30 years 

Forgiveness/Repayment: Provided the home continues to be occupied by an 
income eligible household, the SHIP monies will not be subject to recapture 
upon resale. 

Default/Recapture: In the event of default on the first mortgage or the terms of 
the ground lease, the Community Land Trust must notify the City of Miramar 
whether it intends to exercise its right of repurchase. In the event the CLT is not 
willing or able to exercise its right of repurchase, it shall transfer its right of 
repurchase to the City of Miramar, giving the City of Miramar the right, but not 
the obligation to foreclose. 

The loan will be determined to be in default if any of the following occurs 
during the Loan term: sale, transfer, or conveyance of property; conversion to a 
rental property; loss of homestead exemption status; or failure to occupy the 
home as primary residence. If any of these occur, the outstanding balance will 
be due and payable. 

In cases where the qualifying homeowner(s) die(s) during the loan term, the loan 
may be assumed by a SHIP eligible heir who will occupy the home as a primary 
residence. If the legal heir is not SHIP eligible or chooses not to occupy the 
home, the outstanding balance of the loan will be due and payable. 

In the event of default where there is failure to make required payments on a 
loan secured by a first mortgage which leads to foreclosure and/or loss of 
property ownership, the City may foreclose to recover funds made available for 
assistance which is secured by mortgage and note on the property. 

f. 	Recipient Selection Criteria: Applicants will be ranked for assistance based on a 
first-qualified, first-served basis with the priorities for Special Needs, Essential 
Services Personnel and income groups as described in section 1. (I) of this plan. 

First qualified, first served after completion of first time homebuyer class that 
contains a community land trust component. The recipient must be able to show and 
attest to a clear understanding of the difference between fee simple homeownership 
and community land trust homeownership. Also, the buyer must contribute to the 
closing costs. 

Applications must be 100% complete to be certified eligible for the program. 
Additional information may be requested upon review of application to determine 
program eligibility. 

Applicants will be required to sign program disclosures, including a conflict of 
interest disclosure prior to completing application or the application being 
processed. 

The applicant must be a first-time homebuyer. A first-time homebuyer is defined as 
one that has never owned a home, or one that has not owned a home within the last 
three years, a single parent with children under the age of 18 who has recently been 
divorced and displaced, a displaced victim of domestic abuse, or a person displaced 
as a result of a governmental action. Residents displaced from mobile home parks 
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seeking to purchase a non mobile home unit will also be considered first-time 
homebuyers. 

Applicants must not own any other property used for residential purposes, and the 
home to be purchased must be located within the City limits. Applicant must use the 
mortgage programs offered by the mortgage providers in the City’s lenders 
consortium. 

Applicants are responsible for the upfront fee associated with the credit report in the 
form of a money order. 

g. Sponsor/Developer Selection Criteria: The SHIP funds may also be made available 
directly to a Community Land Trust serving the City of Miramar. In that event, the 
CLT shall follow the criteria in this SHIP strategy, but the CLT shall be operating as 
a sub-recipient, and not on behalf of the City. Include qualification system and 
selection criteria for applications for Awards to eligible sponsors Miramar will issue 
a Request for Qualifications to choose eligible Community Land Trusts as sub-
recipients of SHIP purchase assistance. 

h. Additional Information: Community Land Trusts are tax exempt nonprofit 
organizations that perform a charitable mission. They are key partners for 
increasing the stock of affordable homeownership without losing the subsidy that is 
provided to the income eligible household. 

The Community Land Trust transfers title to the homebuyer but retains ownership of 
the land beneath the improvements. The CLT provides a 99 year ground lease for 
the use of the land to the homebuyer. A memorandum of that ground lease is 
recorded in the public records immediately following the deed. The terms of the 
ground lease restrict the resale of the property to an income eligible household and 
provide a right of repurchase to the CLT in the event of default. 

The CLT has a stewardship role that continues in perpetuity to assure that the CLT 
home remains in the City’s affordable housing stock. The monies provided to the 
community land trust homebuyer are used to write down the purchase price of the 
home. By taking the cost of the land out of the purchase price and by further writing 
down the purchase price in an amount equal to the SHIP funds provided by the City, 
the cost of the home is significantly reduced, creating an affordable opportunity for 
homeownership for the first family who purchases and for each family that 
purchases thereafter. The stewardship role of the CLT, its mission, and its vested 
interest in the property by virtue of retaining ownership of the land provides a safety 
net for the homeowner and substantially decreases the risk of foreclosure compared 
to fee simple ownership. 

The Florida Legislature has recognized the public benefit of community land trusts 
in creating permanent affordability by providing direction in regard to assessment 
for real property taxes in Section 193.0 18, Florida Statues, which requires the 
assessment to consider the resale restricted value of the community land trust home. 

G. 
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Acquisition/Rehabilitation  Code 9 

a. 	Summary of Strategy: This construction strategy is designed to promote the 
acquisition or construction of affordable housing for home ownership opportunities. 
Funds will be provided as deferred or low interest loans to support the acquisition 
and rehabilitation, replacement, or the new construction of single-family housing, or 
the single-family housing portion of a mixed use facility. The strategy is also 
designed to promote infill housing, green housing, and mixed income 
projects/neighborhoods for homeownership opportunities. For profit and non-profit 
developers will be requested to submit proposals to provide housing that conforms 
with the City’s RFP, neighborhood redevelopment plans and comprehensive plan. 

Funds may be used as a match for U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development’s HOME program and various other programs offered by the federal 
government and the State of Florida to develop affordable housing. 

Eligible expenses will include construction hard costs and soft costs necessary to 
rehabilitate or construct the project. This includes cost of land, cost to acquire 
structure and land, demolition cost, professional service fees such as environmental 
phase 1, engineering, survey, appraisal, architectural and interest buy downs. 

Also allowed are infrastructure directly related to the project, including streets, 
roadways, parking, sidewalks, pathways, storm drainage, water, sewer and sanitary 
systems, sewer connections, hydrants, meters, utilities and utility easements for 
telephone, cable, electric lines, and right-of-ways and other acceptable fees. 

Soft costs include plat reviews, plat reviews, recording fees, permits, environmental 
reviews and impact studies, land use amendment reviews and other acceptable fees. 
The strategy also allows for impact fees. 

Fiscal Years Covered: 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 

C. 	Income Categories to be served: Very-low, Low and Moderate 

d. 	Maximum award: $120,000 

C. 	Terms 
Loan/grant: Funds will be awarded as a deferred loan secured by a recorded 
subordinate mortgage and note. 

Interest Rate: 0% 

3. 	Term: The Terms of the City’s assistance to a developer for single family 
acquisition/rehabilitations, replacement, or new construction for 
homeownership developments will vary from project to project, depending 
on the economics of the development. Funding will be in the form of a 0% 
interest deferred loan for a period not to exceed 30 years. 

Forgiveness/Repayment: N/A 

WE 
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5. Default/Recapture: Loans provided to developers for single family housing 
constructed, rehabilitated, or otherwise assisted under this strategy must be 
reserved for eligible persons and include deed restrictions for long term 
affordability for no less that 15 years or the term of the assistance, 
whichever period is longer. As units are sold to eligible households, the end 
user will be responsible for securing a mortgage from a first lender. End 
users may be eligible for purchase assistance through the City’s purchase 
assistance program. Home sales prices may not exceed the maximum sales 
price noted in this plan. 

Where single-family units being constructed to be affordable housing for 
household incomes at 120% area median or less, make up more than 50% of 
the development project, assistance will be in the form of a deferred loan if 
economically feasible to the City’s program. If units account for less than 
50%, assistance may be in the form of a low interest loan. If a single unit is 
being constructed (such as an infill house) then the assistance will be in the 
form a deferred loan. Assistance will be provided only for the portion of 
units occupied by households at 120% or below AMI. In the RFP process, 
the City will review the overall project to determine if a deferred payment 
loan or low interest loan will be provided. 

Default terms for not meeting program requirements shall be immediate 
repayment to the City trust account if the developer fails to meet the terms 
of the deferred payment loan, low interest loan, or fails to meet the program 
timeline for expenditure or having an eligible applicant occupying eligible 
housing. Default terms shall be described in mortgage and promissory note 
securing property. 

f. Recipient Selection Criteria: For rehabilitated and new construction homeownership 
units, assistance will be provided on a first qualified, first served basis. However, 
program will be open to all eligible households to create inclusive communities. 
Applicant must use the mortgage programs offered by the mortgage providers in the 
City’s lenders consortium. 

g. Sponsor/Developer Selection Criteria: Request for proposals and competitive 
procurement process will be utilized to select a sponsor to implement these projects. 
Characteristics in determining the sponsor may include, but not be limited to: 

1. Capacity and capability to carry-out project 
2. Scale of Project/Utilization of Density Bonuses 
3. Experience in completing similar projects 
4. Use of personnel from Wages and Workforce Development programs. 
5. Leveraging. 
6. Site control. 
7. Neighborhood compatibility/Compatibility with Area Redevelopment Plan 
8. Creation of Mixed Income Communities. 
9. Recapture provisions. 
10. Incorporation of Partnerships with Local Employers, Institutions, Hospitals 

and Schools. 
11. Incorporation of Transit-Oriented Design/Proximity to State Road 7 

Corridor. 
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12. Attractiveness of design 
13. Multistory buildings must have elevators and be ADA Compliant. 
14. Use of green building techniques. 

h. 	Additional Information: Acquisition-Rehabilitation and New Construction related 
strategies in which assistance will be provided to a private or non-profit developer 
will be expected to demonstrate that the project(s) are affordable to low and 
moderate income households, meaning that no more than 30% of the household’s 
income should go towards housing related expenses. Developer assisted projects that 
demonstrate affordability to low and moderate income households, using the 
definition above, will be considered for SHIP funding assistance. These projects 
shall receive priority consideration for funding. 

The purchase price limit that is established by the U.S. Treasury Department is not 
to be misconstrued as the target price for affordable housing in the City of Miramar. 

Developers receiving assistance from both SHIP and the Low-Income Rental 
Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Program shall be required to comply with the income, 
affordability and other LIHTC requirements. Similarly, any units receiving 
assistance from SHIP and other federal, State or local programs shall be required to 
comply with any requirements specified by the other program in addition to SHIP 
program requirements. In the event both programs have restrictions on the same 
issue, the more restrictive regulation shall take precedence. If one program is silent 
on an issue, the program with a regulation on the issue shall apply. 67-37.007(12) 
F.A.C. 

H. 
T’URITYAND/OR UTIL TIY DEPOSITS 	 Codes 23,18 

Summary of Strategy: The City of Miramar may provide upfront financial assistance 
for households to obtain quality, safe, decent and affordable rental housing. The 
families must have the income to afford the monthly rental payments. Income 
guidelines provided by the State will be used to determine income eligibility. The 
City may pay for such items as first month’s rent, security deposit, utility 
connection/start-ups, up to a maximum of $4,500. Assistance will be applied toward 
non refundable costs only. 

On-going rental assistance is not permitted under the SHIP program. Assistance will 
be limited to a one time grant not to exceed $4,500 per household. 

b. 	Fiscal Years Covered: 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 

Income Categories to be served: Very-Low, Low and Moderate 

d. Maximum award: $4,500 

e. Terms: 
Loan/grant: Grant 

2. 	Interest Rate: 0%. 
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Term: N/A 

Forgiveness/Repayment: N/A 

5. 	Default/Recapture: Assistance will not be secured by a mortgage promissory 
note because this is non owner-occupied assistance. For this program, the 
person is assisted, not the unit, however funds will not be given directly to 
applicant. 

f. 	Recipient Selection Criteria: Applications will be processed in the order in which 
they are received. Applicant must be very low to moderate income, (priority given to 
very low income households and special needs households, as defined by Chapter 
67-37.002(13), F.A.C. Priority will be given to those individuals who are homeless 
or at risk of homelessness because of the inability to pay the rental deposit 
(including first and last month rent). The lease must be for at least one year. 
Assistance will be provided one time only. 

Applicants for eviction protection must meet the following criteria, be very low to 
moderate income and must be in danger of being evicted from their rental dwelling 
unit because of late or non-payment due to: 

1) Loss of Pay due to involuntary job loss. 
2) Divorce or separation which resulted in temporary loss of income. 
3) Death of a spouse which resulted in a temporary loss of income 
4) Sudden unforeseen medical expenses or 
5) Involuntarily loss of verifiable income from other sources (Temporary or 

permanent). 

Applicants must show that they have the ability to pay the rent after the City’s 
assistance is given without further assistance. Eligibility will be performed on an 
expedited basis and may include alternative forms of documentation, such as current 
pay stubs and benefit letters, as well as oral verification of employment wages, other 
income, and assets. Assistance shall be provided on a first-qualified, first-served 
basis. Assistance is limited to a one-time award. 

g. 	Sponsor/Developer Selection Criteria: This Program will be administered by the 
City of Miramar Community & Economic Development Department and City’s 
consultant, with the assistance of the City Community Outreach Program or an 
Eligible Sponsor if the City decides to use a sponsor to carry-out this program. 

Additional Information: Rent limits will apply. 



SHIP LHAP Template 2009-001 
Revised: 6/2015 

2. Name of Strategy: Allowance of Flexibility in Densities for Affordable Housing 
Subject to City Commission approval of proposed amendments to the City’s Land 
Development Code, the City may provide for the allowance of flexibility in densities for 
affordable housing. The City provides guidelines for flexibility in the zoning criteria to 
increase density for affordable housing. 

Established Policy and Procedures: Provide Description 

The Housing Element (Policy 6.3.c) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan states: "Ensure 
residential land is available on the Future Land Use Map at adequate densities of five (5) to 
fifteen (15) dwelling units per acre to support affordable housing development." 

In May 2006, Broward County adopted a new policy to its Land Use Plan providing for 
affordable housing density bonuses that all cities in the County can use regardless of whether 
the provisions are incorporated into their local land use elements. 

The City’s Future Land Use Map includes residential densities ranging from 5 dwelling units 
per acre to 25 dwelling units per acre. These densities exist city-wide and account for 60% of 
the total acreage with a residential land use category. 

In the event that there is a desire to add additional land within these densities, the City would 
have to adopt a land use plan amendment 

Beyond the land use plan map, the City has adopted zoning regulations that help support this 
incentive: a Traditional Neighborhood Design (TND) district and the State Road 7/U.S. 441 
overlay zoning and the Transit Oriented Corridor District. All of these are examples of form-
based zoning that are intended to promote compact, mixed use development through the use 
of flexible design standards and guidelines. The Mirabella development is zoned TND and 
had some affordable units that expired after 5 years of initial ownership. 

3. Name of Strategy: Allowance of Flexible Lot Configurations 
Subject to City Commission approval, the City may provide for the allowance of flexible lot 
configurations for affordable housing. 

Established Policy and Procedures: Provide Description 

Historically, flexible configurations were provided through the City’s Planned Unit 
Developments (PUDs) such as Huntington, Bluegrass Lakes, Renaissance, and Silver Lakes; 
however, PUD zoning no longer exists. Under current zoning, most of the residential zoning 
districts provide for regular configurations, except for the RS-7 district, which allows zero 
lot line development (found in the Monarch Lakes, Nautica, and Silver Shores 
developments). The City’s variance process is also available, but the hardship test is 
currently not financially-based and is traditionally not a basis for granting a variance. 

The City’s Traditional Neighborhood Development District (TND) and State Road 7 
Overlay District are examples of form-based zoning that are intended to promote compact, 
mixed use development through the use of flexible design standards and guidelines. The 
Mirabella development is zoned TND and had some affordable units that expired after 5 
years of initial ownership. It’s anticipated that the RS-7, TND, and SR 7 Overlay districts 
will remain in effect and available for use as relates to this incentive. Various PUDs and 
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developments containing RS-7 zoning as well as individual setback variances for room 
additions to existing homes have been granted. 

The Miramar Town Center is zoned TND and has the potential to include affordable units in 
its development mix. Also, the Transit Oriented Corridor Zoning District (TOCD) is the 
City’s newest form-based zoning that, like the TND and SR-7 overlay districts, provides for 
development flexibility. 

4. Name of Strategy: Modifications of Street Requirements for Affordable Housing 
For affordable housing projects, the City of Miramar may entertain on a case by-case 
basis modifications or variance requests to the existing code for street requirements. 

There is no existing policy on this incentive. The City’s TND zoning district contains street 
design standards that are different from the City’s normal standards because of the intent to 
create compact development. This could have an effect on housing affordability (e.g., 
Mirabella development). For affordable housing projects, on a case-by-case basis, 
modifications or variance requests to the existing code for street requirements will be 
reviewed. 

Like the TND zoning district, the Transit Oriented Corridor Zoning District (TOCD) 
contains street design standards that differ from the City’s normal requirements for the same 
reason. Note also that reduced width streets using swales for drainage requires diligent 
maintenance. 

5. Name of Strategy: Preparation of a Printed Inventory of Locally Owned Public 
Lands Suitable for Affordable Housing. 

The City has implemented this strategy as its State requirement to maintain a printed 
inventory of locally owned public lands suitable for affordable housing. 

Established Policy and Procedure: Provide Description 
All City owned properties have been mapped. This inventory map will be maintained and 
updated as required. 

City-owned properties consist of parks, open space, roads, utility areas and facilities, and 
municipal facilities. With the exception of 2 undeveloped future parks sites totaling 34 acres, 
these properties are not available and/or are unsuitable for affordable housing. Very limited 
potential for this incentive. 

6. Name of Strategy: Support Of Development Near Transportation Hubs And Major 
Employment Centers And Mixed-Use Development 

The City supports development near transportation hubs and major employment centers and 
mixed use development and implements this strategy in accordance with existing policies. 

Established Policy and Procedure: Provide Description 

The Future Land Use (Objective 4) and Transportation Elements (Policy 1.8) of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan establish that the City coordinates land uses with the transportation 
system. 

The City’s Traditional Neighborhood Development District (TND) and State Road 7 
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Overlay District are examples of form-based zoning that are intended to promote compact, 
mixed use development through the use of flexible design standards and guidelines. 

The Mirabella development is zoned TND and had dome affordable units that expired after S 
years of initial ownership. The City’s Town Center development is also a TND and is a 
transportation hub for the City’s bus routes. 

The City has adopted a Transit Oriented Corridor (TOC) land use category along and near 
the State Road 7/U.S. 441 corridor that will specifically provides for higher density, mixed 
use development along the County’s busiest bus route. 

The Transit Oriented Corridor Zoning District (TOCD) has been adopted to implement the 
TOC land use, reinforcing the City’s efforts to achieve this objective. 

IV. 	EXHIBITS: 

A. Administrative Budget for each fiscal year covered in the Plan 
B. Timeline for Estimated Encumbrance and Expenditure 
C. Housing Delivery Goals Chart (HDGC) For Each Fiscal Year 

Covered in the plan 
D. Signed LHAP Certification 
E. Signed, dated, witnessed or attested adopting resolution 
F. Ordinance: (If changed from the original creating ordinance) 
G. Interlocal Agreement (If applicable) 
H. Other Documents Incorporated by Reference (If applicable) 
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Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 

Estimated Allocation for Calculating: $ 61,506.00 

Salaries and Benefits $ 55,006.00 

Office Supplies and Equipment $ 3,000.00 

Travel Per diem Workshops, etc. $ 2,500.00 

Advertising $ 1,000.00 
Other* $ - 

Total $ 61,506.00 

Fiscal Year: 2017-2018 

Estimated Allocation for Calculating: $ 61,506.00 

Salaries and Benefits $ 55,006.00 

Office Supplies and Equipment $ 3,000.00 

Travel Per diem Workshops, etc. $ 2,500.00 

Advertising $ 1,000.00 
Other* $ - 

Total $ 61,506.00 

Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

Estimated Allocation for Calculating: $ 61,506.00 

Salaries and Benefits $ 55,006.00 

Office Supplies and Equipment $ 3,000.00 

Travel Per diem Workshops, etc. $ 2,500.00 

Advertising $ 1,000.00 
Other* $ - 

Total $ 61,506.00 

*All other" items need to be detailed here and are subject to review and 
approval by the SHIP review committee. Project Delivery Costs that are 
outside of adminsitrative costs are not to be included here, but must be 
detailed in the LHAP main document. 
Details: 

I 

I 

1 



Exhibit B 

Timeline for SHIP Expenditures 

CITY OF MIRAMAR 	 affirms that funds allocated for these fiscal years will 
(local government) 

meet the following deadlines: 

Fiscal Year Encumbered Expended 1st Year AR 2 nd Year AR Closeout AR 

2016-2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019 9/15/2017 9/15/2018 9/15/2019 

2017-2018 6/30/2019 6/30/2020 9/15/2018 9/15/2019 9/15/2020 

6/30/2020 

-[:

2018-2019 6/30/2021 9/15/2019 9/15/2020 9/15/2021 

If funds allocated for these fiscal years is not anticipated to meet any of the deadlines in the table above, 

Florida Housing Finance Corporation will be notified according to the following chart: 

Fiscal Year Funds Not 
Encumbered 

Funds Not 
Expended 

ls Year AR 
Not 

Submitted 

2 nd Year AR 
Not 

Submitted 

Closeout AR 
Not 

Submitted 

2016-2017 3/30/2018 3/30/2019 6/15/2017 6/15/2018 6/15/2019 

2017-2018 3/30/2019 3/30/2020 6/15/2018 6/15/2019 6/15/2020 

2018-2019 3/30/2020 3/30/2021 6/15/2019 6/15/2020 6/15/2021 

Requests for Expenditure Extensions (close-out year ONLY) must be received by FHFC by June 15 of the 
year in which funds are required to be expended. The extension request shall be emailed to 

and j 	 jdahusingpjg and include: 

1. A statement that "(city/county) requests an extension to the expenditure deadline for fiscal 

year  

2. The amount of funds that is not expended. 

3. The amount of funds that is not encumbered or has been recaptured. 

4. A detailed plan of how/when the money will be expended. 

Note: an extension to the expenditure deadline (June 30) does not relieve the requirement to submit 
(September 15) the annual report online detailing ailfunds that have been expended. Please email 

when you are ready to "submit" the AR. 

Other Key Deadlines: 

AHAC reports are due for each local government by December 31 of the year prior to the local 

government’s LHAP being submitted. Local governments receiving the minimum or less allocation are not 

required to report. 
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FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 

	
Please check applicable box 

HOUSING DELIVERY GOALS CHART 

2016-2017 	 - 

Name of Local Government: 	 CITY OF MIRAMAR 	 Allocation: 	I 	$61 5 , 060 . 00T 

New Plan: 

Amendment: 

Fiscal Yr. Closeout: 

x 

2019 

Strategy # 

From Plan 
Text 

HOME OWNERSHIP 	
VU 

Code 	
STRATEGIES (strategy title must be 	

Units 
same as the title used in plan text. - 	 - 

Max. SHIP 	LI 

Award 	Units 
- 

Max. SHIP 	MI 

Award 	Units 
- 

Max. SHIP New Construction 

Award 	SHIP Dollars 

Rehab/Repair 

SHIP Dollars 

Without 

SHIP Dollars 

Total 

SHIP Dollars 

- 	Total 

Percentage 

Total 

Units 

3 	OWNER OCCUPIED REHABILITATION 	3 $50,000 	3 $50,000 	0 $50,000 $293,554.00 $293,554.00 4773% 6 

I 	PURCHASE ASSISTANCE WITH REHAB 	I $50000 	3 $40,000 	1 $30,000 	$50,000.00 $150,000.00 $200,000.00 3252% 5 

7 	FORECLOSURE PREVENTION 	 0 $10,000 	0 1 	$10,000 	0 $10,000 $0.00 0.00% 0 

5 	DISASTER REPAlRIMITIGATION 	 0 $50,000 	0 $50,000 	0 $50,000 $0.00 0.00% 0 

9 	ACQUISITION/REHABILITATION 	 0 $120,000 	0 $120,000 	0 $120,000 $0.00 0.00% 0 

6 	EMERGENCY REPAIR 	 1 $25,000 	1 $25,000 	0 $25,000 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 8.13% 2 

COMMUNITY LAND TRUST 	 0 $50,000 	0 $50,000 	0 $50,000 $0.00 0.00% 0 

$0.00 1 	0.00% 0 

Subtotal 1 (Home Ownership) 	 5 7 1 $50,000.00 $493,554.00 $0.001 $543,554.00 1 	88.37%1 13 

- RENTAL 	 VLI 

STRATEGIES 	 Units - 
Max. SHIP 	LI 

Award 	Units 

Max. SHIP 	Ml 

Award 	Units 

Max. SHIP New Construction 

Award 	SHIP Dollars 

Rehab/Repair 

SHIP Dollars - SHIP Dollars 

Total 

SHIP Dollars 

Total 

Percentage 

Total 

Units 

23 	SECURITY AND/OR UTILITY DEPOSITS 	0 $4,500 	0 $4,500 	0 $4,500  $0.00 0.00% 0 

$0.00 0.00% 0 

$0.00 0.00% 0 

$0.00 0.00% 0 

$0.00 0.00% 0 

Subtotal 2 (Non-Home Ownership) 	 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0-00%1 0 

Administration Fees  $61,506.00 10.00% 

Admin. From Program Income  0.00% 

Home Ownership Counseling - $10,000.00 1.63% __________ 

i IGRAND TOTAL 	 J 	j 
I 	IAdd Subtotals 1 & 2, plus all Admin. & II 	5 

j 	] 	 L 
I 	I 	7 I 	 1 I 	 $50,000.00 

I 
I 	$493,554.00 $0.00 

T 
$615,060.00 

I 	I 
100.00%I 

13 

Percentage Construction/Rehab 	 Calculate Constr./Rehab Percent by adding Grand Total Columns A&B, then divide by Annual Allocation Amt. 88%1 

I 	1 	Maximum Allowable 	 I __________________________ 
I 	[ 	Purchase Price: 	 - 	 . 	 New 	I 	$329,269 I 	Existing I 	$329,269 I 

Allocation Breakdown 	 Amount 	 % jProjected Program Income: 	 $0.00 IMax Amount Program Income For Admirl $0.00 I 
Very-Low Income 	 $225,000.00 	 36.6% 1Proiected Recaptured Funds: 	 $0.00 

Low Income 	 $245,000.00 	 39.8% Distribution: 	 $615,060.00 

Moderate Income 	 $80,000.00 	 13.0% Total Available Funds: 	 $615,060.00 

TOTAL 	 89.4% 



Exhibit D 
67-37.005(1), F.A.C. 

Effective Date: 10/14 

CERTIFICATION TO 
FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 

Local Government: CITY OF MIRAMAR 

(1) The local government will advertise the availability of SHIP funds pursuant to Florida 
Statutes. 

(2) All SHIP funds will be expended in a manner which will insure that there will be no 
discrimination on the basis of race, creed, religion, color, age, sex, familial or marital 
status, handicap, or national origin. 

(3) A process for selection of recipients for funds has been developed. 

(4) The eligible municipality or county has developed a qualification system for applications for 
awards. 

(5) Recipients of funds will be required to contractually commit to program guidelines. 

(6) The Florida Housing Finance Corporation will be notified promptly if the local government 
(or interlocal entity) will be unable to comply with the provisions the plan. 

(7) The Local Housing Assistance Plan shall provide for the expenditure of SHIP funds within 
24 months following the end of the State fiscal year in which they are received. 

(8) The plan conforms to the Local Government Comprehensive Plan, or that an amendment to 
the Local Government Comprehensive Plan will be initiated at the next available 
opportunity to insure conformance with the Local Housing Assistance Plan. 

(9) Amendments to the approved Local Housing Assistance Plan shall be provided to the 
Corporation within 21 days after adoption. 

(10) The trust fund shall be established with a qualified depository for all SHIP funds as well 
as moneys generated from activities such as interest earned on loans. 

(11) Amounts on deposit in the local housing assistance trust fund shall be invested as permitted 
by law. 

(12) The local housing assistance trust fund shall be separately stated as a special revenue fund in 
the local governments audited financial statements, copies of the audits will be forwarded to 
the Corporation as soon as available. 

13) 	An interlocal entity shall have its local housing assistance trust fund separately audited 
for each state fiscal year, and the audit forwarded to the Corporation as soon as possible. 

(14) SHIP funds will not be pledged for debt service on bonds or as rent subsidies. 
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67-37.005(1), F.A.C. 

Effective Date: 10/14 

(15) Developers receiving assistance from both SHIP and the Low Income Housing Tax 
Credit (LIHTC) Program shall comply with the income, affordability and other LIHTC 
requirements, similarly, any units receiving assistance from other federal programs shall 
comply with all Federal and SHIP program requirements. 

(16) Loans shall be provided for periods not exceeding 30 years, except for deferred payment 
loans or loans that extend beyond 30 years which continue to service eligible persons. 

(17) Rental Units constructed or rehabilitated with SHIP funds shall be monitored at least 
annually for 15 years for compliance with tenant income requirements and affordability 
requirements or as required in Section 420.9075 (3)(e) 

(18) The Plan meets the requirements of Section 420-907-9079 FS, and Rule Chapter 67-37 
FAC, and how each of those requirements shall be met. 

(19) The provisions of Chapter 83-220, Laws of Florida ____has or X  has not 
been implemented. 	 (note: Miami Dade County will check "has") 

Witness 
	

Chief Elected Official or designee 

Witness 

Date 

iE 

Attest: 
(Seal) 

Type Name and Title 

2 
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Public Notice 
City of Miramar 

State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP)  
Local Housing Assistance Plan (LHAP) 

For Fiscal Years 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019  
 

February 7, 2016 
 

Notice is hereby given by the City of Miramar that the State Housing Initiatives 
Partnership Local Housing Assistance Plan (SHIP LHAP) for Fiscal Years 2016-
2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 has been drafted and will be available to the 
public for review and comments between February 8, 2016 and March 9, 2016. 
 
The purpose of the Plan is to set forth strategies to increase the delivery of 
affordable housing within the City of Miramar pursuant to Section 420,907-9079, 
Florida Statutes and Rule Chapter 67-37, Florida Administrative Code.  
 
Public Comment  
 
Citizens are encouraged to review the Draft 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-
2019 Local Housing Assistance Plan (LHAP) and provide comment.  Copies of 
the Draft 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 LHAP are available for review 
and comment during the 30-day comment period commencing February 8, 2016 
and ending March 9, 2016.  The documents are available at the Office of the City 
Clerk located at Miramar City Hall, 2300 Civic Center Place, Miramar, Florida and 
the Community & Economic Development Department located at 2200 Civic 
Center Place Miramar, Florida 33025 between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 6:00 
P.M., Monday – Thursday. 
  
Prior to adoption, the City of Miramar Commission will hold a Public Hearing on 
the proposed 2016-2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 LHAP on March 23, 2016 at 
7:00 p.m. in the Commission Chambers at City Hall, located at 2300 Civic Center 
Place, Miramar, Florida. Interested parties are encouraged to attend and 
participate. 
 
For additional information regarding the proposed activities, please contact the 
Community & Economic Development Department at (954) 602-3265. 
  
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Florida Statutes 
286.26, persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to participate 
in this hearing should contact the Office of the City Clerk at least 48-hours prior 
to the hearing at (954) 602-3011 for assistance. 

City of Miramar 
Denise A. Gibbs, CMC 

City Clerk 



8.
QUASI-JUDICIAL
March 23, 2016

CITY OF MIRAMAR
PROPOSED CITY COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

Meeting Date: March 23, 2016

Second Reading Date: N/A

Presenter’s Name and Title: Eric Silva, Director, on behalf of Community and 
Economic Development Department

Temp Reso Number: 5997

Item Description:   Temp. Reso. No. 5997, CONSIDERING APPLICATION NO. 1505794, SITE 
PLAN APPROVAL FOR MPC30, A 71,466 SQUARE FOOT WAREHOUSE DISTRIBUTION BUILDING, 
TO BE LOCATED ON A 9.22-ACRE VACANT LOT AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF EXECUTIVE 
WAY AND MIRAMAR PARKWAY WITHIN MIRAMAR PARK OF COMMERCE PHASE III. (Community 
and Economic Development Director Eric Silva) 

Consent Resolution Ordinance Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing 

Summary Explanation and Background: The Applicant seeks site plan approval for a 71,466
square foot warehouse distribution building, located on a 9.22-acre lot.

Instructions for the Office of the City Clerk: 

Public Notice – As Required by Sec.  of the City Code  and/or Sec. , Florida Statutes, public notice for this item was 

provided as follows: on , in a ad in the ; by posting the property on March 9, 2016 and/or by sending mailed notice to 

property owners within 1,000 feet of the property on March 9, 2016.  (Fill in all that apply)

Special Voting Requirement – As required by Sec. , of the City Code and/or Sec. Florida Statutes, approval of this item 

requires a (unanimous 4/5ths etc. vote of the City Commission.

Fiscal Impact:  Yes No 

REMARKS: 

Content: 
•  Agenda Item Memo from the City Manager to City Commission
•  Resolution TR No. 5997
•  Exhibit(s)

 - Exhibit A
•  Attachment(s)

 - Attachment 1: Location Map and Aerial View
 - Attachment 2: Project Plans
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Temp. Reso. No. 5997
2/16/16
3/14/16

CITY OF MIRAMAR
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA

RESOLUTION NO. _______

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA, CONSIDERING APPLICATION NO. 1505794, 
SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR MPC30, A 71,466 SQUARE FOOT 
WAREHOUSE DISTRIBUTION BUILDING, TO BE LOCATED ON A 
9.22-ACRE VACANT LOT AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 
EXECUTIVE WAY AND MIRAMAR PARKWAY WITHIN MIRAMAR 
PARK OF COMMERCE PHASE III; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Sunbeam Development Corporation, an Indiana Corporation, has 

submitted Application No. 1505794, for site plan review as provided for in Section 511 

of the Land Development Code (“LDC”), for property generally located West of 

Executive Way and North of Miramar Parkway; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 511.6 of the LDC, the Development Review 

Committee (“DRC”) evaluated the site plan application and has made a determination 

that the site plan is in substantial conformance with the applicable requirements, 

including those set forth in Sections 511.4 and 511.6 of the LDC; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has complied with the courtesy notice requirements of 

Section 501.11 of the LDC; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends approval; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds that the approval of the site plan is in the 

best interest of the citizens and residents of the City of Miramar.

Reso. No. _____



Temp. Reso. No. 5997
2/16/16
3/14/16

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF MIRAMAR, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed 

as being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Resolution.  

Section 2: That it finds that the site plan application for MPC30 is in substantial 

compliance with the requirements of Section 511 of the Land Development Code.

Section 3: That it hereby approves Application No. 15015794, Site Plan for 

MPC30, which Site Plan is described more fully in the attached Exhibit “A”, as 

recommended for approval by the DRC on February 11, 2016.

Section 4: That the following condition shall apply to this approval:

1. All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before 
commencement of the development subject to this approval.

Section 5: That issuance of this approval by the City does not in any way

create any right on the part of an applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal

agency and does not create any liability on the part of the City for issuance of the

approval if the applicant fails to obtain the requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations

imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes actions that result in the violation of

state or federal law.  All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before

commencement of the development.  This condition is included pursuant to Section 

166.033, Florida Statutes, as amended.

Reso. No. _____ 2



Temp. Reso. No. 5997
2/16/16
3/14/16

Section 6: That failure to adhere to the approval terms and conditions 

contained in this Resolution shall be considered a violation of this Resolution and the 

City Code, and persons found violating this Resolution shall be subject to the penalties 

prescribed by the City Code, including but not limited to the revocation of any of the 

approval(s) granted in this Resolution and any other approvals conditioned on this 

approval.  The applicant understands and acknowledges that it must comply with all 

other applicable requirements of the City Code before it may commence construction or 

operation, and that the foregoing approval in this Resolution may be revoked by the City 

at any time upon a determination that the applicant is in non-compliance with the City 

Code.

Reso. No. _____ 3



Temp. Reso. No. 5997
2/16/16
3/14/16

Section 7: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ____________________, 2016.

________________________________
Mayor, Wayne M. Messam

________________________________
Vice Mayor, Darline B. Riggs

ATTEST:

______________________________  
City Clerk, Denise A. Gibbs

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have 
approved this RESOLUTION 
as to form:

_______________________________
City Attorney
Weiss Serota Helfman 
Cole & Bierman, P.L.

Requested by Administration Voted
Commissioner Winston F. Barnes _____
Commissioner Maxwell B. Chambers _____
Commissioner Yvette Colbourne _____
Vice Mayor Darline B. Riggs _____
Mayor Wayne M. Messam _____

Reso. No. _____ 4



EXHIBIT A 

The Site Plan consists of the seven (7) page set of drawings entitled MPC-30 Phase III 

Miramar Park of Commerce prepared by Scott D. Dyer Architect, P.A. of Boynton 

Beach, FL, Comm. #15-044, dated November 30, 2015, including a cover sheet 

(undated), sheets A-1, A-4, A-5, PH-1, all with last date of revision being February 1, 

2016; sheets A-2 and A-3 with no date of revision; the four (4) page set of drawings 

prepared by Murakami Landscape Architects, Inc. of Delray Beach, FL, entitled MPC 30 

Miramar Park of Commerce, with no job or project number, including sheets  L-1 and L-

2, dated December 21, 2015, with last date of revision being February 2, 2016; sheets 

L-3 and L-4, dated November30, 2015 with no date of revision; the eleven (11) page set 

of drawings entitled MPOC #30 Miramar Park of Commerce Phase III or Miramar Park 

of Commerce #30 MPC - Phase III,  prepared by Flynn Engineering Services, P.A., of 

Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, FL, Job # 98-1024.0, with a Cover Sheet with a plot date of 

January 29, 2016, with no revision, Sheets C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-5, FP-1, and FP-2, all 

dated November 30, 2015 with a plot date of January 29, 2016, with no date of revision, 

Sheets C-6 and C-8,  dated November 30, 2015 with a plot date of November 30, 2016, 

with no date of revision, Sheet C-7.5, dated November 30, 2015 with a plot date of 

December 22, 2015, with no date of revision; and the five (5) page set of drawings 

entitled City of Miramar Department of Construction & Facilities Management, prepared 

by the City of Miramar, Miramar, FL, with no job #, with Sheet C-5A marked “Roadway”, 

with no date and with a last date of revision of July 30, 2014, Sheets C-7.1 and C-7.2, 

both marked “Utilities”, with no date of last revision, with Sheet C-7.3 marked “Utilities”, 

with no date and with a last date of revision of August 6, 2015, and Sheet C-7.4 marked 

“Utilities”, with no date and with a last date of revision of July 30, 2015. 

The Site Plan is for real property legally described as situate and lying in the State of 

Florida, County of Broward, to-wit: 

A portion of Parcel “D”, according to the plat of Miramar Park of 

Commerce Phase III, as recorded in Plat Book 161, at Page 29, of the 

Public Records of Broward County, Florida, being more particularly 

described as follows: 

Commence at the Northwest Corner of said Parcel “M-1”, as shown on the 

plat of Miramar Park of Commerce Phase III; Thence South 02°12’41” 

East, along the West line of said Parcel “D” for 1039.50 feet to the Point of 

Beginning of the following described parcel; Thence North 87°47’19” East, 

at right angles to the last described course and along a line that is 1039.50 

feet South of, as measured at right angles, to the North line of said Parcel 

“D” for 558.10 feet to a point on the next described circular curve; said 

point bears South 65°58’32” West from the radius point of the following 

described circular curve; Thence Southeasterly, along said circular curve 

to the left, having a radius of 402.34 feet and a central angle of 18°37’06”  



EXHIBIT A 

for an arc distance of 130.74 feet to a point of tangency; Thence South 

42°38’34” East for 100.94 feet to a point of curvature; Thence 

Southeasterly along said circular curve to the right, having a radius of 

509.00 feet and a central angle of 40°29’03” for a arc distance of 359.63 

feet to a point on said circular; South 42°50’30” West for 49.50 feet; said 

last described four courses being along the East line of Parcel “D”, also 

being the West right-of-way line of Executive Way as shown on the plat of 

“Miramar Park of Commerce Phase III”; Thence South 87°50’29” West for 

493.05 feet to a point of curvature; Thence Southwesterly, along said 

circular curve to the left, having a radius of 2651.71 feet and a central 

angle of 06°09’16” for an arc distance of 284.84 feet to a point on said 

circular curve; said last described two courses being coincident with the 

North right-of-way line of Miramar Parkway, as shown on the said plat of 

“Miramar Park of Commerce Phase III”; Thence North 02°12’41” West, 

along the West line of said Parcel “D”, for 568.38 feet to the Point of 

Beginning; all lying and being in the North ½ of Section 30, Township 51 

South, Range 41 East, City of Miramar, Broward County, Florida (copied 

from the cover sheet entitled MPC-30 Phase III Miramar Park of 

Commerce of the aforedescribed Site Plan. 
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